NEW ISSUE - BOOK-ENTRY ONLY RATING: S&P: “AAA”
UNDERLYING RATING: S&P: “A+”
(See “RATINGS” herein.)

In the opinion of Pillsbury Winthrop LLP. Los Angeles, California, Bond Counsel, based upon an analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings. and judicial
decisions and assuming, among other matters, compliance with certain covenants and requirements described herein. interest on the Bonds is excludable from gross
income for federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and is exempt from State of California personal income
taxes. In the further opinion of Bond Counsel, interest on the Bonds is not a specific preference item for purposes of federal individual or corporate alternative
minimum taxes, although Bond Counsel observes that such interest is included in adjusted current earnings in calculating federal corporate alternative minimum
taxable income. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding other tax consequences relating to the ownership or disposition of. or the accrual or receipt of interest

on, the Bonds. See¢ “TAX MATTERS” herein.
$43,785,000
CITY OF OXNARD FINANCING AUTHORITY
WASTEWATER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS
SERIES 2003

Dated: Date of Delivery Due: June 1, as shown below

THIS COVER PAGE CONTAINS CERTAIN INFORMATION FOR QUICK REFERENCE ONLY. ITISNOT A SUMMARY OF THIS ISSUE.INVESTORS MUST
READ THE ENTIRE OFFICIAL STATEMENT TO OBTAIN INFORMATION ESSENTIAL TO THE MAKING OF AN INFORMED INVESTMENT DECISION.

The City of Oxnard Financing Authority Wastewater Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2003 (the “Bonds™). are being issued in the aggregate principal amount of
$43.785.000 by the City of Oxnard Financing Authority (the “Authority™) pursuant to Article 11 (commencing with Section 53580) of Chapter 3 of Part | of Division
2 of Title 5 of the California Government Code and the provisions of an Indenture, dated as of March 1. 2003 (the “Indenture™). by and between the Authority and
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association. as trustee (the “Trustee”). The proceeds of the Bonds will be used (i) to refund the 1993 Bonds (as defined herein), and (ii) to
finance certain costs of issuance related thereto. Sec “THE REFUNDING PLAN” and “APPENDIX A — Summary of Certain Provisions of Indenture and Installment
Purchase Agreement’” herein. Capitalized terms used on this cover page and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings ascribed 10 them elsewhere in this Official
Statement. Sec in particular “APPENDIX A — Summary ot Certain Provisions of Indenture and Installment Purchase Agreement — Selected Definitions™ herein.

The Bonds will be delivered as fully registered bonds without coupons and, when delivered, will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominec of The
Depository Trust Company, New York. New York (“DTC"™). DTC will act as securities depository of the Bonds. Individual purchases may be made in book-entry form
only, in the principal amount of $5,000 or integral multiples thereof for each maturity. Purchasers will not receive certificates rcpresenting their interest in the Bonds
purchased. See “THE BONDS - Book-Entry Only System™ herein.

Payments of interest on the Bonds will be made by the Trustee to DTC, which will in turn remit such principal and interest to its participants for subsequent
dispersal to beneficial owners of the Bonds as described hercin. Interest on the Bonds is payable semiannually on each June 1 and December 1, commencing June |,
2003. until the maturity or the earlier redemption thereof. Principal and any redemption premiums with respect to each Bond will be paid upon surrender of such Bond
at the principal corporate officc of the Trustee upon maturity or the earlier redemption thereof.

The Bonds are subject to optional redemption prior to their stated maturities as described herein.

Payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds when due will be insured by a municipal bond insurance policy to be issucd by Financial Guaranty Insurance
Company, doing business in California as FGIC Insurance Company, simultaneously with the delivery of the Bonds.

SR [inancial Guaranty Insurance
FGIC. Company
FGIC is a registered serviee wark used by Finaneint Guuranty Insurance Company, 8 private compuoy not affilisted with any 1.5, Goserament ageory.

The Bonds are payable solely from Revenues. consisting primarily of Installment Payments 1o be made by the City pursuant to an Amended and Restated
Installment Purchase Agreecment. dated as of March 1, 2003 (the “Installment Purchase Agreement”), by and betwecn the Authority and the City of Oxnard (thc
*City”). The Installment Payments arc a special limited obligation of the City, payable from and secured by a pledge of and licn on (i) all Net System Revenues, and
(ii) all moneys in the funds and accounts established under the Indenture (other than amounts on deposit in the Rebate Fund and the Costs of Issuance Fund). Pursuant
to the Installment Purchase Agrecment, the City may incur Additional Obligations secured by Net Systcm Revenues on a parity with the Installment Payments to the
cxtent the City can provide evidence that the Net System Revenues will be sufficient to meet certain debt coverage requircments as described herein. See “SECURITY
FOR THE BONDS - Limitations Rcgarding Additional Obligations™ herein.

THE BONDS ARE LIMITED OBLIGATIONS OF THE AUTHORITY PAYABLE SOLELY FROM AND SECURED SOLELY BY THE REVENUES
PLEDGED THEREFOR UNDER THE INDENTURE. THE BONDS DO NOT CONSTITUTE AN OBLIGATION OF THE AUTHORITY FOR WHICH THE
AUTHORITY IS OBLIGATED TO LEVY OR PLEDGE ANY FORM OF TAXATION OR FOR WHICH THE AUTHORITY HAS LEVIED OR PLEDGED ANY
FORM OF TAXATION. THE OBLIGATION OF THE CITY TO MAKE INSTALLMENTPAYMENTS UNDER THE INSTALLMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT
DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN OBLIGATION OF THE CITY FOR WHICH THE CITY IS OBLIGATED TO LEVY OR PLEDGE ANY FORM OF TAXATION
OR FOR WHICH THE CITY HAS LEVIED OR PLEDGED ANY FORM OF TAXATION. NEITHER THE FULL FAITH AND CREDIT NOR THE TAXING
POWER OF THE CITY, THE COUNTY OF VENTURA (THE “COUNTY™), THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA (THE “STATE”). OR ANY POLITICAL
SUBDIVISION OF THE STATE IS PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF OR INTEREST ON THE BONDS. NEITHER THE BONDS NOR
THE OBLIGATION OF THE CITY TO MAKE INSTALLMENT PAYMENTS CONSTITUTES AN INDEBTEDNESS OF THE AUTHORITY. THE CITY. THE
COUNTY. THE STATE. OR ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF THE STATE WITHIN THE MEANING OF ANY CONSTITUTIONAL OR STATUTORY
DEBT LIMITATION OR RESTRICTION.

MATURITY SCHEDULE

Maturity Base Maturity Basc
Date Principal  Interest cusip Date Principal  Interest cusip'

(June 1) Amount Rate Yicld Price No. 691874 (June 1) Amount Rate Yield Price No. 691874
2003  $1.805.000 2.000% 1.000% 100.165% AUS5 2010  $2.175,000 3.000%  3.100% 99.359% BG5
2004 250,000 2.000 1.120 101.016 AV3 2011 2.240.000 5.000 3.460 110.870 BH3
2004 1,500.000 4.000 1.120 103.327 AW1 2012 2,355,000 5.000 3.600 110.843 BJ9
2005 250.000 2.000 1.280 101.533 AX9 2013 2,470,000 5.000 3.700 110.927 BK6
2005 1.565.000 4.000 1.280 105.792 AY7 2014 2.595,000 5.250 3.800 112.128@ BL4
2006 400,000 2.000 1.600 101.229 AZ4 2015 2,730,000 5.250 3.900 111.235@ BM2
2006 1.485.000 4.000 1.600 107.380 BA8 2016 2,875.000 5.000 4.040 107.933 BNO
2007 1.150,000 4.000 2.000 107.955 BB6 2017 3,015,000 5.000 4.170 106.815 BP5
2007 800.000 5.000 2.000 111.933 BC4 2018 3.170,000 5.000 4.270 105.963@ BQ3
2008 1.535.000 3.000 2.400 102.897 BD2 2019 3.325.000 5.000 4.360 105.205 BR1
2008 500,000 4.000 2.400 107.728 BEO 2020 3.495,000 5.000 4.450 104.452 BS9
2009 2.100,000 3.500 2.750 104.224 BF7

(' Copyright 2003. American Bankers Association. CUSIP data herein is provided by Standard & Poor’s CUSIP Service Burcau. a division of The McGraw-Hill Companics. Inc. This data
is not intended (o create a database and does not serve in any way as a substitute for the CUSIP services.
) Priced to the June 1. 2013 redemption date at 100%. without premivm.
The Bonds are offered when, as and if delivered to and received by the Underwriter, subject to the approval of legality by Pillsbury Winthrop LLP. Los Angeles,
California. Bond Counsel. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the City and the Authority by the City Attorney and by Disclosure Counsel. Pillsbury Winthrop
LLP Los Angeles. California. It is anticipated that the Bonds in book-entry form will be available for delivery to DTC in New York, New York on or about April 1. 2003.

E.]. DE LA ROSA & CO., INC.

Dated: March 18. 2003.



No dcaler, broker, salesperson or other person has been authorized by the City, the Authority or
the Underwriter to give any information or to make any representations other than those contained in this
Official Statement, and, if given or made, such other information or representations must not be relied
upon as having been authorized by any of the foregoing. This Official Statement does not constitute an
offer to scll or the solicitation of an offer to buy. nor will there be any sale of thc Bonds by any person in
any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such person to make such offer, solicitation or sale.

This Official Statement is not to be construed to be a contract with the purchasers of the Bonds.
Statements contained in this Official Statement which involve estimates. forecasts or matters of opinion,
whether or not cxpressly described as such herein, arc intended solcly as such and arc not to be construcd
as represcntations of fact.

The information sct forth herein has been obtained from the City and other sources which arc
believed to be reliable, but it is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness, and it is not to be
construed as a representation by the City or the Authority. The information and expressions of opinion
herein arc subject to change without notice, and ncither the delivery of this Official Statcment nor any
salc made hercunder will, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change
in the affairs of the City or the Authority since the date hereof.

The Underwriter has provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement:
The Underwriter has reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with. and as part
of, its responsibilitics to investors under the federal sccuritics laws as applied to the facts and
circumstances of this transaction, but the Undcrwriter docs not guarantce the accuracy or completencss of
such information.

This Official Statement is submitted in connection with the sale of the Bonds referred to herein
and may not be reproduced or used. in whole or in part, for any other purpose.

THE BONDS HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933,
AS AMENDED, IN RELIANCE UPON AN EXEMPTION CONTAINED IN SUCH ACT. THE
BONDS HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED OR QUALIFIED UNDER THE SECURITIES LAWS OF
ANY STATE.

IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING. THE UNDERWRITER MAY OVERALLOT OR
EFFECT TRANSACTIONS WHICH STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICE OF THE
BONDS AT A LEVEL ABOVE THAT WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL. IN THE OPEN
MARKET. SUCH STABILIZING. I[F COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME.
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$43,785,000
CITY OF OXNARD FINANCING AUTHORITY
WASTEWATER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS
SERIES 2003

INTRODUCTION

General

This Official Statement, which includes the cover page, Table of Contents and Appendices (the
“Official Statement”), provides certain information concerning the sale and delivery of the City of Oxnard
Financing Authority Wastewater Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2003 (the “Bonds”), in an aggregate
amount of $43,785,000. Descriptions and summaries of various documents hereinafter set forth do not
purport to be comprehensive or definitive, and reference is made to each such document for complete
details of all terms and conditions therein. All statements in this Official Statement are qualified in their
entirety by reference to the applicable documents.

This Introduction is subject in all respects to the more complete information contained elsewhere
in this Official Statement, and the offering of the Bonds to potential investors is made only by means of
the entire Official Statement. Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein shall have the
meanings ascribed to them in Appendix A entitled “Summary of Certain Provisions of Indenture and
Installment Purchase Agreement.”

Authorization

The Bonds are being issued by the City of Oxnard Financing Authority (the “Authority”), a joint
exercise of powers entity duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of
California, pursuant to Article 11 (commencing with Section 53580) of Chapter 3 of Part 1 of Division 2
of Title 5 of the California Government Code (the “Act) and the provisions of an Indenture, dated as of
March 1, 2003 (the “Indenture”), by and between the Authority and Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association, as trustee (the “Trustee™).

Purpose of Issuance

The proceeds of the Bonds will be used (i) to refund the 1993 Bonds (as hereinafter defined), the
proceeds of which were used to refinance the Project (as hereinafter defined), and (ii) to pay the costs of
issuance of the Bonds. See “THE REFUNDING PLAN” and “THE PROJECT” herein.

Registration, Maturity and Payment of Bonds

The Bonds will be initially registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for The Depository
Trust Company, which will act as securities depository for the Bonds. The Bonds will be dated the date
of their initial delivery and will mature on the dates and in the principal amounts set forth on the cover
page hereof.

Interest on the Bonds is payable semiannually on June 1 and December 1, commencing
June 1, 2003, and will be paid by check, mailed by first class mail to the registered owners thereof as of
the applicable Record Date; provided, however, that any registered owner of $1,000,000 or more in
aggregate principal amount of Bonds may request in writing payment of such interest by wire transfer in
immediately available funds to a designated account. Principal of and any redemption premium with
respect to each Bond will be payable upon surrender of such Bond at the principal corporate trust office of



the Trustee in Los Angeles, California, upon the maturity or earlier redemption thereof. See “THE
BONDS - Payment of Principal and Interest” herein.

Redemption

The Bonds maturing on or before June 1, 2013 are not subject to optional redemption prior to
maturity. The Bonds maturing on or after June 1, 2014 are subject to optional redemption at the option of
the City on or after June 1, 2013, as a whole or in part, on any Interest Payment Date, without premium.
See “THE BONDS - Optional Redemption of Bonds” herein.

Security for the Bonds

The Bonds are limited obligations of the Authority and are payable solely from Revenues
received by the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture. Such Revenues are derived from the Installment
Payments to be made by the City to the Authority pursuant to the Installment Purchase Agreement, and
the interest or profits from the investment of moneys on deposit in certain funds held under the Indenture.
The Installment Payments are payable solely from Net System Revenues, which are comprised of System
Revenues less Maintenance and Operation Costs of the Wastewater System. The obligation of the City to
make Installment Payments is secured by a pledge of and lien on the Net System Revenues. Pursuant to
the Installment Purchase Agreement, the City may incur Additional Obligations secured by the Net
System Revenues on a parity with the Installment Payments to the extent the City can provide evidence
that the Net System Revenues will be sufficient to meet certain debt coverage requirements as described
herein. See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS” herein.

Pursuant to the Indenture, the City will be required to maintain amounts on deposit (or obtain a
qualified reserve fund insurance policy in lieu of such deposit) in the Reserve Fund, which is held by the
Trustee and pledged to the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds, in an amount equal to the
Reserve Requirement. See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS - Reserve Fund” and “APPENDIX A —
Summary of Certain Provisions of Principal Legal Documents — Indenture” herein.

Concurrently with the issuance of the Bonds, Financial Guaranty Insurance Company, doing
business in California as FGIC Insurance Company (the “Bond Insurer” or “Financial Guaranty”), will
issue its Bond Insurance Policy (as defined herein) insuring payment of the principal of and interest on
the Bonds as the same shall become due (other than by reason of acceleration or advance redemption), as
further described herein. Concurrently with the issuance of the 1993 Bonds, Financial Guaranty issued a
qualified reserve fund policy in satisfaction of the reserve requirement with respect to the reserve fund for
the 1993 Bonds (the “1993 Reserve Fund”). In connection with the issuance of the Bonds, Financial
Guaranty and the Authority will acknowledge and agree that, and will amend any related agreements to
provide that, on and after the date of issuance of the Bonds, the Reserve Fund Policy will apply to, and
will satisfy the Reserve Requirement with respect to, the Reserve Fund for the Bonds. See
“MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE” herein.

Rate Covenant

The Installment Purchase Agreement provides that the City will fix, prescribe and collect rates
and charges for the Wastewater System which will be at least sufficient to yield during each Fiscal Year
Net System Revenues equal to the sum of (a) one-hundred percent (100%) of the Debt Service (i.e.,
principal, interest and redemption premiums due with respect to all outstanding Bonds and any parity
obligations) for such Fiscal Year and certain costs due and owing under the Reserve Fund Policy, if any,
plus (b) the amount by which the amount on deposit in the Wastewater Revenue Fund (as defined in the
Installment Purchase Agreement) on the last day of the immediately preceding Fiscal Year was less than



twenty-five percent (25%) of Maximum Annual Debt Service as of such day. The City may make
adjustments from time to time in such rates and charges and may make such classification thereof as it
deems necessary, but shall not reduce the rates and charges then in effect unless the Net System Revenues
from such reduced rates and charges will at all times be sufficient to meet the requirements described
above. See “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS - Rate Covenant” herein.

Continuing Disclosure

The Authority will covenant in the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, dated the date of issuance
of the Bonds, by and between the Authority and the Trustee, as dissemination agent (the “Continuing
Disclosure A greement”), to provide certain financial information and operating data relating to the City
and the Authority and notices of certain events, if material. Such information and notices will be filed by
the Authority with certain Nationally Recognized Municipal Securities Repositories. See “CONTINUING
DISCLOSURE” and “APPENDIX E — Form of Continuing Disclosure Agreement” herein.

Limited Obligations

The Bonds are limited obligations of the Authority payable solely from and secured solely
by the Revenues pledged therefor under the Indenture. The Bonds do not constitute an obligation
of the Authority for which the Authority is obligated to levy or pledge any form of taxation or for
which the Authority has levied or pledged any form of taxation. The obligation of the City to make
Installment Payments under the Installment Purchase Agreement does not constitute an obligation
of the City for which the City is obligated to levy or pledge any form of taxation or for which the
City has levied or pledged any form of taxation. Neither the full faith and credit nor the taxing
power of City, the County of Ventura (the “County”), the State of California (the “State”), or any
political subdivision of the State is pledged to the payment of the principal of or interest on the
Bonds. Neither the Bonds nor the obligation of the City to make Installment Payments constitutes
an indebtedness of the Authority, the City, the County, the State, or any political subdivision of the
State within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory debt limitation or restriction. For
certain financial information with respect to the City and the Wastewater System, see “THE
WASTEWATER SYSTEMS” herein.

THE BONDS
Authorization and Payment of Bonds

The Bonds are being issued pursuant to the Act and the provisions of the Indenture. The Bonds
will be dated the date of their initial delivery and will mature on the dates and in the principal amounts set
forth on the cover page hereof. Interest on the Bonds will be paid semiannually on each June 1 and
December 1, commencing June 1, 2003 (each, an “Interest Payment Date™), to registered owners recorded
in the registration books kept by the Trustee as of the fifteenth day of the month preceding the applicable
Interest Payment Date (the “Record Date”). Interest will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year
comprised of twelve, 30-day months.

The Bonds will be issued as fully registered bonds in the denomination of $5,000 each or any
integral multiple thereof. Principal of and redemption premium, if any, on each Bond will be payable
upon surrender of such Bond at the principal corporate trust office of the Trustee in Los Angeles,
California, upon the maturity or earlier redemption thereof. Interest will be payable by check, mailed to
the registered owners of the Bonds as of the applicable Record Date at their addresses as they appear on
the Bond register maintained by the Trustee; provided, however, that interest payable to an owner of
$1,000,000 or more aggregate principal amount of Bonds will be paid by wire transfer to such account



within the United States as such owner shall have specified in writing prior to the applicable Record Date
to the Trustee for such purpose. Certain of the provisions described above will not apply as long as the
Bonds are in a book-entry only system. See “THE BONDS — Book-Entry Only System” below.

Optional Redemption of Bonds

The Bonds maturing on or before June 1, 2013 are not subject to optional redemption prior to
maturity. The Bonds maturing on or after June 1, 2014 are subject to optional redemption prior to their
respective stated maturities upon the exercise by the City of its right to cause such early redemption of
Bonds under the Installment Purchase Agreement, from and to the extent of any source of available funds,
as a whole or in part, on any Interest Payment Date on or after June 1, 2013, without premium. Pursuant
to the Installment Purchase Agreement, the City will designate in its written notice to the Trustee and the
Bond Insurer the principal amounts and maturities of the Bonds to be so redeemed.

Notice of Redemption

Upon deposit with the Trustee of an amount sufficient to redeem the Bonds as provided in the
Indenture, notice of redemption will be mailed first-class mail by the Trustee, not less than thirty (30) nor
more than sixty (60) days prior to the redemption date, to (i) the respective registered owners of the
Bonds designated for redemption at their addresses appearing on the registration books of the Trustee,
(i1) the Bond Insurer, (iii) the Securities Depositories, and (iv) the Information Services. Notice of
redemption to the Securities Depositories and the Information Services will be given by certified or
registered mail, overnight delivery or confirmed facsimile transmission. Each notice of redemption shall
state the redemption date, the redemption price (if any), the CUSIP number of the maturity or maturities,
and, if less than all of any such maturity is to be redeemed, the distinctive certificate numbers of the
Bonds of such maturity to be redeemed and, in the case of Bonds to be redeemed in part only, the
respective portions of the principal amount thereof to be redeemed. Each such notice will also state that
on the redemption date there will become due and payable on the Bonds to be redeemed, all or the
principal amount thereof on the redemption date, and that from and after such redemption date interest
thereon shall cease to accrue, and will require that such Bonds be then surrendered at the address of the
Trustee specified in the redemption notice.

Failure by the Trustee to give notice as described in this paragraph to any one or more of the
Information Services or Securities Depositories, or the insufficiency of any such notice, shall not affect
the sufficiency of the proceedings for redemption. Failure by the Trustee to mail notice of redemption as
described in this paragraph to any one or more of the respective registered owners of any Bonds
designated for redemption shall not affect the sufficiency of the proceedings for redemption with respect
to the registered owners to whom such notice was mailed.

Book-Entry Only System

The Bonds will be initially delivered in the form of one fully registered Bond for each of the
maturities of the Bonds, registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, as registered owner of
all the Bonds. The following description of DTC and its book-entry system has been provided by DTC
and has not been verified for accuracy or completeness by the City or the Authority, and neither the City
nor the Authority shall have any liability with respect thereto. Neither the City nor the Authority shall
have any responsibility or liability for any aspects of the records maintained by DTC relating to or
payments made on account of beneficial ownership, or for maintaining, supervising, or reviewing any
records maintained by DTC relating to beneficial ownership, of interests in the Bonds.



DTC is a limited purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a “banking
organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve
System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code and a
“clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. DTC holds securities that its participants (the “Participants”) deposit with DTC. DTC also
facilitates the settlement among Participants of securities transactions, such as transfers and pledges, in
deposited securities through electronic computerized book-entry changes in Participants’ accounts,
thereby eliminating the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants (“Direct
Participants™) include securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations and
certain other organizations. DTC is owned by a number of its Direct Participants and by the New York
Stock Exchange, Inc., the American Stock Exchange, Inc., and the National Association of Securities
Dealers, Inc. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as securities brokers and dealers,
banks, and trust companies that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct
Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”). The rules applicable to DTC and its
Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Purchases of the Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants,
which will receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC’s records. The ownership interest of each actual
purchaser of each Bond (“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect
Participants’ records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their
purchase, but Beneficial Owners are expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the
transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant
through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the
Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial
Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in the
Bonds except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Participants with DTC are registered in
the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co. or such other name as requested by an authorized
representative of DTC. The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co.
or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of
the actual Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the Direct
Participants to whose accounts such Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners.
The Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their
customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct
Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial
Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory
requirements as may be in effect from time to time.

Beneficial Owners of the Bonds may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to
them of notices of significant events with respect to the Bonds, such as redemptions and defaults.
Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Bonds for their benefit
has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners or in the alternative, Beneficial Owners
may wish to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices be
provided directly to them.



REDEMPTION NOTICES SHALL BE SENT BY THE TRUSTEE TO DTC. IF LESS
THAN ALL OF THE BONDS ARE BEING REDEEMED, DTC’S PRACTICE IS TO
DETERMINE BY LOT THE AMOUNT OF THE INTEREST OF EACH DIRECT
PARTICIPANT IN SUCH ISSUE TO BE REDEEMED.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor such other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to
the Bonds. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the City or the Authority as soon
as possible after the Record Date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights
to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the Bonds are credited on the Record Date (identified in a
listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Principal and interest payments with respect the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co. or such other
nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC’s practice is to credit Direct
Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the City or
the Trustee, on the payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s records.
Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary
practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in
“street name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC (or its nominee), the
Trustee, or the City or Authority, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effiect
from time to time. Payment of principal and interest to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be
requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the City or the Trustee,
disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants shall be the responsibility of DTC, and
disbursement of such payments to Beneficial Owners is the responsibility of Direct and Indirect
Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services with respect to the Bonds at any time by giving
reasonable notice to the City, the Authority or the Trustee. Under such circumstances, in the event that a
successor securities depository is not obtained, Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered
in accordance with the terms of the Bond Resolution.

THE INFORMATION IN THIS SECTION CONCERNING DTC AND DTC’S BOOK-ENTRY
SYSTEM HAS BEEN OBTAINED FROM SOURCES THAT THE CITY AND THE AUTHORITY
BELIEVE TO BE RELIABLE, BUT NEITHER THE CITY NOR THE AUTHORITY TAKES ANY
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY THEREOF. NEITHER THE CITY NOR THE
AUTHORITY GIVES ANY ASSURANCES THAT DTC WILL DISTRIBUTE PAYMENTS TO DTC
PARTICIPANTS OR THAT PARTICIPANTS OR OTHERS WILL DISTRIBUTE PAYMENTS WITH
RESPECT TO THE BONDS RECEIVED BY DTC OR ITS NOMINEES AS THE REGISTERED
OWNER, ANY REDEMPTION NOTICES, OR OTHER NOTICES TO THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS,
OR THAT THEY WILL DO SO ON A TIMELY BASIS, OR THAT DTC WILL SERVE AND ACT IN
THE MANNER DESCRIBED IN THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT.

THE REFUNDING PLAN
The 1993 Bonds

A portion of the proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used to refund the outstanding City
of Oxnard Financing Authority Wastewater Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1993, which were issued
by the Authority on August 12, 1993, in the aggregate principal amount of $59,530,000 (the “1993
Bonds”). The 1993 Bonds were issued by the Authority to provide moneys to refund all or a portion of
three previously outstanding bond issues: (i) the Oxnard-Port Hueneme Regional Wastewater Treatment
Authority (Ventura County, California) Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 1977 (the “1977 Bonds”), (ii) the



City of Oxnard Public Facilities Corporation Certificates of Participation (River Ridge Sports Facility,
Wastewater Treatment Plant and Corporate Yard Property) (the “1985 Certificates™), and (iii) the City of
Oxnard Public Facilities Corporation Certificates of Participation (Wastewater Treatment Plant Project)
(the “1986 Certificates” and, together with the 1977 Bonds and the 1985 Certificates, the “Prior
Obligations”). The proceeds of the Prior Obligations were used to acquire, construct and install certain
wastewater treatment facilities of the City, described under the heading “THE PROJECT.”

The Refunding Plan

The 1993 Bonds will be refunded and defeased in accordance with the terms of that certain
Indenture, dated as of June 1, 1993 (the “1993 Indenture™), by and between the Authority and the Trustee,
acting as trustee for the 1993 Bonds (the “1993 Trustee”). On the date of delivery of the Bonds, a
portion of the proceeds from the sale of the Bonds (the “Refunding Proceeds”), together with certain
moneys currently on deposit in the funds and accounts established under the 1993 Indenture and currently
being held by the 1993 Trustee (together with the Refunding Proceeds, the “Escrow Proceeds™), will be
delivered to the Trustee, acting as escrow agent (the “Escrow Agent”) under that certain Escrow
Agreement, dated as of March 1, 2003 (the “Escrow Agreement”), by and between the Authority and the
Escrow Agent. The Escrow Agent will hold the Escrow Proceeds in an irrevocable escrow fund (the
“Escrow Fund”) for the benefit of the owners of the 1993 Bonds, to be applied solely as provided in the
Escrow Agreement.

Pursuant to the Escrow Agreement, the Escrow Agent will use a portion of the moneys on deposit
in the Escrow Fund to purchase non-callable direct obligations of the United States of America (“Federal
Securities”), in an amount, bearing interest and subject to terms so that such Federal Securities will be
sufficient, when added to any uninvested cash in the Escrow Fund, to (i) refund and redeem the 1993
Bonds and discharge the 1993 Indenture in accordance with its terms, and (ii) to pay on June 1, 2003, the
accrued interest on the 1993 Bonds maturing on and after June 1, 2003, the principal amount of the 1993
Bonds maturing on June 1, 2003, and the redemption price of 100% of the principal amount payable with
respect to the 1993 Bonds maturing after June 1, 2003. The mathematical sufficiency of the Federal
Securities, when combined with the uninvested cash in the Escrow Fund, to effectuate the refunding
described in the preceding sentence will be verified by Causey, Demgen & Moore Inc., as verification
agent. See “VERIFICATION” herein.

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

The following table details the estimated sources and uses of Bond proceeds and available
moneys on deposit in the funds and accounts established for the 1993 Bonds (the “1993 Funds”).

Estimated Sources:

Principal Amount of Bonds $43,785,000.00

Original Issue Premium 2,950,638.65

Less: Underwriter’s Discount (199.221.75)
Total Sources $46,536,416.90

Estimated Uses:

Transfer to Escrow Agent for deposit into Escrow Fund $46,135,308.45

Transfer to Bond Insurer " 163,138.91

Deposit into the Costs of Issuance Fund @ 237.969.54
Total Uses $46,536,416.90

) Represents the premium for Bond Insurance Policy.
" Moneys in the Costs of Issuancc Fund are expected to be used to pay the fees and expenscs of Bond Counscl, Disclosurce
Counsel, Trustee and the Verification Agent, printing and other misccllancous costs.



Principal of and interest on the Bonds are scheduled to be paid as follows:

Payment Date
June 1, 2003

December 1, 2003
June 1, 2004
December 1, 2004
June 1, 2005
December 1, 2005
June 1, 2006
December 1, 2006
June 1, 2007
December 1, 2007
June 1, 2008
December 1, 2008
June 1, 2009
December 1, 2009
June 1, 2010
December 1, 2010
June 1, 2011
December 1, 2011
June 1, 2012
December 1, 2012
June 1, 2013
December 1, 2013
June 1, 2014
December 1, 2014
June 1, 2015
December 1, 2015
June 1, 2016
December 1, 2016
June 1, 2017
December 1, 2017
June 1, 2018
December 1, 2018
June 1, 2019
December 1, 2019
June 1, 2020

Totals

DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE

Principal
S 1,805,000.00

1,750,000.00
1,815,000.00
1,885,000.00
1,950,000.00
2,035,000.00
2,100,000.00
2,175,000.00
2,240,000.00
2,355,000.00
2,470,000.00
2,595,000.00
2,730,000.00
2,875,000.00
3,015,000.00
3,170,000.00
3,325,000.00

3.495.000.00

$43,785,000.00

Source: E. J.De La Rosa & Co., Inc.

Interest
S 325,618.75
958,806.25
958,806.25
926,306.25
926,306.25
892,506.25
892,506.25
858,806.25
858,806.25
815,806.25
815,806.25
782,781.25
782,781.25
746,031.25
746,031.25
713,406.25
713,406.25
657,406.25
657,406.25
598,531.25
598,531.25
536,781.25
536,781.25
468,662.50
468,662.50
397,000.00
397,000.00
325,125.00
325,125.00
249,750.00
249,750.00
170,500.00
170,500.00
87,375.00
87,375.00

$20,696,781.25

Total
$2,130,618.75
958,806.25
2,708,806.25
926,306.25
2,741,306.25
892,506.25
2,777,506.25
858,806.25
2,808,806.25
815,806.25
2,850,806.25
782,781.25
2,882,781.25
746,031.25
2,921,031.25
713,406.25
2,953,406.25
657,406.25
3,012,406.25
598,531.25
3,068,531.25
536,781.25
3,131,781.25
468,662.50
3,198,662.50
397,000.00
3,272,000.00
325,125.00
3,340,125.00
249,750.00
3,419,750.00
170,500.00
3,495,500.00
87,375.00
3.582.375.00

$64,481,781.25



SECURITY FOR THE BONDS
Installment Payments

The City has agreed to purchase the Project from the Authority pursuant the Installment Purchase
Agreement. (See “THE PROJECT” herein.) Pursuant to the Installment Purchase Agreement, the City
has covenanted to pay the Authority, solely from Net System Revenues and from no other sources, the
Purchase Price for the Project in Installment Payments in the amounts and on the dates as set forth in the
Installment Purchase Agreement. The obligation of the City to make the Installment Payments solely
from Net System Revenues is absolute and unconditional (subject to the parity lien of any Additional
Obligations; see “Net System Revenues” and “Limitations Regarding Additional Obligations” below) and,
until such time as the Purchase Price shall have been paid in full, the City shall not discontinue or suspend
any Installment Payments required to be made by the Installment Purchase Agreement.

The Bonds are special obligations of the Authority, issued pursuant to the Indenture, and are
payable solely from the Installment Payments to be made by the City pursuant to the Installment Purchase
Agreement and amounts held from time to time in certain of the funds and accounts established under the
Indenture (the “Revenues’™). Pursuant to the Indenture, the Installment Payments are required to be made
in amounts that are sufficient, but no more than sufficient, to pay the scheduled payments of principal of
and interest on the outstanding Bonds. The Installment Payments are secured by a pledge, charge and lien
upon, and are payable solely from, the Net System Revenues of the City’s Wastewater System. Neither
the full faith and credit nor the taxing power of the City, the County, the State, or any political
subdivision of the State is pledged to the payment of the Bonds.

Net System Revenues

The City’s obligation to make Installment Payments under the Installment Purchase Agreement is
secured by a pledge of and lien on the Net System Revenues. In order to carry out and effectuate its
pledge of Net System Revenues, the City has agreed and covenanted in the Installment Pledge Agreement
to deposit all System Revenues when and as received into the Wastewater Revenue Fund, which fund the
City agrees and covenants to maintain so long as any Installment Payments remain unpaid. All moneys in
the Wastewater Revenue Fund will be held in trust and applied and used solely as provided in the
Installment Purchase Agreement.

The Installment Purchase Agreement includes the following definitions:

“Net System Revenues” means System Revenues less the Maintenance and Operations
Costs of the Wastewater System.

“System Revenues” means, for any Fiscal Year or other period, all rates, fees and charges
received for, and all other income and receipts derived by the City from, the operation of the
Wastewater System or arising from the Wastewater System, including all proceeds of insurance
covering business interruption loss relating to the Wastewater System, investment earnings on
such amounts and all other money howsoever derived by the City from the operation of the
Wastewater System or arising from the Wastewater System; provided, however, that System
Revenues includes fees and charges collected during such Fiscal Year or other period, but only to
the extent such fees and charges could be properly expended on a Wastewater System Project (i.e.
any additions, betterments, extensions or improvements to the Wastewater System), for which the
proceeds were used or are available to be used.



“Maintenance and Operation Costs of the Wastewater System” means, for any Fiscal
Ycar or other period, the reasonable and necessary costs spent or incurred by the City for
maintaining and operating the Wastewater System, calculated in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, including (among other things) the reasonable expenses of
management and repair and other expenses necessary to maintain and preserve the Wastewater
System in good repair and working order, and including Administrative Costs (as defined below),
salaries and wages of employees, payments to employee retirement systems (to the extent paid
from System Revenues), overhead, insurance, taxes (if any), fees of auditors, accountants,
attorneys or engineers, insurance premiums, and including all other reasonable and necessary
costs of the City or charges required to be paid by it to comply with the terms of the Bonds, the
Installment Purchase Agreement or any Additional Obligations (as defined below), including any
amounts required to be deposited in the Rebate Fund pursuant to the Tax Certificate, but
excluding in all cases (i) depreciation and replacement and obsolescence charges or reserves
therefore, (ii) amortization of intangibles or other bookkeeping entries of a similar nature,
(iii) costs of capital additions, replacements, betterments, extensions or improvements to the
Wastewater System, which under generally accepted accounting principles are chargeable to a
capital account or to a reserve for depreciation, (iv) charges for the payment of principal and
interest on any general obligation bond heretofore or hereafter issued for Wastewater System
purposes, and (v) charges for the payment of any debt service on the Obligations or on any
obligation subordinate to the Obligations.

“Additional Obligations” means Obligations other than the Installment Payments.

“Administrative Costs” means the ordinary and necessary administrative costs and
incidental expenses related to the Bonds, the Indenture, the Installment Purchase Agreement and
any Additional Obligations, including, but not limited to Trustee fees (including any fees and
expenses of its counsel) and indemnification payable by the Authority pursuant to the Indenture
and fees incurred in connection with the calculation of arbitrage rebate due to the federal
government with respect to the Bonds.

“Obligations” means City Bonds and Contract Payments.

“Contract Payments” means the Installment Payments or installment or lease payments
due under any Contracts.

“Contracts” means the Installment Purchase Agreement and all contracts or leases of the
City, the installment or lease payments under which are payable form the Net System Revenues
and secured on a parity with the Installment Payments.

“City Bonds” means all revenue bonds or notes of the City that are payable from the Net
System Revenues and secured on a parity with the Installment Payments.

All Net System Revenues are pledged on a parity and pro rata basis to all Obligations. Upon the
issuance of the Bonds and the refunding and defeasance of the 1993 Bonds, there will be no Additional
Obligations currently outstanding. The City shall not be required to advance any moneys derived from
any source of income other than Net System Revenues and the other funds provided in the Installment
Purchase Agreement for the payment of the Installment Payments or for the performance of any
agreements or covenants required to be performed by it contained in the Installment Purchase Agreement.
The City may, however, but in no event shall it be obligated to, advance moneys for any such purpose so
long as such moneys are derived from a source legally available therefor. See “Limitations Regarding
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Additional Obligations” below and “APPENDIX A — Summary of Certain Provisions of Indenture and
Installment Purchase Agreement” herein.

The obligation of the City to make the Installment Payments is a special obligation of the
City payable solely from Net System Revenues and other funds provided for in the Installment
Purchase Agreement, and does not constitute a debt of the Authority, the City, the County, the
State or any political subdivision of the State within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory
debt limitation or restriction.

Rate Covenant

The City has covenanted in the Installment Purchase Agreement to fix, prescribe and collect fees,
rates and charges for the Wastewater System that will be at least sufficient to yield, during each Fiscal
Year, Net System Revenues equal to the sum of (a) one-hundred percent (100%) of the Debt Service for
such Fiscal Year and certain costs then due and owing under the Reserve Fund Policy, if any, plus (b) the
amount by which the amount on deposit in the Wastewater Revenue Fund on the last day of the
immediately preceding Fiscal Year was less than twenty-five percent (25%) of Maximum Annual Debt
Service as of such day. The City may make adjustments from time to time in the rates and charges
described above and may make such classification thereof as it deems necessary, but shall not reduce the
rates and charges then in effect unless the Net System Revenues from such reduced rates and charges will
at all times be sufficient to meet the requirements described in this paragraph. See “APPENDIX A —
Summary of Certain Provisions of Indenture and Installment Purchase Agreement” herein.

The Installment Purchase Agreement includes the following definitions:

“Debt Service” means, for any Fiscal Year or other period, the sum of (i) the interest
payable during such Fiscal Year or other period on all outstanding City Bonds, assuming that all
outstanding serial City Bonds are retired as scheduled and that all outstanding term City Bonds
are redeemed or paid from sinking fund payments as scheduled (except to the extent that such
interest is to be paid from the proceeds of sale of any City Bonds), (ii) that portion of the principal
amount of all outstanding serial City Bonds maturing on any principal payment date which falls
in such Fiscal Year or other period, (iii) that portion of the principal amount of all outstanding
term City Bonds required to be redeemed or paid on any redemption date that falls in such Fiscal
Year or other period (together with the redemption premiums, if any, thereon), and (iv) that
portion of the Contract Payments required to be made in such Fiscal Year or other period (all
subject to certain assumptions set forth in the Installment Purchase Agreement).

“Maximum Annual Debt Service” means, at any point in time, with respect to
Obligations then outstanding, the maximum amount of Debt Service on the Obligations in the -
then current or any future Fiscal Year or other period, calculated by the City or by an Independent
Certified Public Account and provided to the Trustee.

“Fiscal Year” means the period beginning on July 1 of each year and ending on the next
succeeding June 30, or any other twelve-month period selected and designated as the official
Fiscal Year of the City.
Reserve Fund
Pursuant to the Installment Purchase Agreement, the City is required to maintain or cause to be

maintained the Reserve Fund, which is pledged to the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds,
at the Reserve Requirement. Pursuant to the Indenture, the Trustee is required to annually set aside from

11



the Payment Fund and deposit in the Reserve Fund from amounts received from the City pursuant to the
Installment Purchase Agreement an amount of money which, together with the amount already on deposit
therein, will be equal to the Reserve Requirement. The Reserve Requirement is equal to the least of
(1) ten percent (10%) of the outstanding principal amount of the Bonds, (ii) the Maximum Annual Debt
Service on the Bonds, and (iii) one hundred twenty-five percent (125%) of the Average Annual Debt
Service on the Bonds. No deposit need be made in the Reserve Fund so long as there shall be on deposit
therein a sum equal to at least the Reserve Requirement for the succeeding Bond Year. The Trustee is
required to promptly notify the City and the Authority if the amount on deposit in the Reserve Fund is
less than the Reserve Requirement.

Pursuant to the Indenture, all money in the Reserve Fund shall be used and withdrawn by the
Trustee solely for the purpose of paying the interest on or principal of, or redemption premiums, if any,
on the Bonds in the event that no other money of the Authority is lawfully available therefor, or for the
retirement of all Bonds then outstanding. All interest income received by the Trustee on investment of
moneys in the Reserve Fund shall be retained in the Reserve Fund so long as amounts on deposit in the
Reserve Fund are less than the Reserve Requirement for the following Bond Year.

In lieu of funding the Reserve Fund with cash, the Authority, at its option, may fund all or any
portion of the Reserve Requirement by providing to the Trustee (a) an irrevocable, unconditional letter of
credit approved in writing by the Bond Insurer and issued by a bank or other financial institution
approved in writing by the Bond Insurer and whose long-term uncollateralized debt obligations are rated
in one of the two highest rating categories by S&P or Moody’s, or if the Bonds are not then rated, by any
nationally recognized rating agency, or a qualified reserve fund insurance policy approved in writing by
the Bond Insurer. The Reserve Requirement will respect to the Reserve Fund will initially be satisfied
with the Reserve Fund Policy. See “MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE - Reserve Fund Policy” herein.

Bond Insurance Policy

The scheduled payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds when due will be guaranteed
under the Bond Insurance Policy to be issued concurrently with the delivery of the Bonds by the Bond
Insurer. For a more detailed description of the Bond Insurance Policy and the Bond Insurer, see
“MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE - Bond Insurance” and “APPENDIX E - Specimen Municipal
Bond Insurance Policy” herein.

Limitations Regarding Additional Obligations

The City may at any time incur Additional Obligations payable from Net System Revenues and
secured on a parity with the payment by the City of the Installment Payments; provided:

(D) There shall not have occurred and be continuing an Event of Default under the
Installment Purchase Agreement or the Indenture; and

(2) The City obtains or provides a certificate or certificates prepared by a Consultant
showing that (i) the Net System Revenues as shown by the books of the City for the
twelve (12) calendar months ending prior to the incurring of such Additional Obligations
shall have amounted to at least one hundred percent (100%) of Debt Service for such
twelve (12) calendar month period, plus the amount by which the amount on deposit in
the Wastewater Revenue Fund on the date prior to the first day of such twelve
(12) calendar month period was less than twenty-five percent (25%) of Maximum Annual
Debt Service; (ii) the estimated Net System Revenues for the twelve (12) calendar
months following the date of incurring such Additional Obligations will be at least equal
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to one hundred percent (100%) of Debt Service on all Obligations to be outstanding
immediately after the incurring of such Additional Obligations; and (iii) the amount on
deposit in the Wastewater Revenue Fund on the date of incurring such Additional
Obligations is at least equal to twenty-five percent (25%) of Maximum Annual Debt
Service as of the date of incurring of such Additional Obligations.

The determination of Net System Revenues for use in the calculation described above is more
fully described in the Installment Purchase Agreement and in “APPENDIX A — Summary of Certain
Provisions of Indenture and Installment Purchase Agreement — Installment Purchase Agreement —
Additional Obligations™ herein.

The certificate or certificates described above shall not be required if the Additional Obligations
being incurred are for the purpose of refunding then outstanding Obligations and at the time of the
incurring of such Additional Obligations a certificate of an Authorized City Representative shall be
delivered showing that Maximum Annual Debt Service on all outstanding Obligations after the incurring
of such Additional Obligations will not exceed Maximum Annual Debt Service on all Obligations
outstanding prior to the incurring of such Additional Obligations.

Insurance

Pursuant to the Installment Purchase Agreement, the City is required to procure and maintain or
cause to be procured and maintained insurance on the Wastewater System with responsible insurers, or
provide self insurance reserves (which may be provided in the form of risk sharing pools), in such
amounts and against such risks as are usually covered in connection with wastewater systems similar to
the Wastewater System. The City is also required to procure and maintain such other insurance which it
shall deem advisable or necessary to protect its interests and the interests of the Authority with respect to
the Wastewater System.

All policies of insurance required to be maintained herein shall, to extent reasonably obtainable,
provide that the Authority and the Trustee shall be given thirty (30) days written notice of any intended
cancellation thereof or reduction of coverage provided thereby. The City will certify to the Trustee
annually on or before July 1 of each Fiscal Year that it is in compliance with such insurance requirements.
See “APPENDIX A — Summary of Certain Provisions of Indenture and Installment Purchase Agreement
— Installment Purchase Agreement — Covenants of the City — Insurance” herein.

Action On Default

Upon the happening and continuance of any Event of Default as defined in the Indenture, the
owners of not less than 25% in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding have the right,
upon providing the Trustee security and indemnity reasonably satisfactory to it against the costs, expenses
and liabilities to be incurred therein or thereby, by a written instrument executed and delivered to the
Trustee, to direct the method and place of conducting all remedial proceedings to be taken by the Trustee
under the Indenture; provided that, so long as the Bond Insurer is not in default in its payment obligations
under the Bond Insurance Policy, the Bond Insurer shall be entitled to control and direct the enforcement
of all rights and remedies granted to the Bond Owners or the Trustee for the benefit of the Bond Owners
under the Indenture. See “APPENDIX A — Summary of Certain Provisions of Indenture and Installment
Purchase Agreement” herein.
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Investment of Moneys

Amounts held in any fund or account held under the Indenture will be invested in Permitted
Investments, subject to the conditions provided for in the Indenture. All investment earnings on monies
on deposit in any fund or account held under the Indenture will be transferred to the Payment Fund,
subject to the obligation of the City and/or the Authority to maintain the Reserve Fund at the Reserve
Requirement and to rebate certain amounts to the United States government as required under the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. See “APPENDIX A — Summary of Certain Provisions of Indenture
and Installment Purchase Agreement — The Indenture” herein.

MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE

The following information has been furnished by Financial Guaranty for use in this Official
Statement. Reference is made to Appendix F for a specimen of the Bond Insurance Policy.

Bond Insurance

Concurrently with the issuance of the Bonds, Financial Guaranty Insurance Company, doing
business in California as FGIC Insurance Company (“Financial Guaranty”), will issue its Municipal Bond
New Issue Insurance Policy (the “Bond Insurance Policy”) for the Bonds. The Bond Insurance Policy
unconditionally guarantees the payment of that portion of the principal of and interest on the Bonds that
has become due for payment, but shall be unpaid by reason of nonpayment by the Authority. Financial
Guaranty will make such payments to U.S. Bank Trust National Association, or its successor, as its agent
(the “Fiscal Agent”), on the later of the date on which such principal and interest is due or on the business
day next following the day on which Financial Guaranty shall have received telephonic or telegraphic
notice, subsequently confirmed in writing, or written notice by registered or certified mail, from an owner
of Bonds or the Trustee of the nonpayment of such amount by the Authority. The Fiscal Agent will
disburse such amount due on any Bond to its owner upon receipt by the Fiscal Agent of evidence
satisfactory to the Fiscal Agent of the owner's right to receive payment of the principal or interest (as
applicable) due for payment and evidence, including any appropriate instruments of assignment, that all
of such owner's rights to payment of such principal or interest (as applicable) shall be vested in Financial
Guaranty. The term “nonpayment” in respect of a Bond includes any payment of principal or interest (as
applicable) made to an owner of a Bond which has been recovered from such owner pursuant to the
United States Bankruptcy Code by a trustee in bankruptcy in accordance with a final, nonappealable order
of a court having competent jurisdiction.

The Bond Insurance Policy is non-cancellable and the premium will be fully paid at the time of
delivery of the Bonds. The Bond Insurance Policy covers failure to pay principal or accreted value (if
applicable) of the Bonds on their respective stated maturity dates or dates on which the same shall have
been duly called for mandatory sinking fund redemption (if applicable), and not on any other date on
which the Bonds may have been otherwise called for redemption, accelerated or advanced in maturity,
and covers the failure to pay an installment of interest on the stated date for its payment.

Generally, in connection with its insurance of an issue of municipal securities, Financial Guaranty
requires, among other things, (i) that it be granted the power to exercise any rights granted to the holders
of such securities upon the occurrence of an event of default, without the consent of such holders, and that
such holders may not exercise such rights without Financial Guaranty's consent, in each case so long as
Financial Guaranty has not failed to comply with its payment obligations under its insurance policy; and
(i1) that any amendment or supplement to or other modification of the principal legal documents be
subject to Financial Guaranty's consent. The specific rights, if any, granted to Financial Guaranty in
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connection with its insurance of the Bonds are set forth in the description of the principal legal documents
appearing in Appendix A to this Official Statement. Reference should be made as well to such
description for a discussion of the circumstances, if any, under which the Authority is required to provide
additional or substitute credit enhancement, and related matters.

This Official Statement may contain a section regarding the ratings assigned to the Bonds and
reference should be made to such section for a discussion of such ratings and the basis for their
assignment to the Bonds. Reference should be made to the description of the Authority and/or the City
for a discussion of the ratings, if any, assigned to each such entity’s outstanding parity debt that is not
secured by credit enhancement.

The Policy is not covered by the Property/Casualty Insurance Security Fund specified in Article
76 of the New York Insurance Law.

Financial Guaranty is a wholly-owned subsidiary of FGIC Corporation (the “Corporation”), a
Delaware holding company. The Corporation is a subsidiary of General Electric Capital Corporation
(“GE Capital”). Neither the Corporation nor GE Capital is obligated to pay the debts of or the claims
against Financial Guaranty. Financial Guaranty is a monoline financial guaranty insurer domiciled in the
State of New York and subject to regulation by the State of New York Insurance Department. As of
December 31, 2002, the total capital and surplus of Financial Guaranty was approximately $978 million.
Financial Guaranty prepares financial statements on the basis of both statutory accounting principles and
generally accepted accounting principles. Copies of such financial statements may be obtained by writing
to Financial Guaranty at 125 Park Avenue, New York, New York 10017, Attention: Communications
Department (telephone number: 212-312-3000) or to the New York State Insurance Department at 25
Beaver Street, New York, New York 10004-2319, Attention: Financial Condition Property/Casualty
Bureau (telephone number: 212-480-5187).

Reserve Fund Policy

Concurrently with the issuance of the 1993 Bonds, Financial Guaranty issued the Reserve Fund
Policy in satisfaction of the reserve requirement with respect to the reserve fund for the 1993 Bonds (the
“1993 Reserve Fund”). In connection with the issuance by Financial Guaranty of the Reserve Fund
Policy, the Authority and Financial Guaranty entered into that certain Debt Service Reserve Fund Policy
Agreement, dated August 12, 1993 (the “Reserve Fund Agreement”). In connection with the issuance of
the Bonds, Financial Guaranty and the Authority will acknowledge and agree that, and will amend the
Reserve Fund Agreement to provide that, on and after the date of issuance of the Bonds, all terms and
conditions set forth in the Reserve Fund Agreement and the Reserve Fund Policy shall apply to the Bonds,
the Reserve Fund, and the Indenture, as applicable, and the Reserve Fund Agreement and the Reserve
Fund Policy shall otherwise remain in full force and effect.

Upon the issuance of the Bonds, the Reserve Fund Policy will unconditionally guaranty the
payment of that portion of the principal of and interest on the Bonds that has become due for payment, but
shall be unpaid by reason of nonpayment by the Authority, provided that the aggregate amount paid under
the Reserve Fund Policy may not exceed the maximum amount set forth in the Reserve Fund Policy,
which amount is not less than the Reserve Requirement. Financial Guaranty will make such payments to
the Trustee on the later of the date on which such principal or interest (as applicable) is due or on the
business day next following the day on which Financial Guaranty shall have received telephonic or
telegraphic notice subsequently confirmed in writing or written notice by registered or certified mail from
the Trustee of the nonpayment of such amount by the Authority. The term “nonpayment” in respect of a
Bond includes any payment of principal or interest made to an owner of a Bond which has been recovered
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from such owner pursuant to the United States Bankruptcy Code by a trustee in bankruptcy in accordance
with a final nonappealable order of a court having competent jurisdiction.

The Reserve Fund Policy is non-cancelable and the premium was fully paid at the time of
delivery of the 1993 Bonds. The Reserve Fund Policy covers the failure to pay an installment of interest
on the stated date for its payment and covers failure to pay principal of the Bonds on their respective
stated maturity dates, or dates on which the same shall have been called for mandatory sinking fund
redemption, and not on any other date on which the Bonds may have been accelerated. The Reserve Fund
Policy shall terminate on the earlier of the scheduled final maturity date of the Bonds or the date on which
no Bonds are outstanding under the Indenture.

Generally, in connection with its issuance of a qualified reserve fund policy such as the Reserve
Fund Policy, Financial Guaranty requires, among other things, (i) that, so long as it has not failed to
comply with its payment obligations under the Reserve Fund Policy, it be granted the power to exercise
any remedies available at law or under the authorizing document other than (A) acceleration of the Bonds
or (B) remedies which would adversely affect holders in the event that the issuer fails to reimburse
Financial Guaranty for any draws on the Reserve Fund Policy; and (ii) that any amendment or supplement
to or other modification of the principal legal documents be subject to Financial Guaranty's consent. The
specific rights, if any, granted to Financial Guaranty in connection with its issuance of the Reserve Fund
Policy are set forth in the description of the principal legal documents appearing in Appendix A to this
Official Statement. Reference should be made as well to such description for a discussion of the
circumstances, if any, under which the issuer of the Bonds is required to provide additional or substitute
credit enhancement, and related matters. See “APPENDIX A — Summary of Certain Provisions of
Indenture and Installment Purchase Agreement — Events of Default and Remedies of the Authority.”

The Reserve Fund Policy is not covered by the Property/Casualty Insurance Security Fund
specified in Article 76 of the New York Insurance Law.

RISK FACTORS

Investment in the Bonds involves risks which may not be appropriate for certain investors. The
Sollowing is a discussion of certain risk factors which should be considered, in addition to other
matters set forth herein, in evaluating the Bonds for investment. The information set forth below does
not purport to be an exhaustive listing of the risks and other considerations which may be relevant to
an investment in the Bonds. In addition, the order in which the following information is presented is
not intended to reflect the relative importance of any such risks.

Bonds are Limited Obligations

The Bonds are payable solely from Net System Revenues and amounts held in certain funds and
accounts established under the Indenture. Consequently, the payment of principal of and interest on the
Bonds will be dependent upon the availability and sufficiency of such Net System Revenues. The Bonds
do not constitute an obligation of the Authority for which the Authority must levy or pledge any form of
taxation or for which the Authority has levied or pledged any form of taxation. The Installment Payments
do not constitute an obligation of the City for which the City must levy or pledge any form of taxation or
for which the City has levied or pledged any form of taxation. Neither the Bonds nor the Installment
Payments constitute a debt or indebtedness of the Authority, the City, the County, the State, or any
political subdivision of the State, within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory debt.limitation or
restriction.
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System Demand

There can be no assurance that the local demand for the services provided by the Wastewater
System will be maintained at levels described in this Official Statement. Because of changes in
demographics within the boundaries of the City, it is possible for the demand for wastewater services to
decline over the term of the Bonds. A significant decline in demand might create a situation in which the
City could not increase rates sufficiently to offiset the decrease in subscribers or usage. This would reduce
the City’s ability to make Installment Payments, which could in turn adversely impact the Authority’s
ability to make repayments of the principal or interest on the Bonds.

Increased Regulations

The adoption by federal or state agencies of more regulations could adversely affect Net System
Revenues. A significant increase in effluent standards for wastewater treatment imposed by law or
regulation might cause the City to incur greater expenses of operation, thus creating a temporary or
permanent inability to support the Installment Payments due under the Installment Purchase Agreement,
which would in tum adversely impact the Authority’s ability to pay the principal of and interest on the
Bonds when due. It is not possible to predict the timing or nature of more stringent operating standards
that may be imposed upon the City over the term of the Bonds.

Increased System Expenses

Changes in technology, increases in the cost of energy or other expenses could reduce Net System
Revenues, which could in turn require substantial increases in rates or charges in order to comply with the
rate covenant in the Installment Purchase Agreement. The City’s ability to make its required Installment
Payments may be adversely affected until such time as the City is able to increase rates and charges to
pay for such increased costs.

Seismic Activity; Flood Plain; Limited Insurance

The Installment Purchase Agreement does not require the City to maintain earthquake or flood
insurance on the Wastewater System. The City, along with much of the State of California, shares a
history of seismic activity and is thus listed as a “Zone 4” earthquake area in the Uniform Building Code.
A Zone 4 designation has the most restrictive design requirements for new construction. The City
standards for development, to which the components of the Wastewater System were subject, have been
designed to reduce the risk to the public and adequately mitigate seismic hazards.

There are no known major faults within the City; however, there are several active faults located
within a radius of approximately 50 miles from the City, including the San Andreas Fault and the San
Gabriel Fault. Activity along these faults could potentially result in damage to the buildings, roads,
bridges, and property within the City in the event of a major earthquake.

If a major earthquake were to occur, it may substantially damage or destroy the Wastewater
System or portions of it. In such a case, under certain circumstances, the Net System Revenues could
possibly be reduced or eliminated if the City was unable to provide wastewater services to its customers,
or if large amounts of System Revenues were required to be applied to make extensive repairs to the
Wastewater System. Such a reduction or elimination of Net System Revenues could impair the ability of
the City to make Installment Payments, which in tum would impair the ability of the Authority to make
payments of principal of and interest on the Bonds when due.
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The chance that the occurrence of severe seismic activity in the area of the Wastewater System
could result in substantial damage and interference with the City’s right to use all or a portion of the
Wastewater System, and thereby result in a reduction or elimination of Net System Revenues, is mitigated
by the City’s standards for development.

The components of the Wastewater System are located in a flood insurance rate zone designated
by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (“FEMA™) as “Zone B.” According to FEMA, Zones B,
C and X refer to flood insurance rate zones that are not within the 100-year floodplain and are therefore
not considered to pose a flood hazard. The term “100-year flood” refers to the flood elevation that has a
one percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given year. A base flood may also be referred to
as a “100-year storm” and the area inundated during the base flood is sometimes called the “100-year
floodplain.” The 100-year flood, which is the standard used by most Federal and state agencies, is used
by the National Flood Insurance Program as the standard for floodplain management and to determine the
need for flood insurance.

Limited Recourse on Default

If the City defaults on its obligation to make Installment Payments, the Trustee, as assignee of the
Authority, has the right to accelerate the total unpaid principal amount of the Installment Payments.
However, in the event of a default and such acceleration, neither the Bond Insurance Policy nor the
Reserve Fund Policy guarantees the payment of any accelerated amounts and there can be no assurance
that the City will have sufficient Net System Revenues to pay the accelerated Installment Payments.

Limitations on Available Remedies

The enforceability of the obligations of the City and the rights and remedies of the registered
owners of the Bonds may become subject to the following: the federal bankruptcy code and applicable
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, or similar laws relating to or affecting the
enforcement of creditors’ rights generally, now or hereafter in effect; usual equitable principles which
may limit the specific enforcement under state law of certain remedies; the exercise by the United States
of America of the powers delegated to it by the federal Constitution; and the reasonable and necessary
exercise, in certain exceptional situations, of the police power inherent in the sovereignty of the State of
California and its govemmental bodies in the interest of servicing a significant and legitimate public
purpose. Bankruptcy proceedings, or the exercising of powers by the federal or state government, if
initiated, could subject the registered owners of the Bonds to judicial discretion and interpretation of their
rights in bankruptcy or otherwise and consequently may entail risks of delay, limitation, or modification
of their rights.

Absence of Market for the Bonds

There can be no assurance that there will ever be a secondary market for purchase or sale of the
Bonds, and from time to time there may be no market for them, depending upon prevailing market
conditions and the financial condition or market position of firms who may make the secondary market.
Constitutional Limitations

California law imposes various taxing, revenue and appropriations limitations on public agencies

such as the City. See “CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS AFFECTING WASTEWATER SYSTEM
REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES” below for a discussion of these limitations.
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Loss of Tax Exemption

As discussed under the caption “TAX MATTERS” herein, interest on the Bonds could become
included in gross income for purposes of federal income taxation, retroactive to the date the Bonds were
issued, as a result of future acts or omissions of the City or the Authority in violation of their respective
covenants in the Indenture and the Installment Purchase Agreement.

Economic, Political, Social and Environmental Conditions

Prospective investors are encouraged to evaluate current and prospective economic, political,
social and environmental conditions as part of an informed investment decision. Changes in economic,
political, social or environmental conditions on a local, state, federal and/or international level may
adversely affect investment risk generally. Such conditional changes may include (but are not limited to)
fluctuations in business production, consumer prices, or financial markets, unemployment rates,
technological advancements, shortages or surpluses in natural resources or energy supplies, changes in
law, social unrest, fluctuations in the crime rate, political conflict, acts of war or terrorism, environmental
damage and natural disasters.

CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS AFFECTING
WASTEWATER SYSTEM REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

California Constitution Article XIIIB Limitations

Article XIIIB of the California Constitution limits the annual appropriations of the State
and of any city, county, school district, authority, or other political subdivision of the State to the level of
appropriations of the particular govemmental entity for the prior fiscal year, as adjusted for changes in the
cost of living, population, and services rendered by the government entity. The “base year” for
establishing this appropriations limit is the 1978-79 fiscal year, and the limit is adjusted annually to
reflect changes is population, consumer prices, and increases or decreases in the cost of services provided
by these public agencies.

Appropriations of an entity of local government subject to Article XIIIB include
generally authorizations to expend during a fiscal year the proceeds of taxes levied by or for the entity and
the proceeds of State subventions, exclusive of certain State subventions, refunds of taxes, and benefit
payments from retirement, unemployment insurance, and disability insurance funds. “Proceeds of taxes”
include, but are not limited to, all tax revenues, most State subventions, and the proceeds to the local
governmental entity from (1) regulatory licenses, user charges, and user fees (to the extent that such
proceeds exceed the cost reasonably bome by such entity), and (2) the investment of tax revenues.
Article XIIIB provides that if a governmental entity’s revenues in any year exceed the amounts permitted
to be spent, the excess must be returned by revising tax rates or fee schedules over the subsequent two
years.

Certain expenditures are excluded from the appropriations limit, including payments of
indebtedness existing or legally authorized as of January 1, 1979, or of bonded indebtedness thereafter
approved by the voters and payments required to comply with court or federal mandates which without
discretion require an expenditure for additional services or which unavoidably make the providing of
existing services more costly. The City believes that its charges for sewer service and wastewater
treatment do not exceed the costs it reasonably bears in providing such services and, therefore, are not
subject to the limitations of Article XIIIB. The City has covenanted in the Installment Purchase
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Agreement that it will prescribe rates and charges sufficient to provide for payments of the Bonds each
year.

California Constitution Article XIIIC and Article XIIID Limitations

On November 5, 1996, the voters of the State approved Proposition 218, the “Right to
Vote on Taxes Act.” Proposition 218 added Articles XIIIC and XIIID to the State Constitution, which
contain a number of provisions affecting the ability of the City to levy and collect both existing and future
taxcs, assessments, fees, and charges. These provisions could adversely affect the financial condition of
the City, its ability to comply with its covenants under the Installment Purchase Agreement, and/or the
Authority’s ability to pay principal of or interest on the Bonds. In such event, there can be no assurance
that remedies will be available to fully protect the interests of the holders of the Bonds. See “RISK
FACTORS - Limitations on Remedies” above.

Article XIIID contains several new provisions affecting the ability of local governments to
impose or increase “fees” and “charges,” defined for purposes of Article XIIID to mean “any levy other
than an ad valorem tax, a special tax, or an assessment, imposed by ... a [local government] upon a parcel
or upon a person as an incident of property ownership, including user fees or charges for a property
related service”; provided, however, that Article XIIID specifically provides that it shall not be construed
to “affect existing laws relating to the imposition of fees or charges as a condition of property
development.” The City believes that its connection fee charges related to the Wastewater System is a fee
or charge as a condition of property development within the meaning of Article XIIID, although no
assurance can be given that a court would not determine otherwise. “Property related service” means a
public service having a direct relationship to property ownership (which term may include tenancies). All
new and existing property related fees and charges must conform to requirements prohibiting, among
other things, fees and charges which (i) generate revenues exceeding the funds required to provide the
property related service, (ii) are used for any purpose other than those for which the fees and charges are
imposed, (iii) with respect to any parcel or person exceed the proportional cost of the service attributable
to the parcel, (iv) are for a service not actually used by, or immediately available to, the owner of the
property in question, or (v) are used for general governmental services, including police, fire, ambulance,
or library services, where the service is available to the public at large in substantially the same manner as
it is to property owners. Although the City believes that its sewer service charges are not property related
fees or charges within the meaning of Article XIIID, the City further believes that its sewer service
charges, if determined to be such property related fees or charges, would satisfy all of these requirements.
However, in any legal action contesting the validity of a fee or charge, the City will have the burden of
proving exemption from or compliance with Article XIIID and no assurance can be given that a court
would not determine otherwise. Before any property related fee or charge may be imposed or increased,
written notice must be given to the record owner of each parcel of land affected by such fee or charge.
The City must then hold a hearing upon the proposed imposition or increase, and if written protests
against the proposal are presented by a majority of the owners of the identified parcels, the City may not
impose or increase the fee or charge. The City is unable to predict whether the imposition or increase of
any fee and charge, including any increase in its sewer service charge, will be prevented by such a
majority protest.

Moreover, Article XIIID also provides that, except for fees or charges for sewer, water, and
refuse collection services (or fees for electrical and gas service, which are not treated as property related
for purposes of Article XIIID), no property related fee or charge may be imposed or increased without
majority approval by the property owners subject to the fee or charge or, at the option of the local agency,
two-thirds voter approval by the electorate residing in the affected area. The City believes that its sewer
service charges are charges for sewer service within the meaning of Article XIIID, although no assurance
can be given that a court would not determine otherwise.
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Article XIIID states that, beginning July 1, 1997, all “fees” or “charges” must comply with its
provisions. It is unclear how the provisions of Article XIIID will be applied to fees or charges established
prior to such date. The City does not plan to conduct any new hearings, elections, or other proceedings
with respect to any of its existing sewer-related fees or charges.

In addition to the provisions described above, Article XIIIC removes limitations on the initiative
power in matters of local taxes, assessments, fees and charges. Consequently, the voters of the City
could, by future initiative, repeal, reduce, or prohibit the future imposition or increase of any local tax,
assessment, fee, or charge. “Assessment,” “fee,” and “charge” are not defined in Article XIIIC and it is
unclear whether the definitions of such terms contained in Article XIIID (which are generally
property-related as described above) apply with respect to Article XIIIC. No assurance can be given that
the voters of the City will not, in the future, approve initiatives which repeal, reduce, or prohibit the future
imposition or increase of assessments, fees, or charges. The City believes that the initiative power cannot
be used to alter covenants in the Installment Purchase Agreement concerning the imposition of the City’s
charges or reduce or repeal such charges to the extent that the City could not meet its obligation to make
Installment Payments. In addition to the foregoing, the City’s general financial condition may be affected
by other provisions of Article XIIIC and Article XIIID, including (A) provisions of Article XIIIC (i)
requiring taxes for general governmental purposes to be approved by a majority vote and taxes for
specific purposes, even if deposited into general fund, to be approved by a two-thirds vote, (ii) subjecting
all taxes, assessments, fees, and charges to reduction or repeal at any time through the initiative process
(as mentioned above), and (iii) provisions of Article XIIID that could reduce the ability of the City to
fund certain services or programs that it may be required or choose to fund from its general fund, such as
provisions (1) adding requirements making it generally more difficult to levy and maintain “assessments,”
defined to mean a levy or charge upon real property for a particular and distinct benefit to the property
over and above general benefits conveyed to property located in the district or to the public at large,
(2) requiring any imposition or increase of property related fees or charges other than for sewer, water and
refuse collection services or fees for electrical or gas service (which are not treated as property related for
purposes of Article XIIID) to be approved by “majority of the property owners” subject to the fee or
charge or, at the option of the local government, two-thirds vote of the electorate residing in the affected
area.

The interpretation and application of Proposition 218 will ultimately be determined by the courts
with respect to a number of the matters discussed above, and it is not possible at this time to predict with
certainty the outcome of such determination.

Future Initiatives

Articles XIIIB, XIIIC, and XIIID of the Constitution were each adopted as measures that
qualified for the ballot pursuant to California’s initiative process. From time to time other initiative
measures could be adopted, further affecting Wastewater System revenues or the City’s ability to generate
or expend revenues.

THE AUTHORITY

The Authority is a joint exercise of powers entity duly organized and existing under and by virtue
of the laws of the State of California pursuant to a Joint Powers Agreement, dated as of October 8, 1991,
as amended on April 21, 1992 (the “JPA™), by and between the City, the Redevelopment Agency of the
City of Oxnard and the Housing Authority of the City of Oxnard. The Authority was created on October
8, 1991, to finance capital improvements, working capital, liability and other insurance needs or projects.
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The Authority is governed by a five-member Board of Directors. The members of the Board are
listed below:

Name Office

Tom Conway Chairman
Charles Covarrubias Vice Chairman
Dr. Sonny Okada Board Member
Francisco J. Dominguez Board Member
Patricia Maki Board Member

The Authority is also served by the officers listed below who, in the case of the Authority
Controller and General Counsel, serve in these capacities by virtue of their duties as Finance and
Management Services Director and City Attorney, respectively or, in the case of the Authority Secretary,
is appointed by officers of the Authority and serves at the pleasure of the Authority’s Board of Directors.
The officers are:

Name Position

Stan Kleinman Controller

Gary Gillig General Counsel
Jill Beaty Secretary

Neither the Authority nor its directors have any obligations or liability to the owners of the Bonds
with respect to the payment of Installment Payments by the City under the Installment Purchase
Agreement, or with respect to the performance of the City of other covenants made by it in the
Installment Purchase Agreement.

THE PROJECT

The City is purchasing the Project from the Authority with Installment Payments pursuant to the
Installment Purchase Agreement. The Project consists of three components: the 1977 Treatment Plant
Project, the 1985 Treatment Plant Property, and the 1986 Project, each of which is described below. Each
of the Project components was originally financed with public debt obligations that are no longer
outstanding.

1977 Treatment Plant Project

That portion of the Project referred to as the 1977 Treatment Plant Project was financed with the
1977 Bonds and consists of certain modifications to the Oxnard Wastewater Treatment Plant located at
6001 Perkins Road near the Ormond Beach area of the City (the “Treatment Plant”) and the construction
of an ocean outfall extension, the Ventura Road Sewer and Pump Plant and the Port Hueneme Sewer
Interceptor System and Pump Plant.

1985 Treatment Plant Property
That portion of the Project referred to as the 1985 Treatment Plant Property was originally
financed with proceeds of the 1985 Certificates and consists of 7.76 acres of land to the north of the

Treatment Plant acquired for an expansion of the Treatment Plant to accommodate liquid wastewater
treatment. Such expansion constitutes the 1986 Project as described below.
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1986 Project

The portion of the Project referred to as the 1986 Project was originally financed with proceeds of
the 1986 Certificates and consists of the following components:

@ an upgrade to and expansion of the then current primary and secondary treatment
capabilities of the Treatment Plant;

(b) the implementation of an activated sludge system such that the Treatment Plant would
provide enhanced secondary treatment;

(c) the construction of a five million gallon flow equalization basin;

()] the expansion of the capacity of the Treatment Plant’s then existing chlorine contact
chamber;

(e) the construction of additional gravity thickeners for sludge thickening and a new fixed

cover digester for anaerobic digestion;

63) the demolition of the then existing vacuum filtration facility and the construction of a
new sludge dewatering facility;

(8 the upgrade and expansion of the Treatment Plant’s auxiliary power systems and support
equipment; and

(h) the provision of equipment and facilities for odor control and sludge storage requirements.

THE WASTEWATER SYSTEM
Background and Organization

The City’s Wastewater System provides wastewater collection and treatment services for the
residents of Oxnard, the neighboring City of Port Hueneme and the Naval Base Ventura County (Port
Hueneme and Point Mugu). Its principal facilities consist of the Treatment Plant, approximately 400
miles of sewer pipelines and 16 wastewater pump stations. The City maintains two accounting funds for
the Wastewater System, a Wastewater Conveyance Fund, the primary sources of revenue for which are
comprised of the monthly user charges paid by the existing residents of the City and connection fee
income generated by new development within the City, and a Wastewater Treatment Plant Fund, the
primary revenue sources for which are comprised of regional user charges and connection fee income
generated by new development within the City. The Wastewater Conveyance Fund and the Wastewater
Treatment Plant Fund together comprise the Wastewater Revenue Fund, as defined in the Installment
Purchase Agreement.

Prior to 1977, the City had owned and operated a local sewage treatment and disposal system,
financing the acquisition and construction of a collection system, treatment plant and ocean outfall
through various bond issues commencing in 1905. In 1976, following an action by the Los Angeles
Regional Water Quality Control Board calling for the regional consolidation of wastewater treatment at
the City’s treatment plant, the City and the City of Port Hueneme formed the Oxnard - Port Hueneme
Regional Wastewater Treatment Authority (“OPHRWTA”) by means of a Joint Exercise of Powers
Agreement dated August 17, 1976. OPHRWTA, through a combination of Federal and State grants and
an issue of Lease Revenue Bonds, undertook a major reconstruction and expansion of the Oxnard
Wastewater Treatment Plant that resulted in the Treatment Plant’s then reported design capacity of 22.6
million gallons per day (mgd).
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In 1976, the City entered into a contract whereby the Treatment Plant was to be operated by the
Ventura County Regional Sanitation District. In 1986, the City cancelled that contract and established an
organization for direct City operation of the facility. Following the defeasance of the Prior Obligations,
OPHRWTA was dissolved.

In 1991, the City completed Phase I of the Treatment Plant Expansion Project which included the
addition of a new secondary treatment system and several improvements to the existing treatment
processes. This project increased the Treatment Plant’s design capacity from 22.6 mgd to 31.7 mgd.

Service Area

The Treatment Plant currently serves a population of approximately 225,000 with an average
flow of about 21 mgd. The following table shows a five-year history of flow through the Treatment Plant,
broken down according to its four major user groups.

Year
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002

Oxnard
17.21
17.21
17.75
18.47
18.42

Source: City of Oxnard.

TABLE 1
OXNARD WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT
AVERAGE DAILY FLOW (MILLIONS OF GALLONS PER DAY)

Port Naval Base Ventura Naval Base Ventura
Hueneme County — Port Hueneme  County — Point Mugu

2.25 0.82 0.35

2.28 0.74 0.35

2.46 0.78 0.38

2.32 0.79 0.31

2.01 0.68 0.23

Total
20.63
20.58
21.37
21.89
21.34

As of December 31, 2002, the Wastewater System had 32,946 active service accounts, of which
30,730 were residential, 2,199 were commercial and 17 were industrial. The following table shows the
annual growth in the number of the Wastewater System’s active service accounts since December 31,

1998.

Date
12/31/98
12/31/99
12/31/00
12/31/01
12/31/02

Residential
Accounts

28,425
28,826
29,514
30,304
30,730

TABLE 2
WASTEWATER SYSTEM
ACTIVE SERVICE ACCOUNTS
Commercial Industrial
Accounts Accounts
2,013 21
2,067 18
2,097 18
2,153 18
2,199 17

Total
Accounts
30,459
30,911
31,629
32,475
32,946

Source: City of Oxnard, Finance and Management Services Department, Billing Division.
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The Wastewater System’s thirty largest wastewater customers in order of billing for the twelve-
month period ending December 31, 2002 are listed in the following table:

TABLE 3
WASTEWATER SYSTEM
THIRTY LARGEST CUSTOMERS BY ORDER OF BILLING
FOR TWELVE-MONTH PERIOD ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2002

Customer Twelve-Month Billing
_Name__ Through December 31, 2002
Procter & Gamble Paper Products $1,059,096.12
City of Port Hueneme (Regional User) 684,202.61
Construction Batallion (Regional User) 278,507.50
Boskovich Farms 211,901.00
Gills Onions 192,850.33
Willamette Industries 170,550.07
Agrilink Foods 155,441.68
Santa Clara Wastewater 109,956.16
St. John’s Hospital 94,037.51
J. M. Smucker 93,628.24
Youth Correctional Facility 88,751.71
Stork Laundry Service 73,937.59
Ventura County Regional Sanitation 71,393.85
Point Mugu (Regional User) 67,736.13
Frozsun Foods 51,555.98
Maple Leaf Bakery 51,297.21
Kona Kai Estates 49,140.00
E. F. Oxnard 43,000.08
Royal Duke MHP 40,500.00
Oxnard Lemon 38,214.45
PTI Advanced Filtration 37,879.61
Meadowlake Mobile Park 34,380.00
Imperial Oxnard MHP 33,480.00
Oxnard Shores 32,580.00
Mission Linen 31,965.74
F&F Rancho Ellen Assoc. LLC 30,240.00
Saticoy Lemon Assoc. 29,964.53
Riveroaks LLC 28,314.00
Royal Palms MHP 27,900.00
Herman Industries 22,589.09

Source: City of Oxnard, Finance and Management Services Department, Billing Division.
Sources of Wastewater System Revenues

The Wastewater System has two main sources of revenues: (i) monthly wastewater user charges
billed and paid according to separate rate schedules for residential, commercial and industrial accounts
and (ii) wastewater connection fees billed and paid prior to the issuance of any building permit for the
construction of new residential, commercial or industrial structures in the City.

Wastewater Rates and Charges

The Wastewater System’s monthly wastewater usage rates and charges are adopted annually by
the City Council of the City prior to the commencement of each fiscal year and are not subject to review
by any state or local governmental agency. Residential usage rates are levied on the basis of a flat
monthly fee, currently $21.88 per month for single family detached residential units as adopted by the
City Council of the City for fiscal year 2001-02 and fiscal year 2002-03. This figure represents a 6%
increase over the monthly rate that was approved for fiscal year 2000-01. Commercial usage rates are
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based on metered water use with a different rate per unit of flow applied to the three categories of
commercial users: regular commercial, restaurant commercial and laundry commercial. The flow rates
approved by the City Council for fiscal year 2001-02 and 2002-03 for each of these three categories of
commercial users were increased by 6% over those adopted for fiscal year 2000-01. Each of the
Wastewater System’s 20 industrial wastewater formula users is monitored individually for its usage and
billed separately for its flow and its concentrates (Biological Oxygen Demand (BOD) and Suspended
Solids (SS)). These rates were increased by 6%, respectively, by the City Council for fiscal year 2001-02.

The following table summarizes the City’s fiscal year 2001-02 monthly wastewater usage rate
structure for the Wastewater System’s commercial and industrial customers:

TABLE 4
CITY OF OXNARD MONTHLY WASTEWATER USAGE RATES
COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL CUSTOMERS

COMMERCIAL/INDUSTRIAL

Category Rate (Per 100 Cubic Feet of Flow)
Regular Commercial S1.829
Restaurant Commercial 2.899
Laundry Commercial 1.898

INDUSTRIAL FORMULA

Category Rate

Flow Rate $1,570.715 per Million Gallons
BOD Rate 219.206 per Thousand Pounds
SS Rate 302.591 per Thousand Pounds

Source: City of Oxnard, Public Works Department.

[remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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The following table shows the history of monthly wastewater usage rates for single family
detached-unit residential customers in Oxnard:

TABLE 5
CITY OF OXNARD MONTHLY WASTEWATER USAGE RATES FOR
SINGLE FAMILY DETACHED-UNIT RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMERS
FISCAL YEARS 1987-88 TO 2002-03

Fiscal Year Monthly Usage Rate
1987-88 $11.93
1988-89 13.13
1989-90 14.03
1990-91 15.02
1991-92 17.44
1992-93 20.86
1993-94 20.94M
1994-95 20.64
1995-96 20.64
1996-97 20.64
1997-98 20.64
1998-99 20.64
1999-00 20.64
2000-01 20.64
2001-02 21.88
2002-03 21.88

(U Rate changed from 20.94 to 20.64 in January 1994.
Source: City of Oxnard, Public Works Deparament.

The following table shows how the City’s 2001-02 monthly wastewater usage rate for single
family detached-unit residential customers compared with the monthly rates of some of its neighboring
cities as of June 30, 2002:

TABLE 6
WASTEWATER SYSTEM
COMPARABLE MONTHLY WASTEWATER USAGE RATES FOR
AVERAGE SINGLE FAMILY DETACHED-UNIT RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMER

City Rate
Camarillo $21.08

Ojai 3042

Oxnard 21.88

Port Hueneme 16.50

Santa Paula 16.37

Simi Valley 17.08

Thousand Oaks 21.85

Ventura 11.84t0 25.24

(1) The City of Ventura charges rates based upon the following six tiers:
Tier 1 - $11.84, Tier 2 - $14.52, Tier 3 - $17.20, Tier 4 - $19.88, Tier 5 - $22.56, Tier 6 - $25.24.
Source: City of Oxnard, Public Works Department.

27



The City attributes the fact that its rate for the average residential customer is higher than the
comparable rates in its neighboring cities to two things: (i) the cost of capital improvements to the
Wastewater System’s facilities, including the Treatment Plant, and (ii) the higher operating expenses
incurred by the City resulting from the relatively flat terrain in the Wastewater System’s service area
which makes frequent sewer cleaning and the use of pump stations necessary.

Wastewater Connection Fees

The City Council of the City also periodically establishes wastewater connection fees which are
also not subject to review by any state or local government agency. These fees consist of a wastewater
treatment plant component (Treatment Facility Related Infrastructure Fee) and a wastewater conveyance
system component (Conveyance Facility Related Connection Fee). By Ordinance No. 2260 adopted on
October 15, 1991 and effective December 14, 1991, the City Council adopted the following schedule of
wastewater connection fees, which have not been revised since their effective date:

TABLE 7

WASTEWATER SYSTEM
SCHEDULE OF CONNECTION FEES

METER EQUIVALENCY FACTORS

Meter Size Meter Equivalency Factor

5/8”, 3/4” 1
17 2
1-1/27 3
2" 5

3” 11

4 17

6” 33

8” 53

10” 113

127 180

A. Treatment Facility Related Infrastructure Fee shall be paid which shall be the sum of the Flow, Biological
Oxygen Demand (BOD) and Suspended Solid (SS) charges, based upon the following schedule:

1. Flow Charges (Utilizing Equivalency Factors for Water Meter Size)

Volume Rate
All Users Meter Equivalency X S1,100.00
2. Biological Oxygen Demand (BOD) Charges (Utilizing Equivalency Factors for Strength and Meter Size)
Strength Rate

Detached Single Family Residential 1 X Meter Equiv. Factor X S835.00
Commercial:

Other 1 X Meter Equiv. Factor X $835.00

Laundries 1.6 X Meter Equiv. Factor X S835.00

Restaurants 2 X Meter Equiv. Factor X $835.00

Industrial 2 X Meter Equiv. Factor X $835.00
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3.  Suspended Solids (SS) Charges (Utilizing Equivalency Factors For Strength and Meter Size)
Strength Rate
Detached Single Family Residential 1 X Meter Equiv. Factor X $633.00
Commercial:
Regular 1.3 X Meter Equiv. Factor X $633.00
Laundries 1 X Meter Equiv. Factor X $633.00
Restaurants 3.2 X Meter Equiv. Factor X $633.00
Industrial 3.4 X Meter Equiv. Factor X $633.00
4. Meter Equivalency Factors for Residential Other Than Detached Single Family Dwellings for Which a
Common Meter is Permissible
For residential units which can be serviced with a common meter, the fees shall be according to an average
occupancy factor as follows.
Mobile Home Parks - 1.9/3.3 X number of mobile home spaces plus equivalency factor for meter that would be
required for common facilities that require wastewater service.
Apartments - 2.4/3.3 X number of service connections plus equivalency factor for meter that would be required
for common facilities that require wastewater service.
B.

In addition to the above, the Conveyance Facility Related Connection Fee shall be charged as follows:

For All Connections

For any connection to the wastewater conveyance system, the fee shall be determined by the size of the water
meter needed to serve the development, based on a charge of $971.00 per water meter equivalency factor as

described in Section A and as noted below for all but mobile homes, and apartments:

Meter Equivalency Factors for Residential Other than Detached Single-Family Dwellings for Which a
Common Meter is Permissible

For residential units which can be serviced with a common meter the fees shall be according to a calculated
factor as follows.

Mobile Home Parks - 1.9/3.3 X number of mobile home spaces plus equivalency factor for meter that would be
required for common facilities that require wastewater service.

Apartments - 2.4/3.3 X number of service connections plus equivalency factor for meter that would be required
for common facilities that require wastewater service.

Source: City of Oxnard, Public Works Department.

In accordance with the above schedule, the wastewater connection fee for a detached single

family residential dwelling unit would be computed as follows:

Treatment Related Infrastructure Fee Fee
Flow Component $1,100.00
BOD Component 835.00
SS Component _633.00
Total $2,568.00
Conveyance Facility Related Infrastructure Fee _971.00
TOTAL WASTEWATER CONNECTION FEE $3,539.00
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Actual and Projected Operating Results

The tablc below shows a three-year historical summary of thc Wastcwater System’s operating results for fiscal ycars 1999-00 and 2001-02 togcther with
the budgeted amounts for fiscal year 2002-03 and the projccted figurces for fiscal years 2003-04 through 2006-07:

TABLE 8
CITY OF OXNARD
WASTEWATER SYSTEM
HISTORICAL AND PROJECTED DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE
(Actual) (Actual) (Actual) (Budgeted) (1) (Projected) (Projccted) (Projected) (Projccted)

FISCAL YEAR 1999-00 2000-01. 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services (2) $15,949,691 $17,071,823 $17,560,149 $16,544,077 $17,371,281 $18,239,845 $19.151,837 $20,109,429
Conncction Fees/Devcelopment Feces (3) 5,244,017 3,469,582 2,536,389 2,692,155 3,461,077 16,495,687 2,773,730 2,801,467
Interest Income 1,168,498 1,182,348 1,171,437 900,000 900,000 900,000 900,000 900,000
Other Revenues (4) 710,232 700,766 476977 888,748 975,713 906,612 915.678 924,835

Total Operating Revenues $23,072,438 $22,424,519 $21,744,952 $21,024,980 $22,708,071 $36,542,144 $23,741,245 $24,735,731
OPERATING EXPENSES (5) $15,015,488 $15,045,301 $15,177,123 $16,241,042 $16,565,863 $16.897.180 $17,235,124 $17,579.826
(Less: Depreciation) (3,700,248) (2,454,201) (3.729,002) (3,737,002) (3.746,345) (3,755,710) (3,765.100) (3,774,512)
Total Operating Expenses (6) $11,315,240 $12,591,100 $11,448,121 $12,504,040 $12,819,518 $13.141,470 $13,470,024 13,805,314
NET REVENUES (7) $11,757,198 $ 9,833,419 $10,296,831 $8,520,940 $9,888,553 $23,400,674 $10,271,221 $10,930,417
ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE
Scrics 1993 Bonds (8) $4,413,558 $4,412,598 $4,409,278 $ 1,194,976 -- -- .- --
Series 2003 Bonds -- -- -- 2,130,619 $3.667.613 $3.667.613 $3.670.013 $3.667.613
Total Annual Debt Service $4,413,558 $4,412,598 $4,409,278 $ 3,325,595 $3,667,613 $3,667,613 $3,670,013 $3,667,613
DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIO 2.66 2.23 2.34 2.56 2.70 6.38 2.80 2.98

Source: City of Oxnard Finance Department

(1) Budgeted amounts shown for FY 2002-03 reflect conscrvative cstimates madc by the City at the beginning of the fiscal ycar.

(2) Amounts shown for FY 2003-04 through FY 2006-07 arc projected to increase annually by 5%.

(3) Amounts for FY 2003-04 through FY 2006-07 are projected to incrcasc annually by 1%. Amount for FY 2003-04 also includes $742.000 of connection fees to be paid
by D.R. Horton. Amount for FY 2004-05 also includes $13,000,000 of connection fees related to ncw residential development.

(4) “Other Revenues™ include income dcrived from rents, payment penalties, damage reimbursements and pro-rata debt service payments reccived from the City of Port
Huencme (“Port Hucneme™) pursuant to that certain Cost-Sharing Agreement, dated as of August 12, 1993, between the City and Port Hueneme. Under the Cost-
Sharing Agreement, such payments are expccted to be reccived from Port Hueneme only through fiscal ycar 2003-04. Revenucs for FY 2005-06 through FY 2006-07
arc projected to increasc annually by [%.

(5) Amounts shown for FY 2003-04 through FY 2006-07 are projected to incrcasc annually by 2%.

(6) Total Expenditurcs in Table 9 docs not match Total Operating Expenscs in this Table 8 because Total Operating Expenses docs not include Debt Service payments or
expenditures for Capital Improvements, as such terms are uscd in Table 9.

(7) Amounts shown in FY 2000-01 through FY 2002-03 represent “Net System Revenues™ available to pay debt service on the Series 1993 Bonds under the 1993
Installment Purchase Agreement. Amounts shown in FY 2003-04 through FY 2006-07 represcnt “Nct System Revenues™ available to pay debt scrvice on the Bonds
under the Installment Purchasc Agreement.

(8) Amount shown for FY 2002-03 represents interest only debt service payment made on December 1, 2002.



Fiscal Year 2002-2003 Wastewater System Budget

The City Council of the City has adopted a budget for the Wastewater System for fiscal year
2002-2003. The summary totals of that budget, broken down according to the Wastewater Conveyance
Fund and the Wastewater Treatment Plant Fund, are as follows:

TABLE 9
CITY OF OXNARD
WASTEWATER SYSTEM
FISCAL YEAR 2002-03 BUDGET SUMMARY
Wastewater Wastewater
Conveyance | Treatment Plant | Debt Service
Classification Fund Fund Fund Total System

REVENUES
Charges to Users $4,936,386 $11,607,691 $16,544,077
Connection Fees 812,155 1,880,000 2,692,155
Earned Interest 600,000 300,000 900,000
Other Revenue 590,000 200,000 $ 98,748 888,748
Transfer Out (1,800,000) (1,800,000)
Transfer In 1,800,000 1,800,000
Subtotal 6,938,541 $12,187,691 1,898,748 21,024,980
Transfer to Retained Earnings (340,724) (94,863) (435,587)
Total Revenues $6,597,817 $12,092,828 $1,898,748 $20,589,393
EXPENDITURES
Salaries & Benefits $1,437,467 $ 2,930,557 $ 4,368,024
Services & Supplies 2,551,795 5,302,066 7,853,861
Developer Reimbursement 242,155 - 242,155
Capital Outlay 40,000 - 40,000
Debt Service (1) - 2,516,205 $1,898,748 4,414,953
Subtotal 4,271,417 10,748,828 1,898,748 16,918,993
Capital Improvements 2,326,400 1,344,000 - 3,670,400
Total Expenditures (2) $6,597,817 $12,092,828 $1,898,748 $20,589,393

Source: City of Oxnard, Public Works Department.
(1) Reflects budgeted debt service for 1993 Bonds, without taking into account the issuance of the Bonds.

(2) SeeFootnote 6 on Table 8.

Outstanding Debt

Upon the issuance of the Bonds and the refunding and defeasance of the 1993 Bonds, there will
be no outstanding debt obligations of the Wastewater System that are senior to or on a parity with the

Installment Payments.

Plans For Future Indebtedness

The City presently intends to finance the construction, acquisition and improvement of a
wastewater project known as the Redwood Trunk Sewer Project, which is expected to include:
(a) approximately 18,000 feet of new 48-inch to 60-inch diameter gravity sewer line (from Redwood
Street and Ventura Road to the new Headworks Project (generally described below) at the Treatment




Plant and in Ventura Road from Redwood Street to Hemlock Street); (b) approximately 27,000 feet of
new 36-inch to 42-inch diameter gravity sewer line (in Gonzales Road from Ventura Road to Oxnard
Boulevard); (c) approximately 3,500 feet of new 39-inch to 42-inch diameter gravity sewer line and 3,500
feet of new 33-inch to 39-inch diameter force main (in Hemlock Street); and (d) upgrade or replacement
of the Hemlock/Patterson Street Pump Station; and (2) a wastewater project known as the Headworks
Project, which is expected to include (a) new headworks area; (b) new mechanical bar screen facilities;
(c)new grit removal and dewatering facilities; (d) influent pump station; and (e) new odor control
facilities and support facilities; and (3) appurtenances and appurtenant work relating to the foregoing
projects, including right of way acquisition (collectively, the “Future Projects”). The City currently
intends to incur additional debt obligations to finance all or a portion of the Future Projects, which debt
obligations will be payable in whole or in part from the Net System Revenues and will rank, in whole or
in part, on a parity with the Installment Payments. The City may issue such parity obligations as
described under the caption “SECURITY FOR THE BONDS - Limitations Regarding Additional
Obligations” herein. The City has not entered into any agreements, and is under no obligation, to
construct or finance the Future Projects and there can be no assurance that the Future Projects will be built
as planned.

TAX MATTERS
Bond Counsel Opinion

In the opinion of Pillsbury Winthrop LLP, Los Angeles, California, Bond Counsel, based upon an
analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings and judicial decisions, interest on the Bonds is excludable
from gross income for federal income tax purposes and is exempt from State of California personal
income taxes. Bond Counsel is further of the opinion that interest on the Bonds is not a specific
preference item for purposes of the federal individual or corporate alternative minimum taxes. However,
Bond Counsel observes that such interest is included in adjusted current earnings in calculating corporate
alternative minimum taxable income. A copy of the proposed form of opinion of Bond Counsel is set
forth in Appendix D hereto and will accompany the Bonds.

The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) imposes various restriction,
conditions and requirements relating to the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes
of interest received by persons such as the registered owners of the Bonds. The City and the Authority
have covenanted to comply with certain restrictions designed to assure that interest on the Bonds will not
be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes. Failure to comply with those covenants
may result in interest on the Bonds being included in gross income for federal income tax purposes,
possibly from the date of issuance of the Bonds. The opinion of Bond Counsel assumes compliance with
those covenants. Bond Counsel has not undertaken to determine (or to inform any person) whether any
actions taken (or not taken) or events occurring (or not occurring) after the date of issuance of the Bonds
may affect the tax status of interest on the Bonds.

Certain requirements and procedures contained or referred to in the Indenture, the Installment
Purchase Agreement and other relevant documents may be changed and certain actions (including,
without limitation, defeasance of the Bonds) may be taken or omitted under the circumstances and subject
to the terms and conditions set forth in such documents, upon the advice or with the approving opinion of
nationally recognized bond counsel. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion as to any Bond or the interest
thereon if any such change occurs or action is taken upon the advice or approval of bond counsel other
than Bond Counsel.
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Bond Counsel has not undertaken to advise in the future whether any events after the date of
issuance of the Bonds may affect the federal or state tax status of interest on the Bonds or the tax
consequences of ownership of the Bonds. No assurance can be given that future legislation, including
amendments to the Code or interpretations thereof, if enacted into law, will not contain provisions, which
could directly or indirectly reduce the benefit of the excludability of the interest on the Bonds from gross
income for federal income tax purposes.

Although Bond Counsel has rendered an opinion that interest on the Bonds is excluded from
gross income for federal and California State personal income tax purposes, a Bondholder's federal and
State tax liability may otherwise be affected by the ownership or disposition of the Bonds. The nature
and extent of these other tax consequences will depend upon the Bondholder’s other items of income or
deduction. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, prospective purchasers of the Bonds should
be aware that: (i) Section 265 of the Code denies a deduction for interest on indebtedness incurred or
continued to purchase or carry the Bonds, or in the case of a financial institution, that portion of a holder's
interest expense allocated to interest on the Bonds; (ii) with respect to insurance companies subject to the
tax imposed by Section 831 of the Code, Section 832(b)(5)(B)(i) reduces the deduction for loss reserves
by 15% of the sum of certain items, including interest on the Bonds; (iii); with respect to life insurance
companies, life insurance company taxable income subject to the tax imposed by Section 801 of the Code
is determined by permitting deductions for certain dividends received but not to the extent such dividend
is from a non-insurance corporation and is out of tax-exempt interest, including interest on the Bonds;
(iv) interest on the Bonds earned by certain foreign corporations doing business in the United States could
be subject to a branch profits tax imposed by Section 884 of the Code; (v) passive investment income,
including interest on the Bonds, may be subject to federal income taxation under Section 1375 of the
Code for Subchapter S corporations that have Subchapter C earnings and profits at the close of the taxable
year if greater than 25% of the gross receipts of such Subchapter S corporation is passive investment
income; (vi) Section 86 of the Code requires recipients of certain Social Security and certain Railroad
Retirement benefits to take into account, in determining the taxability of such benefits, receipts or
accruals of interest on the Bonds; and (vii) under Section 32(i) of the Code, receipt of investment income,
including interest on the Bonds, may disqualify the recipient thereof from obtaining the earned income
credit. Bond Counsel has expressed no opinion regarding any such other tax consequences. Accordingly,
before purchasing any of the Bonds, all potential purchasers should consult their tax advisors concerning
collateral tax consequences with respect to the Bonds.

Risk of Audit by Internal Revenue Service

The Internal Revenue Service (the “Service”) has an ongoing program of auditing tax-exempt
obligations to determine whether, in the view of the Service, interest on such tax-exempt obligations is
includable in the gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes. No assurances can
be given as to whether or not the Service will commence an audit of the Bonds. If an audit is commenced,
under current procedures the Service is likely to treat the Authority as the taxpayer and the owners of the
Bonds may have no right to participate in such procedure.

Bond Counsel’s opinion represents its legal judgment based upon its review of existing law,
regulations, rulings, judicial decisions, and other authorities, and upon the covenants and representations
of the parties and such other facts as it has deemed relevant to render such opinion, and is not a guarantee
of a result. Neither the Underwriter nor Bond Counsel is obligated to defend the tax-exempt status of the
Bonds. Neither the Authority nor Bond Counsel is responsible to pay or reimburse the costs of any owner
with respect to any audit or litigation relating to the Bonds.
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Original Issue Discount/Premium

To the extent the issue price of any maturity of the Bonds is less than the amount to be paid at
maturity of such Bonds (excluding amounts stated to be interest and payable at least annually over the
term of such Bonds), the difference constitutes “original issue discount,” the accrual of which, to the
extent properly allocable to each owner thereof, is treated as interest on the Bonds which is excluded from
gross income for federal income tax purposes. For this purpose, the issue price of a particular maturity of
the Bonds is the first price at which a substantial amount of such maturity of the Bonds is sold to the
public (excluding bond houses, brokers, or similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity of
underwriters, placement agents or wholesalers). The original issue discount with respect to any maturity
of the Bonds accrues daily over the term to maturity of such Bonds on the basis of a constant interest rate
compounded semiannually (with straight-line interpolations between compounding dates). The accruing
original issue discount is added to the adjusted basis of such Bonds to determine taxable gain or loss upon
disposition (including sale, redemption, or payment on maturity) of such Bonds. Owners of the Bonds
should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences of ownership of Bonds with
original issue discount, including the treatment of purchasers who do not purchase such Bonds in the
original offering to the public at the first price at which a substantial amount of such Bonds is sold to the
public.

Bonds purchased, whether at original issuance or otherwise, for an amount higher than their
principal amount payable at maturity (or, in some cases, at their earlier call date) (“Premium Bonds”) will
be treated as having amortizable bond premium. No deduction is allowable for the amortizable bond
premium in the case of bonds, like Premium Bonds, the interest on which is excluded from gross income
for federal income tax purposes. However, the amount of tax-exempt interest received, and a purchaser’s
basis in a Premium Bond, will be reduced by the amount of amortizable bond premium properly allocable
to such purchaser. Owners of Premium Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the
proper treatment of amortizable bond premium in their particular circumstances.

RATINGS

Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, a Division of The McGraw-Hill Companies (“S&P”) has
assigned its municipal bond rating of “AAA” to the Bonds based upon the issuance of the Bond Insurance
Policy by the Bond Insurer. In addition, S&P has assigned an underlying municipal bond rating of “A+”
to the Bonds. There is no assurance that any such rating will be in effect for any given period of time or
that it will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by the applicable rating agency if, in the
Jjudgment of such agency, circumstances so warrant. Any such downward revision or withdrawal may
have an adverse effect on the market price of the Bonds. Such ratings reflect only the views of the rating
agency and an explanation of the significance of any rating may be obtained only from the rating agency
furnishing the same.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

The Authority will covenant in the Continuing Disclosure Agreement to provide certain financial
information and operating data relating to the City and the Authority and notices of certain events, if
material. Such information and notices will be filed by the Authority with certain Nationally Recognized
Municipal Securities Repositories. The specific nature of the information to be provided is set forth in the
Continuing Disclosure Agreement, a form of which is attached hereto as Appendix E. This covenant has
been made in order to assist the Underwriter in complying with Securities and Exchange Commission
Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5), as amended. The Authority has never failed to provide any previous continuing
disclosure or notices of material events. See “APPENDIX E — Form of Continuing Disclosure
Agreement” herein.
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UNDERWRITING

The Bonds are being purchased by E. J. De La Rosa & Co., Inc. (the “Underwriter”). The
Underwriter has agreed to purchase the Bonds at a price of $46,536,416.90 (which represents the
aggregate principal amount of the Bonds, less an Underwriter’s discount of $199,221.75, plus an original
issue premium of $2,950,638.65).

The contract of purchase pursuant to which the Bonds are being purchased by the Underwriter
provides that the Underwriter will purchase all of the Bonds if any are purchased. The obligation of the
Underwriter to make such purchase is subject to certain terms and conditions set forth in the contact of
purchase.

The Underwriter may offier and sell the Bonds to certain dealers and others at prices or yields
different from the prices or yields stated on the cover page of this Official Statement. In addition, the
offering prices or yields may be changed from time to time by the Underwriters.

Although the Underwriter expects to maintain a secondary market in the Bonds after the initial
offering, no guarantee can be made that such a market will develop or be maintained by the Underwriter
or others.

LITIGATION

The City and the Authority will certify, and the City Attorney will render opinions on behalf of
the City and the Authority upon the issuance of the Bonds to the effect that, there is no action, suit or
proceeding known to the City or the Authority to be pending or threatened, restraining or enjoining the
execution or delivery of the Bonds, the Installment Purchase Agreement or the Indenture or in any way
contesting or affecting the validity of the foregoing or any proceeding of the City or the Authority taken
with respect to any of the foregoing or that will materially adversely affect the City’s ability to pay
Installment Payments when due.

CERTAIN LEGAL MATTERS

Pillsbury Winthrop LLP, Los Angeles, California, Bond Counsel, will render an opinion with
respect to the Bonds in substantially the form set forth in Appendix D hereto. Copies of such opinion will
be furnished to the Underwriter at the time of delivery of the Bonds. Certain legal matters will be passed
upon for the City and the Authority by the City Attorney and by Disclosure Counsel, Pillsbury Winthrop
" LLP, Los Angeles, California.

VERIFICATION

Causey, Demgen & Moore Inc., a firm of independent certified public accountants, will verify the
accuracy of (i) the mathematical computations of the adequacy of the maturing principal of and interest
earned on the obligations of the United States of America held under the Escrow Agreement by the
Escrow Agent, together with other available funds held by the Escrow Agent, to provide for the refunding
and defeasance of the 1993 Bonds, and (ii) certain mathematical computations supporting the conclusion
that the Bonds are not “arbitrage bonds” under the Code.
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MISCELLANEOUS

The purpose of this Official Statement is to supply information to prospective buyers of the
Bonds. Quotations from and summaries and explanations of the Bonds and other documents contained
herein do not purport to be complete and reference is made to said documents for full and complete
statements of their provisions.

Appropriate City and Authority officials, acting in their official capacity, have reviewed this
Official Statement and have determined that as of the date thereof the information contained herein is, to
the best of their knowledge and belief, true and correct in all material respects and does not contain an
untruc statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make the
statements made, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. The
appropriate City and Authority officials will execute a Certificate to this effect upon delivery of the Bonds.
This Official Statement and its distribution have been duly authorized and approved by the City and the
Authority.

CITY OF OXNARD FINANCING AUTHORITY

By: /s/ Stan Kleinman
Controller
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APPENDIX A

SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF
INDENTURE AND INSTALLMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT

The following is a brief summary of certain provisions of the Indenture and the Installment
Purchase Agreement. This summary does not purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirety by
reference to said documents.

DEFINITIONS
“Additional Obligations” means Obligations other than the Installment Payments.

“Annual Debt Service” means, for any Bond Year, the sum of (1) the interest payable on all
Outstanding Bonds in such Bond Year, assuming that all Outstanding serial Bonds are retired as
scheduled and that all Outstanding term Bonds, if any, are redeemed or paid from sinking fund payments
as scheduled (except to the extent that such interest is to be paid from the proceeds of the sale of any
Bonds), and (2) the principal amount of all Outstanding Bonds maturing by their terms in such Bond Year.

“Authority” means the City of Oxnard Financing Authority, a joint exercise of powers entity duly
organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California.

“Authority Fiscal Year” means the fiscal year of the Authority which, as of the date of the
Indenture, is the period from July 1 to and including the following June 30.

13

“Average Annual Debt Service” means the amount determined by dividing the sum of all Annual
Debt Service amounts due in each of the Bond Years following the date of such calculation by the number
of such Bond Years.

“Bond Insurance Policy” means the municipal bond new issue insurance policy issued by the
Bond Insurer that guarantees payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds.

“Bond Insurer” means Financial Guaranty Insurance Company, doing business in California as
FGIC Insurance Company, a New York stock insurance company, or any successor thereto.

“Bond Year” means the period of twelve consecutive months commencing on June 2 and ending
on June 1 in any year during which Bonds are or will be Outstanding; provided, however, that the first
Bond Year shall commence on the Closing Date and end on June 1, 2003, and that the final Bond Year
shall end on the date on which the Bonds are fully paid or redeemed.

“Book-Entry Bonds” means the Bonds registered in the name of the nominee of DTC, or any
successor securities depository for the Bonds, as the registered owner thereof pursuant to the terms and
provisions of the Indenture.

“Business Day” means a day of the year that is not a Saturday or Sunday, or a day on which
banking institutions located in the State of California are required or authorized to remain closed, or on
which the Federal Reserve system is closed. If the date for making any payment or the last date for
performance of any act or the exercising of any right, as provided in the Indenture, shall not be a Business
Day, such payment may be made or act performed or right exercised on the next succeeding Business Day,
with the same force and effiect as if done on the nominal date provided in the Indenture, and, unless
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otherwisc specifically provided in the Indenture, no interest shall accrue for the period from and after
such nominal date.

“Certificate of the Authority” means an instrument in writing signed by the Chairman, the Vice
Chairman, the Secretary, or the Controller of the Authority, or by any other officer of the Authority duly
authorized for that purpose.

“Certificate of the City” means an instrument in writing signed by the Treasurer (or his or her
designee) or the Finance and Management Services Director (or his or her designee) of the City, or by any
other official of the City duly authorized for that purpose.

“Certificate of the Finance Director” means an instrument in writing signed by the Finance and
Management Services Director (or his or her designee) of the City, or by any other official of the City
duly authorized for that purpose.

“Citv Bonds” means all revenue bonds or notes of the City authorized, executed, issued, and
delivered under and pursuant to the laws of the State of California, the payments of which are made from
the Net System Revenues and which are on a parity with the Installment Payments. The term “City
Bonds” includes, but is not limited to, obligations in the form of bonds, notes, bond anticipation notes,
and commercial paper.

“Closing Date” means the date of delivery of the Bonds.
“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

“Computation Year” means with respect to the Bonds the period beginning on the Closing Date
and ending on June 1, 2003, and thereafter each successive twelve month period commencing on the
following June 2 and ending on the following June 1.

“Contract Payments” means the Installment Payments due and payable under the Installment
Purchase Agreement or the installment or lease payments of interest and principal or, if there are no
separate payments of interest and principal, the installment or lease payments, scheduled to be paid by the
City under and pursuant to the Contracts.

“Contracts” means the Installment Purchase Agreement and all contracts or lcases of the City
authorized and executed by the City under and pursuant to the laws of the State of California, the
installment or lease payments under which are payable from the Net System Revenues on a parity with
the Installment Payments.

“Corporation” means the City of Oxnard Public Facilities Corporation.

“Costs of Issuance” means all items of expense directly or indirectly payable by or reimbursable
to the City or the Authority relating to the issuance, sale, and delivery of the Bonds and the execution and
delivery of the Installment Purchase Agreement, including administrative fees, filing and recording costs,
settlement costs, printing costs, reproduction and binding costs, initial fees and charges of the Trustee
(including legal fees), financing discounts, legal fees and charges, insurance fees and charges, financial
and other professional consultant fees, costs of rating agencies or credit ratings, fees for transportation
and safekeeping of the Bonds, and charges and fees in connection with the foregoing.

“Debt Service” means, for any Fiscal Year or other period, the sum of (i) the interest payable
during such Fiscal Year or other period on all outstanding City Bonds, assuming that all outstanding serial
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City Bonds are retired as scheduled and that all outstanding term City Bonds are redeemed or paid from
sinking fund payments as scheduled (except to the extent that such interest is to be paid from the proceeds
of sale of any City Bonds), (2) that portion of the principal amount of all outstanding serial City Bonds
maturing on any principal payment date which falls in such Fiscal Year or other period, (3) that portion of
the principal amount of all outstanding term City Bonds required to be redeemed or paid on any
redemption date which falls in such Fiscal Year or other period (together with the redemption premiums,
if any, thereon), and (4) that portion of the Contract Payments required to be made in such Fiscal Year or
other period. For purposes of calculating Debt Service, the following assumptions shall be used:

(a) in determining the principal amount due in each Fiscal Year or other period, payment
shall be assumed to be made in accordance with any amortization schedule established for such
Obligations, including any scheduled payment at maturity or mandatory redemption or prepayment of
Obligations on the basis of value, and for such purpose, the scheduled payment at maturity or redemption
payment or prepayment shall be deemed a principal payment;

(b) in determining the interest due in each Fiscal Year or other period, interest payable at a
fixed rate shall be assumed to be made at such fixed rate and on the required payment dates;

(c) if any outstanding Obligations constitute Variable Rate Indebtedness, the interest rate on
such Obligations shall be assumed to be one hundred ten percent (110%) of the greater of (i) the daily
average interest rate on such Obligations during the twelve (12) calendar months ending with the month
preceding the date of calculation, or (ii) the rate of interest on such Obligations on the date of calculation;

(d) in the event that the City shall issue Additional Obligations that bear interest at a variable
rate, such Additional Obligations shall be assumed to bear interest at the highest of: (i) the actual rate on
the date of calculation or, if the indebtedness in not yet outstanding, the initial rate (if established and
binding), (ii) if the indebtedness has been outstanding for at least twelve months, the average rate over the
twelve months immediately preceding the date of calculation, and (iii) (A) if interest on the indebtedness
is excludable from gross income under the applicable provisions of the Code, the most recently published
Bond Buyer 25 Bond Revenue Index (or comparable index if no longer published) plus fifty (50) basis
points, or (B) if interest is not so excludable, the interest rate on direct U.S. Treasury obligations with
comparable maturities plus fifty (50) basis points.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, for purposes of any rate covenant measuring actual debt service
coverage during a test period, Variable Rate Indebtedness shall be deemed to bear interest at the actual
rate per annum applicable during the test period;

(e) if moneys or Permitted Investments have been deposited by the City into a separate fund
or account or are otherwise held by the City or by a fiduciary to be used to pay Debt Service on specified
Obligations, and such Obligations are discharged, or no longer outstanding, pursuant to the terms of the
instrument under which they are issued or arise, then the Debt Service to be paid from such moneys or
Permitted Investments, or from the earnings thereon, shall be disregarded and not included in calculating
Debt Service;

® the amount on deposit in a debt service reserve fund on any date of calculation of Debt
Service shall be deducted from the amount of principal due at the final maturity of the Obligations for
which such debt service reserve fund was established and in each preceding year until such amount is
exhausted; and

(2 with respect to Contract Payments, including the Installment Payments, that are not
comprised of separate payments of interest and principal but which, rather, are required pursuant to the
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instrument under which they arise to be paid in amounts sufficient to pay principal and interest on bonds,
notes, or other obligations of an entity other than the City, for purposes of calculating Debt Service,
interest payments and principal payment (whether at maturity or by redemption or prepayment) with
respect to such bonds, notes, or other obligations shall be deemed to be interest payments and principal
payments with respect to such Contract Payments; provided, however, that for purposes of such
calculation, the Contract Payment Dates applicable to such Contract Payments shall be used, whether or
not such Contract Payment Dates coincide with the dates on which such Contract Payments are to be
applied to the payment of interest and principal with respect to such bonds, notes, or other obligations.

“Fiscal Year” means the period beginning on July 1 of each year and ending on the next
succeeding June 30, or any other twelve-month period selected and designated as the official Fiscal Year
of the City.

“Interest Payment Date” means each June 1 and December 1, commencing June 1, 2003.

“Maintenance and Operation Costs of the Wastewater System” means, for any Fiscal Year or
other period, the reasonable and necessary costs spent or incurred by the City for maintaining and
operating the Wastewater System, calculated in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
including (among other things) the reasonable expenses of management and repair and other expenses
necessary to maintain and preserve the Wastewater System in good repair and working order, and
including Administrative Costs, salaries and wages of employees, payments to employee retirement
systems (to the extent paid from System Revenues), overhead, insurance, taxes (if any), fees of auditors,
accountants, attorneys, or engineers, and insurance premiums, and including all other reasonable and
necessary costs of the City or charges required to be paid by it to comply with the terms of the Authority
Bonds, the Installment Purchase Agreement, or any Additional Obligations, including any amounts
required to be deposited in the Rebate Fund pursuant to the Tax Certificate, but excluding in all cases
(a) depreciation and replacement and obsolescence charges or reserves therefor, (b) amortization of
intangibles or other bookkeeping entries of a similar nature, (c) costs of capital additions, replacements,
betterments, extensions, or improvements to the Wastewater System, which under generally accepted
accounting principles are chargeable to a capital account or to a reserve for depreciation, (d) charges for
the payment of principal and interest on any general obligation bond heretofore or hereafter issued for
Wastewater System purposes, and (e) charges for the payment of any debt service on the Obligations or
on any obligation subordinate to the Obligations.

“Maximum Annual Debt Service” means, at any point in time, with respect to Obligations then
outstanding, the maximum amount of Debt Service on the Obligations in the then current or any future
Fiscal Year or other period, calculated by the City or by an Independent Certified Public Accountant and
provided to the Trustee.

“Moody’s” means Moody’s Investors Service and its successors and assigns.

“Net Proceeds” means, when used with respect to any insurance, self insurance, or condemnation
award, the proceeds from such award remaining after payment of all expenses (including attorneys, fees)
incurred in the collection of such proceeds.

“Net System Revenues” means System Revenues less the Maintenance and Operation Costs of
the Wastewater System.

“1985 Treatment Plant Property” means the real property described under the heading “1985
Treatment Plant Property” in Exhibit A to the Installment Purchase Agreement.
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“1986 Installment Purchase Agreement” means the Installment Purchase Agreement, dated as of
February 1, 1986, by and between the Corporation and the City.

“1986 Project” means the additions and improvements to the City of Oxnard Wastewater
Treatment Plant made pursuant to the 1986 Installment Purchase Agreement, as described under the
heading “1986 Project” in Exhibit A to the Installment Purchase Agreement.

“1993 Bonds” means the $59,530,000 in original principal amount of the City of Oxnard
Financing Authority Wastewater Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1993.

“1993 Costs of Issuance Fund” means the costs of issuance fund established under the 1993
Indenture for the 1993 Bonds.

“1993 Indenture” means that certain Indenture, dated as of June 1, 1993, by and between the
Authority and the Trustee.

“1993 Installment Purchase Agreement” means the Installment Purchase Agreement, dated as of
June 1, 1993, by and between the City and the Authority.

“1993 Reserve Fund” means the reserve fund established under the 1993 Indenture for the 1993
Bonds.

“1993 Trustee” means Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee for the 1993 Bonds.

“1977 Revenue Bonds” means the 1977 Lease Revenue Bonds issued by the Oxnard Port
Hueneme Regional Wastewater Treatment Authority pursuant to Resolution No. 5 adopted by the
Oxnard-Port Hueneme Regional Wastewater Treatment Authority on March 16, 1977.

“1977 Treatment Plant Project” means the construction of improvements to the City’s
Wastewater Treatment Plant from the proceeds of the 1977 Revenue Bonds, as described under the
heading “1977 Treatment Plant Project” in Exhibit A to the Installment Purchase Agreement.

“Obligations” means City Bonds and Contract Payments.
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“Opinion of Counsel” means a written opinion of counsel of recognized national standing in the
field of law relating to municipal bonds, appointed and paid by the Authority or the City.

“QOutstanding,” when used as of any particular time with reference to Bonds, means (subject to
the provisions of the Indenture) all Bonds theretofore or thereupon executed by the Authority and
authenticated and delivered by the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture (including Bonds, the principal of
and interest on which has been paid by the Bond Insurer pursuant to the Bond Insurance Policy), except --

(@) Bonds theretofore cancelled by the Trustee or surrendered to the Trustee for cancellation;

() Bonds paid or deemed to have been paid within the meaning set forth in the Indenture;
and

(©) Bonds in lieu of or in substitution for which other Bonds shall have been executed by the

Authority and authenticated and delivered pursuant to the Indenture.

“Owner” means any person who will be the registered owned of any Outstanding Bond, as shown
on the registration books required to be maintained by the Trustee.



“Permitted Investments” means any of the following to the extent then permittcd by law and
pursuant to the Indenture, as follows:

(D Direct obligations of (including obligations issued or held in book entry form on the
books of) the Department of the Treasury of the United States of America;

) Obligations of any of the following federal agencies which obligations represent full faith
and credit of the United States of America, including;

- Export - Import Bank

- Farmers Home Administration

- General Services Administration

- U.S. Maritime Administration

- Small Business Administration

- Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA)

- U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (PHAS)
- Federal Housing Administration;

3 Bonds, notes, or other evidences of indebtedness rated “AAA” by S&P and “Aaa” by
Moody’s issued by the Federal National Mortgage Association or the Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation with remaining maturities not exceeding three years,

4 United States dollar denominated deposit accounts, including certificates of deposit,
(including deposit accounts with the Trustee), federal funds, and banker’s acceptances with domestic
commercial banks which have a rating on their short term certificates of deposit on the date of purchase of
“A-1" or “A-1+11" by S&P and “P-111” by Moody’s and maturing no more than 270 days after the date
of purchase (ratings on holding companies are not considered as the rating of the bank);

5) Commercial paper which is rated at the time of purchase in the single highest
classification, “A-l1+" by S&P and “P-1” by Moody’s and which matures not more than 180 days after the
date of purchase;

(6) Investments in a money market fund rated “AAAm” or “AAAm-G” or better by S&P and
meeting the requirements of California Government Code Section 53601(k). Such money market funds
may include funds for which the Trustee or its affiliates or subsidiaries provide investment advisory or
other management services;

@) Pre-refunded Municipal Obligations defined as follows: Any bonds or other obligations
of the State of California or of any agency, instrumentality, or local governmental unit of the State of
California which are not callable at the option of the obligor prior to maturity or as to which irrevocable
instructions have been given by the obligor to call on the date specified in the notice and which are rated,
based on an irrevocable escrow account or fund (the “escrow”), in the highest rating category of S&P and
Moody’s;

(8) Investment agreements approved in writing by the Bond Insurer supported by appropriate
opinions of counsel with notice by the Authority to S&P;

9 Other forms of investments approved in writing by the Bond Insurer with notice by the
Authority to S&P; and



(10)  Shares in any money market mutual fund registered under the Investment Company Act
of 1940 whose investment portfolio consists solely of direct obligations of the United States Government,
provided that any such fund has been rated in the highest category by a nationally recognized rating
agency and, provided further, that such mutual funds may include funds for which the Trustee or its
affiliates or subsidiaries provide investment advisory or other management services.

“Policy Costs” means the draws, expenses and accrued interest owing and payable under the
Reserve Fund Policy.

“Project” means the sale to the City of (i)the 1977 Treatment Plant Project, (ii) the 1985
Treatment Plant Property, and (iii) the 1986 Project.

“Qualified Reserve Fund Policy” means an insurance policy or surety bond issued by a company
licensed to issue an insurance or surety, the claim-paying ability of which is rated in the highest category
by A.M. Best & Company, S&P, or Moody’s.

“Record Date” means the fifteenth (15th) day of the month preceding an Interest Payment Date,
whether or not such day is a Business Day.

“Reserve Fund Policy” means that certain Municipal Bond Debt Service Reserve Fund Policy,
Policy Number 93010596, Control Number 0010001, with an effective date of August 12, 1993, and a
termination date of June 1, 2020, initially issued by the Bond Insurer with respect to the 1993 Reserve
Fund for the 1993 Bonds, which the Bond Insurer has agreed shall guarantee certain payments into the
Reserve Fund, subject to the limitations set forth therein.

“Reserve Requirement” means, as of any date of calculation, an amount equal to the least of
(i) ten percent (10%) of the Outstanding principal amount of the Bonds, (ii) Maximum Annual Debt
Service on the Bonds, or (iii) one hundred twenty-five percent (125%) of the Average Annual Debt
Service on the Bonds.

“Revenues” means all Installment Payments made pursuant to the Installment Purchase
Agreement, and the interest or profits from the investment of money in any fund (other than the Rebate
Fund) pursuant to the Indenture.

“S&P” means Standard & Poor’s Ratings Service, a division of McGraw-Hill, and its successors
and assigns.

“Supplemental Indenture” means any indenture then in full force and effect which has been duly
executed and delivered by the Authority and the Trustee amendatory of the Indenture or supplemental to
the Indenture; but only if and to the extent that such Supplemental Indenture is specifically authorized
under the Indenture.

“System Revenues” means, for any Fiscal Year or other period, all rates, fees, and charges
received for, and all other income and receipts derived by the City from, the operation of the Wastewater
System or arising from the Wastewater System, determined in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, including all proceeds of insurance covering business interruption loss relating to
the Wastewater System, investment eamnings on such amounts, and all other money howsoever derived by
the City from the operation of the Wastewater System or arising from the Wastewater System; provided,
however, that System Revenues shall include fees and charges collected during such Fiscal Year or other
period, but only to the extent that such fees and charges could be properly expended on a Wastewater
System Project for which the proceeds were used or are available to be used.
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“Tax_Certificate” means the Tax Certificate delivered by the Authority and the City on the
Closing Date, as the same may be amended or supplemented in accordance with its terms.

“Variable Rate Indebtedness” means any portion of any Obligations the interest rate on which is
not fixed at the time of issuance of such Obligations and has not, at some subsequent date, been fixed at a
rate which is not subject to fluctuation or subsequent adjustment.

“Wastewater System” means the entire wastewater system of the City, including without
limitation all improvements, works, or facilities owned, controlled, or operated by the City to provide
wastewater service as such improvements, works, or facilities now exist, together with all additions to
improvements of and extensions to said wastewater system later constructed or organized.

“Wastewater System Project” means any additions, betterments, extensions, or improvements to
the Wastewater System, the acquisition and construction of which is to be paid for by the procceds of any
Obligations.

“Written Request of the Authority” means an instrument in writing signed by the Chairman, the
Vice Chairman, the Secretary, or the Controller of the Authority, or by any other officer of the Authority
duly authorized for that purpose.

“Written Request of the City” means an instrument in writing signed by the Treasurer (or his or
her designee) or the Finance and Management services Director (or his or her designee) of the City, or by
any other official of the City duly authorized for that purpose.

“Written Request of the Treasurer” means an instrument in writing signed by the Treasurer of the
City (or his or her designee), or by any other official of the City duly authorized for that purpose.

THE INDENTURE
Investment of Moneys in Funds

Moneys in the funds established under the Indenture shall, in accordance with a Written Request
of the Treasurer, be invested by the Trustee in Permitted Investments. The Trustee may conclusively rely
on any direction contained in a Written Request of the Treasurer to invest in investments that such
investments are Permitted Investments. In the absence of a Written Request of the Treasurer, the Trustee
shall invest moneys in interest bearing demand or time deposit accounts with the Trustee or in accordance
with clause (10) of the definition of Permitted Investments. The obligations in which moneys in the said
funds are invested shall mature on or prior to the date on which such moneys are estimated to be required
to be paid out under the Indenture. The obligations in which moneys in the Reserve Fund are so invested
shall be invested in obligations maturing no later than five (5) years after the date of investment
(exclusive of investment agreements and other Permitted Investments approved in writing by the Bond
Insurer); provided no such investment shall mature later than the final maturity date of the Bonds;
provided further, if such investments may be redeemed at par so as to be available on each Interest
Payment Date, any amount of the Reserve Fund may be invested in such redeemable investments of any
maturity on or prior to the final maturity date of the Bonds. The Trustee shall sell at the best price
obtainable or present for redemption any obligations so purchased whenever it may be necessary to do so
in order to provide moneys to meet any payment required under the Indenture. Notwithstanding anything
in the Indenture to the contrary, the Trustee shall not be responsible for any loss from investments, sales,
or transfers undertaken in accordance with the Indenture. Any interest, income, or profits from the
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deposits or investments of all funds (except the Rebate Fund and, to the extent required by the Indenture,
the Reserve Fund) shall be deposited in the Payment Fund. For purposes of determining the amount of
deposit in any fund held under the Indenture, all Permitted Investments credited to such fund shall be
valued at the cost thereof. Investments shall be valued as frequently as deemed necessary by the Bond
Insurer, but not less often than, on or about June 30 of each year commencing on June 30, 2003, at the
market value thereof, exclusive of accrued interest. Deficiencies in the amount on deposit in any fund or
account resulting from a decline in market value shall be restored no later than the succeeding valuation
date. Except as otherwise provided in the Indenture, Permitted Investments representing an investment of
moneys attributable to any fund and all investment profits or losses thereon shall be deemed at all times to
be a part of said fund.

The Trustee may act as principal or agent in the acquisition or disposition of investments and may
commingle moneys in funds and accounts for the purpose of investment.

Payment Procedure Pursuant to Bond Insurance Policy

As long as the Bond Insurance Policy shall be in full force and effect, the Authority and the
Trustee shall comply with the following provisions:

(a) If, on the Business Day next preceding any Interest Payment Date for the Bonds there is
not on deposit with the Trustee sufficient moneys available to pay all principal of and interest on the
Bonds due on such date, the Trustee shall immediately notify the Bond Insurer and U.S. Bank Trust
National Association, New York, New York, or its successor as its Fiscal Agent (the “Fiscal Agent”) of
the amount of such deficiency. If, by said Interest Payment Date, the Authority has not provided the
amount of such deficiency, the Trustee shall simultaneously make available to the Bond Insurer and to the
Fiscal Agent the registration books for the Bonds maintained by the Trustee. In addition:

>i) The Trustee shall provide the Bond Insurer with a list of the Owners entitled to
receive principal or interest payments from the Bond Insurer under the terms of the Bond
Insurance Policy and shall make arrangements for the Bond Insurer and its Fiscal Agent (A) to
mail checks or drafts to Owners entitled to receive full or partial interest payments from the Bond
Insurer and (B) to pay principal of the Bonds surrendered to the Fiscal Agent by the Owners
entitled to receive full or partial principal payments from the Bond Insurer; and

(i) The Trustee shall, at the time it makes the registration books available to the
Bond Insurer pursuant to subsection (a) above, notify Owners entitled to receive the payment of
principal of or interest on the Bonds from the Bond Insurer (A) as to the fact of such entitlement,
(B) that the Bond Insurer will remit to them all or part of the interest payments coming due
subject to the terms of the Bond Insurance Policy, (C) that, except as provided in subsection (b)
below, in the event that any Owner is entitled to receive full payment of principal from the Bond
Insurer, such Owner must tender its Bond with the instrument of transfer in the form provided on
the Bond executed in the name of the Bond Insurer, and (D) that, except as provided in
subsection (b) below, in the event that such Owner is entitled to receive partial payment of
principal from the Bond Insurer, such Owner must tender its Bond for payment first to the
Trustee, which shall note on such Bond the portion of principal paid by the Trustee, and then,
with an acceptable form of assignment executed in the name of the Bond Insurer, to the Fiscal
Agent, which will then pay the unpaid portion of principal to the Owner subject to the terms of
the Bond Insurance Policy.

(b) In the event that the Trustee has notice that any payment of principal of or interest on a
Bond has been recovered from an Owner pursuant to the United States Bankruptcy Code by a trustee in



bankruptcy in accordance with the final, nonappealable order of a court having competent jurisdiction, the
Trustee shall, at the time it provides notice to the Bond Insurer, notify all Owners that in the event that
any Owner’s payment is so recovered, such Owner shall be entitled to payment from the Bond Insurer to
the extent of such recovery, and the Trustee shall furnish to the Bond Insurer its records evidencing the
payments of principal of and interest on the Bonds which have been made by thec Trustee and
subsequently recovered from Owners, and the dates on which such payments were made.

(c) The Bond Insurer shall, to the extent it makes payment of principal of or interest on the
Bonds, become subrogated to the rights of the recipients of such payments in accordance with the terms
of the Bond Insurance Policy and, to evidence such subrogation, (i) in the case of subrogation as to claims
for past due interest, the Trustee shall note the Bond Insurer’s rights as subrogee on the registration books
maintained by the Trustee upon receipt from the Bond Insurer of proof of the payment of interest thereon
to the Owners of such Bonds and (ii) in the case of subrogation as to claims for past due principal, the
Trustee shall note the Bond Insurer’s rights as subrogee on the registration books for the Bonds
maintained by the Trustee upon receipt of proof of the payment of principal thereof to the Owners of such
Bonds. Notwithstanding anything in the Indenture or the Bonds to the contrary, the Trustee shall make
payment of such past due interest and past due principal directly to the Bond Insurer to the extent that the
Bond Insurer is a subrogee with respect thereto.

Tax Covenants of the Authority

Pursuant to the Indenture, the Authority has made certain covenants and agreements with the
Trustee and the Bond Owners, including the following tax covenants:

The Authority shall contest by court action or otherwise any assertion by the United States of
America or any department or agency thereof that the interest received by the Owners is includable in
gross income of such recipients under federal income tax laws. Notwithstanding any other provision of
the Indenture, absent an Opinion of Counsel that the exclusion from gross income of interest with respect
to the Bonds will not be adversely affected for federal income tax purposes, the Authority shall comply
with all applicable requirements of the Code necessary to preserve such exclusion from gross income and
the Authority specifically covenants, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, as follows:

Private Activity. The Authority shall take no action or refrain from taking any action or make
any use of the proceeds of the Bonds or of any other moneys or property that would cause the Bonds to be
“private activity bonds” within the meaning of Section 141 of the Code.

Arbitrage. The Authority shall make no use of the proceeds of the Bonds or of any other
amounts or property, regardless of the source, or take any action or refrain from taking any action that
will cause the Bonds to be “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code.

Federal Guaranty. The Authority shall make no use of the proceeds of the Bonds or take or
omit to take any action that would cause the Bonds to be “federally guaranteed” within the meaning of
Section 149(b) of the Code.

Information Reporting. The Authority shall take or cause to be taken all necessary action to
comply with the informational reporting requirement of Section 149(e) of the Code.

Hedge Bonds. The Authority shall make no use of the proceeds of the Bonds or any other
amounts or property, regardless of the source, or take any action or refrain from taking any action that
would cause the Bonds to be considered “hedge bonds” within the meaning of Section 149(g) of the Code
unless the Authority takes all necessary action to assure compliance with the requirements of



Section 149(g) of the Code to maintain the exclusion from gross income of interest on the Bonds for
federal income tax purposes.

Miscellaneous. The Authority shall take no action or refrain from taking any action inconsistent
with its expectations stated in the Tax Certificate executed by the Authority and the City in connection
with the issuance of the Bonds and shall comply with the covenants and requirements stated therein and
incorporated by reference in the Indenture.

Rebate Fund. The Trustee shall establish the Rebate Fund and the Authority shall comply with
the requirements below and in the Tax Certificate. All money at any time deposited in the Rebate Fund
shall be held by the Trustee in trust, for payment to the United States Treasury. All amounts on deposit in
the Rebate Fund shall be governed by the Indenture and the Tax Certificate, unless the Authority obtains
an Opinion of Counsel that the exclusion from gross income of interest on the Bonds will not be
adversely affected for federal income tax purposes if such requirements are not satisfied.

Excess Investment Earnings.

(a) Computation. Prior to the end of the fifth Computation Year with respect to the Bonds,
the Authority shall calculate or cause to be calculated the amount of rebatable arbitrage, in accordance
with Section 148(f)(2) of the Code and Section 1.148-2 of the Treasury Regulations promulgated
thereunder (taking into account any applicable exceptions with respect to the computation of the rebatable
arbitrage, described, if applicable, in the Tax Certificate (e.g., the temporary investments exceptions of
Section 148(f)(4)(B) and (C) of the Code), for this purpose treating the last day of said Computation Year
as a computation date, within the meaning of Section 1.148-8(b) of the Treasury Regulations promulgated
thereunder (the “Rebatable Arbitrage”). The Authority shall obtain expert advice as to the amount of the
Rebatable Arbitrage to comply with the Indenture and the Tax Certificate.

(v) Transfer. Prior to the end of the fifth Computation Year with respect to the Bonds, upon
the Authority’s written direction, an amount shall be deposited to the Rebate Fund by the Trustee from
any legally available funds, including the other funds and accounts established in the Indenture, so that
the balance in the Rebate Fund shall equal the amount of Rebatable Arbitrage so calculated in accordance
with the Indenture. In the event that immediately following the transfer required by the previous sentence,
the amount then on deposit to the credit of the Rebate Fund exceeds the amount required to be on deposit
therein, upon written instructions from the Authority, the Trustee shall withdraw the excess from the
Rebate Fund and then credit the excess to the Payment Fund.

(©) Payment to the Treasury. Upon receipt of a Written Request of the Authority, the Trustee
shall pay to the United States Treasury, out of amounts in the Rebate Fund:

@) Not later than sixty (60) days after the end of (A) the fifth Computation Year
with respect to the Bonds, and (B) each applicable fifth Computation Year thereafter, an amount
equal to at least ninety percent (90%) of the Rebatable Arbitrage calculated as of the end of such
Computation Year; and

(i) Not later than sixty (60) days after the payment of all the Bonds, an amount equal
to one hundred percent (100%) of the Rebatable Arbitrage calculated as of the end of such
applicable Computation Year, and any income attributable to the Rebatable Arbitrage, computed
in accordance with Section 148(f) of the Code.

In the event that, prior to the time of any payment required to be made from the Rebate Fund, the
amount in the Rebate Fund is not sufficient to make such payment when such payment is due, the



Authority shall calculate or cause to be calculated the amount of such deficiency and deposit an amount
rcceived from any legally available source, including the other funds and accounts established in the
Indenture, equal to such deficiency in the Rebate Fund prior to the time such payment is due. Each
payment required to be made pursuant to the Indenture shall be made to the Internal Revenue Service
Center. Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19255 on or before the date on which such payment is due, and shall
be accompanied by Internal Revenue Service Form 8038-T, or shall be made in such other manner as
provided under the Code.

Disposition of Unexpended Funds. Any funds remaining in the Rebate Fund after redemption
and payment of the Bonds and the payments described in the Indenture may be transferred by the Trustee
to the Authority at the written direction of the Treasurer and utilized in any manner by the Authority.

Survival of Defeasance. Notwithstanding anything in the Indenture to the contrary, the
obligation to comply with the tax covenants set forth in the Indenture shall survive the defeasance of the
Bonds.

Trustee Responsible. The Trustee shall have no obligations or responsibilities with respect to
the tax covenants in the Indenture other than to follow the written directions of the Finance and
Management Services Director of the City.

Trustee

(a) The Trustee shall, prior to an Event of Default and after the curing of all Events of
Default which may have occurred, perform such duties and only such duties as are specifically set forth in
the Indenture and no implied duties or obligations shall be read into the Indenture against the Trustee.
The Trustee shall, during the existence of any Event of Default that has not been cured, exercise such of
the rights and powers vested in it by the Indenture, and use the same degree of care and skill in their
exercise as a prudent person would exercise or use under the circumstances in the conduct of his own
affairs.

(b) So long as no Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, upon thirty (30) days
written notice to the Trustee, the Authority, with the written consent of the Bond Insurer, so long as the
Bond Insurer is not in default in its payment obligations under the Bond Insurance Policy, may remove
the Trustee at any time and shall remove the Trustee if at any time requested to do so by an instrument or
concurrent instruments in writing signed by the Bond Insurer, so long as the Bond Insurer is not in default
in its payment obligations under the Bond Insurance Policy, or the Owners of not less than a majority in
aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding (or their attormeys duly authorized in writing)
or if at any time the Trustee shall cease to be eligible in accordance with the Indenture, or shall become
incapable of acting, or shall commence a case under any bankruptcy, insolvency, or similar law, or a
receiver of the Trustee or of its property shall be appointed, or any public officer shall take control or
charge of the Trustee or its property or affairs for the purpose of rehabilitation, conservation, or
liquidation, in each case by giving written notice of such removal to the Trustee, and thereupon shall
appoint a successor Trustee by an instrument in writing.

(©) The Trustee may resign by giving written notice of such resignation to the Authority and
the Bond Insurer and by giving notice of such resignation by first class mail, postage prepaid, to the
Owners at the addresses listed in the bond register. Upon receiving such notice of resignation, the
Authority, with the written consent of the Bond Insurer, so long as the Bond Insurer is not in default in its
payment obligations under the Bond Insurance Policy, shall promptly appoint a successor Trustee by an
instrument in writing.



(d) Any removal or resignation of the Trustee and appointment of a successor Trustee shall
become effective upon acceptance of appointment by the successor Trustee acceptable to the Bond
Insurer, so long as the Bond Insurer is not in default in its payment obligations under the Bond Insurance
Policy. If no successor Trustee shall have been appointed and shall have accepted appointment within
thirty (30) days of giving notice of removal or notice of resignation as aforesaid, the resigning Trustee, at
the expense of the Authority, or any Owner (on behalf of himself and all other Owners) may petition any
court of competent jurisdiction for the appointment of a successor Trustee, and such court may thereupon,
after such notice (if any) as it may deem proper, appoint such successor Trustee. Any successor Trustee
appointed under the Indenture shall signify its acceptance of such appointment by executing and
delivering to the Authority, the Bond Insurer, and its predecessor Trustee a written acceptance thereof,
and thereupon such successor Trustee, without any further act, deed, or conveyance, shall become vested
with all the moneys, estates, properties, rights, powers, trusts, duties, and obligations of such predecessor
Trustee, with like effect as if originally named Trustee in the Indenture; but, nevertheless, at the written
request of the Authority or of the successor Trustee, such predecessor Trustee shall execute and deliver
any and all instruments of conveyance or further assurance and do such other things as may reasonably be
required for more fully and certainly vesting in and confirming to such successor Trustee all the right, title,
and interest of such predecessor Trustee in and to any property held by it under the Indenture and shall
pay over, transfer, assign, and deliver to the successor Trustee any money or other property subject to the
trusts and conditions set forth in the Indenture. Uponrequest of the successor Trustee, the Authority shall
execute and deliver any and all instruments as may be reasonably required for more fully and certainly
vesting in and confirming to such successor Trustee all such moneys, estates, properties, rights, powers,
trusts, duties, and obligations. Upon acceptance of appointment by a successor Trustee as provided in the
Indenture, such successor Trustee shall mail a notice of the succession of such Trustee to the trusts under
the Indenture by first class mail, postage prepaid, to the Owners at their addresses listed in the bond
register.

(e) Any Trustee appointed under the provisions of the Indenture shall be a trust company or
bank having trust powers, having a corporate trust office in California, having a combined capital, surplus,
and undivided profits of at least fifty million dollars ($50,000,000), and subject to supervision or
examination by federal or state authority. If such bank or trust company publishes a report of condition at
least annually, pursuant to law or to the requirements of any supervising or examining authority above
referred to, then for the purpose of the Indenture the combined capital and surplus of such bank or trust
company shall be deemed to be its combined capital and surplus as set forth in its most recent report of
condition so published. In case at any time the Trustee shall cease to be eligible in accordance with the
provisions of the Indenture, the Trustee shall resign immediately in the manner and with the effect
specified in the Indenture.

§)) No provision in the Indenture shall require the Trustee to risk or expend its own funds or
otherwise incur any financial liability in the performance of any of its duties under the Indenture.

(g) The Trustee shall not be responsible for the sufficiency, timeliness, or enforceability of
the Revenues, the maintenance of insurance as required by the Installment Purchase Agreement, or the
reviewing of any report or certificate required to be provided under the Indenture or the Installment
Purchase Agreement.

(h) The Trustee shall not be accountable for the use or application by the Authority, the City,
or any other party of any funds which the Trustee has released under the Indenture.

(6)] The Trustee may employ attorneys, agents, or receivers in the performance of any of its
duties under the Indenture and shall not be answerable for the misconduct of any such attorney, agent, or
receiver selected by it with reasonable care.



() Notwithstanding any other provision of the Indenture, in determining whether the rights
of thc Owners will be adversely affected by any action taken pursuant to the terms and provisions of the
Indenture, the Trustec shall consider the effect on the Owners as if there were no Bond Insurance Policy.

(k) The Trustee shall notify the Bond Insurer of any failure by the Authority and the City to
provide relevant notices, certificates, or other documents required by the Indenture or the Installment
Purchase Agreement.

Amendments of the Indenture

The Indenture and the rights and obligations of the Authority and of the Owners may be amended
at any time by a Supplemental Indenture, which shall become binding with the written consent of the
Bond Insurer, so long as the Bond Insurer is not in default in its payment obligations under the Bond
Insurance Policy, and the Owners of at least a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then
Outstanding, exclusive of Bonds disqualified as provided in the Indenture, are filed with the Trustee. Any
rating agency then rating the Bonds shall receive a notice of each amendment of the Indenture and shall
receive a copy thereof at least fifteen (15) days in advance of the execution or adoption of such
amendment. In addition, the Bond Insurer shall be provided with a full transcript of all proceedings
relating to the execution of any Supplemental Indenture. No such amendment shall (a) extend the
maturity of or reduce the interest rate on or otherwise alter or impair the obligation of the Authority to pay
the interest on or principal of or redemption premium, if any, on any Bond at the time and place and at the
rate and in the currency provided in the Indenture without the express written consent of the Owner of
such Bond, (b) reduce the percentage of principal amount of Bonds owned by Owners whose consent is
required for the execution of any Supplemental Indenture, (¢) permit the creation by the Authority of any
pledge of the Revenues as provided in the Indenture superior to or on a parity with the pledge created by
the Indenture for the benefit of the Bonds, or (d) modify any rights or obligations of the Trustee without
its prior written assent thereto.

The Indenture and the rights and obligations of the Authority and of the Owners may also be
amended at any time by a Supplemental Indenture, which shall become binding upon adoption without
the consent of any Owners but with the prior written consent of the Bond Insurer, so long as the Bond
Insurer is not in default in its payment obligations under the Bond Insurance Policy, but only to the extent
permitted by law and after receipt of an approving Opinion of Counsel and only for any one or more of
the following purposes:

(a) to add to the conditions, covenants, and terms contained in the Indenture required to be
observed or performed by the Authority other conditions, covenants, and terms thereafter to be observed
or performed by the Authority, or to surrender any right reserved in the Indenture to or conferred in the
Indenture on the Authority, and which in either case shall not adversely affect the interests of the Owners
provided, that the Trustee shall not take the Bond Insurance Policy into consideration in determining
whether the rights of the owners of the Bonds are adversely affected by actions of the Trustee under the
Indenture;

(b) to make such provisions for the purpose of curing any ambiguity or of correcting, curing,
or supplementing any defective provision contained in the Indenture or in regard to questions arising
under the Indenture which the Authority may deem desirable or necessary and not inconsistent with the
Indenture or which may be required by S&P for a rating on the Bonds, and which shall not adversely
affect the interests of the Owners; or

(c) to prescribe further limitations and procedures regarding the use of the proceeds of the
Bonds and the moneys held under the Indenture in order to comply with any United States Treasury



Regulations and any amendments thereto or any federal legislation now pending or hereafter enacted
governing the exclusion from gross income for purposes of federal income taxation of the interest on the
Bonds.

Disqualified Bonds

Bonds owned or held by or for the account of the Authority or the City shall not be deemed
Outstanding for the purpose of any consent or other action or any calculation of Outstanding Bonds
provided in the Indenture, and shall not be entitled to consent to or take any other action provided in the
Indenture.

Events of Default and Acceleration of Maturities
If one or more of the following events (called “Events of Default™) shall happen, that is to say:

(a) if default shall be made in the due and punctual payment of the interest on any Bond
when and as the same shall become due and payable; provided, however, that in determining whether a
payment default has occurred or whether a payment on the Bonds has been made under the Indenture, no
effect shall be given to payments made under the Bond Insurance Policy;

) if default shall be made in the due and punctual payment of the principal of or redemption
premium, if any, on any Bond when and as the same shall become due and payable, whether at maturity
as therein expressed or by proceedings for redemption;

(©) if default shall be made by the Authority in the performance of any of the other
agreements or covenants required in the Indenture to be performed by the Authority, and such default
shall have continued for a period of sixty (60) days after the Authority shall have been given notice in
writing of such default by the Trustee;

(d) if any Event of Default (as defined in the Installment Purchase Agreement) shall have
occurred and be continuing under the Installment Purchase Agreement; or

e if the Authority shall file a petition or answer seeking arrangement or reorganization
under the federal bankruptcy laws or any other applicable law of the United States of America or any state
therein, or if a court of competent jurisdicion shall approve a petition filed with or without the consent of
the Authority seeking arrangement or reorganization under the federal bankruptcy laws or any other
applicable law of the United States of America or any state therein, or if under the provisions of any other
law for the relief or aid of debtors any court of competent jurisdiction shall assume custody or control of
the Authority or of the whole or any substantial part of its property;

then and in each and every such case during the continuance of such Event of Default the Trustee may,
and, upon the written direction of the Bond Insurer, so long as the Bond Insurer is not in default in its
payment obligations under the Bond Insurance Policy, or the written request of the Owners of not less
than ‘twenty-five percent (25%) in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding, shall, by
notice in writing to the Authority, declare the principal of all Bonds then Outstanding and the interest
accrued thereon to be due and payable immediately, and upon any such declaration the same shall become
due and payable, anything contained in the Indenture or in the Bonds to the contrary notwithstanding.
This provision, however, is subject to the condition that if at any time after the Bonds have been so
declared due and payable and before any judgment or decree for the payment of the moneys due shall
have been obtained or entered, the City shall deposit with the Trustee a sum sufficient to pay the unpaid
principal amount of the Bonds due prior to such declaration and the accrued interest on those of such



Bonds as are Bonds, with interest on such overdue installments at the rate or rates applicable thereto in
accordance with their terms, and the reasonable fees and expenses of the Trustee, and any and all other
defaults known to the Authority (other than in the payment of the Bonds due and payable solely by reason
of such declaration) shall have been made good or cured to the satisfaction of the Authority or provision
decemed by the Authority to be adequate shall have been made therefor, then and in every such case the
Authority, by written notice to the City, may rescind and annul declaration and its consequences; but no
such rescission and annulment shall extend to or shall affect any subsequent default or shall impair or
exhaust any right or power consequent thereon. In the event of payment default as provided in paragraph
(a) above, the Trustee shall notify the Bond Insurer immediately of such default and in the event of all
other events of default as provided in the Indenture, the Trustee shall notify the Bond Insurer within thirty
(30) days of the Trustee’s actual knowledge thereof.

Anything in the Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, upon the occurrence and continuance
of an Event of Default, the Bond Insurer, so long as the Bond Insurer is not in default in its payment
obligations under the Bond Insurance Policy, shall be entitled to control and direct the enforcement of all
rights and remedies granted to the Owners or the Trustee for the benefit of the Owners under the
Indenture, including, without limitation, the right to declare the principal of all Bonds then Outstanding
and the interest accrued thereon to be due and payable immediately, as well as the right to rescind and
annul such declaration and its consequences.

Waiver of Events of Default; Effect of Waiver

The Trustee shall waive any Event of Default under the Indenture and its consequences and
rescind any declaration of acceleration upon the written direction of the Bond Insurer, so long as the Bond
Insurer is not in default in its payment obligations under the Bond Insurance Policy, or the written request
of the Owners of at least a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding. If any
Event of Default shall have been waived as provided in the Indenture, the Trustee shall promptly give
written notice of such waiver to the Authority and shall give notice thereof by first class mail, postage
prepaid, to all Owners of Outstanding Bonds if such Owners had previously been given notices of such
Event of Default; but no such waiver, rescission, and annulment shall extend to or affiect any subsequent
Event of Default or impair any right or remedy consequent thereon.

No delay or omission of the Trustee, the Bond Insurer, or of any Owner of the Bonds to exercise
any right or power accruing upon any default or Event of Default shall impair any such right or power or
shall be construed to be a waiver of any such default or Event of Default or an acquiescence therein; and
every power and remedy given under the Indenture to the Trustee, the Bond Insurer, and to the Owners of
the Bonds, respectively, may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient.

Rights of Owners

Anything in the Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, subject to the limitations and
restrictions as to the rights of the Owners therein, upon the happening and continuance of any Event of
Default, the Owners of not less than twenty-five percent (25%) in aggregate principal amount of the
Bonds then Outstanding shall have the right, upon providing the Trustee security and indemnity
reasonably satisfactory to it against the costs, expenses, and liabilities to be incurred therein or thereby, by
an instrument in writing executed and delivered to the Trustee, to direct the method and place of
conducting all remedial proceedings to be taken by the Trustee under the Indenture.

The Trustee may refuse to follow any direction that conflicts with law or the Indenture or that the
Trustee determines is prejudicial to rights of other Owners or would subject the Trustee to personal
liability.



Restriction on Owners’ Action

In addition to the other restrictions on the rights of Owners to request action upon the occurrence
of an Event of Default and to enforce remedies set forth in the Indenture, no Owner of any of the Bonds
shall have any right to institute any suit, action, or proceeding in equity or at law for the enforcement of
any trust under the Indenture, or any other remedy under the Indenture or on said Bonds, unless such
Owner previously shall have given to the Trustee written notice of an Event of Default as provided in the
Indenture and unless the Owners of not less than twenty-five percent (25%) in aggregate principal amount
of the Bonds then Outstanding shall have made written request of the Trustee to institute any such suit,
action, proceeding, or other remedy, after the right to exercise such powers or rights of action, as the case
may be, shall have accrued, and shall have afforded the Trustee a reasonable opportunity either to proceed
to exercise the powers in the Indenture granted, or to institute such action, suit, or proceeding in its or
their name; nor unless there also shall have been offered to the Trustee security and indemnity satisfactory
to it against the costs, expenses, and liabilities to be incurred therein or thereby, and the Trustee shall not
have complied with such request within a reasonable time; and such notification, request, and offer of
indemnity are declared in every such case, at the option of the Trustee, to be conditions precedent to the
execution of the trusts of the Indenture or for any other remedy under the Indenture; it being understood
and intended that no one or more Owners of the Bonds secured by the Indenture shall have any right in
any manner whatever by his or their action to affect, disturb, or prejudice the security of the Indenture, or
to enforce any right under the Indenture or under the Bonds, except in the manner in the Indenture
provided, and that all proceedings at law or in equity shall be instituted and maintained in the manner in
the Indenture provided, and for the equal benefit of all Owners of Outstanding Bonds.

Defeasance

(€))] If the Authority shall pay or cause to be paid or there shall otherwise be paid to the
Owners of any Outstanding Bonds the interest thereon and the principal thereof and the redemption
premiums, if any, thereon at the times and in the manner stipulated in the Indenture and the Bonds, then
the Owners of such Bonds shall cease to be entitled to the pledge of the Revenues as provided in the
Indenture, and all agreements, covenants, and other obligations of the Authority to the Owners of such
Bonds under the Indenture shall thereupon cease, terminate, and become void and be discharged and
satisfied. In such event, the Trustee shall execute and deliver to the Authority all such instruments as may
be necessary or desirable to evidence such discharge and satisfaction, and the Trustee shall pay over or
deliver to the Authority all money or securities held by it pursuant to the Indenture which are not required
for the payment of the interest on and principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on such Bonds.

Subject to the provisions of the above paragraph, when any of the Bonds shall have been paid and
if, at the time of such payment, the Authority shall have kept, performed, and observed all the covenants
and promises in such Bonds and in the Indenture required or contemplated to be kept, performed, and
observed by the Authority or on its part on or prior to that time, then the Indenture shall be considered to
have been discharged in respect of such Bonds and such Bonds shall cease to be entitled to the lien of the
Indenture and such lien and all covenants, agreements, and other obligations of the Authority thereunder
shall cease, terminate, become void, and be completely discharged as to such Bonds.

Notwithstanding the satisfaction and discharge of the Indenture or the discharge of the Indenture
in respect of any Bonds, those provisions of the Indenture relating to the maturity of the Bonds, interest
payments and dates thereof, exchange and transfer of Bonds, replacement of mutilated, destroyed, lost, or
stolen Bonds, the safekeeping and cancellation of Bonds, nonpresentment of Bonds, and the duties of the
Trustee in connection with all of the foregoing, remain in effect and shall be binding upon the Trustee and
the Owners of the Bonds and the Trustee shall continue to be obligated to hold in trust any moneys or
investments then held by the Trustee for the payment of the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and



interest on the Bonds, to pay to the Owners of Bonds the funds so held by the Trustee as and when such
payment becomes due. Notwithstanding the satisfaction and discharge of the Indenture or the discharge
of the Indenture in respect of any Bonds, those provisions of the Indenture relating to the compensation of
the Trustee shall remain in effect and shall be binding upon the Trustee and the Authority.

Notwithstanding anything in the Indenture to the contrary, in the event that thc principal or
interest due with respect to the Bonds shall be paid by the Bond Insurer pursuant to the Bond Insurance
Policy. the Bonds shall remain Outstanding for all purposes, not be defeased or otherwise satisfied, and
not be considered paid by the Authority, and the assignment and pledge of the Revenues and all covenants,
agreements, and other obligations of the Authority to the Owners shall continue to exist and shall run to
the benefit of the Bond Insurer, and the Bond Insurer shall be subrogated to the rights of such Owners.

(b) Any Outstanding Bonds shall prior to the maturity date or redemption date thereof be
deemed to have been paid within the meaning of and with the effect expressed in subsection (a) above if
(1) in case any of such Bonds are to be redeemed on any date prior to their maturity date, the Authority
shall have given to the Trustee in form satisfactory to it irrevocable instructions to mail, on a date in
accordance with the provisions of the Indenture, notice of redemption of such Bonds on said redemption
date, (i1) there shall have been deposited with the Trustee either (A) money in an amount which shall be
sufficient or (B) direct non-callable obligations of the United States of America and securities fully and
unconditionally guaranteed as to the timely payment of principal and interest by the United States of
America, to which direct obligations or guaranteed securities the full faith and credit of the United States
of America has been pledged, Refcorp interest strips, CATS, TIGRS, STRPS, or defeased municipal
bonds rated “AAA” by S&P or “Aaa” by Moody’s (or any combination thereof) the interest on and
principal of which when paid will provide money which, together with the money, if any, deposited with
the Trustee at the same time, shall, as verified by an independent certified public accountant, be sufficient
to pay when due the interest to become due on such Bonds on and prior to the maturity date or redemption
date thereof, as the case may be, and the principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on such Bonds,
(i11) in the event such Bonds are not by their terms subject to redemption within the next succeeding sixty
(60) days, the Authority shall have given the Trustee in form satisfactory to it irrevocable instructions to
mail as soon as practicable, a notice to the Owners of such Bonds and the Bond Insurer that the deposit
required by clause (ii) above has been made with the Trustee and that such Bonds are deemed to have
been paid in accordance with the Indenture and stating the maturity date or redemption date upon which
money is to be available for the payment of the principal of and redemption premiums, if any, on such
Bonds, and (iv) in the case of Book-Entry Bonds, the Trustee shall give notice to the Depository of the
redemption of all or part of such Book-Entry Bonds on the date proceeds or other funds are deposited in
escrow with respect to such Book-Entry Bonds.

(c) After the payment of all the interest of and principal on all Outstanding Bonds as
provided above, the Trustee shall execute and deliver to the City and the Authority all such instruments as
may be necessary or desirable to evidence the discharge and satisfaction of the Indenture, and the Trustee
shall pay over or deliver to the Authority all moneys or securities held by it pursuant to the Indenture that
are not required for the payment of the interest and principal represented by such Bonds.
Notwithstanding the discharge and satisfaction of the Indenture, Owners of Bonds shall thereafter be
entitled to payments due under the Bonds pursuant to the Lease, but only from amounts deposited
pursuant to the Indenture for such payments and from no other source.

Unclaimed Money
Anything contained in the Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding, the Trustee shall notify the

Authority and the Bond Insurer of any money held by the Trustee in trust for the payment and discharge
of any of the Bonds which has remained unclaimed for two (2) years after the date when such Bonds have



become due and payable, either at their stated maturity dates or by call for redemption prior to maturity, if
such money was held by the Trustee at such date, or for two (2) years after the date of deposit of such
money if deposited with the Trustee. The Trustee shall at the Written Request of the Authority repay
such money to the Authority as its absolute property free from trust, and the Trustee shall thereupon be
released and discharged with respect thereto and the Owners shall look only to the Authority for the
payment of such Bonds.

THE INSTALLMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT

The Installment Purchase Agreement is entered into between the City and the Authority and,
pursuant to its terms, the City shall purchase the Project from the Authority and the Authority shall sell
the Project to the City.

Purchase and Sale of Project

Pursuant to the Installment Purchase Agreement, the City agrees to purchase from the Authority,
and the Authority agrees to sell to the City, for the Purchase Price, the Project in accordance with the
provisions of the Installment Purchase Agreement. All right, title, and interest in the Project sold to the
City by the Authority shall immediately vest in the City on the Closing Date without further action on the
part of the City or the Authority.

Purchase Price

The Purchase Price to be paid by the City to the Authority, solely from Net System Revenues and
from no other sources, is the aggregate amount of debt service schedule to be paid on the Bonds, subject
to prepayment as provided in the Installment Purchase A greement.

Installment Payments

(a) The City shall, subject to any rights of prepayment provided in the Installment Purchase
Agreement, pay to the Authority, solely from Net System Revenues and from no other sources, the
Purchase Price in Installment Payments to June 1, 2020, in the amounts and on the Installment Payment
Dates as set forth in the Installment Purchase Agreement. Pursuant to the Indenture, the Installment
Payments are to be applied to the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds and Installment
Payments shall be made in amounts that are sufficient, but no more than sufficient, to pay the scheduled
payments of principal of and interest on the Outstanding Bonds. If and to the extent that, on any
Installment Payment Date, there are amounts on deposit in the Payment Fund established under the
Indenture, which amounts are not being held for the payment of specific Bonds, said amounts shall be
credited against the Installment Payment due on such date. If all or a portion of the Bonds are no longer
Outstanding as a result of redemption, early retirement through purchase by the City or the Authority, or
defeasance of such Bonds, the schedule of Installment Payments set forth in the Installment Purchase
Agreement shall be deemed to have been modified so that the Installment Payments are sufficient, but no
more than sufficient, to pay the scheduled payments of principal of and interest on the Outstanding Bonds.
Upon any such redemption, purchase, or defeasance, the City shall recalculate Installment Payments and
shall provide the Trustee with a modified schedule of Installment Payments.

(b) Each Installment Payment shall be paid to the Trustee, as assignee of the Authority, no
later than one (1) Business Day prior to the applicable Installment Payment Date, in lawful money of the
United States of America, in funds which will be immediately available following payment. In the event



the City fails to make any of the payments required to be made by it under the Installment Purchase
Agreement, such payment shall continue as an obligation of the City until such amount shall have been
fully paid.

(c) The City shall, on or before June 30 of each Fiscal Year, deposit or cause to be deposited,
solely from Net System Revenues, in the Reserve Fund such amounts as are necessary to increase the
amount on deposit therein to the Reserve Requirement for the Bond Year in which such June 30 occurs.
Furthermore, in the event that the Trustee at any time notifies the City that the amount on deposit in the
Reserve Fund is less than the Reserve Requirement, the City shall deposit or cause to be deposited, solely
from Net System Revenues, in the Reserve Fund such amounts as are necessary to increase the amount on
deposit therein to the Reserve Requirement.

(d) The obligation of the City to make the Installment Payments solely from Net System
Revenues is absolute and unconditional, and until such time as the Purchase Price shall have been paid in
full (or provision for the payment thereof shall have been made pursuant to the Installment Purchase
Agreement), the City shall not discontinue or suspend any Installment Payments required to be made by it
under the Installment Purchase Agreement when due, whether or not the Project or any part thereof is
operating or operable or has been completed, or its use is suspended, interfered with, reduced, curtailed,
or terminated in whole or in part, and such Installment Payments shall not be subject to reduction whether
by offset or otherwise and shall not be conditional upon the performance or nonperformance by any party
of any agreement for any cause whatsoever.

Pledge of the Net System Revenues

All Net System Revenues are pledged under the Installment Purchase A greement to the payment
of the Obligations as provided in the Installment Purchase Agreement, and the Net System Revenues shall
not be used for any other purpose while any of the Installment Payments remain unpaid; provided,
however, that out of the Net System Revenues there may be apportioned such sums for such purposes as
are expressly permitted by the Indenture. This pledge shall constitute a first lien on the Net System
Revenues for the payment of the Obligations.

Allocation of System Revenues

(@) In order to carry out and effectuate the pledge contained in the Installment Purchase
Agreement described in the preceding paragraph, the City agrees and covenants that all System Revenues
shall be received by the City in trust and shall be deposited when and as received in the Wastewater
Revenue Fund, which fund the City agrees and covenants to maintain so long as any Installment
Payments remain unpaid, and all moneys in the Wastewater Revenue Fund shall be so held in trust and
applied and used solely as provided in the Installment Purchase Agreement. The City shall disburse
System Revenues from the Wastewater Revenue Fund to pay, in the following order of priority, (i) all
Maintenance and Operation Costs of the Wastewater System, (ii) to (x) the Trustee, as assignee of the
Authority, the Installment Payments as and when due under the Installment Purchase Agreement and
(y) the appropriate entity, the Contract Payments (other than Installment Payments) and principal and
interest payments on City Bonds as and when they become due and payable pursuant to the instrument
under which they are issued or arise, and (iii) to the Reserve Fund created under the Indenture, any
amounts necessary to make up any deficiency in the Reserve Requirement. In the event there are
insufficient Net System Revenues to make all of the payments contemplated by clause (ii) of the
preceding sentence, then said payments provided shall be made, as nearly as practicable, pro rata, based
upon the respective principal amounts of the Installment Payments, City Bonds, and other Contract
Payments then due and payable.
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(b) After all of the payments contemplated by the immediately preceding paragraph have
been made, any System Revenues remaining in the Wastewater Revenue Fund may from time to time be
used to pay for capital expenditures for the Wastewater System or any other Wastewater System purpose,
including payments on account of subordinated debt, provided that, after any such payment, there will
remain in the Wastewater Revenue Fund an amount at least equal to the amount reasonably estimated by
the City to be needed to provide for the payment of all Maintenance and Operations Costs of the
Wastewater System during the next forty-five (45) days.

Additional Obligations

Pursuant to the Installment Purchase Agreement, the City may at any time incur Additional
Obligations payable on a parity with the payment by the City of the Installment Payments provided:

(a) there shall not have occurred and be continuing an Event of Default under the terms of
the Installment Purchase Agreement or the Indenture; and

(b) the City obtains or provides a certificate or certificates prepared by a Consultant showing
that:

(i) the Net System Revenues as shown by the books of the City for the twelve (12)
calendar months ending prior to the incurring of such Additional Obligations shall have amounted
to at least the sum of (x) one hundred percent (100%) of Debt Service for such twelve (12)
calendar month period, plus (y) the amount by which the amount on deposit in the Wastewater
Revenue Fund on the date prior to the first day of such twelve (12) calendar month period was
less than twenty-five percent (25%) of Maximum Annual Debt Service; for purposes of preparing
the certificate or certificates described above, the Consultant or Consultants may rely upon
financial statements prepared by the City, which have not been subject to audit by an Independent
Certified Public Accountant if audited financial statements for the Fiscal Year or period are not
available;

(i1) the estimated Net System Revenues for the twelve (12) calendar months
following the date of incurring such Additional obligations will be at least equal to one hundred
percent (100%) of Debt Service on all Obligations to be outstanding immediately after the
incurring of such Additional Obligations; and

(iii) the amount on deposit in the Wastewater Revenue Fund on the date of incurring
such Additional Obligations is at least equal to twenty-five percent (25%) of Maximum Annual
Debt Service as of the date of incurring of such Additional Obligations.

(c) For purposes of the computations to be made as described in clause (b) above, the
determination of the Net System Revenues:

(1) may take into account any increases in rates and charges that relate to the
Wastewater System and shall take into account any reduction in such rates and charges that will
be effective prior to or at the time of incurring such proposed Additional Obligations;

(1) may take into account an allowance for any estimated increase in such Net
System Revenues from any revenue producing additions to or improvements or extensions of the
Wastewater System to be made with the proceeds of such Additional Obligations or with the
proceeds of Obligations previously issued, as shown by a certificate of a Consultant;
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(i) for the period contemplated by clause (b) above, Maintenance and Operation
Costs of the Wastewater System shall be deemed to be the same as for the period for which a
calculation is done pursuant to clause (a) above, but adjusted, if deemed necessary by the
Consultant, for any increased Maintcnance and Operation Costs of the Wastewater System which
are, in the judgment of the Consultant, essential to maintaining and operating the Wastewater
System, and

(iv) in the event that any Policy Costs are owing and past due to the Bond Insurer, the
City shall not incur any Additional Obligations as provided in the Installment Purchasc
Agreement without the prior written consent of the Bond Insurer.

The certificate or certificates described above shall not be required if the Additional Obligations
being incurred are for the purpose of refunding then outstanding Obligations and at the timc of the
incurring of such Additional Obligations a certificate of an Authorized City Representative shall be
delivered showing that Maximum Annual Debt Service on all outstanding Obligations after the incurring
of such Additional Obligations will not exceed Maximum Annual Debt Service on all Obligations
outstanding prior to the incurring of such Additional Obligations.

Covenants of the City

Compliance with Installment Purchase Agreement. The City shall punctually pay the
Installment Payments in strict conformity with the terms of the Installment Purchase Agreement, and shall
faithfully observe and perform all the agreements, conditions, covenants, and terms contained in the
Installment Purchase Agreement required to be observed and performed by it, and shall not terminate the
Installment Purchase Agreement for any cause including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing,
any acts or circumstances that may constitute failure of consideration, destruction of or damage to the
Project, commercial frustration of purpose, any change in the tax or other laws of the United States of
America or of the State of California or any political subdivision of either, or any failure of the Authority
to observe or perform any agreement, condition, covenant, or term contained in the Installment Purchase
Agreement required to be observed and performed by it, whether express or implied, or any duty, liability,
or obligation arising out of or connected with the Installment Purchase Agreement or the insolvency, or
deemed insolvency, or bankruptcy or liquidation of the Authority or any force majeure, including acts of
God, tempest, storm, earthquake, war, rebellion, riot, civil disorder, acts of public enemies, blockade or
embargo, strikes, industrial disputes, lock outs, lack of transportation facilities, fire, explosion, or acts or
regulations of governmental authorities.

The City shall faithfully observe and perform all the agreements, conditions, covenants, and terms
contained in the Indenture required to be observed and performed by it, and it is expressly understood and
agreed by and between the parties to the Instaliment Purchase Agreement that, subject to provisions
therein concerning partial invalidity, each of the agreements, conditions, covenants, and terms contained
in each such contract and agreement is an essential and material term of the purchase of and payment for
the Project by the City pursuant to, and in accordance with, and as authorized under the laws of the State
of California.

Against Encumbrances. The City shall not mortgage or otherwise encumber, pledge, or place
any charge upon the Wastewater System or any part thereof, or upon any of the System Revenues, prior to
or on a parity with the Obligations.

So long as any Obligations are outstanding, the City will not issue any bonds or incur obligations

payable from System Revenues or secured by a pledge, lien, or charge upon the System Revenues prior to
or on a parity with the Obligations, other than the Obligations.
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Nothing in the Installment Purchase Agreement, and particularly nothing in the preceding two
paragraphs, shall prevent the City from authorizing and issuing bonds, notes, warrants, certificates, or
other obligations or evidences of indebtedness which as to principal or interest, or both, (i) are payable
from System Revenues after and subordinate to the payment from System Revenues of the principal of
and interest on the Obligations, or (ii) are payable from moneys that are not System Revenues, as such
term is defined in the Installment Purchase Agreement.

Reserve Fund. The City shall maintain or cause to be maintained the Reserve Fund at the
Reserve Requirement. In the event the amount therein falls below the Reserve Requirement, the City
shall replenish or cause to be replenished the Reserve Fund up to the Reserve Requirement from the first
available Net System Revenues as provided in the Installment Purchase Agreement or as otherwise
permitted under the Indenture.

Against Sale or Other Disposition of Property. The City shall not sell, lease, or otherwise
dispose of the Wastewater System or any part thereof essential to the proper operation of the Wastewater
System or to the maintenance of the System Revenues, except as permitted under the Installment
Purchase Agreement. The City shall not enter into any agreement or lease which impairs the operation of
the Wastewater System or any part thereof necessary to secure adequate Net System Revenues for the
payment of the Obligations or which would otherwise impair the rights of the Authority with respect to
the System Revenues or the operation of the Wastewater System. Any real or personal property which
has become inoperative or which is not needed for the efficient and proper operation of the Wastewater
System, or any material or equipment which has become wom out, may be sold if such sale will not
materially reduce the Net System Revenues and if the proceeds of such sale are deposited in the
Wastewater Revenue Fund.

Against Competitive Facilities. The City shall not, to the extent permitted by existing law,
construct, acquire, maintain, or operate and shall not, to the extent permitted by existing law and within
the scope of its powers, permit any other public or private agency, authority, district, or political
subdivision or any person whomsoever to acquire, construct, maintain, or operate within the City any
system competitive with the Wastewater System.

Maintenance and Operation of the Wastewater System; Budgets. The City shall maintain
and preserve the Wastewater System in good repair and working order at all times and shall operate or
cause to be operated the Wastewater System in an efficient and economical manner and shall pay or cause
to be paid all Maintenance and Operation Costs of the Wastewater System as they become due and
payable. On or before August 1 of each Fiscal Year, commencing August 1, 2003, the City shall adopt,
and, on or before three hundred (300) days after the beginning of the Fiscal Year, file with the Authority,
the Bond Insurer, and the Trustee a budget approved by the City Council of the City that appropriates
amounts for the payment of Obligations payable during such Fiscal Year.

Amount of Rates and Charges, Operating Reserves. The City shall fix, prescribe, and collect
fees, rates, and charges for the Wastewater System which will be at least sufficient to yield during each
Fiscal Year Net System Revenues equal to the sum of (a) one hundred percent (100%) of the Debt Service
for such Fiscal Year and the Policy Costs, if any, then due and owing under the Reserve Fund Policy, plus
(b) the amount by which the amount on deposit in the Wastewater Revenue Fund on the last day of the
immediately preceding Fiscal Year was less than twenty-five percent (25%) of Maximum Annual Debt
Service as of such day. The City may make adjustments from time to time in such rates and charges and
may make such classification thereof as it deems necessary, but shall not reduce the rates and charges
then in effect unless the Net System Revenues from such reduced rates and charges will at all times be
sufficient to meet the requirements of the Installment Purchase Agreement.
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Payment of Claims. The City shall pay and discharge any and all lawful claims for labor,
materials. or supplies which, if unpaid, might become a lien on the Net System Revenues or any part
thereof or on any funds in the hands of the City or the Trustee which might impair the security of the
Installment Payments, but the City shall not be required to pay such claims if the validity thereof shall be
contested in good faith.

Compliance with Contracts. The City shall comply with, keep, observe, and perform all
agreements, conditions, covenants, and terms, express or implied, required to be performed by it
contained in all contracts for the use of the Wastewater System and all other contracts affecting or
involving the Wastewater System to the extent that the City is a party thereto.

Insurance.

(a) The City shall procure and maintain or cause to be procured and maintained insurance on
the Wastewater System with responsible insurers, or provide self insurance (which may be provided in the
form of risk-sharing pools), in such amounts and against such risks (including accident to or destruction
of the Wastewater System) as are usually covered in connection with systems similar to the Wastewater
System, exclusive of earthquake and flood insurance. In the event of any damage to or destruction of the
Wastewater System caused by the perils covered by such insurance or self insurance, the Net Proceeds
thereof shall be applied to the reconstruction, repair, or replacement of the damaged or destroyed portion
of the Wastewater System. The City shall begin such reconstruction, repair, or replacement promptly
after such damage or destruction shall occur, and shall continue and properly complete such
reconstruction, repair, or replacement as expeditiously as possible, and shall pay out of such Net Proceeds
all costs and expenses in connection with such reconstruction, repair, or replacement so that the same
shall be completed and the Wastewater System shall be free and clear of all claims and liens unless the
City determines that such property or facility is not necessary to the efficient or proper operation of the
Wastewater System and therefore determines not to reconstruct, repair, or replace such project or facility.
If such Net Proceeds exceed the costs of such reconstruction, repair, or replacement, then the excess Net
Proceeds shall be deposited in the Wastewater Revenue Fund and be available for other proper uses of
funds deposited in the Wastewater Revenue Fund.

(b) The City shall procure and maintain such other insurance which it shall deem advisable
or necessary to protect its interests and the interests of the Authority, which insurance shall afford
protection in such amounts and against such risks as are usually covered in connection with systems
similar to the Wastewater System; provided that any such insurance may be maintained under a self-
insurance program so long as such self-insurance is maintained in the amounts and manner usually
maintained in connection with systems similar to the Wastewater System and is, in the opinion of an
accredited actuary, actuarially sound.

All policies of insurance required to be maintained in the Installment Purchase Agreement shall,
to extent reasonably obtainable, provide that the Authority and the Trustee shall be given thirty (30) days
written notice of any intended cancellation thereof or reduction of coverage provided thereby. The City
shall certify in a Certificate of the Finance and Management Services Director to the Trustee annually on
or before July 1 of each Fiscal Year that it is in compliance with the insurance requirements under the
Installment Purchase Agreement, provided that the Trustee shall not be responsible for obtaining or
maintaining insurance as required in the Installment Purchase Agreement. If the City has elected to
satisfy any insurance requirement under the Installment Purchase Agreement through self insurance, the
City shall provide to the Trustee annually on or before July 1 of each Fiscal Year a certificate of an
accredited actuary or the City’s Finance and Management Services Director, at the option of the City,
certifying in writing that such self insurance is adequate to meet the particular requirements of the
Installment Purchase Agreement.
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Accounting Records; Financial Statements and Other Reports.

(a) The City shall keep appropriate accounting records in which complete and correct entries
shall be made of all transactions relating to the Wastewater System, which records shall be available for
inspection by the Authority, the Bond Insurer, and the Trustee at reasonable hours and under reasonable
conditions. The Trustee shall have no duty to inspect such records.

(b) The City shall prepare and file with the Authority and the Bond Insurer annually within
three hundred (300) days after the close of each Fiscal Year (commencing with the Fiscal Year ending
June 30, 2003) financial statements of the City for the preceding Fiscal Year prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, together with an Accountant’s Report thereon.

Protection of Security and Rights of the Authority. The City shall preserve and protect the
security of the Installment Purchase Agreement and the rights of the Authority to the Installment
Payments thereunder and shall warrant and defend such rights against all claims and demands of all
persons.

Payment of Taxes and Compliance with Governmental Regulations. The City shall pay and
discharge all taxes, assessments, and other governmental charges which may hereafter be lawfully
imposed upon the Wastewater System or any part thereof or upon the System Revenues when the same
shall become due. The City shall duly observe and comply with all valid regulations and requirements of
any governmental authority relative to the operation of the Wastewater System or any part thereof, but the
City shall not be required to comply with any regulations or requirements so long as the validity or
application thereof shall be contested in good faith.

Collection of Rates and Charges, No Free Service. The City shall have in effect at all times
rules and regulations for the payment of bills for Wastewater Services. In each case where such bill
remains unpaid in whole or in part after it becomes delinquent, the City may discontinue the service, and
such premises shall not thereafter be reconnected to the service except in accordance with City operating
rules and regulations governing such situations of delinquency. The City shall not permit any part of the
Wastewater System or any facility thereof to be used or taken advantage of free of charge by any
authority, firm, or person, or by any public agency (including the United States of America, the State of
California, and any city, county, district, political subdivision, or public authority or agency of any
thereof).

Eminent Domain Proceeds. If all or any part of the Wastewater System shall be taken by
eminent domain proceedings, the Net Proceeds thereof shall be applied to the replacement of the property
or facilities so taken, unless the City determines that such property or facility is not necessary to the
efficient or proper operation of the Wastewater System and therefore determines not to replace such
property or facilities. Any Net Proceeds of such award not applied to replacement or remaining after such
work has been completed shall be deposited in the Wastewater Revenue Fund and be available for other
proper uses of funds deposited in the Wastewater Revenue Fund.

Tax Covenants. The City shall contest by court action or otherwise any assertion by the United
States of America or any department or agency thereof that the interest received by the Owners is
includable in gross income of such recipients under federal income tax laws. Notwithstanding any other
provision of the Installment Purchase Agreement, absent an opinion of Bond Counsel that the exclusion
from gross income of interest with respect to the Authority Bonds will not be adversely affected for
federal income tax purposes, the City shall comply with all applicable requirements of the Code necessary
to preserve such exclusion from gross income and the City specifically covenants, without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, as follows:
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(a) Private Activity. The City shall take no action or refrain from taking any action or make
any use of the proceeds of the Authority Bonds or of any other moneys or property that would causc the
Authority Bonds to be “private activity bonds” within the meaning of Section 141 of the Code.

(b) Arbitrage. The City shall make no use of the proceeds of the Authority Bonds or of any
other amounts or property, regardless of the source, or take any action or refrain from taking any action
that will causc the Authority Bonds to be “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of Section 148 of the
Code.

(c) Federal Guaranty, The City shall make no use of the proceeds of the Authority Bonds or
takc or omit to take any action that would cause the Authority Bonds to be “federally guaranteed” within
the mecaning of Section 149(b) of the Code.

(d) Information Reporting. The City shall take or cause to be taken all necessary action to
comply with the informational reporting requirement of Section 149(e) of the Code.

(e) Hedge Bonds. The City shall make no use of the proceeds of the Authority Bonds or any
other amounts or property, regardless of the source, or take any action or refrain from taking any action
that would cause the Authority Bonds to be considered “hedge bonds” within the meaning of
Section 149(g) of the Code unless the City takes all necessary action to assure compliance with the
requirements of Section 149(g) of the Code to maintain the exclusion from gross income of interest on the
Authority Bonds for federal income tax purposes.

() Miscellaneous. The City shall take no action or refrain from taking any action
inconsistent with its expectations stated in the Tax Certificate executed by the City in connection with the
issuance of the Authority Bonds and shall comply with the covenants and requirements stated therein and
incorporated by reference in the Installment Purchase Agreement.

Events of Default and Remedies of the Authority
If one or more of the following Events of Default shall happen, that is to say:

(a) if default shall be made in the due and punctual payment of or on account of any
Obligation as the same shall become due and payable;

(b) if default shall be made by the City in the performance of any of the agreements or
covenants required in the Installment Purchase Agreement to be performed by it (other than as specified
in (a) above), and such default shall have continued for a period of sixty (60) days after the City shall
have been given notice in writing of such default by the Authority;

© if any Event of Default shall have occurred under the Indenture and shall be continuing;
or

(d) if the City shall file a petition or answer seeking arrangement or reorganization under the
federal bankruptcy laws or any other applicable law of the United States of America or any state therein,
or if a court of competent jurisdiction shall approve a petition filed with or without the consent of the City
seeking arrangement or reorganization under the federal bankruptcy laws or any other applicable law of
the United States of America or any state therein, or if under the provisions of any other law for the relief
or aid of debtors any court of competent jurisdiction shall assume custody or control of the City or of the
whole or any substantial part of its property;
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then and in each and every such case during the continuance of such Event of Default the Authority shall
upon the written request of the Owners of twenty-five percent (25%) or more of the aggregate Obligations
outstanding, by notice in writing to the City, declare the entire principal amount of the unpaid Installment
Payments and the accrued interest thereon to be due and payable immediately, and upon any such
declaration the same shall become immediately due and payable, anything contained in the Installment
Purchase Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding. This provision, however, is subject to the condition
that if at any time after the entire principal amount of the unpaid Installment Payments and the accrued
interest thereon shall have been so declared due and payable and before any judgment or decree for the
payment of the moneys due shall have been obtained or entered, the City shall deposit with the Authority
a sum sufficient to pay the unpaid principal amount of the Installment Payments or the unpaid payment of
any other Contract or Bond referred to in clause (a) above due prior to such declaration and the accrued
interest thereon, with interest on such overdue installments at the rate or rates applicable thereto in
accordance with their terms, and the reasonable expenses of the Authority, and any and all other defaults
known to the Authority (other than in the payment of the entire principal amount of the unpaid
Installment Payments and the accrued interest thereon due and payable solely by reason of such
declaration) shall have been made good or cured to the satisfaction of the Authority or provision deemed
by the Authority to be adequate shall have been made therefor, then and in every such case the Authority,
by written notice to the City, may rescind and annul such declaration and its consequences; but no such
rescission and annulment shall extend to or shall affect any subsequent default or shall impair or exhaust
any right or power consequent thereon.

Application of Net System Revenues Upon Acceleration

All Net System Revenues received after the date of the declaration of acceleration by the
Authority as provided in the Installment Purchase Agreement shall be applied as provided in the
Indenture.

Other Remedies of the Authority
The Authority shall have the right, subject to receipt of consent from the Bond Insurer:

(a) by mandamus or other action or proceeding or suit at law or in equity to enforce its rights
against the City or any councilmember, officer, or employee thereof, and to compel the City or any such
councilmember, officer, or employee to perform and carry out its or his duties under law and the
agreements and covenants required to be performed by it or him contained in the Installment Purchase
Agreement;

(b) by suit in equity to enjoin any acts or things which are unlawful or violate the rights of
the Authority; or

(©) by suit in equity upon the happening of an Event of Default to require the City and its
councilmembers, officers, and employees to account as the trustee of an express trust.

Discharge of Obligations

If the Authority shall pay or cause to be paid or there shall otherwise be paid to the Owners of all
Outstanding Authority Bonds the interest thereon and the principal thereof and the redemption premiums,
if any, thereon or if all Outstanding Authority Bonds shall be deemed to have been paid at the times and
in the manner stipulated in the Indenture, then all agreements, covenants, and other obligations of the City
under the Installment Purchase Agreement shall thereupon cease, terminate, and become void and be
discharged and satisfied.
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Amendments

The Installment Purchase Agreement may be amended in writing as may be mutually agreed by
the City and the Authority, with the written consent of the Bond Insurer, so long as the Bond Insurer is
not in default in its payment obligations under the Bond Insurance Policy, and the Owners of a majority in
aggregate principal amount of the Authority Bonds then Outstanding pursuant to the Indenture, provided
that no such amendment shall (a) extend the payment date of any Installment Payment, or reduce the
amount of any Installment Payment without the prior written consent of the Owner of each Authority
Bond so affected, (b) reduce the percentage of principal amount of Authority Bonds the consent of the
Owners of which is required for the execution of any amendment of the Installment Purchase Agreement,
or (c) amend the provisions of the Installment Purchase Agreement without an unqualified opinion of
Bond Counsel to the effect that such amendment does not materially adversely affect the exclusion of
interest on the Authority Bonds received by the Owners from gross income for federal income tax
purposes.

The Installment Purchase Agreement and the rights and obligations of the City and the Authority
thereunder may also be amended or supplemented at any time by an amendment thereof or supplement
thereto which shall become binding upon execution by the City and the Authority, without the written
consent of any Owners of the Authority Bonds but with the written consent of the Bond Insurer, so long
as the Bond Insurer is not in default in its payment obligations under the Bond Insurance Policy, but only
to the extent permitted by law and only upon receipt of an unqualified opinion of Bond Counsel selected
by the City and approved by the Authority to the effect that such amendment or supplement is permitted
by the provisions of the Installment Purchase Agreement and is not inconsistent with the Installment
Purchase Agreement and does not adversely affect the exclusion of interest on the Authority Bonds
received by the Owners thereof from gross income for federal income tax purposes, and only for any one
or more of the following purposes —

(a) to add to the covenants and agreements of the Authority or the City contained in
the Installment Purchase Agreement other covenants and agreements thereafter to be observed or
to surrender any right or power reserved in the Installment Purchase Agreement to or conferred
upon the Authority or the City, and which shall not materially adversely affect the interests of the
Owners of the Authority Bonds;

(b) to cure, correct, or supplement any ambiguous or defective provision contained
in the Installment Purchase Agreement or in regard to questions arising under the Installment
Purchase Agreement, as the Authority or the City may deem necessary or desirable and which
shall not materially adversely affect the interests of the Owners of the Authority Bonds; or

(c) to make such other amendments or modifications that shall not materially
adversely affect the interests of the Owners of the Authority Bonds.
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APPENDIX B

GENERAL INFORMATION CONCERNING
THE CITY OF OXNARD

The Bonds do not constitute a general obligation debt of the City of Oxnard and the City has
not pledged its full faith and credit to the repayment of the Bonds. The following information is
presented for informational purposes only.

General

The City of Oxnard (the “City”) is located in western Ventura County (the “County”) on the
shore of the Pacific Ocean. The City is approximately 65 miles northwest of the City of Los Angeles, 35
miles south of the City of Santa Barbara, and 6 miles south of the county seat of the County. The City is
the financial hub of the County and the largest city in the County, with a population estimated of 182,000
in 2002, accounting for over 23% of the County’s population. The City has become a premier center of
County industrial activity since 1996 with the start of nine new industrial buildings representing a total of
approximately 750,000 square feet of industrial and commercial space, with significant growth and
building in the northeast area of the City.

The City was incorporated as a general law city on June 30, 1903, and operates under a council-
manager form of government. The City is governed by a five-member City Council elected at large for
four-year alternating terms, with the exception of the Mayor, who is directly elected for a two-year term.

The City has a diversified and expanding economic base composed of light and heavy
manufacturing, retail, service and government sectors. The City has maintained a steady population
growth rate of approximately 2.2% for the past decade and the City’s adopted General Plan anticipates
continued steady growth for the next ten years, with a projected population of 185,000 by the year 2020.

Population

The City’s population has grown from approximately 150,300 people in 1993 to approximately
182,000 in 2002. The following table shows the approximate changes in population in the City, the
County, the State, and the United States for the years 1993 through 2002 as of January 1 in each year.

Population of
City, County, State and U.S.

1993 through 2002
Population United
Percent Percent State Percent States Percent

Year City Change County Change (000) Change (000) Change
1993 150,300 - 690,000 - 31,150 -- 260,255 --
1994 153,400 2.06% 697,200 1.85% 31,418 0.86% 263,436 1.22%
1995 155,700 1.50 702,800 0.80 31,617 0.63 266,557 1.18
1996 157,500 1.16 707,800 0.71 31,837 0.70 269,667 1.17
1997 159,800 1.46 716,100 1.17 32,207 1.16 272,912 1.20
1998 163,000 2.00 725,400 1.30 32,657 1.40 276,115 1.17
1999 166,100 1.90 736,000 1.46 33,140 1.48 279,295 1.15
2000 170,358 2.56 753,197® 2.34 33,872@ 221 281,674 0.85
2001 177,600 4.25 765,200 1.59 34,385 1.51 284,797 1.11
2002 182,000 2.48 780,100 1.95 35,037 1.90 N/A N/A

Sources: State of California Department of Finance; U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census (U.S. figures only).
(1) Unless otherwise noted, estimates for City, County and State as of January 1, and for U.S. as of July 1.
(2) Actual census figures.
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Property Tax Rates

In June of 1978, California voters approved Proposition 13 (the Jarvis-Gann Initiative), which
added Article XIIIA to the California Constitution. Article XIIIA limits ad valorem taxes on real
property to 1% of the full cash value, plus taxes necessary to repay indebtedness approved by thc voters
prior to July 1, 1978. Voter-approved obligations of the City are comprised of the City’s 1969 Storm
Drain Bond and an obligation referred to as the “Public Safety Retirement.” The 1969 Storm Drain Bond
was redeemed and paid as of June 30, 1994. The following table details the City’s property tax rates for
the last 10 fiscal years.

City of Oxnard
Property Tax Rates
1993 through 2002

City District (Public

Year Ended Safety Retirement
June 30 County Tax Debt) School Districts Water Districts Total Tax Rates
1993 1.00% 0.0490% 0.0736% 0.2555% 1.7810%
1994 1.00 0.0495 0.0685 0.2693 1.3873
1995 1.00 0.0380 0.0805 0.2913 1.4098
1996 1.00 0.0362 0.0773 0.3105 1.4240
1997 1.00 0.0367 0.0807 0.3328 1.4502
1998 1.00 0.0367 0.1360 0.3449 1.5176
1999 1.00 0.0367 0.1491 0.1212 1.3070
2000 1.00 0.0475 0.1740 0.0979 1.3194
2001 1.00 0.0475 0.1714 0.0977 1.3166
2002 1.00 0.0575 0.1867 0.0723 1.3165

Source: City's Comprchensive Annual Financial Report. Fiscal Ycar Ended Junc 30. 2002.

Property Tax Levies, Collections and Delinquencies

The Ventura County Tax Collector collects ad valorem property tax levies representing taxes
levied for each fiscal year on taxable real and personal property which is situated in the County as of the
preceding March 1. Unsecured taxes are assessed and payable on March |1 and become delinquent
August 31 in the next fiscal year. Accordingly, unsecured taxes are levied at the rate applicable to the
fiscal year preceding the one in which they are paid.

One half of the secured tax levy is due November | and becomes delinquent December 10; the
second installment is due February 1 and becomes delinquent April 10. A ten percent (10%) penalty is
added to any late installment.

Property owners may redeem property upon payment of delinquent taxes and penalties. Tax-
delinquent properties are subject to a redemption penalty of one and one-half percent (1-1/2%) of the
delinquent amount every month commencing on July | following the date on which the property became
tax-delinquent. Properties may be redeemed under an installment plan by paying current taxes, plus 20%
of delinquent taxes each year for five years, with interest accruing at one and one-half percent (1-1/2%)
per month on the unpaid balance.

The following table details the City’s property tax levies, collections and delinquencies for the
last 10 fiscal years.
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Year Ended
June 30

1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002

City of Oxnard

Property Tax Levies, Collections and Delinquencies

Current Tax
Total Tax Levy Collections
$18,331,754 $16,929,453
17,571,000 17,467,060
17,318,091 17,000,969
18,296,398 16,831,456
18,233,366 17,033,821
18,113,687 17,712,334
15,014,300 14,868,769
17,038,470 17,317,763
23,380,000 23,484,567
25,900,000 25,718,029

1993 through 2002

Percent of Levy  Delinquent Tax Total Tax Percentage of

Collected Collections Collections Tax Levy
92.35% $687,047 $17,616,500 96.10%
99.40 621,750 18,088,810 102.95
98.17 567,432 17,568,401 101.45
91.99 569,431 17,400,887 95.11
93.42 487,301 17,521,122 96.09
97.78 250,440 17,962,774 99.17
99.03 189,551 15,058,320 100.29

101.64 99,032 17,416,795 102.22

100.45 90,164 23,574,731 100.83
99.30 284,711 26,002,740 100.40

Total
Collections as a

(1) Voter-approved tax for $3,977,315 was transferred from trust and agency to the special revenue fund in fiscal year2001.
Source: City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002.

Assessed Property Values

The following table details the assessed value of the real and personal property within the City for

the last 10 fiscal years.

Year Ended
June 30

1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002

Real Property
Assessed Value

$5,989,433,136
6,082,455,163
6,215,308,381
6,312,352,104
6,307,831,466
6,473,207,602
6,605,309,284
6,844,276,538
7,645,814,717
8,351,831,139

Source: City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002.

City of Oxnard
Assessed Property Values
1993 through 2002

Personal Property

Assessed Value

$81,514,123
108,703,880
117,493,334
119,814,735
101,123,835
94,844,935
95,463,165
91,597,348
97,930,553
111,351,225

B-3

Exemptions

Total Assessed Value

$749,713,311
692,726,941
697,128,516
667,234,581
720,506,163
722,494,121
737,477,086
874,969,634
846,810,724
905,863,935

$5,321,233,948
5,498,432,102
5,635,673,199
5,764,932,258
5,688,449,138
5,845,558,416
5,963,295,363
6,060,904,252
6,896,934,546
7,557,318,429



Principal Taxpayers

The following table lists the principal taxpayers in the City as of June 30, 2002,

Taxpayer

The Procter & Gamble Paper Products Company
St. John's Regional Medical Center
Willamette Industries Inc.

CHW Central Coast

Tiger Ventura County

Seminis Inc.

Ormond Beach Power, Gen. LLC
BMW of North America Inc.
Ocean Vista Power Generation
Donwen Corporation

Fred Kavli

Verizon Media Ventures Inc.
Terminal Freezers Inc.

Arden Realty Ltd Partnership
Other Taxpayers

Totals

City of Oxnard
Principal Taxpayers

Type of Business

Percentage of
Total Assessed

Manufacturing-Paper Products
Hospital 1
Processed Paper Manufacturer
Real Estate Development
Real Estate Development
Seeds

Power Plant

Auto Manufacturer

Power Plant

Commercial Development
Real Estate Development
Telecommunication

Food Processing

Real Estate Development
Various

Assessed Valuation Valuation

S 269,163.758 3.562%
49,730,718 1.981
67,773,739 0.897
51.491,600 0.681
47,681,230 0.631
45,118,255 0.597
42.767.608 0.566
39,336,819 0.521
37.205,756 0.492
36.509.318 0.483
34,162,579 0.452
31,386,300 0.415
30,197,990 0.400
28,611,701 0.379
6.646.181.058 87.943

$7,557.318.429 100.000%

Source: City's t‘omprchcnsi\;Annual Financial Report. Fiscal Ycar Ended June 30, 2002.

Outstanding Debt

The City uses a variety of tax increment, revenue and lease indebtedness to finance various
capital acquisitions. The outstanding balances for this indebtedness as of June 30, 2002, are set forth in

the following table:

Type of Debt

Tax Allocation Bonds ‘"'

Revenue Bonds

Capital Leases

Notes and Loans Payable

Certificates of Participation
Total

City of Oxnard
Outstanding Debt

(As of June 30, 2002)

Outstanding Balance

(as of June 30, 2002)

$14,475,000.00
89,043.438.00
1,819,953.00
8,539,733.00
8.440.000.00
$122,318,124.00

(1) The tax allocation bonds arc paid from the increment revenuc of property taxes levied within the City’s redevelopment and
rencwal arcas. The Central Revitalization Project and other redevelopment arcas currently arc administered by the Oxnard

Community Development Commission.

(2) Revenuc bonds include issucs used to finance projects for public parking. civic auditorium, sewer and trcatment cxpansion and
public housing. Dcbtscrvice on thesc issues is paid from the revenucs of the appropriate enterprise funds and the City’s General

Fund.

Source: City's Comprchensive Annual Financial Report. Fiscal Ycar Ended Junc 30, 2002.



Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt

The following table details the City’s direct and overlapping bonded debt as of June 30, 2002.

City of Oxnard
Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt
(As of June 30, 2002)
Percentage of
Debt Applicable
Net Debt to the City of
Outstanding Oxnard (Before Less:

Jurisdiction (June 30, 2002) Exclusions) Exclusions "
Direct Bonded Debt:
City of Oxnard $ 29,390,000 100.000% $29,390,000
City of Oxnard — Pooled Insurance Obligation 1,227,732 100.000 1,227,732
City of Oxnard — 1915 Act Bonds 32,020,000 100.000 32,020,000
City of Oxnard Community Facilities District No. 88-1 2,015,000 100.000 2.015.000

Total Direct Bonded Debt $ 64,652,732 $64,652,732
Overlapping Bonded Debt:
Ventura County Superintendent of Schools — COP $ 294,795 13.585% -
Ventura County Community College District —- COP 1,502,264 13.589 -
Ventura County General Fund Obligations 11,859,026 13.585 --
Ventura County Pension Obligation 14,017,003 13.585 -
Metropolitan Water District 3,632,202 0.722 -
Oxnard Union High School District 23,003,820 43.502 -
Oxnard Union High School District —- COP 8,130,524 43.502 -
Oxnard School District 66,248,007 90.108 -
Oxnard School District — COP 6,185,914 90.108 -
Rio School District 16,245,513 84.568 -
Rio School District — COP 4,710,438 84.568 -
Hueneme School District 5,784,344 50.808 --
Ocean View School District 1,473,940 38.839 -
Ocean View School District — COP 904,949 38.839 -

Total Overlapping Bonded Debt $163,992,739 -

Total Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt $228,645,471 $64,652,732

(1) Exclusions represent all bonds that are not tax supported obligations of the City.
Source: City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002.

Employment

Amount of
Debt
Applicable to
the City of
Oxnard

$ 40,048
204,143
1,611,049
1,904,210
26,224
10,007,122
3,536,941
59,694,754
5,574,003
13,738,505
3,983,523
2,938,909
572,464
351.473
$104,183,368

$104,183,368

The following tables present the available labor force data and unemployment rates for five years

for the City and the County.

City and County
Labor Force and Unemployment Figures
(1997 through 2001)
City County
Year Labor Force Unemployment Rate Labor Force
2001 85,200 6.5% 419,800
2000 83,850 6.5 413,300
1999 80,740 6.9 397,400
1998 79,170 8.0 388,200
1997 78,140 9.3 381,500

Source: State of Califomia, Employment Development Department.
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Taxable Retail Sales

Consumcr spending in calendar year 2001 resulted in $1,775,146 in taxable sales in the City,
which is approximately 9.52% above calendar year 2000. Although the taxable sales figures for each type
of business are not yet available from the California Board of Equalization, the following table sets forth
information regarding taxable sales in the City for each type of business for calendar years 1997 through
2000.

City of Oxnard
Taxable Retail Sales by Type of Business

1997 -2000
(000s)
1997 1998 1999 2000
Apparel stores S 43816 S 48,198 S 50.341 $ 43,441
General merchandise stores 256,788 265.886 262,491 241.410
Food stores 62,158 64,708 66,763 66,134
Eating and drinking places 102.099 113,096 121,892 128,529
Home furnishings and appliances 36,777 40,436 45.114 44273
Building mat. and farm implmts. 154,135 174,486 183,951 187.530
Auto dealers and auto supplies 219.860 226,386 321,044 345.079
Service stations 59,191 55,600 69.170 87.773
Other retail stores 164.866 172,786 188.381 200.655
Total Retail Outlets 1,099,600 1,161,582 1.309,147 1.344 824
All Other Outlets 220.188 223.242 256,213 275.985
Total All Outlets $1.319,788 $1,384,824 $1.565,360 $1,620.809

Sourcc: California Statc Board of Equalization.
Transportation

Oxnard is served by all major modes of transportation. Both U.S. Highway 101 and State
Highway 1 pass through the City, linking it with the Los Angeles metropolitan area and Santa Barbara
County. Rail passenger service is provided by AMTRAK, which has a station in the City. Two trains
daily pass through each direction and stop at the Oxnard station. Metrolink provides commuters from the
Oxnard Transportation Center with several daily routes to the Los Angeles basin, including downtown
Los Angeles. Southern Pacific Railroad provides freight rail service to the City. The Ventura County
Railroad Company connects Port Hueneme, the Ormond Beach Industrial Area, the CB Base and
surrounding industrial areas to the Southern Pacific line. The Port of Hueneme, owned and operated by
the Oxnard Harbor District, is the only commercial deep-draft harbor between Los Angles and San
Francisco. The port has five 600 to 700 foot berths and a 35-foot entrance channel depth. Completed in
1989 was an S18 million expansion of the harbor that included the addition of an automobile terminal and
the construction of a new wharf. The Port’s acquisition of 33 acres from the Navy in 1997 has enabled it
to increase facilities for importing foreign automobiles. Automobile imports increased by 12.7% in 1997,
making the Port one of the top 10 entry points in the U.S. for foreign automobiles. The Channel Islands
Harbor is a modem 3,000 slip boat marina which also serves the Oxnard area in the capacity of a
recreational marina. The Oxnard Airport is operated by Ventura County as a general and commercial
aviation air field. The Oxnard Airport handles passenger as well as cargo services. Feeder service to Los
Ageless International Airport is provided by United Express and American Eagle. Local bus service is
provided by South Coast Area Transit System (SCAT), a regional public transit agency funded by the
County and member cities. Service is available in Ojai, Ventura, Oxnard and Port Hueneme. The
Greyhound bus line provides passenger and parcel service from its Oxnard station. Great American
Stagelines provides passenger services between Oxnard and Los Angeles every hour. A multi-modal
transportation center located in downtown Oxnard brings together all these forms of transportation.
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Education

There are twenty-nine elementary, three junior high and five senior high schools located in and
around the City, plus eight parochial and private schools. The City is served by Oxnard College, which
has an enrollment of over 5,700 students. The 119-acre campus is located on Rose Avenue between
Channel Island Boulevard and Pleasant Valley Road. Oxnard College currently offers degree and
certificate programs. The newly-completed California State University campus at Channel Islands
(CSUCI) opened in fall 2002 with approximately 1,320 full time transfer students and will welcome
freshmen in fall 2003. In addition, two campuses of the University of California, Santa Barbara (UCSB)
and Los Angeles (UCLA), one campus of the California State University, Northridge (CSUN), and two
private universities, Pepperdine and California Lutheran University, are within a fifty minute drive.

Recreation

The City offers its residents a wide range of recreational facilities. The beach parks, marina and
neighborhood and regional parks add up to nearly 1,500 acres of park land. McGrath State Beach Park,
located south of the Santa Clara River mouth, covers 295 acres and includes over a mile of ocean
frontage. Overnight camping and day picnics are the main use of that park. Oxnard Beach Park includes
62 acres with concession stands and facilities for day picnics and sports. Silver Strand Beach, south of the
Harbor entrance, and Hollywood Beach, north of the entrance, are day beach facilities. Channel Islands
Marina is a recreational boating marina administered by Ventura County. The City has over thirty
neighborhood parks located throughout the City. A tennis and softball center is located at Community
Center Park. Additionally, Wilson Park contains the largest senior citizen center in the Tri-County area.

The City owns the River Ridge Golf Course, an 18-hole, 7,010-yard championship golf course
located on the south side of the Santa Clara River. The City also owns a 1,600-seat Performing Arts
Center located on Hobson Way in the heart of the City.



(THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)



APPENDIX C

CITY OF OXNARD
COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2002



(THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)



COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002

Prepared by
Finance Department
Stan Kleinman
Finance Director




City of Oxnard, California

Table of Contents
June 30, 2002

PAGE
INTRODUCTION:
Letter of Transmillal L i
GFOA Certificate of Achicvemcent for Excellence in Financial Reporting .. ... ... .. ... ... .. ... ... .c.......5xi
Certificate of Recognition for Early Implementation of GASB Statcment 34 ... ... ... ... ... .................. Xxii
List of Principal Of[ICials . . . . .. oo e xxiii
Organizational ChaTls ... ... .. e e e XXIV
VICIIY MAP o ot XXV
FINANCIAL SECTION:
Independent Auditors’ Reporl . ... .. o 1
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) .. ... .. .3
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
Government-Wide Financial Statements:
StACIENt Of NCU ASSCIS .« o . . oot e e e 18
Statement Of ACHUVILIES . .. oot e e .19
Fund Financial Statements:
Govcmmental Funds:
Balance SHeCt . ..o e 20
Reconciliation of Fund Balance for the Govermmental Funds to the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets for
Governmental ACUVILICS .. ...t e e e e e 21
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance .. ....... . ... ... .. .. o .. 22
Rcconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balance to the Governmental-Wide Statement of AClVIlIES . ... ... 23
City of Oxnard, California
Table of Contents (Continued)
June 30, 2002
Proprictary Funds:
Statement of NetASSCLS ... .24
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets .. .. ... ... .. ... .. . . .. .25
Statement of Cash FIOWS ... . 26
Fiduciary Funds:
Statement 0F NEUASSCLS ... L 28
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements:
1. Summary of Significant Accounting PoliCICS | . .. . .. ... . . .29
2. Cashand Investments. .. . . 41
3. Interfund Receivables and Payables . . ... . .. e 44
4. Receivablesand Payables . ....... ... .. 45
SoImterfund Transfers ... ..o .46
6. Capital Assels ............. 47
7. Long-Term Obligations . . . . 50
8. Defined Benefit Pension Plan . ... R )
9. Post Employment Health Care Benefits . ... . 6l
10. Commitment and CONNGENCIES . . . . ..o e e e .62
1'1. Fund Balance - Governmental Funds . . . e ... 02
12. Net Assets - Proprietary Funds .. e .03
13, RISk Management ... .. ..o e 64

=

. Accumulated Fund Dcficits

.68



City of Oxnard, California

Tabie of Contents (Continnenl)
June 30, 2002

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED):

Schedules of Revenues and Expenditurces, Budget and Actual on a Budgctary Basis:
General Fund:
Statement of Revenucs, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance . ............. ... . ... . o oL 66

Special Revenne Funds:
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance:

Development Fees FUNd . ... o e e e e 71
HUD and CDBG Grants FUNAS . . . . ..ottt e et ittt et 72
State and Federal Grants FUN . . .. ..o it e i et e e 73
Trend Information-Pension Plan (PERS) ... ... . it i e it e et et et et e e 74

SUPPLEMENTARY DATA (COMBINING FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES):

Internal Service Funds:

Combining Statement 0f NCt ASSCIS . ... ..ottt ittt it ettt et ettt et e e 75
Combining Statcment of Activities and Changes in Fund Net ASSCIS . ... ..ottt i, 76
Statement of Cash FIows . ... ... i i i e 77

Fiduciary Funds: .
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary NEU ASSCIS . . . ...ttt ot ottt e e e et et et et et eaa e e 78

Governmental Non-Major Funds:
Combining Balance Shect . .. ... . e 80
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance ................................ 81

Schedules of Revenue, Expenditures, Budget and Actual on a Budgetary Basis
NON-MaJOr FUNAS . . ottt et ittt e ettt ettt ettt e e et e e e e e e e ettt e, 82
Debt Service FUnd . ... ... i 83

City of Oxnard, California

Table of Contents (Continued)

Junre 30, 2002
STATISTICAL SECTION (Unaudited):

TABLE | - General Govemmental Expenditures by Function ........... ... ... . .. i i 84
TABLE Il - General Govemmental Revenuesby Source ... ... 85
TABLE 1lI - Gencral Governmental Tax Revenues by Source ... ..ot 86
TABLE IV - Property Tax Leviesand ColleCtions .. ......... ..ottt ciiiiaeeann 87
TABLE V - Property Tax Rates .. ...t e 88
TABLE VI - Assessed and Estimated Actual Valucof Property . ... oo 89
TABLE V1l = PrinCipal TaXPAYEIS . . . . ottt ittt et et e e e e e e 90
TABLEVIII - Computation of Legal DebtMargin .. ... ...ttt it ittt e e 91
TABLEIX - Computation o f Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt ............. .. ..., 92
TABLE X - Ratio of Net General Bonded Debt to Assessed Valuc and Net Bonded Debt Per Capita ............. 93
TABLE X1 - Ratio of Annual Dcbt Service Expenditures for General Bonded Debt To General Governmental

EXPENdilures . ... ...t it 94
TABLEXII - Special Assessment ColleCtions . ....... ..ottt et 95
TABLEXII - WatcrRevenucBond COVErage .. ..........uuioiunttitteettee et 96
TABLE XIV - Sewer Revenue Bond Coverage .. ..ovutenitaiin ettt it iie i e et eans 97
TABLE XV - Demographic StatiStCS . . ... ...ttt 98
TABLE XV1 - Property Value, Construction and Bank Deposits . . . ........ouiuut ittt 99
TABLE XVII - Schedule of Insurance in FOICE . . .« ..ottt it et 100
TABLE XVIlII - State of California Miscellaneous Statistics . ... ......oiiuiiutt ettt 101

APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT . .. et e e i e e e aaas 104



City of Oxnard, California

Table of Contents (Continued)
June 30, 2002

SUPPLLEMENTARY DATA (OTHER NON-GAAP STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES FOR CITY MANAGEMENT USE):

CAPITAL ASSETS:

Comparative Schedule by SOUICES . . .. oo 107
Schedule by Function and Aclivily ... .. ... e 108
Schedule by Changes by Function and Activily ... ... 109

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES STATEMENTS:

Combining Statements:
Balance Sheet . . L1110

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances ... ... .. ..o o0 ... N
FUND TYPES:

General Fund:
Balance ShCCl ... o 112
Statement of Revenucs, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances ............ ... ... ... .. ... ... 113

Special Revenue Funds:
Combining Balance SNCEL . . .. ... . e 114
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances . ... ... . o . 116

Debt Service Funds:
Combining Balance Sheet .. .. .. 118
Combining Statement of Revenucs, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Capital Praject Funds:
Combining Balance Sheel . .. ... ... e 120

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances ................. ... ... .. 121
City of Oxnard, California
Table of Contents (Continued)
June 30, 2002
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and C hanges in Fund Balances - Bud get and Actunal on Budgetary Basis
General Fund Schedule of Resources ... ... ... ... ... . 12

Spectal Revenue Funds Combined Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changesin Fund Balances . ... oo 125



December 4, 2002

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Oxnard, California

| INTRODUCTION I

It is our great plcasure to submit the Comprchensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Oxnard, California (City) for the fiscal ycar ended
June 30, 2002. This year’s report has been prepared using the new reporting model as prescribed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management s Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments. This new reporting model
completely changes the format of the City’s financial statements. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and
faimess of presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City. We believe the data as prescnted is accurate in all material respects; that it is
presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position and results of operations of the City as measured by the financial activity of its
various funds; and that all disclosures necessary to cnable the rcader to gain the maximum understanding of the City’s financial affairs have been included.

CAFR Explanation
The CAFR was prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as set forth in

pronouncements of the GASB and the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB). The CAFR is presented in three sections and includes the following
information:

1. Introductory Section:
This scctionincludesthe letter of transmittal with comments on the operations of the City for the yearended June 30, 2002; the City’s organizational
chart; a list of principal officials; the Govemment Finance Officers Association of the United States (GFOA) Certificate of Achicvement for
Exccllence in Financial Reporting; and Certificate of Recognition for Early Implementation of GASB 34 to the City for its CAFR for the fiscal ycar
cnded Junc 30, 2001.

2. Financial Section:

This section includes the independent auditors’ report, management’s discussion and aunalysis, and basic financial statements, which include
government-wide financial statcments, fund financial statements, notes to the basic financial statcments, and requircd supplcmentary information.

3. Statistical Section:

Selected financial and demographic infonnation, generally presented on a multi-year basis. This section helps to provide the rcader with a broader
understanding of the City than is possible from a reading of the financial statements and supporting schedules in the financial section alone.

I REPORTING ENTITY II

The City was incorporated as a general law city on June 30, 1903, and operates under the council manager fonn of government. The City is governed
by a four-member council elected at large for four-year alternating terms and by a Mayor who is dircctly elected for a two-year term.

The accompanying CAFR includes the financial activities of the City, the primary government and its component units, which are the City of Oxnard
Community Development Commission and City of Oxnard Housing Authority. Financial information for the City and thesc component units are
accounted: for in thc accompanying financial statements in accordance with principles defining the governmental reporting cntity adopted by the GASB.
City Council members, in separate session, scrve as the governing board of the City of Oxnard Community Development Commission and the City of
Oxnard Housing Authority and, as such, these entities are presented on a blended basis.



THE CITY OF OXNARD:
“The City That Cares”

The City of Oxnard: “The City That Cares™ is located in western Ventura County on the shore of the Pacific Occan. It is approximately 65 miles
northwest of the City of Los Angeles, 35 miles south of the City of Santa Barbara, and 6 miles south of the county scat of Ventura. Oxnard is the financial
hub of and the fargest city in Ventura County, with a population cstimated to be 182,027 in 2002, accounting for over 23 percent of Ventura County’s
population. The City became the premicr center ol county industrial activity in 1996 with the start of ninc new industrial buildings representing a total
ol 750,000 squarc fcet.

The cconomic condition and outlook for the City remains positive. The City has a diversificd and expanding cconomic basc composed of light and heavy
manufacturing. retail, service and governmental scctors. Oxnard has maintained a steady population growth rate of approximatcly 2.48 percent for the

past decade and the adopted General Plan anticipates continued stcady growth for the next ten years, with a projected population of 218,194 by the ycar
2020.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION E

The City’s accounting and budgeting records for gencral governmental operations arc maintained on the modified accrual basis of accounting, with
revenues recorded when available and measurable.  Expenditures arc recorded when the services or goods are reccived and the liabilities incurred.
Accounting and budgeting for the City's utilitics and other proprictary funds arc maintained on the accrual basis. The City’s accounting policics arc more
fully explained in Notc 1 to the basic financial statcments.

In developing and enhancing the City’s accounting system. consideration is given to the adequacy of internal accounting controls. Internal accounting
controls arc designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the safeguarding of asscts against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, and to ensure
the reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements and maintaining accountability of assets. The concept of reasonable assurance
recognizes that the cost of controls should not exceed the anticipated benefits. The evaluation of costs and benefits requires continuing estimates and
Judgements to be made by management.

We believe that the City’s internal accounting controls adequatcly safeguard asscts and provide reasonable assurance that financial transactions are properly
recorded.

i

The City Council approves operating appropriations at the department and fund level prior o July I each year and may amend the budget durmg the [iscal
ycar by Council action. Budgetary control is maintained at the depairtment level; however, the City Manager may approve the transfer of funds in the
department and between departments within a fund.

Fiduciary Operations

The Fiduciary Funds of the City arc established 1o account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity for private individuals, organizations. and other
govermnmental agencies. Included in these funds arc. artworks fund and funds held for the payment of assessment district bonds. In past ycars. the City
issued several 1915 Act Limited Obligation Improvement Bonds to fund the required improvements and levied assessments necessary to pay the debt
service on the bonds. These bonds are not a general obligation of the City and the [aith and credit nor the taxing power of the City are pledged to the
payment of the bonds. Since the City is acting mercly as an agent for the bond procceds and the collection of assessments, the transactions arc recorded
in an agency fund. These bonds are not reflected in the accompanying basic financial statcments. At June 30, 2002, spccial assessment debt outstanding
totaled approximately $36,040,000.

Debt Administration

The City uses a varicty of tax increment, revenue and lease indebtedness to finance various capital acquisitions. The outstanding balances for this
indebtedness as of June 30, 2002, are as follows:

Tax Allocation Bonds S 14,475,000
Revenue Bonds, Net of Unamortized Discount and

Loss on Refunding 89,043.438
Capital Leascs 1,819,953
Notes and Loans Payable 8.539,733
Certificates of Participation 8,440,000

The tax allocation bonds are paid from the increment revenues of property taxes Ievied within the City’s redevelopment and renewal arcas. The Central
City Revitalization Project and other redevelopmentareas currently are accounted for by the Oxnard Community Development Commission.

Revenue bonds include issues used to finance projects for public parking, civic auditorium, scwer and treatment expansion. and public housing. Debt
scrvice on thesc issues is paid from the revenuces of the appropriate enterprise funds and the General FFund.



The City has, onseveral occasions, used single investor loans to lcase-purchase equipment. The City’s capital lease obligations at June 30,2002, amounted
10 $1,819,953.

The Gencral Fund pays debt service on approximatcly S percent of the City’s outstanding debt. The remainder is paid from a variety of other funding
sources including property tax collections, residential growth fece collcction, property owner special taxes, water and sewer utility rates, golf coursc net
income and propcrly tax increments. Some of the debt which is paid by the Genceral Fund is supported by extcrnal sources specifically intended to support
the retirement of the debt.

The Statc of California mandates a limit on general obligation debt of 15 percent of truc cash value of all taxable property within the City boundarics.
At Junc 30, 2002, this limit was $1,269,477,359.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOMPLISHMENTS OF

FISCAL YEAR 2001-02

Police Department

Theresidents of the City have a police department dcdicated to cffective and personalized scrvice. Community oriented policing and problem-solving
continues to be the organizational strategy embraced by the department and community. Problem-solving is centered around the patrol division with beat
coordinators dirccting the efforts of their patrol bcat teams. Thesc teams have evolved to include code enforcement officers, investigators, traflic officers,
special enforcement unit officers, and various other City personncl. The result is a reduction in crime and effective problem-solving.

The crimerate in the City has dropped by nearly 56 percent sincc 1992. The traditional measure of the effectiveness of a law enforcement agency is the
decrease or increase in reported crimes. The police department reported a decrease in the Fiscal Year 2001 FBI Uniform Crime Report (UCR Part ]
Crimes). Overall, crime was down by 5.7 percent, violent crime down by 8.9 percent and property crime down by 14.8 percent.

The Patrol Division handled 83,005 calls for services during FY 2001-02. The average response time to priority calls for service was six minutes. The
Police Department was able to see the completion of our new Satellite City Hall/Command Post. The Satellitc City Hall/Command Post will be used at
festivals, crime scenes and, most importantly, taken into neighborhoods to enhance our community policing efforts.

The K-9 unit provided 7,448 assists (o patrol, an increase of 20 percent over last fiscal ycar. During these assists, Police Scrvice Dogs (PSDs) were
instrumental in 33 arrests. These arearrests that involved physical apprehension by the PSD. The unit also assisted with 279 narcotics searches. Among

other progrims that the department is involved arc: traffic problem analysis; pedestrian decoy opcrations; school safety program; DUI checkpoints; and,
photo red light enforcement.

The Codc Enforcement Division investigated 5,658 incidents, including implementation of the Park Ranger Program. The Park Ranger Program was
initiated to coincide with the inflatable jumper ordinance. The Park Ranger Program visited 4,414 parks, 907 persons were contacted in the parks, 358
violations werc obscrved within the parks, and 322 jumpers werc observed at the parks.

An additional program activated in the fiscal year includes the Rental Property Improvement Program, which was established to climinate or minimizc
property blight in multi-residential units (apartments) and single-family rental propertics through a pro-active, fairand consistent approach to identifying
and preventing Oxnard City Code violations, with vigorous and focused cnforcement in conjunction with community outreach.

Emphasis on community and professional partnerships was instituted to allow leaders of the various ethnic groups to have dircct access to the chief of
police and thepolice department staff. The continued interest and desire of the community to remain active in various community improvement and crime
prevention programs greatly enhances the effcctiveness of the police department. The City has both Neighborhood Watch and Neighborhood Patrol
Programs. Additionally, there are the Community Councils and Community Policing Advisory Boards. The*“Street Beat” cable television show continues
to provide information on police activities within the community.

Fire Department

The Fire Department provides {ire prevention, education and suppression scrvices that reducc the loss of lifc and property through the application of
modern and innovative firefighting and rescuc techniques. Effective fire inspection programs werc established, as well as appropriate enforcement of
applicable local, State and national codes, to help prevent incidents from occurring by systematic inspection of commercial, industrial and residentiat
facilities. In addition, the department provides risk management and inspection scrvices through the Certified Unificd Program Agency (CUPA) for
hazardous materials used and stored in the City.

Further accomplishments include:

« Responded to 10,203 calls {or assistance.

«  Over 17,0000 unit responses.

* Provided emergency training to 240 employces of the Oxnard School District and to employces of 25 privatc enterprises.

+  Community Emergency Response Team (CERT) provided training for the City’s 22 neighborhood teams.

*  Provided Juvenile Fire-Setter Counseling for 18 children and their familics. Each participant received a minimum of 3 hours consultation.
+ Adopted the City’s first Comprehensive Employec Wellness Program.

vi



» Investigated cight environmental crime cases with an anticipated $20.000 in fincs and cost rccovery reimbursements.
*  Provided ninc disaster preparcdness presentations to Neighborhood Councils and community groups.
«  Oxnard Firc Department and CERT participated in Ventura County’s Earthquake Weck kick-off in Camarillo.

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
The Public Works Department’s accomplishments for Fiscal Ycar 2002 arc outlined below:
Solid Waste Division

On June 18, 2002, the California Integrated Waste Management Board (CIWMB) approved Oxnard’s solid waste diversion ratc of 67 pereent. This
division rate is the highest approved number in Ventura County and onc of the highest in the State of Califomia. Oxnard is excceding the State mandatces
of the Waste Management Act (Assembly Bill 939) that requires cvery city and county in California to reduce waste by 50 percent.

The Oxnard Sotid Waste Division hosted an of f-site general CIWMB mecting at the Del Norte Regional Recycling and Transfer Station. The two-day
event attracted solid waste and recycling olficials from all over California.

The division provides award-winning recycling programs which include: curbside and green waste recycling; Christmas tree recycling; ncighborhood
clean-up cvents; Earth Waltch Newsletter; household hazardous recyclable material drop-off center; and, the Earth Day Festival.

In FY 2001-02. a new regional recycling program permits residents to drop off their discarded computers and electronics at Del Norte Regional Recycling
and Trans(er Station. The Ventura County Sherif s Department picks up a poition of the computers, which are repaired in a Todd Road Jail program.
The repaired computers are then distributed throughout Ventura County schools.

The Solid Waste Division reached long-term agreements with the Simi Valley Landfill and the Toland Road Landfill for landfill wastc disposal service.
The agreements provide Oxnard with waste disposal capacity and stability in refuse rates for its residential and business customers.

On February 1. 2002, anew waste-tipping floor was installed at the Del Norte Regional Recycling and Transfer Station. City contractor Delta Pacific
Builders poured a two-inch layer of iron cement over approximately 11,000 squarc feet of the existing tipping floor. The iron cement bonds with the
cxisting concrete floor. thereby avoiding the demolition and floor preparation time and cost required for replacement with conventional concrete. The
new tipping floor will withstand the rigors of heavy solid wasic operations for years 1o come.
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Parks and Facilities Division
< Completed During the Fiscal Year:
Eastwood Park restroom building.
Carty Park restroom building.
Colonta Day Carc Center landscape improvements design.
Wilson Park rehabilitation.
- Oxnard Boulevard landscape median improvements (Robert to Glenwood).
- Rosc Avcnuce landscape median improvements.
- Southbank play area improvements.
- Oxnard Boulevard landscape median improvements design (Glenwood to Gonzales).

3

¢ Still Under Construction:

- Beck Park play areaimprovements.

- Sierra Linda play area improvements.

- Eastwood Park concession building.

- l.athrop Park rchabilitation improvements.
- Park Court resurfacing improvements.

- Eastwood Park concession building.
--College Estates Park rehabilitation.

3

< Other Projects:

--Harbor frontage road improvements -- upgrade to irrigation and plant matcrial.

- Saviers Road — installation of sidewalk in parkway (Channel Islands 1o Bryce Canyon).
- Four ncw table slabs with picnic tables, barbcques and trash cans.

- “G" Street trees — installation of Camphor trees in parkway.

- Update to Parks Nextel Communication System.

- Plaza Park Pagoda improvements.

- Addition of Campus Park to Park systcm and various improvements to the sitc.

- Tree planting inparkway in the 480 block of First Street.

- Transplanting of two Phoenix Canariensts palm trees from City water yard to the front of City Hall.
-Tree planting in parkways on Brookside Strect.

- New scwer line at Johnson Creek Park.

Vil



Facilities Maintcnance Division

Green Valley Day Care Center - The opening this year of the new Green Valley Day Care facility in Colonia Park was the culmination of many years
of effort to replace the 50-year-old facility with a new building and play yard. Construction of the new {acility was a public/private partnership between
the City of Oxnard and Continuing Development Inc. (CDI). In addition to being a iorc usable and attractive facility, its opening allowed CDI to increase
the number of children enrolled in their classes as well as provide much-nceded afier-school services for older children. The old center has been
demolished and the arca landscaped with new turf and several new trees.

Carnegie Art Museum Project - The sccond phase of the Carnegie Art Museum Project was completed this year. This phase of the rehabilitation
included waterproofing the foundation of the building; coating the exterior walls with an clastomeric coating; regrading of the side and landscape
improvements; replacement of all exterior windows; installation of a new handicap access ramp to the basement; installation of a new wheel chair lift
serving the main floor of the museum; and installation of lighting to enhance the architcctural details of the building. This project build upon the work
completed in phase one, which included replacement of the roof and improvements to the roof drainage system. The final phase will begin early next yecar
with the installation of a state-of-the-art climate control system. The completion of these three phases will enhance the structural integrity of this historic
building and provide a safe environment for the many works of art housed at the museum.

Transportation Planning

« Oxnard Boulevard Interchange on Highway 101 — construction to begin Spring 2002.

« Santa Clara River Bridge -- construction to begin Spring 2002.

* Rice Avenue Interchange on Highway 101 — design underway; construction to begin Winter 2003.

«  Oxnard Transportation Center — new parking lot opened under Third Street Bridge; started acquisition of another parking lot on East Fiflh Street;
released bids for modemization of facility, including refurbishing bathrooms and replacing roof.

» Received three super ultra low emission hybrid sedans to improve air quality and energy cfficiency in the City’s vehicle flcet.

WASTEWATER DIVISION
Source Control Program

« Received $100,000 in penalty monics {rom Frozsun Foods for the bypass of their pretrcatment system.

« Continued the downward trend in pollutant (i.c., BOD and Metals) loading at the Wastewater Treatment Plant (WwTP) influent.

» Zero violations or notices issued by the Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) associated with the conditions/requirements of the
Pretreatment Program section of the WwTP NPDES Permit.

« Conducted 876 inspections that provided the opportunity to educate industrial users on environmental laws and applicable regulations.
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Storm Water Quality Management Program

» Continued to participate in the Kiddie Beach Bacteriological Source Identification Study and assisted in the elimination of numerous sources of
bacteriological contamination.

. pscd $2,5.00 in Su;.)plemcnlal Environmental Project fund monies from Chuck’s Auto Salvage to participate with McDonald’s Restaurant Corporation
in supplying tray liners to educate approximately 20,000 people about storm watcr issues.

+  Responded to, and climinated, 86 illicit discharges within the City.

« Visited 295 commercial/industrial facilitics and provided them with information regarding the potential that they may be subject to the State General
Industrial Storm Water Permit.

+  Zero violations or notices from RWQCB associated with conditions/requirements of the SWQM NPDES Permit.

Collection System Maintenance and Upgrades Program

» Continued the update of the City’s collection system atlas maps.

« Increascd the level of collection system cleaning and maintenance capabilitics by completing the purchase of a new Vactor.
« Replaceda defective force main serving Lift Station #6.

« Installed new pumps at Lift Station #29.

Flood Control Program

. Contihued the update of the City’s storm water drainage system atlas maps.

»  Continued the diversion of all green waste removed from storm water drainage channels to an approved green waste facility for recycling/use.
» Completed the installation ofa new storm drain on Fifth Street near Oxnard Shores.

« Completed the installation of a new storm drain at the end of Arnold Road.

. Completed EPA’s audit of the storm» water drainage system.

Laboratory Services Program
« Completed review of all analytical procedure manuals to ensure compliance with legal requirements for analysis.

« Successfully passed all external audits {or drinking water and wastewater analysis.
» Began construction of the Laboratory Upgrade and Modification Project, including transition into temporary facilities.



Treatment Plant Operations Program

«  Maintained consistent compliance with federal, state and local laws, regulations and permit requirecments.

« Continucd the energy management program, saving approximately $75,000 in energy costs during the Summer of 2001.
+  Completed the Chlorination/Dechlorination Modifications and Upgrades Project.

«  Began construction of the Emergency Backup 1500 kW Generators Project.

Treatment Plant Maintenance and Upgrades Program

«  Completed the upgrade of the effluent engine’s ignition and cxhaust system resulting in reduced fue) consumption | air emissions, improved engine
cmission control. equipment life and rcliability.

» Continued to implement the energy management program to reduce cnergy consumption and costs during peak summer demand periods.

»  Completed the installation of new sludge pump to increase solids transfer efficiency.

»  Completed the rehabilitation of biosolids dewatering press #3.

+  Completed the automation of Treatment Plant entry galtes to increase plant sccurity.

Traffic Engineering and Signals

+  Newraffic signals installed at Rosc Avenuc/Emerson Avenue. Gonzales Road/Williams Road, Gonzales Road/Solar Drive, Plcasant Valley/Elting
(established list of top necded signals.

«  Fircprecmption devices installed at traffic signals on Rosc Avenue from Lockwood to Camino del Sol.

+  Encrgysaving LED signallamps installed on all overhead signals.

+ Sevennew street cleaning routes signed with twice per month sweeping.

« Sidewalk installed on Gonzales Road between “C™ Street and Oxnard Boulevard.

OXNARD PUBLIC LIBRARY
The Library’s accomplishments [or Fiscal Year 2001-02 are outlined below:

» A Califomia Reading and Literacy Improvement and Public Library Construction and Renovation Bond Act o 2002 grant application was submiiled
to the Califormia State Library applying for $8 million in funding to construct a new 23,000 square-foot South Oxnard Branch Library. A South
Oxnard community nceds assessment (survey) was completed to support this grant application.

X1

»  The library entered into an agreement with Sirsi Corporation in FY 2001-02 to purchasc a new integrated library computer system. The new system
will be fully operational m all three librarics in July 2002. Exciting features of the new system include the ability, through a home or of fice computer
with Internet access, to search the library’s collection for items of interest, to reserve materials. and to find the most popular books in the library’s
collection.

*  The Leracy Outrcach Program provides the community English language literacy instruction through volunteer-based tutoring to promote greater
access to cconomic and cducational opportunitics. Thirty-two volunteers provided over 800 hours of tutoring to more than 40 adult icamers in the
community. The program is funded by a $114,900 Literacy Grant through the California Litcracy Library Services of the California Statc Library
and by donations from individuals and local organizations.

* A Digitization Grant of $31,000 provided funding to digitize local history photographs used [or Oxnard’s Centennial Wall of History and the creation
of data filcs to provide access lo these photographs over the Intemet.

+  Oxnard City Council approved $148,500 to extend service hours at the Main Library an additional ten hours per week, including new Sunday afternoon
hours.

+ A total of 1,451 children participated in the library’s 2001 Summer Reading Program, “Books and Beyond: Take Mc To Your Reader.” Attendance
at 18 Summer Reading Program cvents sponsored by the Oxnard Friends of the Library reached 2,041 children and adults. The total number of
children who registered for the Summer Reading Program increased 31 percent from the yearbelore. This increase may be attributed o the outer space
theme, sending bookmarks home with cach clementary school student, and heavy in-house promotion.

¢ The Colonia Branch Library was moved to a larger room at the City of Oxnard’s Family Investment Center. New shelving, a circulation desk, two
additional computers, and open floor spacc has given the Colonia Branch Library a whole new Jook.

+  Designaled a U.S. passport acceptance facility. Since October 20002, 3,052 customers applicd for United States passports through the Oxnard Public
Library in FY 2001-02, up 64 percent from FY 2000-01.

* Rclocating the local history room at the Main Library to a larger room involved installation of a door and window to convert a large office into an
inviting room for the public.

CARNEGIE ART MUSEUM

The Muscum’s accomplishments for Fiscal Ycar2001-02 arc outlined below:

* 37,500 visitors and clients served (a 39 percent increase over prior fiscal year).
* 591 Tours and Ed Prescntations served 17,860 students (ages: K - College).

*  14.6 percent increase in grants and gifts received.

= A Classic Competition™ exhibition hosts over 50 Ventura County artists and artist muscum members.
*  First major traveling exhibit from New York presented — Joyee Treiman: Drawings & Prints.
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‘*  Ewropa, a major artwork by acclaimed California artist, John Valdez, acquired with fund raising assistance from the Camegiec Art Museum
Cormerstones.
* Building renovations — foundation waterproofing, landscaping, exterior access elevator, and lighting installed.

PERFORMING ARTS AND CONVENTION CENTER (PACC)
The PACC’s accomplishments for Fiscal Year 2001-02 are outlined below:

* Completed the exterior painting of the complex including the roofarea of the theater.

* Replaced the theater roof.

» Completed the replacement of the heating and air conditioning system of the theater.

» Entered into an agreement with LarVic Entertainment to co-promote various events in the theater (minimum of 12 events this year).

» Completely refinished the wood flooring in both the Oxnard and Ventura meeting rooms at a cost of $30,000, using self-gencrated Facility Restoration
Fee revenue. ’

* Replaced the lighting in both parking lot areas, producing more light at less cost.

» Completed bid package for resurfacing of Hobson Street parking lot project.

* Reached an agreement with the Recreation Division which will return the Youth Center portion of the facility to PACC for rental to the public.

CITY TREASURER’S OFFICE

A major function of the City Treasurer’s office is the collection and safekeeping of all monies due to the City. Excellent customer service has been
provided to an ever-increasing customer base with no increase in staffing. More than 35,000 utility payments are received each month by mail, and over
10,000 per month by in-person payments at the cashiers’ windows. Friendly, efficient service and timely recording of funds received are the key elements
of excellent service to both internal and external customers. Staff members attended the Citywide Customer Service Training and developed a work plan
for the department to further enhance the effectiveness of daily operations.

Cost effective operations are maintained through continual effiorts to streamline and update all processes. The culmination of a two-year records retention
research effiort resulted in monthly cost savings and the satisfaction that the department’s records comply with the retention schedule and unnecessary
records have been eliminated.
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COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION
The following is a list of accomplishments for the Community Development Department:

Esplanade Shopping Center - Ongoing oversight of the Owner Participation Agreement for the redevelopment of the Esplanade Shopping Center. The
project consists of a 500,000 square foot retail *power center” anchored by Home Depot. The first phase was completed in Fall 2001. The secoid phase
of construction is underway with completion scheduled for Fall 2002.

Vineyard/Esplanade Retail - Contacted property owners and retailers in the vicinity of the Esplanade for encouragement to revitalize their properties
along the Vineyard/Esplanade view corridor. Target and Food for Less have responded to CDC and recently been approved by the Planning Department
for remodel designs. It is anticipated that both retailers will start work on their buildings Fall 2002. Currentactivity includes ongoingcontact with property
owners in the area to encourage further enhancement of the area.

Retail Attraction Efforts - Developed retail attraction brochure marketing the City and highlighting potential development opportunities. Attended four
retail trade show and placed City advertisement in trade show publication. Established 100 contacts within the commercial development, brokerage and
retail communities for follow-up meetings and City tours.

Oxnard Factory Outlet - Nincty percent complete in drafling an amendment to the current development agreements to re-position the Oxnard Factory
Outlet.

HERO- Project Area - Assisted the RiverPark "A" developer in the appraisal and acquisition process of 15 parcels needed to implement the Project Area.
Commenced negotiating a first Amended Owner Participation Agreement to further define the redevelopment of the S.P. Milling mining pit reclamation
and the Town Center build-out. Assisted in the review and approval of the RiverPark Specific and General Plan Amendments, Tentative Map,
Environmental Impact Report, Pre-zoning and Development Agreement.

HERO- Oxnard South Revitalization - Continuing to advance the improvement of the 29 medians collectively located on Saviers, Pleasant Valley and
Hueneme Roads. Median construction willbegin in August 2002. It is anticipated thatthe first five medians will be completed in FY 2002-03. Continued
to advance the revitalization of Oxnard South by facilitating community-based organization meetings.

Ormond Beach - Proposed two major industrial projects for the area, comprising of nearly 100 acres and potentially employing over 1,000 people. At

the same tiine, the California Coastal Conservancy was completing the purchase of 265 acres of beachfiont property to expand its holdings of wetlands
preserve. The CDC, as part-owner of 309 acres in the project area, is considering the sale of all or a portion of this property to the Conservancy.
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Southwinds Project Area - Continued to form and strengthen private/public parinerships with residents, business, propcity owners and community
organizations 1o cncourage commercial retail, professional office, and residential development and rehabilitation. Construction commenced on Perkins
Road resurfacing and traffic calming improvements, sidewalk repair and drainage improvements.

City-Wide Enhancement Program (CWEP) - Assisted with the inauguration ol the City’s first Mobile Satellite City 1all program. Served on the
lcadership commttee that created the program. Played a keyrole in the planing and deployment of the Mobile Satellite City Hall to one of the City’s
oldest neighborhoods. Over 200 attendees were provided with an opportunity to learn more about available City services. Planning is now in process for
deployment to another ncighborhood.

Downtown Lighting Improvement Program - Completed the downtown lighting improvement program. which consists of replacing strectlights with
nostalgic lamp polcs to match the Plaza Park/"A™ Strect lamp polcs, adding streetlights, and enhancing existing parking lot lighting. This is the first phase
of the Downtown Improvement Program, which also includes Parking Lot and Alley Improvements (scc below).

Downtown Parking Lot Improvement - Devcloped plans for downtown parking lot repaving/restriping program and alley rcpaving/reconstruction
program. Eighteen parking lots have been identified for improvement. Reconstruction of the alleys will coincide with the Water Division’s waler main
replacement program to reduce costs to downtown merchants, customers and cmployces. Construction will be completed by Spring 2003.

Downtown Parking Structure - Involved in property acquisition of a site at the corner of Fourth and “B™ Streets for a three-story, S00-spacc parking
structure to serve downtown Oxnard. Current activity includes appraisal and acquisition of one parcel to create the necessary footprint of the parking
structure.

Downtown Walk-Through and Public Education Program - Continued the biweekly downtown walk-through program with planning division and
code enforcement unit personnel to monitor compliance with zoning and pcrnit requirements. The development guidelines produced last year (on signage,
facade, window treatment) have proven effective in assisting merchants both during the walk-throughs and at the planning counter, to have a better
understanding of permits and zone clearance requirements.

Downtown Property-Based Business Improvement District - Supporied the newly-formed property-based business improvement district (PBID) for
the downtown arca by providing staff assistance during the star-up phase. Annual revenues arc projected at $346,000 for ycar one, with potential annual
increases tied to the CPI of no more that three percent. The PBID will be effiective a minimum of five years.

‘Theater Project - Negotiated for development of a 12 screen theater and retail complex on CDC-owned property in the downtown area. The proposed
devclopment is intended to serve as a catalyst for a themed development. as well as (uture revitalization of downtown.
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Housing Rehabilitation and Ownership - Provided financial assistance for the rehabilitation of 17 residential properties in the Southwinds and HERO
Projcct Arcas. Financially assisted two homcbuyers purchasc of resale homes in the Southwinds and HERO Project. Replaced two mobite homes for
very low-mcome familics in the CCRP Project Arca.

Meta Strect Apartment Project - Worked with a local non-profit developer (Cabrillo Economic Development Corporation - CEDC) towards finalizing
a Disposition and Development Agreement (DDA) for the sale and development of 1.15 acres in the Central Business District for 24 affordable housing
rental units, including farmworker housing. This project will be financed by several funding sources, including the 9% Tax Credit Funds Program. The
Meta Street area is a scverely depressed and blighted area, and this residential project, along with a for-sale affordablc housing project planned within
one block from this site, will generate renewed life and interest in this part of the Downtown. Construction is anticipated for Fall 2003.

Community Development Department Web Page - Completed a department web page to provide answers to typical redevelopment questions, provide
updates on current projects. and outline future activities. The web page will also be uscd to highlight development opportunities throughout the City.

Auto Center Dealerships - Assisted the Bunnin-Buick GMC dcalership in locating to the Oxnard Auto Center. Assisted with the coordination and
necessary permits for the development of a new Auto Dealership sign located on the Highway 101 corridor.

GREATER OXNARD ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

The period of July 2001 through Junc 2002 continued the recent trend of robust cconomic activity and expansion in the Oxnard commercial/industrial
sector. The EDC assisted more than 50 manufacturing companics during the course of the year, and specifically helped 18 companies reach the decision
10 move their operations from another city to Oxnard. In addition, the EDC assisted 11 local companies with their expansion plans, or in two cases, a
complete start-up. Those companies ranged from Pacific Vehicle Processors, which deals with new-car pre-dealer preparations, to Larrivee Guitars, makers
of finc acoustic and electric guitars. Together they represent a prospective increase of over 1.200 basic-sector jobs in the Oxnard arca.

BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY
ACCOUNTING

The budget process includes the development of a balanced two-year budget; however. the two-year budget includes an approach that appropriations arc
approved (or a onc-yecaroperations budget and capital improvement plan. Budgets are adopted annually by City Council resolution and are prepared for
the City's General Fund, special revenue funds and certain debt service funds. Budgcts are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting consistent
with GAAP except that encumbrances are included in budgeted expenditures

Xvi



Appropriations lapse at year-end. The City Council generally reauthorizes appropriations for continuing projects and activities. The City Council has
the legal authority to amend the budget of any fund at any time during the fiscal year. The budgetary legal level of control (the level on which expenditures
may not legally exceed appropriations) is generally at the department level. For budgeting purposes, the General Fund is composed of several departments
while all other budgeted funds (special revenue funds included) are considered a single department. Budgeted expenditures may be reallocated within
a division and between divisions within a department without City Council approval. During Fiscal Year 2002, supplemental budget appropriations
approximating $23,653,606 were made.

Another important focus of the City budget was the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) . Capital improvement projects are closely related to the enterprise
funds and numerous other funds throughout the City. In order to ensure that the CIP element received adequate review and scrutiny, the City Council
conducted a study session to consider the capital improvements.

I CASH MANAGEMENT I

The City Treasurer is responsible for investing available cash in investments allowable by law and as further defined by the City’s investment policy.
Allowable investments include, but are not limited to: certificates of deposit which are either government insured or collateralized, government securities,
the State Treasurer’s Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), and certain commercial paper and medium tenn notes. In priority order, safety, liquidity,
and yield are considered to be the essential criteria for selecting investments.

The City’s highly automated cash management system is designed to expedite the receipt and deposit of revenues through centralized cashiering.
Anticipated expenditures and accounts payable issues are carefully monitored to maximize availability of funds for investment.

The average balance of non-restricted cash and investments of the City for Fiscal Year 2002 was $130,828,000 which earned $6,031,174, an average rate
of 4.61 percent. At June 30, 2002, $85,672,075 or 55.4 percent of the City’s investment pool had maturities of 1-5 years. All other City investments are
scheduled to mature in less than 360 days.

The City’s investment policy has been updated to meet requirements of the California Government Code revisions. The investment policy is presented
annually to the City Council.

The primary objective of the investment policy is to establish a conservative set of investment criteria that will prudently protect the City’s principal sums
and enable the City to generate a fair rate of return from its investment activities. The investment policy applies to all funds on deposit at the City’s
Treasury.
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Interest earnings on investments for the last three fiscal years are a follows:

2002 2001 2000
Governmental Funds $ 4,465,752 $ 3,797,778 $ 4,304,719
Proprictary I-unds 1,565,422 1.679.173 1.804.956
Total $ 6031174 § 5476951 $ 6,109,675
Avcrage Annual Yicld 4.61% 4.53% 5.71%

Interest income in Fiscal Year 2001-02 decreased principally due to lower interest rates this year versus last year.

I RISK MANAGEMENT "

The risk management functions identify, evaluate, mitigate, and monitor the City’s exposure to operational risks. The most significant risk exposurcs
are employee injury (workers’ compensation), auto and general liability (including police liability). When available and economically fcasible, risk is
transferred through the purchase of commercial insurance. The City is a participant, along with four other cities, in a Joint Powers Authority (.JPA) to
obtain pooled general liability coverage on a risk sharing basis. The JPA covers $24,000,000 above the City’s self-insured retention of $1,000,000 and,
whenever it is cost effective, transfers risk through the purchase of commercial reinsurance. ‘In addition to general liability insurance, the JP A supports
group purchase of workers’ compensation and property insurance which frequently results in reduced premiums.

The City’s contribution to the JPA for general liability coverage in Fiscal Year 2001-02 was $357,984 including $98,266 for debt service and a pure
premium adjustment based on prior year’s loss experience of $85,237. Within theCity’s sclf-insured program for workers” compensation, there has been
an average of 332 claims per year filed forthe past four years, with an average of approximately $2,770,313 per year in total reported losses as of June
30, 2002, (atan average of $8,332 per claim). During the same four-year period, the average claims filed each year for general liability amounted to

$1,572,116 (at an average of $7,049 per claim).
| OTHER INFORMATION ||

The fim1of KPMG LLP has conducted an audit of the financial statements of the City. Their opinion is included in the Financial Section of the CAFR.
[n accordance with the Single Audit Act of 1997, the City’s grant programs which utilize Federal funds, either directly or passed through from state

Independent Audit

xviii



agencics. have been subjected o the audit requirements of the Federal Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133. This included tests
of compliance with Federal laws and regulations. The results of the single audit performed in accordance with OMB A-133 will be presented under
separatc covcer.

AWARDS

Certificate of Achievement

The Governiment Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Exccellence in Financial
Reporting to the City of Oxnard for its comprchensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001.

This was the thirtcenth consecutive year the City has reccived this prestigious award from GFOA. which reflects the conforming accounting and
comprehensive reporting practices of the City. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the City must publish an casily rcadable and
cf ficiently organized comprchensive annual financial report. whose contents conform to program standards. Such report must satisfy both GAAP and
applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achicvement is valid for a period of onc year only. We belicve our current report continues Lo conform to Certificate of Achicvement
Program requircments, and we arc submitting it to the GFOA to dctermine its cligibility for another certificate.

Certificate of Recognition
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) presented the City of Oxnard with a Certificate of Recognition for Early Implementation of
GASB Statcment No. 34 for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended Junc 30, 2001, The Board commended the City's

goveming body for supporting the cffiorts to provide the citizens and other financial statement users with amore comprehensive reporting of the City's
financial operations well in advance of the cffective date of the standard (Statement No. 34).
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600 Anton Boulevard
Suite 700
Costa Mesa, CA 92626-7651

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Honorable City Council
City of Oxnard, California:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of Oxnard, California (City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2002, which collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility is to express
opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Oxnard, Califomia, as of
June 30,2002, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable,
thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Management’s discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 17 and the required supplementary
information on pages 66 through 74 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but
are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on
it.

KPMGLLP KPMG LLS 0 U'S Irmitegkabéypariners, s
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated
November 8, 2002 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our
audit.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The combining fund financial
statements and schedules and nonmajor and debt service funds budget and actual statements are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The combining fund financial statements and schedules and nonmajor and debt
service funds budget and actual statements have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section
and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

KPMe LIP

November 8, 2002



Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002
(Unaudited)

This management’s discussion and analysis provides an overview of
financial activities of the City of Oxnard (City) for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2002. Please read this discussion and analysis in conjunction
with the accompanying transmittal letter, the basic financial statements,
and the accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

The financial statements presented herein include all financial activities
of the City and its component units in accordance with Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, “Basic Financial
Statements - and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State and
Local Government” (GASB 34).

The Govemment-Wide Financial Statements present thc financial
position of the City using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting. These statements present governmental
activities and business-type activities separately. Also, these statements
include all assets of the City, as well as all liabilities, including long-term
debt. Additionally, in accordance with GASB 34, certain eliminations
have been made related to interfund activity, payables and receivables.

The Fund Financial Statements include governmental, proprietary and
fiduciary funds. The governmental funds are prepared using the current
financial resources measurement focus and modified accrual basis of
accounting. The proprietary funds are prepared using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The
fiduciary funds consist of agency funds, which only report a balance sheet

and do not have a measurement focus. A reconciliation of the Fund
Financial Statements to the Government-Wide Financial Statements is
provided to explain the differences created by the integrated approach
under GASB 34.

1 REPORTING THE CITY AS A WHOLE '

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activitics report
information about the City as a whole and its activities. These statements
include all assets and liabilities of the City using the accrual basis of
accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-
scctor entities. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized in the period in which they are eamed, while expenses are
recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred.

These statements report the City’s net assets and changes in them. Net
assets are the difference between assets and liabilities, which is one way
to measure the City’s financial health, or financial position. Over time,
increases or decreases in the City’s net assets are one indicator of whether
its financial health is improving or deteriorating. Other factors to
consider are changes in the City’s property tax base and economic trends,
such as expansion and development.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002
(Unaudited)

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, the City’s
activities are categorized as follows:

Governmental Activities

Most of the City’s basic services are reported in this category, including
the general govemment activities, such as fire, police, public works,
community development, parks, recreation and library services. Property
and sales taxes, user fees, interest income, franchise fees, and state and
federal grants finance these activities.

Business-Type Activities

The City charges a fee to customers to pay for the cost of certain services
provided. The City’s water and wastewater system, solid waste services,
housing services, and the operations of the Performing Arts and
Convention Center and River Ridge Golf Course are reported in this
category.

LREPORTING THE CITY’S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS I

Fund Financial Statements

The Fund Financial Statements provide detailed information about the
City’s major funds — not the City as a whole. Some funds are required
to be established by State law and by bond covenants. However, the City

establishes many other funds to help control and manage money for a
particular purpose or to show that the City is meeting legal
responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, and other funds.

Governmental Funds

Most of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds.
These funds focus on reporting the flow of money into and out of those
funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending.
These funds are reported using the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized
when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they become measurable and
available). *‘Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be
determined and “available” means collectible within the current period
or soon enough thereafter to be used. The governmental fund financial
statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City’s general
government operations and the basic services provided. Govemmental
fund information helps determine whether there are more or fewer
financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the
City’s programs. The differences between the Governmental Fund
Financial Statements and the Government-Wide Financial Statements are
explained in a reconciliation following the Government-Wide Financial
Statements.
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Proprietary Funds

When the City charges customers for services — whether to outside
customers or to programs of the City, these services are generally
reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary finds are reported in the same
way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets. The
City’s enterprise funds are the same as the business-typc activities
reported in the Government-Wide Financial Statements, but provide more
detail and additional information, such as cash flows for each enterprise
fund. The City also uses internal service funds to report activities that
provide supplies and services for the City’s intemmal programs and
activities, such as the City’s self-insurance, utility customer services,
information services, facilitics maintenance and equipment maintenance
services.

Fiduciary Funds

The City is the trustee, or fiduciary, for certain funds established to
account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity, or as an agent for
individuals, private organizations, and other governmental units. The
City’s fiduciary activities are reported in separate Statements of Fiduciary
Net Assets. These activities are excluded from the City’s Government-
Wide Financial Statements because the City cannot use these assets to
finance its operations. The City is responsible for ensuring that the assets
reported in these funds are used for their specified purposes.

I GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS I

The total net assets of the City as of June 30, 2002 were:

Increase

Net Asscts 2002 2001 {Decrease)
Invested in Capital Asscts, Net of

Related Debt S 217,779.326 S 211,290,024 § 6,489,302
Restricted for:

Capital Projects 9,928,686 10,351,861 (423,175)

Dcbt Service 1,333,902 1,332,7V4 1,188

Other Projects 9,908,584 9,712,205 196,379
Unresiricted 114,682,186 90,256,086 24,426,100

Total Net Assets $ 353,632,684  $ 322,942,890 S 30,689,794

The total net assets of the City increased 9.5 percent from $322.9 million
at June 30, 2001 to $353.6 million at June 30, 2002. The increase of
$30,689,794 derives from the change in net assets as recorded in the
Statement of Activities and which flows through to the Statement of Net
Assets.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002
(Unaudited)

Governmental Activities

The following schedule summarizes the financial position of the City’s
governmental activities at June 30, 2002:

Increase
2002 2001 (Decreasc)
Current Asscls $127,897,038 $102,544,813 $ 25,352,225
Capital Asscts (Net of Accumulated
Depreciation) 107,144,838 87,015,192 20,129,646
Propertics Held for Resale 7,263,384 7,263,384 —_—
Other Asscls 185,108 — 185,108
Total Assets 242,490,368 196,823,389 45,666,979
Current Liabilitics 39,481,520 21,677,848 17,803,672
Non-Current Liabilitics 56,553,574 57,823,968 (1,270,394)
Total Liabititics 96,035,094 79,501,816 16,533,278
Net Assets:
Invested in Capital Asscts, Netof
Related Debt 56,440,149 53,182,282 3,257,867
Restricted 18,239,533 15,555,288 2,684,245
Unrestricted 71,775,592 48,584,003 23,191,589
Total Net Asscts $ 146,455,274  §117,321,573  $ 29,133,701

At the end of Fiscal Year 2002, the current assets are 52.74 percent of the
total assets with the remaining 47.13 percent representing capital assets,
net of accumulated depreciation and properties held for resale and other
assets. The current liabilities are 41.11 percent of the total liabilities.
The current ratio for governmental activities at the end of the year is

$3.24 of current assets for every $1.00 of current liabilities. Of the total
net assets, 38.54 percent was invested in capital assets, 12.45 percent was
restricted, and the remaining 49.01 percent represented unrestricted which
is available for future operations.

Net assets of the City’s governmental activities as of June 30, 2002 and
2000 are comprised of the following:

Increase
2002 2001 (Decrease)
Invested in Capital Asscls, Net of
Reluted Debt $ 56,440,149 $ 53,182,282 S 3,257,867
Restricted for:
Capital Projects 9,928,686 10,351,861 (423,175)
Dcbt Service 1,333,902 1,332,714 1,188
Other Projects 6,976,945 3,870,713 3,106,232
Unrestricted 71,775,592 48,584,003 23,191,589
T'otal Nct Asscts $ 146455274 § 117,321,573 29, 7

The net assets of the City from governmental activities increased 24.89
percent from $117.3 million at June 30, 2001 to $146.5 million at June
30,2002. The increase of $29,133,701 is primarily due to an increase in
net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt, and restricted net
assetsrelated to other projects authorized during the year.
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Increase
The cost of all governmental activities during Fiscal Year 2002 was 2002 2001 {Decrease)
$94,360,035. The amount that the City’s taxpayers ultimately financed,
Propram Revenues:
however, was only $45,464,591. Some of the cost of governmental Charges for Services S L1627 §  0.532278 5 1.879.340
aclivities was paid by those who directly benefitted from the programs Grants and Other Contributions 32,499.675 22,420,769 10,078,906
($11,411,627) or by other govemment agencies and organizations that Fmes and Forfeitures 1411837 1,284,259 127,578
subsidized certain programs with grants and contributions ($32,499,675), Other Program Revenucs 3.572.305 3.486.727 85578
- . General Revenues:
fines and forfeitures ($1,411,837) and other program rcvenues s 59,058,879 $1.637.001 2421878
(33’572’305) Growth and Development FFces 7,432,528 8,049,376 {016,848)
| . State and 1.ocal Share Revenucs 5,191,633 5.293.799 (102.1606)
Overall, the City generated program revenues from governmental Interest on lnvestments 4,588,082 4,389,201 198,8K1
activities amounting to $48,895,444. The remaining cost of governmental Total 125,166.566 106,093,410 19,073,156
activities ($45,464,591) was paid by the City's sources of general revenue Fapenses:
(taxes and other general revenues) Legislative 965,207 919,082 46.215
8 : Adminsirative and Support  Scrvices 10,596,489 8.041,741 2,552,748
. L o o . Public Safcty 47,675,795 43,221,741 4,454,054
The City’s governmental activities include legislative, administration and Transportation 4,900,486 5.520.190 (628.704)
support services, public safety (police and fire services), transportation, Community Development 17,583,882 13,613,463 3970419
community development, culture and leisure and libraries. Culture and Leisure 7.917,645 5,013,563 2,304,082
Librarics 2,908,754 2,629,171 279,583
The following table presents the changes in net assets for governmental Inicres! on l.ang-terin Debt 1,811,687 2.542.778 (31,09
S Total Expenses 94,360,035 82,112,729 12,247,306
activities for the year ended June 30, 2002: )
£xcess (Dcficicncy) of Revenucs
over Expenses 30,806,531 23,980,681 0,825.850
Transfers Out (1,672,830) (1,463,398) (209.4.12)
Changes in Net Asscts -
Governmental Activitics S 29133700 $ 22517283 5 __66164I8-
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002
(Unaudited)
Governmental Activities N A
! Increase Governmental Act Increasc
Sourccs of Kevenues: 2002 200t (Decrease) Functionat Expenses: 2002 2001 (Decrease)
Taxes . s 59,058,879 S 51637000 S 7,421,878 Legislative $ 965297 5 919082 S 40,215
Granls and Other € onmhul.mns 32,499,675 22.420,769 10,078,906 Adrmnistration and Support Services 10,596,489 8.043.741 2.375.509
Growth al.u] I-)cvclnpmcnl Fees 7,432,528 8.049.376 (016,848) Public Sufcty (Police and Fire) 47,675,795 43,221,741 4,454,054
(ihargcs ﬂ:r hcr.vlccs 11,411,627 9.532,278 1.879.349 Transportation 4,900,480 5,529,190 (628,704)
ljlm:s and I'url'ml.tlrcs 1,411,837 1,284,259 122,578 Community Devclopment 17,583.882 13,613,463 3.970,419
State and ! ocal Shared Revenucs 5,191,633 5.293,799 (102,160) Culwre and Leisure 7,917,045 5,613,563 2,304,082
E""“"’_S‘ o1 Invesiments 4,588,082 4,389,201 198,881 Librarics 2,908,754 2629471 279,583
Other Sources 3,572,305 3486,727 85,578 Inerest 1,811,687 2,542,778 (731.001)
Total s 125,166,566 s 106093410 5 19,073,156 Total S_ 94360035 S 82112729 S 12247306
Sources of Revenues Functional Expenses
S0% I LT S AR . e o 60% - PR B, -
40% —|- e 50% l e e e -
| %
o |- 40% oo T T e o
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H Grawth & Development Fees D] Public Bafely (Police & Flre)
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B Fines & Forteitures N Commentty Development
B¢ seate & Local Shared Revenues W colures Lewure
[ % Inrereston tnvesmente il wvraries
,-‘: Other Sources D Interest
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The City’s total sources of revenue showed a major increase of
$19,073,156 as compared to last fiscal year. The major increase in
sources of revenue in fiscal year 2002 came from grants and other
contributions ($10,078,900), followed by taxes ($7,421,878). However,
growth and development fees as well as State and local shared revenues
showed decreases of ($616,848) and ($102,1606) respectively. All other

revenue sources (charges for services and special assessments, fines and 50% — - — e
forfeitures, interest on investments and other sources) slightly increased J"'E""J
from last fiscal year. 40% |- )
Taxes, which are the largest source of revenue for the City, increase by 30% —
$7,421,878 or 14.37 percent. The continued construction and sale of new
residential houses contributed to the increase in property taxes. Also, the 20% -
City’s sales tax increased by 9.41 percent or $1,706,209. Franchise tax o
was up by $2,278,097 mainly due to higher collections reported by gas 10% —|- . ’ e
and electric companies, which is a good indicator of our economy ° 3.93% .:: g
bouncing back. "
e 0% - THTITTISERE
Sources of tax revenues for the fiscal ear ended June 20, 2002 and 2001
are as follows: u Property Tax
Increase m SalesTax
Sources of Tax: 2002 2001 {Decreasce) “]] Transient Occopancy Tax

Property Tax $§ 25873406 § 23.484,507 $ 2,388,839 m Franchise Fees

Sales Tax 19,846,352 18,140,143 1,706,200 BR  Busimess License Tax

Transient Occupancy Tax 2,321,758 2,328,218 (6.460) l_J Deed Transfer Tax

Franchisc Fees 7,085,201 4,807,104 2,278,097 . Penaltics on Delinquent Taxes

Business L.icense Tax 3,194,683 2,203,188 991,495

Deed Transler Tax 555,249 583.017 (28,368)

Penalties on Delinquent Taxes 182,230 90,164 92,006

Total

8 52058870 5 51637001 § _ 742).878

Sources of Tax Revenues

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002
(Unaudited)

Business-Type Activities

The following schedule summarizes the financial condition of the City’s

business-type activities at June 30, 2002:

2001 are as follows:

Net assets o f the City’s business-type activities as of June 30, 2002 and

Increase
2002 2001 (Decrease)

Current Assets 50,419,531 $ 54,162,222 $ (3,742,691)
Restricted Asscts 4,407,399 4,690,157 (282,758)
Capital Asscts (Nct of
Accumulated Depreciation) 242,350,095 237,629,569 4,720,526
Other Asscts 1,687,529 1,205,373 482,156
Total Assets 298,864,554 297,687,321 1,177,233
Current Liabilitics 13,676,170 13,530,932 145,238
Non-Current Liabilitics 78,010,974 78,535,072 (524,098)
Total Liabilitics 91,687,144 92,066,004 (378,860)
Net Assets:

Invested in Capital Asscts (Nct of

Related Debi) 161,339,177 158,107,742 3,231,435
Restricted 2,931,639 5,841,492 (2,909,853)
Unrestricted 42,906,594 41,672,083 1,234,511
Total Net Assets s 207,177,410 § 205,621,317 S 1,556,093

The business-type activities showed a positive current ratio at June 30,
2002 - $3.69 of current assets for every $1.00 of current liabilities. Of
the total net assets, 77.87 percent was invested in capital assets, 1.42
percent represented restricted net assets, and 20.71 percent was
unrestricted which is available for future operations.

Increase
2002 2001 (Decrease)

Invested in Capital Asscts, Nct of

Related Debt $ 161,339,177 $158,107,742 $ 3,231,435
Restricicd for:

Dcbt Scrvice 2,931,639 5,841,492 (2.909,853)
Unrestricted 42,906,594 41,672,083 1,234,511
Total Net Assets $ 207,177,410 $205,621,317 § 1,556,093

The net assets of the City’s business-type activities increased 0.75 percent
from $205.6 million at June 30, 2001 to $207.18 million at June 30,
2002. The increase of $1,556,093 is primarily due to an increase in
capital assets, net of related debt, oftset by a slight decrease in operating
income.

Total expenses for business-type activities for the year ended June 30,
2002 was $94,007,787. Program revenues are primarily comprised of
charges for services in the amount of $87,678,205. Other program
revenues were generated from grants and contributions ($3,881,547).
General revenues consist of earnings on investments ($2,331,298).
Transfers from governmental activities amounted to $1,672,830.
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The City’s business-type activities include: water, wastewater, solid
waste, Performing Arts and Convention Center, Oxnard Housing
Authority, and River Ridge Golf Course.

The following table presents the changes in net assets for business-type
activities for the year ended June 30, 2002:

Increase

2002 2001 (Decrease)
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services S 87.678.205 $ 84.055.233 S X622.972
Grants and Other Contributions 3.881.547 4,777.822 (896.275)
General Revenucs:
£anungson Invesiments 2.331.298 2.18R,759 142,539
Total Revenucs 93.891,050 91,021,814 2,869,236
Expenscs:
Water 20.60:0.212 17.335.671 3.324,541
Wastewater 18.321.799 19.406,873 (1,085,074)
Solid Waste 29.770.148 30,287,398 (517,250)
Performing Arts and Convention Center 1,250,372 1.113,265 137.107
Oxnard llousing Authonty 20.103.955 17.685.407 2,418,548
Municipal Golf Course 3,901,301 4,318,642 (417,341)
Total Expenscs 94,007,787 90,147,256 3,860,531
Excess(Dcficicncy) of Program Revenues
over Expenscs (116.737) 874.558 (991.295)
Transfers In 1,672,830 1,403,398 209.432
Changes in Net Assets S 1,556,093 §_2337,956 S (781,863)

11

The following chart illustrates the comparison of the program revenues
(charges for services) against the total cost of services.

Business-Type Activities

30,000,000 -
25,000,000 -
20,000,000
18,000,000 -

10,000,000

5,000,000 —|

D Program Revenues
a Cost of Services

Management’s Discussibn and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002
(Unaudited)

l FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF CITY’S MAJOR FUNDS l

General Fund

The General Fund accounts for all financial resources traditionally
associated with government activities that are not required legally to be
accounted for in another fund.

The General Fund ended the year with a fund balance of $27,396,618,
which is an increase of $5,900,473 as compared to the prior fiscal year.
The fund balance is designated into categories for legally reserved or
restricted ($1,870,298) and unreserved, undesignated fund balance
available for future operations ($25,526,320). The General Fund showed
a strong fund balance, which is over the 15 percent contingency reserve
required by the Council.

General Fund revenues for the year ended June 30, 2002 were
$81,944,796, which includes $2,705,584 proceeds from a loan payable.
The revenues increased by $12,351,573 (15.07%). This increase is due
primarily to an increase in tax revenues ($5,731,120) related to property,
sales and franchise taxes; intergovemmental (grants) ($906,403); charges
for services ($1,830,598); interest income ($274,593); miscellaneous
revenues ($617,632); and proceeds from a loan payable related to two

property acquisitions during the year ($2,705,584) which was offset by
a decrease in licenses and permits ($223,911).

General Fund expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2002 reported an
increase of $11,671,595 from $64,100,026 in fiscal year 2001 to
$76,044,323 in fiscal year 2002. Major increases were in general
government expenditures ($2,073,549); public safety ($3,576,334),
culture and leisure ($1,519,443); and, in capital outlay ($3,557,292). The
increase in public safety expenditures reflected the City’s continued
commitments to fighting crimes and gang violence to maintain a peacefiil
and crime free community.
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Cenerat Fund Increase

Revenucs: 2002 2001 (Decrease)
‘Taxes s 47,680,588 $ 41949408 3 5731120
Licenses and Penmits 1,987,392 2.211,303 (223.911)
Intergovemmental 16,775,084 15.809.281 906.403
Charges for Scrvices 7,908,043 0,070,045 1,838.598
Fines and Forlitures 1,042,105 540,551 511,554
Interest 2,422,164 2,147,571 274,593
Miscellancous 1,422,616 805,004 017,632
Proceeds from Capilal ).casc 2,705,584 -— 2.705.584
Total $ 81,944,796 $ 69,593,223 $ 12,351,573
Revenues
S8.19%
60%
7
0% -1 / /
0% / %
30% /%
4 20.47%
20% — %
/ 9.65%
10% - (OO0 X ” oy
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V2 Tares ) Licensesand Permies
l] intesrgoveramentar L% ChargestorServices
BE  Fines and Forteitures H snserent

NN Misceltanecns Proceeds from Capital Lease

General Fund Increase
Fxpenditures: 2002 2001 (Decreasc)
General Govemment 5 9.786.593 $ 7.713.044 $ 2,073,549
Public Salety 38.942,125 35,365.791 3,570,334
‘Transportation 797.735 160.939 030,796
Communily Development 7,228,529 0,920,348 308.181
Culture and Lcisure 9,318,877 7,799.434 1.519.443
Capilal Qutlay 4,682,715 1,130,423 3,557,292
Transfers Out 5.282.749 5.020.047 262,702
TVotut S 76,044,323 S __ 64,110,026 S 11,934,297
Expenditures
60% -
$1.31%
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002
(Unaudited)

Major Special Revenue Funds
Development Fees Fund:

Growth and development fees revenue for the year was $7,432,528,
which is 5.81 percent of the City’s total revenues, as compared to 7.59
percent for prior year. The decrease of $616,848 is due to a decline in
development within the City. The total revenues (including transfers
in) for this fund during fiscal year 2002 amounted to $9,896,829, an
increase of $753,408 for prior year. Expenditures and transfers out
totaled $7,180,101, as compared to $6,074,626 for prior year. The
increase of 15.4 percent is due to operating transfers out.

HUD and CDBG Grants Fund:

Grant revenue for this fund totaled $4,437,939, as compared to
$2,609,710 for prior fiscal year. The increase of $1,828,229 is due to
an increase in grant funding in the HUD and CDBG grants program.
Expenditures for the fiscal year 2001-02 totaled $4,389,807 and
$2,451,715 for prior fiscal year. The increase of $1,938,092 is due to
capital outlay expenditures.

State and Federal Grants Fund:

During fiscal year 2002, this fund generated a total revenue of
$12,597,886, consisting of 41.20 percent of voter approved property
tax for public safety supplemental retirement; 56.63 percent of grant
revenues (related primarily to transportation and public safety grants)

and the remaining 2.17 percent representing miscellaneous revenues.
For the fiscal year, the fund showed an excess of revenues over
expenditures ($1,929,839), increasing the fund balance to $5,639,718.

Capital Outlay Fund and Community Development Commission
Fund:

The Capital Outlay Fund showed a net increase in fund balance of
$501,932 and the Community Development Commission Fund
showed a decrease of $773,351. Both funds ended thc year with
positive fund balances.

Enterprise Funds

The enterprise funds account for operations that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, wherein the
cost of goods and services to the general public are financed or recovered
primarily through user charges. The City’s enterprise operations consist
of water, wastewater collection and treatmunt, and solid waste. The
cultural and recreation activities are the River Ridge Golf Course and the
Performing Arts and Convention Center. The Oxnard Housing Authority
is also included in the City’s enterprise activities.

The enterprise operations showed an increase in revenues amounting to
$4,925,918 as compared to the prior fiscal year. Similarly, expenses
indicated an increase totaling $5,010,202 in fiscal year 2002. Total net
income for the year ended June 30, 2002 was $1,925,706, which
increased net assets to $207,547,023 (after allocating Internal Services
Funds lesses) from $205,621,317 as of the prior year end.
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The following presents the net income (loss) for the City’s enterprise
funds for the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001:

2002 2001 Change
Water $ (1,134,904) $ 234077 $ (1.368,981)
Waslewater 4,309,303 2,495,979 1,813,324
Solid Waste (802,451) (349.629) (512,822)
Performing Arts and Convention Center (229,228) 33,662 (262.890)
Oxnard Housing Authority (549.857) 600,678 £1,156.535)
Municipal Golf Course 392.843 (234,945) 627,788
Total $ 1,925,700 $ 2,785,822 $  (860.110)

Enterprise Funds

$4,000,000 -} ————— —
$3,000,000 - —~4 ________
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$1,000,000 - — — I
s0 Ty W_.ML
m
($1,000,000) -+
($2,000,000) —- .
l Wastewater L A g tL-m
Water Solid Waste Houting Anthoriy

ﬂ Net lncome (Loss)

Overall, the cnterprise funds continue to exhibit a positive financial
position at June 30, 2002, maintaining a high percentage of contingency
reserve in comparison to the City’s established rescrve requirement for
each fund.

CAPITAL ASSETS

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-
type activities as of June 30, 2002, amounts to $349,494,933 (net of
accumulated depreciation). The City’s capital assets include land, land
improvements, buildings, improvements other than buildings (systems,
machinery and equipment, and construction in progress). The City’s
investments in capital assets increased by 7.11 percent from the prior year.
The majority of this increase related to governmental activities.

Major capital assets additions during Fiscal Year 2002 included the
following:

« Acquisition of land on 300 West Third Street, 4300 Saviers Road,
and 937 West Fifth Street (old Oxnard High School)
« Acquisitions of equipment, refuse trucks, police vehicles and computer
equipment
-« Construction in progress forwater, wastewater and solid waste projects

Managensent’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002
(Unaudited)

* A variety of street and storm drain projects in new residential development,
paving, street widening and slurry sealing for existing streets continues
throughout the City

* Various improvements and additions to utilities systems still under
construction.

The following table provides a breakdown of the City’s capital assets at June
30, 2002:

Goveramental Busloess-Type
Activities Activities Talsl
001 2000 2000 2000 001

land $ 24,046,598 § 20.713,678 $ 20.344,746 $ 20,344,746 $ 44391344 $ 41,058,424
Land Improvements 1,159.280 1,159,280 - —_ 1,159,280 1,159.280
Buildings 29.176.812 29,176,812 101,662,147 99.986,685 130,838,959 129,163,497
Improvements Other Than

Buildmgs 19,013,090 19,013,090 141,763,987 139,306,869 160,777,077 158,319,959
Municipal Golf Course - hnd 5,139,568 5,139,568 5,739,568 5,139,568
Equipment and Machinery 39,001,698 35,931,446 42,110,345 40,832,723 81,112,043 76,763,165
Constructionin Progress 3362341 17,021,487 64920908 _S635812 99345219 _13.261259
Toul 147,020.889 123,025,753 376.342,60t 362.446,403 523.363,490  485,472.156

122992506 L24.016030)
£4250008 § 20760956

Accuniulated Depreaation __(39.876 051) _36,010,56))
Total Capltal Assets
FUATL N SN

(oe}

(172,863,557) U60.827.095)
;!‘9.‘&.9)3 i=£4.6“.'lsl

Additional information on the City’s capitalassets can be found in Note 7to the
Basic Financial Statements.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

The City uses a variety of tax increment, revenue and lease indebtedness to
finance various capital acquisitions. At June 30, 2002, the City’s long-term
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debt outstanding was $122,318,124. Of this total, $41,138,934 was in
govemmental activities and $81,179,190 was in business-type activities.

The following table provides a breakdown of the City’s outstanding
indebtedness as of June 30, 2002:

Gavernmeatal Business-Type
Activities Aclivities Total
2002 2001 2000 2001 2002 2001

Tax Allocation Bands  $ 14,475,000 §  15,065.000 3 — 3 — § 14,475,000 5 15,065.000
Revenue Bonds 9,080,000 10,705,000 9,963,438 79.169.212 89,041,438 89.874.212
Capital Leases 604,201 891,305 1,215,752 1,401,008 1,819.953 2.292.313
Notes aid Loans.

Payable 8,539.733 $,907.301 —_ —_ 8.539.733 5,902,301
Certificateal

Participanon __ 8440000 8,625.000 = = —2.340000 _8.,625000
Total & _dL1389%d4 i) 193, 626 $ 91,129,100 § 80.570.220 s IZE ilg ;4 H u i72§ g;ﬁ

The tax allocation bonds are paid from the increment revenues of property taxes
levied within the City’s redevelopment and rencwal areas. The Central City
Revitalization Project and other redevelopment areas currently are accounted for
by the Oxnard Community Development Commission.

Revenue bonds includeissues used to finance projects for public parking, civic
auditorium, sewer and treatment expansion, and public housing. Debt service
onthese issues is paid from the revenues of the appropriate enterprise funds and
the General Fund.

The City has, on several occasions, used single investor loans to lease-purchase
equipment. The City’s capital lease obligations at June 30, 2002, amounted to
$1,819,953.



Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002

(Unaudited)

The General Fund pays debt service on approximately 5 percent of the City’s
outstanding debt. The remainder is paid firom a variety of other funding sources
including property tax collections, residential growth fee collection, property
owner special taxes, water and sewer utility rates, golf course net income and
property tax increments. Some of the debt which is paid by the General Fund
is supporled by external sources specifically intended to support the retirement
of the debt.

The State of California mandates a limit on general obligation debt of 15 percent
of true cash value of all taxable propertly within the City boundaries. At June
30, 2002, this limit was $1,223,446,300.

BUDGETING

The City’s annual budget is the legally adopted expenditure control document
of'the City. Budgetary comparison statementsarerequired for the General Fund
and all major special revenue funds and may be found on pages 66 through 73.
These statements compare the original adopted budget, the budget as amended
throughout the fiscal year, and the actual expenditures prepared on a budgetary
basis. Budgets are prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting
consistent with GAAP except that encumbrances are included in budgeted
expenditures.

Appropriations lapse at year-end. The City Council generally reauthorizes
appropriations for continuing projects and activities. The City Council has the
legal authority to amend the budget of any fund at any time during the fiscal
year. Thebudgetary legal level of control (the level on which expenditures may
not legally exceed appropriations) is generally at the department level. For
budgeting purposes, the General Fund is composed of several departments while
all other budgeted funds (special revenue funds included) are considered a single
department. Budgeted expenditures may be reallocated within a division and
between divisions within a department without City Council approval.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The General Fund final budget differs from the original budget by 6.46
percent. The components of this increase are briefly summarized as
follows: $18,689 increase allocated for legislative maintenance and
operations; $3,409,055 increase allocated for transfers to capital outlay
project and Community Development Commission (CDC loans);
$1,093,216 increase allocated for public safety operations; $667,074
increase allocated for Community Development maintenance and
operations; $452,951 increase allocated for culture and leisure maintenance
and operations; and, $188,566 increase for library services maintenance and
operations.

During the year, General Fund revenues met budgetary estimates while
expenditures were less than budgetary estimates. Actual revenues exceeded
actual expenditures (net of transfers in and out) by $5,287,853 for fiscal
year 2001-02.

The General Fund budget to actual statements can be found on page 66
through 70 of this report.

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This management’s discussion and analysis is designed to provide the
City’s residents, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with a
general overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrated the City’s
accountability. 1f you have questions about this document, separate reports
of the City’s component units, or wish any additional financial information,
contact the Office of the Director of Finance at 300 West Third Street,
Oxnard, Califonia, 93030 at (805) 385-7462 or e-mail at
1 capul ci.oxnard,ca.us.

St. John's Reéional Medical Center
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City of Oxnard, California

Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2002

Primary Government

Governmental
Activities Total
Asscts:
Current Asscts:
Cash and Cash liquivalents $ 101,819,961 $ 39,939.893 s 141,759.854
Investmenls with Fiscal Agenls 4,494,137 — 4.494.137
Accounls and Other Reecivables 10,976,600 12,349,609 23,326,209
Intemal Balances 2,166,971 (2.166,97) —
Duc From Other Governments 7,884,982 - 7.884,982
Notes Reccivahle 554387 297.000 851.387
Total Current Asscts e 22897038 — 80419831 118316569
Non-Current Assets:
Propeny Held for Resale 7,263,384 - 7,263,384
Reslricted Asscts:
Investments with Fiscal Agents - 4.407.399 4.407.399
Capital Asscts:
Propesty. Plant, Bquipment and Infrastructuse 147,020,889 376,342,601 523,363,490
Less Accumulated Depreciation _M_ (133,992,500 _(173.868,557)
Total Capital Asscts 107,144,838 24 — 349494933
OtherAsscls __ 185108 —_1.687.529 1872637
Total Assets Faan3es __1mBedsSt _sagsasa
Llabllitles:
Current Liabilitics:
Accounts Payable 3,612,435 5,568,372 9.180.807
Other Liabilitics 15,713,519 2,970,403 18,083,922
Defierred Revenucs 13.409.867 — 13.409.807
Long-term Debt Due Within One Year 6.745.699 51312395 —11.883.004
“Total Current Liabilities e 33481520 13676170 — S53,157690
Non-Current Liabllities:
Sclf-Insuranee Claims Liabilitics 12,931,052 - 12,931,052
Compensated Absences 5.378.487 857,179 6.235.666
1.ong-Term Debt Duc In More Than Onc Ycar 38,244,035 77.153.795 115.397.830
Total Non-Current Liabliitics 56,553,574 78010974 134,564 548
Total Liabllilles — 26035094 o OL6B744 — 182922238
Net Assets:
Invested In Capital Asscts, Net of Retated Debt 56,440,149 161,339.477 212,779.326
Restricted 18,239,533 2,931,639 211710712
Unrestricted 21.725.392 42906504 114,682,180
Total Net Assets 5146455279 s _20um4i0 535632688
See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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City of Oxnard, California
Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2002
Net (Expenses) Revenues and
Program Revenues Changes in Net Assets
Charges Grantsand Fines Other
for Other and Program Governmenlal Busliness-Type
Expenses Service Contributions Foefeiturey Revenues Activilics A S Total
Primary Government:
Governmenlal Activities: .
Legislative 3 965,297 12,964 s - 5 - 5 L 3 (947.333) s s (942.333)
Ads 10.596.489 1.988.533 2,650,381 375331 598,989 (4.983,255) - (4,983.255)
Public Safely 42,675,795 2,412,682 22,653.495 666,773 662.275 (21.280,569) - (21.280.569)
Transportation 4,900,486 204.005 2,109,386 369.7132 31629 (2.185,734) - (2.185,734)
Community Developmient 12,583,882 53472804 4,432,954 - 2,083,080 (5.719.954) - (5.719,954)
Culture and Leisure 7,917,635 1337193 541,053 - 196,332 (5.843,007) - (5,843,067
Librarics 2,908.754 103,356 112406 - o (2692992} - (2.692.992)
Intere:st on Long- Tern Debt 1.811.687 . — = {1.811.687) (1.811.687)
Total Governmental Aclivities 94,360,035 11.411.627 32,499,675 1411837 3,572,308 {45,464,591) — (45.464.591)
Business-Type Actlvitles:
Water 20.660.212 17,206,345 1597676 - - - - (1.856.191) (1.856.191)
Wastewater 18,321,799 20,495,040 859,441 - - - 3,032,682 3,032,082
Solid Waste 29,770,148 28.432.860 —_ — - —_ (1.337.288) (1.332.218)
Performing Ans and Convention Center 1250372 296295 -— - - P (954.077) (954.077)
‘Oxnard Housing Authority 20,103,955 18.040.124 1,424,430 - - (639.401) (639.401)
Municipal Golf Course 3,901,301 3207.541 ~- — (693.760) {693.760)
Total Business-Type Activities 94,007.787 87678205 3881547 _ — — — (2.438,035) (2.448.035)
Total Primary Government S 187,268,849 S 99089832 S 3638222 s _I1ANE37 S__ 3572305 (45,464,591) (2,418,035) (47.912.626)
General Revenues:
Taxes:
Property Tax 25,873,400 — 25.873.400
Sales Tax 19.846.352 - 19.846.352
Transienl Occupancy Tax 2.321.758 - 2,321,758
Franchisc Tax 7.085,201 - 7.085.201
Decd transfor Tax 555,249 — 555,249
BusinessLicensc Tax 3.194.683 — 3.194,683
Penaltics on Delinquent Taxes 182,230 - 182,230
Growth & Devclopment Fees 7.432,528 - 7,432,528
State & L.ocat Shared Revenues 5.191,633 5.191,633
Famings on Investments 4,588,082 2,331.298 6.919.380
Transfers (1.672.830) 1.672.830 —
Total General Revenucs and Transfers 74.598.292 4,004.128 78.602.420
Changes in Ncl Asscis 29.133.701 1,556,093 30.689.794
Net Assets -Suly 1.2001 117,321,573 205.621.317 322,942,890

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

Net Asscts - June 30, 2002
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S 146455274

s 207,127410__

S 353632684__



City of Oxnard, California

Governmental Funds

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2002
Conununily
Development 1141 and Statcand Pebt Capital Bevelopment Non-Major
General Fees COBG Grants Federal Serviee Outlay Conimission Goveramental
Fund Fund Fund Grants Fuml Fum) VFund Fuml Funds Total
Asscts:
Cash and Cash Fquivalems S 30.283.108 $  29.805,340 s S 0312,77) S 3 3 7,692,466 5 7.473,390 S 8,393,458 1 89,900,004
Investments with Fiscat Agems .- 14.847 1.333.899 2,609,362 450,029 . 4,494,137
Accounis and Other Recervables 2,158,147 174,952 3.290.510 3,007,019 1,860,945 387,834 4.7137 10,890.150
Duc from Other Funds 3,109,084 — - - 3.109.084
Duc from Other Governments 4,94.1.379 1.094.213 1.730.673 - - 1s.n? 7.884.982
Notes Receivables - - - - — 554,387 - 554,387
Properiics Neld for Resale -- . - - B 7.263.384 - 7.203.384
Advances 10 Other 1'unds 173,035 - — — - 173.035
Other Asscts - 185.108 - - - 185.108
Total Assets 2__406684)3 5 2908029 S 4604684 & 11050465 S 1313902 S _LAR8J. S J6JISOMS s SIS 124518471
Llabilitics and Fund Balance:
Accounts Payable 13 1.258.086 S 228.292 $ 491,932 s 439.527 $ 13 223.385 S 137,340 3 283.571 5 3.002.139
Other Liabiliies 9.645.001 3,738.085 165.903 55.830 - 720.103 1.001,420 2713067 15.598.369
Duc 10 Other Funds - - 513,577 971,784 — 1.485.301
Deferred Revenues 2.308.0-18 128,224 1501840 4.401,813 - 2,741,930 - — 13.409.8067
Total Liabllitles 13,271,795 4,294,601 4,227,681 5,410,747 — 3.485.424 2,110,550 554938  33.555.736
Fund Balanccs:
Reserved
Gencral Fund 1,870,298 - - - - - - - 1,870,298
Special Revenue Funds — 235362 - 2,389,049 - - 2,625.011
Debi Service Funds - .- - - 1.333.902 — — - 1,333,902
Capital Project Funds — - - - - _9.928,680
Tolal Reserved 1.870,298 235,362 — 2,389,649 1,333,902 — — 15,757,897
Unreserved T -
General Fund 25,526.320 — - - — - - 25,520.320
Speaial Revenue Funds — 25,450,335 377,003 1,250,069 -— - — 7,958,974 37,542,781
Capital Project Funds —_ - - - 8,541,349 4,095.788 - 12,639,137
Total Unreserved 25526320 25450335 377,003 3.250,069 — 8543349 4095788 7958974 75,201,838
Toial Fund Batance 27,396.618 5 377,003 5,639,718 1,333,902 8,543,349 14,024,474 7,958,974 90,959,735
Totat Llabilitics and Fund Balances S 40668413, S _ 0080298, 5 __ 4604683, S_ 11050465 S 1333902 S 12228773, & 1GIIS0W. S 8s13913 S 124S1S470

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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City of Oxnard, California

Reconciliation of Fund Balarice for the Governmental Funds to the Government Wide Statemens of Net Assets for Governmental Activities
June 30, 2002

Amounts reporied for Goveramental Activities in the Statement of Net Assets are different from those veported for the Governmental Funds in the Balance Sheet. The
Jollowing provides a reconciliation of those differences:

Total Long-Term internal Toral
Governmental Service Statement
Funds Funds 2)  _Eliminations of Net Assets
Assels:
Cash and Cash Equivalenis 3 89,900.604 s S 11.859.357 $ - S 101.819.961
Invesiment with Fiscal Agents 4,494,137 . - 4.494.137
Accounts and Other Receivables 10,890,150 %0.450 - 10.976.600
Due From Other Funds/Iniemal Balances 3.109.084 309.013 (1.312.320) 2,166.97
Due From Other Govemmenis 7.884.982 - - 7,884,982
Notes Receivables 554.387 - - 554.387
Propertics licld for Resale 7.203.384 - 7.203.384
Advances to Other Funds 173.035 - - (173,035) -
Other Assets 185,108 - 185.108
Capital Assets. Net 106422, 722,695 838
Total Assels 512451547 S 106,422,143 5 13038015 5 61) .
Liabllitles:
Accounts Payable s 3.062.139 $ - s 550.296 s - 5 3.012,435
Other Liabilitics 15.59:8.369 115.150 - — 15.713.519
Bue 10 Other Funds 1.5185.308 - i 11.485.301) -
Deferred Revenues 13.409.80:7 - 13.409.807
Self-Insurance Claims Liabilitics - 12,931,052 - 12,931.052
Compensated Absences o 8721910 501.377 — 9,229,287
Long-Term Liabilities - 41,138,934 -
Total Liabilitics 23555736 49.9%81.994 13082725 11485301}
Total Fund Balance/Net Asscts 90.959.735 50.440.149 (944.010) — 140.355.274
Total Liadllllics and Fund llalance/Net Assets s 124515471 S 106422143 S (3038118 S __(1485361) S 242,490.368

(1) Capital assets use:d 1n govemmiental activities are not current financial resources and therefore are not reported in the Balance Sheet.

100.422.143
long-term liabilitics ace not due and payable tn the current period and therefore arc noireporied in the Balance Sheet (41138.934)
Compensaled abscnces do not require the use of current financial resources. There fore. compensated :ibscnces payable are not reported as
a liability in the Balance Sheet.
(8.727,910)
Interest on long-termn obligations that was accrued bul unpaid at fiscal year end 1s not reported in the Balunce Sheet. 115050
— Q15150

Total S _..56440.149

(2)  Iniemal Service Fundsare used by management (o charge the costs of certain activitics, such as insurance, informauon services, customer

billings. equi i and facilitics mai to individual funds. The asscts and Yabilities of the Internal Service Fundsare
included in governmental activities ia the Statement of Net Asscts.

(1.314,223)

This adjustment for internal scrvice funds “closcs™ those funds by charging addiional amounts 10 particip.aning busincss-1ype activitics 10
completcly cover the internal service funds® costs for the year, 369.013

Total 5 944.610) _
See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

21



City of Oxnard, California

Governmental Funds

Combining S of R s Exy es and Changes in Fund Balance
Year Ended June 30, 2002
Community
Development HubDand State and Dbt Capital Development Non-Major
General Fees CHBGGrants Federal Grants Service Outlay Commission Governmental
Fund Funu Fund Fund Fund Fuml Fund Funds Tolals
Revenucs
Taxes $ 47,080,588 5 — $ - $ 5.189,718 £ 1,629,857 $ - S 4,558,716 s - $ 59,058.879
Licenses and Pemiits 1,987,392 - - - - - 1,987,392
Intergovemmental 16,775.084 - 4.253.749 7,134,155 2,548,512 - 6,979,208 37,691,308
Growth and Development tees — 7.432,528 - -- -- - 7,432,528
Charges for Scrvices 7,908,043 - - - -- 7,908,043
Fines and Forfcitures 1,042,105 . - - - 369,732 1,411,837
Interest 2,422,104 1,131,004 - 197107 240,042 122,999 263,087 210,389 4,588.082
Special Asscssments -— - - - -— 1,515,592 1,515,592
Misccltancous 1,422,636 67,720 184,190 70,500 - 753.359 741,900 325,588 3.572.305
Total Revenucs 79.239.212 $.631.348 4.437.939 12,597,886 1.870.499 3,424,870 5,564,303 9.400,509 125.166.566
Expenditures
Current:
General Government 9,786,.593 - . - -— ~ 9,786,593
Public Safcty 38,942,125 5,618,687 - - - - 44,560,812
Transportalion 797,735 - - 181,136 — - -— 3,764,884 4,743,755
Community Development 7,228,529 519,408 1,522,090 179,205 - — 5.938.081 2,025,590 17.413,009
Culture and Leisure 9,318,877 - 502,154 541,083 - - - - 10.362,084
Capital Outlay 4,087,745 1,896,450 2,365,403 4,147,966 5,499,588 399,573 2,797,913 23,794,608
Debt Service:
Principal -~ E — 2,412335 - - - 2,412,335
Intercst = - - - 1,088,947 = . o 1,988,947
Total Expenditurcs 70,761,574 4.415,918 4.389.807 10,668,047 4,401,282 5,499,588 6,337,654 8,588,393 115,062,263
Excess (Dcficicicy) of Revenues Over
Expenditurcs 8,477,038 4,215,430 48,132 1,929,839 (2,530,783) (2,074,718) (773.351) 812,116 10,104,303
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers In — 1.265,481 -~ - 2,531,971 2,576,650 - - 6,374,102
Transfers Out {5,282,749) (2,764,183) — — - —_ — — (8,046,932)
Proceeds from Loan Payable 2,705.584 — — — — — = - 2,705,584
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (2.577,165) (1.498,702) - — 2.531.971 2,576,650 — — 1,032,754
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other
Financing Sources Over E:xpendilures and
Other Uses 5,900,473 2,716,728 48.132 1,929,839 1,188 501,932 (773.351) 812,116 11,137,057
Fund Balance, July 1 21,496.145 22,968,969 328.871 3.709.879 1,332,714 8,041,417 14,797,825 7,146.858 79,822,678
Fund Balance, Junc 30 $ 27,396,618  § 25685697 8 _ 377,003 S _S5639,718 $ 1,333,902 $38,543,349 S 14,024,474 s 17,958974 § 90,959,735
See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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City of Oxnard, California

Reconciliation of the Gover tal Funds Si

of R

1o the Governmeut-Wide Statement of Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2002

y Expenditures.and Changes in Fund Balance

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities are different from thase reported for the Governmental Funds in the Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fiuned Balance due to the following:

Total Net Changes in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Govermnmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of
Activities, the costs of capital assets of govemmental funds are capitalized and allocated over
their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.

Change in compensated absences accrual. As compensated absencesare considcred long-term
liabilities, the changes in the liability do not affect the governmental fund financial statements.

Change in interest accrual on long-term obligations.

Allocation of Intemal Service Funds net loss during Fiscal Year 2002 to governmental
activities.

Repayment of long-term obligations is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statcment of net assets.

Proceeds from loan payable is reported as revenue in the govemmental funds, but increases
long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets.

Capital outlay expenditures were capitalized and added to the capital assets of governmental
funds.

Other changes, net

Changes in Net Assets of Governmental Activities

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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$ 11,137,057

(3,865,490)

(808,940)

177,260
(1,263,673)
2,412,335
(2,705,584)

23,794,668

256,068

S 29133701
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City of Oxnard, California

Proprietary Funds
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2002
Enterarise Funds
Performing Governmental
Arts and Oxnard Municipal Aclivities -
Solid Convention 1lousing Golf Internal Service
Water Wastewaler Waste Center Aulliority Coursc Total Funds
Assets:
Currenl Assets:
Cash and Cash Lquivalcnts $ 5,745,004 § 20,525,120 $ 2,810,682 s 50,000 $ 3.094,332 $ 1,714,749 $ 39,939,893 $ 11,859,357
Accounts and Other Receivables 2,878,774 5,047,826 3,120,732 4,201 1,008,549 289,467 12,349,609 86,450
Duc From Other [Funds ~- 170.677 — - - - 170,677 -—
Notes Reccivable -- 297.000 — - — — 297,000 -
Restricted Asscts:
Investmients with Fiscal Agents 969,228 —- 2,130,685 — 1,307,486 4,407,399 -
Capital Assets:
Property, Plant and [iquipment 94,055,745 181,567,497 40,306,407 44,443 40,822,089 13,546,420 376,342,601 7,548,183
lLess Accumulated Depreciation (32,349.277) (62,981.859) (15,420,934) (1,421) (20,928.446) (2,304,569} (133,992,506) (6.825,488)
Tolal Capital Asscls - Net 61,706,468 118,579,638 30,885,473 43.022 19,893,643 11,241,851 242,350,095 722,695
Unamortized [3ond Issuance Costs, Net - 32,591 549,470 - - 305.403 1,687,529 -~
Total Assets 71,299,474 151,452,857 39,497,048 97,283 23,996,524 14,859.016 301,202,202

Liabilities:
Current Liabilitles:

12,668,502

Accounts Payable 1,971,205 969,999 1,901,681 243,955 433,193 48,339 5,568,372 550,296
Other Liabilitics 371.863 624,765 1,225,135 - 689,980 58,660 2,970,403 -
Duc 1o Other Funds - - - e — 1,795,000 1,795.000 -—
Long-Term Debt Due Within One Year 404,699 2,324.462 1.455.726 27.578 329,930 595,000 5.137,395 o=
Tolal Current Liabilitics 2,747,707 3,919,226 4.582,542 271,533 1453.103 2496999 15,471,170 550.296
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Advances from Other Funds - - — - - 173,035 173,035 —
Scif-Insurance Claims Liabilitics —- — —_ — — — — 12,931,052
Compcnsated Abscnces Payabic 138,358 230,901 212,330 21,316 254,274 — 857,179 501,377
Long-Term Debt Duc in Morc than Onc Year 8.029.834 38,041,922 19,788,832 — 10,693,207 77,153,795 —
Total Noncurrent Liabilitics 8,168,192 38.872,823 20,001,162 21,316 254.274 10,693,207 78,184,009 13,432,429
Total Llabllitics 10,915,959 42,792,049 24,583,704 292,849 1,702,377 13,363,241 93,655,179 13,982,725
Net Assets:
Invested in Capital Asscts, Net of Related Debt 53.616,572 77,912,716 9,916,246 — 19,893,643 — 161,339,177 722,695
Restricted for Repayment of Debt 809.103 1,342,653 —_ - 779,883 2,931,639 _—
Unrestricied 5,951,840 30,748,092 3,654,445 (195.566) 2,395,504 715,892 43.276,207 (2.036.918)
Total Net Asscts S 60383515 S 108,660,808 3 14913344 $__(198:566) 5 22,289,147 s_1,495775 207,547,023 S (1,314,223)
Internal Service Funds Allocation of Net Loss (369,613)
Net Assets -Junc 30, 2002 $ 207,177,410
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City of Oxnard, California
Proprietary Funds
Statement o f Revenues, Expenses aud Changes in Fund Net Assets
Year Ended June 30, 2002
Enterprisc Funds
Performiing Governmental
Arls Oxnard Municipal Activities -
Solid and Convention Housing Goll Internal
Water Wastewater Waste Center Authority Course Totals Service Funds
Opcrating Revenues:
Charges f'or Services $ 17,206,345 § 20,495,040  § 28,432,860 § 296.295 $ 18,040.124 $ 3,207,541 $  87,678.205 § 17,234,728
Opcerating Expenses:
Salarics and Wagces 2,506,847 . 4,351,803 4,639,425 737,930 2,612,523 29,276 14,877,804 3,976.858
Conlractual Scrvices 1,341,857 1,375,352 9,662,840 198,355 160,209 2,815,643 15.560.256 754,530
Opcerating Supplics 10,984,436 1,361,517 811,633 60 13,285,678 - 20,443,324 2,038,086
Utilities 1,115,377 2,914,277 6,148,956 134,767 567.785 1,225 10,882,387 1,112,599
Dcpreciation and Amortization 1,679.478 3,729,002 1,792,213 009 1,987,088 67.568 9,255,958 274,379
General and Administrative 2,032,852 1,293,384 2,502,279 142,242 1,443,546 79.082 7,493,385 1,562,960
Repairs and Maintenance 160,287 151,788 2,475,865 36,409 41,126 — 2,865,475 968,818
Claims Expcnses - - - - - _— 8,179,784
Total Operating Fxpenses 19,821,134 15,177,123 28,033.211 1,250,372 20,103,955 2,992,794 87,378,589 18.868,014
Operating Income (L.oss) (2.614,789) 5,317,917 399.649 (954,077) {2,063831) 214,747 768,789 (1.633,2806)
Nonopcrating Revenues (Expenses):
Inicrest Income 649,749 1.171.437 282,109 - 89,544 138,459 2,331,298
intcrest Expense (767,540) (3,039.492) (1.544,.209) - (908,344) (6,259.585) -
Totat Nonopcrating Revenucs (Expenscs) (112,791) (1,868,055) (1:262.100) - 89,544 {769,885) (3.928,287) —
Income (toss) Before Contributions and
Transfers {2,732,580) 3,449,862 (862,451) {954,077) {1.974,287) (555.138) (3.628,287) (1,633,286)
Capital Contributions 1,597,676 859,441 —_ - 1,424,430 — 3,881,547 —
Transfers In — - — 724,849 - 947,981 1,672,830 .
Change in Net Asscts (1,134,904) 4,309,303 (862.451) (229.228) (549,857) 392,843 1,925,706 (1,033,280)
Total Net Assets - July § 61.518,419 104,351,505 15,775.795 33.662 22,839,004 1,103,132 206,069,273 319,063
Total Net Assets - June 30 S 60383515 S J08660,808 _§ !ggglégg $ (195,566) § 22280147 s 1.495775 207,547,023 $  (L314223)
Change in Net Assets; 1,925,706
Adjustment to Allocate Intcral Service
Funds Ncl Loss to Enlerprisc Funds (369,613)
S5 L.556093
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City of Oxnard, California

Proprietary Funds
Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2002

Enlerprise Funds

Performing Governmenlal
Arts and Oxnard Municipal Aclivilies-
Solid Convention Rousing Golf Internal
Waler Wasiewater Waste Center Authority Course Tolal Service Funds
Cash Flows From Opcrating Activitics:
Cash Reccived From Cuslomers 5 17,136,909 S 21.571,579 $ 28,704,707 $ 297,354 $ 17.597.435 $ 3.328,930 S 88.636,920 $ 17234728
Cash Paid tn Supplicrs (15.338.022) (7,564.725) (20.022.280) (299,037) (16.293,303) (2.814,030) (62,932,603) (8,103,319)
Cash Paid to Employces (2,459.070) (4,312,008) (4,024.920) (689,030 (2.811,050) (29.270) (14,925,360) -
Cash Paid 1o Claimants .- - - — — — (8.709,234)
Net Cash Provided by tUsed In) Operating Aclivities (660.783) 9,694,846 3,457.495 (690,719) (1,500,918) 485,030 10,778,951 422,175
Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing
Aeti
Transfers In 724,849 — 2,717,981 3,442,830 —
Net Cash P_rovidcd by Noncapntal B _ 724,849 . 2,717,081 3.442.830 .
Frmancing Activitics
Cash Flows From Capital and Related
Financing Aclivitics:
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Asscts (2.787.587) (4.872.29.3) (2,603,831) (42,015} (727,324) (081,440) (11.715.096) (200,408)
Principal Payments on Long-Term Debt (5,681,884) (1.925.000) (1,012.756) - - (565,000) (9.184,040) -
Interest Payments on Long-1'erm Deht (4,482,543) (2.677.159) 1.570,081) - — (708.995) (9,438,778) -
Procceds from Issuance of Long-Term Debt 12,410.000 - - — -— 12,410,000 -
Net Cash Used in Capital and Relaicd (542.014) (9.474,452) (5.186,608) (42.615) (727.324) (1,955441) (17.928.514) (200,408)
Financing Activitics
Cash Flows From Investing Activilics:
Proceeds From Salc of Investmenl Sccurilics 5,058,353 4,640,901 2,129,898 —_ 1,208.558 13.097.770 —
Purchasc of Invesiment Sceuritics (4.774,699) (4.640,004) (2,128.988) — (1,270,363) (12.814,654) —
Intcrest on Imvestiments 649,749 1,171,437 282,109 - 89,544 138,459 2,331.298 —
Ncl Cash Provided By Imvcsting Acliviucs 933,403 1,171,794 283,019 - 89.544 130,654 2,014,414 --
Net Increasc (Decreasce) in Cash and Cash
ivalents (269.394) 1,392,188 (1.440.154) (8,485) (2,144,0098) 1,384,224 (1.092,319) 221,707
Cash and Cash Equivalents. July 1 6.014.398 25,132,938 4,256.836 58,485 5,239,030 330,525 41,032,212 11,637,650
Cash and Cash Equivalents. Junc 30 $.__5.745004 3 26,525,126 $_2310682 S S0.000 5 3094332  § 0,714,749 = § 39939893 5 11853357
Continued -
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City of Oxnard, California
Proprietary Iunds
Statement of Cash Flows (Coutinued)
Year Ended June 30, 2002
Enterprisc Funds
Performing Governmental
Arls and OGxnard Municipal Adtivilies-
Solid Convenlion Housing Golf Inicenal
Water Wastewater Waste Cenler Authority Coursc Total Service Funds
Cash Flows From Opcrating Activitics:
Reconciliation of Opcrating Income (loss) to Net Cash
Provided by (uscd in) Opcrating Activilics:
Operaling Incomc (loss) 3 (2.014,789) § 5317,917 s 399,049 §  (U54.077) $ (2,063.831) S 214,747 s 299,010 $  (1.633.280)
Adjustments lo Reconcile Opcerating Income (loss) to
Net Cash Provided by Opcrating Activities:
Depreciation #nd Amortization 1,679,478 3,729.002 1.792.213 609 1,947,088 67,568 9.255,958 274310
Writc-Down of Capital Asscts — - 1,700,447 - _ 1,700,447
Changes in Asscts and Liabilities:
Deereasc (Increase) in Accounts Receivable (69,436) 1,373,539 271,847 1,059 {442.689) 121,395 1,255,715 (85,300)
Decreasc (Increasc) in Noles Reccivable - (297.000) - — (297.000)
Increasc (Decrcase) in Accounts Payable 398,450 119,696 (1,222,720) 60,0672 {300.341) 30,480 (973.763) (155,490)
Increasc (Ducreasc) in Other Liabilitics (102.203) (588.103) 501,566 201018 (428.618) 50,834 (365,560) 1,940,154
Increase (Decrease) in Compensated Absences 47,177 39,795 14,499 (198,527) — (96.450) -
Increase in Scl-Insurance Claims |iabilities . -— . 81,724
Net Cash Provided by (used in) OperalingAclivilics $__ (660,783) $_9.694846 s 3,457,495 S __{690.719)  $ {1,506,918) 5 485,030 $ 10,778,951 5 422,178
1Schedute of N hTr
Capital Assels Contributions $ 1,597,676 $._85944) $ 5 — $ 1,424,430 5§ — $ 3,881,547 s —
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City of Oxnard, California

Fiduciary Funds
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
June 30, 2002

Improvement
Artworks Districts
Fund Fund Total

Asscts:

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 46,443 $ 9,778,576 $ 9,825,019

Investments with Fiscal Agents _ 5,039,404 5,039,404
Total Assets 46,443 14,817,980 14,864,423
Liabilities and Fund Balances:
Liabilities - Other

Trust and Agency Payables 46,443 14,817,980 14,864,423
Total Liabilities 46,443 14,817,980 14,864,423
Net Assets $ — $§ — $§ —

See accompanying notes to basic financial stalements.
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City of Oxnard, California

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. Reporting Entity

The City of Oxnard, Califomia (City) was incorporated as a general law city on June 30, 1903, and operates under the council-manager form of
government. The City is governed by a four-member council clected at large for four-year altemating terms and by a Mayor who is directly elected
for a two-year term. Other clected positions include the City Clerk and City Treasurer. The accompanying basic financial statements present the
financial position and results of operations of the City (the primary government) and its component units. The component units discussed below
are included in the City’s reporting entity because of the significance of their operational and financial relationships with the City. Although these
entities are legally separate, the City’s elected officials have a continuing financial responsibility and accountability for fiscal matiers of these other
entities. Financial accountability includes the appointment of governing bodies, budget authority, approval of tax levies and responsibility for
funding deficits.

Blended Componém Units
City of Oxnard Community Development Commission

The Redevelopment Agency of the City of Oxnard (RDA) was established pursuant to the California Community Redevelopment Law, codified
in Part | of Division 24 of the California Health and Safety Code. The RDA was activated in 1960 by Ordinance No. 2365 of the City Council.
On January 24, 1995, the RDA becamethe Community Development Commission (CDC). The CDC has continued the RDA’s principal activities
such as business retention, employment creation, the acquisition of real property for the purpose of removing or preventing blight, for construction
or improvements and loaning money for rehabilitation and restoration of properties. The City Council of the City of Oxnard (City Council) acts
as the Board of Directors of the CDC. The City of Oxnard is financially accountable for the operations of the CDC through budgetary authority
and fiscal management and the City is able to significantly influence operations of the CDC. The funds of CDC have been included in the City’s
governmental activities in the accompanying government-wide financial statements. The CDC prepares a separate Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR) and a copy can be obtained from the City’s Financial Services Program.
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Notes to the Basic Finaucial Statements
June 30, 2002

Housing Authority of the City of Oxnard

The Housing Authority of the City of Oxnard (the Authority) was established in April 1945 when City Council adopted an ordinance which was
added to the City's Municipal Code. The Authority is a public entity which was organized under the laws of the State of California’s Health and
Safety Code for the purpose of providing safe, decent and sanitary housing for qualified economically disadvantaged and elderly individuals in
areas where a shortage of such housing exists. Toaccomplish this purpose, the Authority has entered into Annual Contributions Contracts with
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) to operate assisted housing programs (such as Local Housing Authority Owned
Housing, Section 8 and Modemization). City Council serves as the governing board and is therefore responsible for the fiscal and administrative
activities of the Authority. The Authority’s operations havebeen included in the City’s business-type activities in the accompanying government-
wide financial statements. The Authority prepares separate financial statements and a copy can be obtained from the Authority’s Financial Services
Division.

Basic Financial Statements

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34 (GASB 34), the City’s basic financial statements consist of the
following:

+ Govermmment-wide financial statements;
* Fund financial statements; and
= Notes to the basic financial statements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The City’s Government-Wide Financial Statements include a Statement of Net Assets and a Statement of Activities. These statements present

summaries of governmental and business-type activities for the City, accompanied by a total column. Fiduciary activities of the City are not
included in these statements.

All of the City’s basic services are considered to be governmental activities, including general government, public safety, transportation,
community development, culture and leisure, and library. Property tax, sales tax, transient occupancy tax, franchise tax, business license tax, and
development fees financially support most of these activities.
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City of Oxnard, California

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

The City’s enterprise operations are classificd as business-type activities. These operations consist of water, wastewater collection and treatment,
solid waste, and housing. The cultural and recreation activities are the River Ridge Golf Course and the Performing Arts and Convention Center.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which expenses (direct and indirect) of a given function or segment are offset by program
revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identi fiable with a specific function or segment. Indirect expenses are allocated based on the
City’s cost allocation plan. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions, including special assessments, that are restricted
to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program
revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

These statements are presented on an “economic resources” measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all the City’s
assets and liabilities, including capital assets and long-term liabilities, are included in the accompanying Statement of Net Assets. The Statement
of Activities presents changes in net assets. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenuesare recognized in the period in which they are earned,
while expenses arc recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred. The types of transactions reported as program revenues for the City
are reported in four categories: (1) charges for services; (2) grants and other contributions; (3) fines, penalties and forfeitures; and, (4) other
program revenues.

Certain eliminations have been made as prescribed by GASB 34 in regards to interfund activities, payables and receivables. All internal balances
in the Statement of Net Assets have been eliminated, with the exception of those representing balances between the governmental activities and
the business-type activities, which are presented as internal balances. In the Statement of Activities, intemal service fund transactions have been
eliminated; however, those transactions between governmental and business-type activities have not been eliminated.

In accordance with GASB 34, a reconciliation of the difference between the fund financial statements and the government-wide financial
statements is provided.

The City applies all applicable Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements (including all NCGA Statements and
Interpretations currently in effect), as well as the following pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, to the business type activities,
unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements: Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and
Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins (ARB) of the Committee on Accounting
Procedure. The City applies all applicable FASB Statementsand Interpretations issued after November 30, 1989, except those that conflict with
orcontradict GASB pronouncements.
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The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of Which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each
fund arc accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures
or expenses, as appropriate. Governmental resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which
they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.

Fund Financial Statements
Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Governmental Fund Financial Statements include a Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
for the major governmental funds and non-major governmental funds aggregated. In accordance with GASB 34 and based on the direction
of management and the sole purpose for which a fund is established, the following funds have been determined by management to be the City’s
major governmental funds:

% General Fund: This fund is always a major and isused to account for all financial resources traditionally associated with government
activities which are not required legally to be accounted for in another fund.

< Development Fees Fund: This fund includes fees that the City collects on new development to provide resources for special projects such
as parks, storm drainage facilities, traffic improvements, utility undergrounding and community developments.

< HUD and CDBG Grants Fund: This fund is used to account for resources to develop viable urban communities, providing decent
housing and expanding economic opportunities.

< State and Federal Grants Fund: This fund accounts for the receipts and expenditures of monies received from State and Federal grants-
in-aid.

< Debt Service Fund: This fund accounts for the accumulation of resources and payments of principal and interest of the City’s general
long-term debt.

< Capital Outlay Fund: This fund accounts for financing and construction of general government capital projects.
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City of Oxnard, California

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

< Community Development Commission Fund: This fund accounts for expenditures incurred on the redevelopment projects, financed
primarily from tax increments.

Govemmental funds are accounted for using a “current financial resources” measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Accordingly, only current asscts and current liabilities are included on the Balance Sheet. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances present increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in
nct current assets. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they become
both mecasurable and available to finance cxpenditures of the current period. The City considers revenues available if they are collected within
60 days afier year-end. The primary revenue sources, whichhavebecn treated as susceptible to accrual by the City are property tax, sales tax,
intergovernmental revenues and other taxes. Grants and similar items are rccognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements have
been met. Expenditures are recorded in the accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred, except for unmatured interest on
long-term debt, which is recognized when duc.

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements include a Statement of Net Assets, Statcment of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets,
and a Statement of Cash Flows for each major fund and in the aggregate for the enterprise funds. A column representing intemal Service Funds
in total is also presented in these statements.

The proprietary funds are used to account for operations that are {financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises
wherein the cost of goods and services to the general public are financed or recovered primarily through user charges. In accordance with
GASB 34 and based on the direction of management and the sole purpose for which a fund is established, the following enterprise funds have
been determined by management to be the City’s major funds:

< Water Fund: This fund is used to account for all activities of the City's water distribution and treatment system. Revenucs are derived
mainly from metered water services, connection fees, and installation charges.

< Wastewater Fund: This fund is used to account for all sewer activities related to conveyance and treatment services. Revenues are
derived mainly from sewer service charges, connection fees, and treatment plant charges.

« Solid Waste Fund: This fund is used to account for the activities related to collection and disposal of refuse throughout the City.
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% Performing Arts and Convention Center Fund: This fund is used to account {or the operations and maintenance of the City’s
Performing Arts and Convention Center.

+ Oxnard Housing Authority: This fund is used to account for the receipts and disbursements of funds received from the U.S. Department
of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) to provide rental assistance programs for low income residents and senior citizens under
Section 8 of the Federal Housing Act of 1937, as amended.

“ Municipal Golf Course Fund: This fund is used to account for the operation and maintenance of the City’s River Ridge Golf Course.

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the “economic resources™ measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all
assets and liabilities (whether current or non-current) are included withinthe Statement of Net Assets. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Fund Net Assets presents increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net assets. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned, while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability
is incurred.

Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those revenues that are generated from the primary operations of the fund. All other revenues
arcreported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses are those expenses that are essential to the primary operations of the fund. All
other expenses are reported as non-operating expenses.

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements include a Statement of Net Assets. The City’s fiduciary funds consist of agency funds, which are
custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operations. The agency funds are accounted for using
the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The City’s fiduciary funds are as follows:

< Artworks Fund: This fund is used to report resources held by the City in a custodialcapacity (assets equal liabilities). This fund involves
the receipt and remittance of fiduciary resources to private organizations or other agencies.

< Improvement Districts Fund: This fund is used to account for various limitcd obligation improvement bonds issued by the City, wherein
bond proceeds are used to finance land acquisition and public improvements of the various assessment districts within the City.
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

Neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the City or any of its political subdivisions is pledged to the payment of the bonds. Property
owners within the assessment district are assessed through the County tax bills and the money collected is used to pay off the annual debt
service requircments.

B. Budget

The City’s annual budget is the legally adopted expenditure control document of the City. Budgets are prepared on the modified accrual basis
of accounting consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), except that encumbrances are
included in budgeted expenditures.

Appropriations lapse at year-end. The City Council generally reauthorizes appropriations for continuing projects and activities. The City Council
has the legal authority to amend the budget of any fund at any time during the fiscal year. The budgetary legal level of control (the level on which
expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) is generally at the department level. For budgeting purposes, the General Fund is composed
of several departments while all other budgeted funds (special revenue funds included) are considered a single department. Budgeted expenditures
may be reallocated within a division and between divisions within a department without City Council approval. During fiscal year 2002,
supplementary budget appropriations of approximately $23,653,606 were made.

Budgetary comparison statements are required to be presented for the General Fund and all major special revenue funds and are presented as
required supplementary information found on pages 66 through 73. These statementscompare the original adopted budget, the budget as amended
throughout the fiscal year, and the actual expenditures prepared on a budgetary basis.

C. Cash and Investments
Investment Policy

The City’s investment policy is intended to provide guidelines for the prudent investment of surplus funds of the City, and to outline the policies
for maximizing the efficiency of the City’s cash management system. It is the policy of the City to invest public funds in a manner which will
provide high investment return with the maximum security while meeting the daily cash {low demands ofthe City and conforming to all state and
local statutes governing the investment of public funds.

The investment policy applies to the City’s pooled investment fund which encompasses all monies under the directoversight of the City Treasurer.
These include the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Capital Project Funds, Enterprise Funds, Internal Service Funds and Fiduciary Funds.
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Investments shall be made with judgement and care—-under circumstances then prevailing—which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence
exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as well
as the probableincome to be derived.

Investments

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and External Investment Pools,” the
City’s investments are stated at fair value.

The City Treasurer’s investment pool is comprised of pooled deposits and investments and the State of California Local Agency Investment Fund
(LAIF) investments. The Treasurer’s pooled investments are carried at fair value. The fair value is determined utilizing SunGard Securities
Systems, the vendor providing investment reporting capability for the City Treasurer’s Office, which provides pricing data firom multiple industry
sources. The fair value of LAIF is determined by allocating the City’s share of LAIF’s fair value as reported by LAIF.

The LAIF is part of the Pooled Money Investment Account (PMIA). The PMIA began in 1953 and has oversight provided by the Pooled Money
Investment Board (PMIB) and an in-house Investment Committee. The PMIB members are the State Treasurer, Director of Finance, and State
Controller.

The LAIF has oversight by the Local Agency Investment Advisory Board. The board consists of five members as designated by statute. The
Chairman is the State Treasurer or his designated representative. Two members qualified by training and experience in the field of investment
or finance, and two members who are Treasurers, finance or fiscal officers, or business managers employed by any County, City or local district,
or municipal corporation of this state, are appointed by the State Treasurer. LAIF is required to invest in accordance with state statute.

Interest Income
Interest income eamed on pooled cash and investments is allocated monthly to the General Fund and those other funds for which such allocation

is a legal contractual requirement based on the month-end cash balances. Interestincome from cash and investments with fiscal agents is credited
directly to the related fund. Changes in the fair value of investments are recognized in interest income at the end of each year.
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

Income from nonpooled investments is recorded based on the specific investments held by the trustee of the fund. The interest income is recorded
in the fund that earned the interest.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For reporting purposes, cash and cash equivalents include cash in bank and investments held by the City Treasurer in a cash management pool
as the amounts are readily available for use by the respective funds.

. Utility Revenue

Utility revenue is recorded when earmed. Customersare billed bimonthly. The estimated value of services provided but unbilled at year-end has
been included in the accompanying basic financial statements.

Properties Held for Resale

In the Capital Outlay Fund, properties acquired for the Heritage Square of fice complex are included as properties held for resale, which are carried
al the lower of cost or estimated fair value. At June 30, 2002, properties held for resale amounted to $7,263,384.

Capital Assets

The City’s assets for govemmental and business-type activities are capitalized at historical cost or estimated historical cost. The cost of normal
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. City policy has set the
capitalization threshold at $5,000. Gifts or contributions of capital assets are recorded at fair market value when received. Depreciation is recorded
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings 45 years
Improvements:
Paving, curbs, lighting 20 years
Parks Improvements 25 years
Sports Courts 40 years
Landscaping 50 years
Equipment and Machinery 5-20 years
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In accordance with GASB 34, an extended period of deferral (fiscal year beginning July 1, 2000) is available before the requirement to record and
depreciate infrastructure is effective. As a result, the governmental activities column in the accompanying government-wide financial statements
as of June 30, 2002 does not reflect any infrastructure assets completed as of June 30, 2002.

Risk Management

The City provides statutory workers’ compensation benefits under a self-insurance program and the City is self--insured for general and property
damage liabilities to the extent of the first $1,000,000 per occurrence. The City contracts with outside service agencies to supervise and administer
the self-insurance programs. Estimated liabilities related to outstanding workers’ compensation and public liability claims (including estimates
for incurred but not reported claims) are based upon actuarial studies and are recorded in an intemnal service fund.

In August 1988, the City adopted a resolution to execute a Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) between five cities, (Huntington Beach, Oxnard,
Pomona, San Bemardino and Santa Ana), creating the Big Independent Cities Excess Pool Joint Powers Authority (BICEP), arisk management
pool. Through the BICEP insurance pool, the five cities share the cost of catastrophic general liability losses incurred by the members for claims
between $1 million and $25 million, thereby eliminating the need for individual excess commercial insurance protection. The purpose of this
agreement is to jointly develop and fund excess insurance for comprehensive liability, the purchase of reinsurance, and the provision of necessary
administrative services. Such administrative services may include, but shall not be limited to, risk management consulting, loss prevention and
control, centralized loss reporting, actuarial consulting, claims adjusting and legal defense service. BICEP is governed by a five-member Board
of Directors representing each member city, appointed by the member’s City Council and serving at the pleasure of such City Councit.

Summary unaﬁdited financial information of BICEP as of and for the yearended June 30, 2002, is as follows:

City’s

Description BICEP Share
Total Asscts $15,662,579 $2,506,013
Total Liabilitics $13.401,392 $2,144,223
Total Fund Balances $2.261,187 $361,790
Total Revenues $4,930,873 $788,940
Total Expenses $2.669,686 $427,150

Of the total liabilities, $13,213,023 represents long-term debt of BICEP. The City’s share of the debt is approximately $1,427,060.
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The agreement with BICEP may be terminated at any time provided that no bonds or other obligations of BICEP are outstanding. Upon
termination of this agreement, all assets of BICEP shall (after payment of all unpaid costs, expenses and charges incurred under the agreement)
be distributed among the parties in accordance with the respective contributions of each participating city.

H. Compensated Absences
Vacation and compensation time pay is recorded as a liability when incurred within the government-wide and proprietary funds financial
statements. Sick pay, which does not vest, is recorded in all funds when leave is taken. Inaccordance with GASB Interpretation No. 6, a liability
for these amounts is reported in the governmental funds financial statements only if they have matured and arepaidby the City subsequentto year-
end.

1. Property Taxes

Calendar

Property taxes are assessed and collected each fiscal yearaccording to the following property tax calendar:

LevyDate .........o.oooeieiint. March |

LienDate ...................... July 1 to June 30

DueDates............ccuvuunn.. November [ (first installment) and February | (second installment)
DelinquentDates ................ December 10 (firstinstallment) and April 10 (second installment)

Property taxes in the State of California are administered for all local agencies at the county level, and consist of securcd, unsecured and utility
tax rolls. The following is a summary of major policies and practices relating to property taxes:
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Property Valuation

Valuations are established by the Assessor of the County of Ventura (County) forthe secured and unsecured property tax rolls; the utility property
tax roll is valued by the State Board of Equalization. Under the provisions of Article X{l11A of the State Constitution, properties are assessed at
100 percent of full value. The value of real taxable property is based on fiscal year 1976 levels. From this base of assessment, subsequent annual
increases in valuation are limited to a maximum of 2 percent. However, increases to full value are allowed for property improvements or upon
change in ownership. Personal property is excluded from these limitations, and is subject to annual reappraisal.

Tax Levies

The County-wide tax levy for general revenue purposes is limited to 1 percent of full value, for a tax rate of $1.00 per $100 of assessed valuation.
Tax rates for voter-approved indebtedness prior to passage of Proposition 13 are excluded from this limitation. Taxes are levied in September
for both real and unsecured personal property based upon the assessed valuation as of the previous January 1 (lien date).

Under GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions, property taxes are recognized as revenue in the period
for which the taxes are levied. Therefore, the City recognizes revenue and a receivable, less any allowance for doubtfuil accounts deemed
appropriate, for the entiretax levy in the period for which the taxesare levied. Accordingly, at June 30,2002, the City has recorded property taxes
receivable 0f $523,296, which is included in due from other governments in the accompanying balance sheet.

Tax Lien Dates

All lien dates attach annually on March 1 preceding the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. The fiscal year begins July 1 and ends June 30
of the following year. Liens against real estate, and taxes on personal property, are not relieved by subsequent renewal ot change in ownership.

Tax Collections

The County Treasurer-Tax Collector is responsible for all property tax collections. Taxes and assessments on the secured and utility rolls, which
constitute a lienagainst the property, may be paid in two installments: the {irst installment is due on November 1 of the fiscal year and is delinquent
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if not paid by December 10; the second installment is due on February ! of the fiscal year and is delinquent if not paid by April 10. Unsecured
personal property taxes do not constitute a lien against real property unless the taxes become delinquent. Payment must be paid in one installment,
which is delinquent if not paid by August 31 of the fiscal year. Significant penalties are imposed for late payments.

Tax Apportionments and Special District Augmentation Fund (SDAF)

Due to the nature of the County-wide maximum levy, it is not possible to identify general purpose tax rates for specific entities. Apportionments
to local agencies are made by the County Auditor-Controller based primarily on the ratio that each agency represented of the total County-wide
levy for the three years prior to fiscal year 1979. The SDAF was established in order to provide greater flexibility in the allocation of the total
levy to special districts under this basic apportionment method. Each special district makes a contribution firom its base tax levy apportionment
to the SDAF. Oversight govemments of the special districts (citics or the County) can then reallocate this pool among special districts based on
financing needs.

J. Use of Estimates
The preparation of the City’s basic financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements,
and revenues and expenses during the reported period. Actual results could difTer from those estimates.

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The City’s cash, cash equivalents and investments at June 30, 2002, are reflected in the accompanying basic financial statements as follows:

Governmental Business-Type Statement of Net Fiduciary Grand
Aclivities Aclivities AssclsTotal Funds Total
Cash and cash equivalents $ 101819901 S 39939803 S 141.759.854 by 9825019 S 151584873
Investments with [iscal agents:

Restncted — 4.407,399 4,407,399 - 4,407,399
Unrestricted 4,494,137 - 4,494,137 5,039,404 9,533,541
Suhtotal 4,494,137 4,407.399 8,901,530 5,039,404 13.940.940
Total _3_ 106314098  _§ 443432292 S 150661390  _S_ 14864423 S (65525813
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The following is a summary of the City’s cash and cash equivalents and investments at June 30, 2002:

Deposits and cash on hand $ 10,912,798

Investments heldin trust by Fiscal Agents 13,940,940

Investments managed by the City Treasurer 140,672,075
Total $ 165525813

The City follows the practice of pooling cash and investments of all funds except for funds required to be held by outside fiscal agents under the
provisions of bond indentures (see Note 7).

Deposits

At June 30, 2002, the carrying amount of the City’s deposits was $10,912,798, the bank balance is $9,932,770, and the difference is due to outstanding
checks and deposits in transit. Of thatamount, $200,000 was covered by Federal depository insurance. The remainder of the deposits are collateralized
in accordance with state law. The California Government Code requires Califormia banks and savings and loan associations to secure a local
govemmental agency’s (agency) deposits by pledging government securities as collateral. The market value of pledged securities must equal at least
110 percent of an agency’s deposits. California law also allows financial institutions to secure an agency’s deposits by pledging first trust deed
mortgage notes having a value of 150 percent of an agency'’s total deposits. Such collateral is held by the pledging financial institutions agent of
depository and considered to be held in the City’s name and has the effect of perfecting a security interest forthe City. A perfected security interest
is an interest in property, including securities, that is superior to the interest of general creditors.

Authorized Investments

Under provisions of the City’s investment policy, and in accordance with Section 53601 of the California Government Code, the City may invest in
the following types of investments:

< Obligations of the United States Treasury, or its Agencies
.

% Obligations of the State of California
“ Local Government Bonds

*
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< Bankers’ Acceptances

< Commercial Paper

< Medium Term Corporate Notes

< Repurchase and Reverse Repurchase Agreements
< Mutual Funds

« State of California LAIF

The City’s investments are categorized to provide an indication of the level of custodial risk assumed by the City. Category 1 includes investments
that are insured or registered, or for which the securities are held by the City or its agent in the City’s name. Category 2 includes uninsured and
unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the financial institution’s trust department or agent in the City’s name. Category 3
includes uninsured or unregistered investments for which securities are acquired through a financial institution’s trust department and are held for
custodial purposes in the same financial institution’s safekeeping department but not in the City’s name. Investments of the City are summarized as
follows:

Categorv of Custodial Risk Carrying
Amount at
i 2 3 Fair Valuc
Pooled Investments:
U.S. “Treasury/Agency Obligalions $ 76,054,163 $ - $ - $  76.054,163
Corporatc Notes 9.617.912 - - 9617912
S _ 85.672.075 $ - $ - $  85.672.075
Licld in Trus| liscal Agent:
U.S. Treasury/Agency Obligations s - 5 - § 12,636,068 § 12,636,008
Corporatc Notes — o 1.304.872 1.304.872
$ -~ s — $ 13.940.940 $  13.940.940
State of California LAIF* (pooled) 55.000,000

Total Investments
* Not sub ject to categorization

S _154,613015_

The Citydid not utilize reverse repurchase agreements or mutual funds in the pooled investment fund during the year ended June 30, 2002, even though
such investments are authorized in the City’s investment policy.

The City’s investments with fiscal agents include deposits with trustees as required by bond covenants.
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3. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Net interfund receivables and payables between govemmental activities and business-type activities of $2,166,971 are included in the accompanying
Statement of Net Assets as of June 30, 2002.

Total interfund receivables and payables at June 30, 2002, which are included in the Fund Financial Statements as due from/to other funds and
advances to/from other funds, before eliminations consist of the following:

Interfund Interfund
Fund Receivables Payables
Governmental Funds: :
Advances to Golf Coursc Fund % 173,035 3 —
Duc from Other Funds 3,109,684
Total General Fund 3,282,719 —
Statc and Federat Grants Fund — 513,577
C ity Develop Commission Fund — 971,784
Total Governmental Funds 3,282,719 1,485,361
Proprietary Funds:
Wastcwater Fund © 170,677 —
Golf Course Fund:
Advanccs from General Fund - 173,035
Duc to General Fund —_ . 1,795,000
Total Proprietary Funds 170,677 1,968,035
Total 3__ 3453306 $__ 345339

The interfund balances at June 30, 2002, are loans to cover temporary cash deficits in various funds. All interfund balances outstanding at June 30,
2002, are expected to be repaid within one year, except for the advance from the General Fund to the Golf Course Fund in the amount of $173,035,
which will be paid in future annual installments of $25,000.
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4. RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Accounts and other receivables as of June 30, 2002, included in the accompanying Statement of Net Asscts primarily consist of the following:

Goserminental Lusiness-Type

Accounts Receivahles Activities Activities
Accrued Interest Receivable s 1030329 3 -
Uulitics Receivables - 7.088,875
Grants Reeeivable 44,981 1,291.402
L.oans Receivable 0,059.80! 1,984,207
Accounts Recaivable Billed and Acerucd 3.912.649 907,054
Other Recervahles 109.740 3,476,912

Sub.lotal 11,757,500 13,348,450
Allowance for Uncolleetible Receivahles {780,900) (998.841)
Total S 10976600 3 12,349,609_

Accounts payable and other liabilities as of June 30, 2002, primarily consist of the following:

Governinental Business-Type

Accounts I'avable and Other Liabilitics Activitles Activitics
Accounts Payable (duc ta vendors) S 3,612,435 S 5.508,372
Other Liabilitics:

Accrued Payroll 7,6833.329 1.215.775

Other Accrucd Expenscs 516,398 1.754.028

Advances Payable 1,200,420 -

Othcer Payablcs 1,647,375 —
Total Other Liabilitics 15,713,519 2,970,403
Total $ 19325954 3 3,538,775_
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Governmental activities record deferred revenue for revenues that are not yet earned as of year end. At June 30, 2002, deferred revenues are comprised
of the following:
Governmental Funds:

Community Development Charges for Services $ 2,308,048
Devctopment and Traffic Impact Fees 328,224
Fedcral Grant Drawdowns Prior to Mccting All Eligibility Requirements 3,569,846
State Grants 4,401.813
Civic Center Development Fecs 2,741,936
Total 5 13400867

S. INTERFUND TRANSFERS

The net transfers of $1,672,830 from governmental activities to business-type activities in the Statement of Activities primarily relates to operational
subsidies from the General Fund to the Golf Course and Performing Arts and Convention Center Enterprise Funds.

The following Transfers In and Out are reflected in the Fund Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2002:

Fund Transfers in Transfers Oul__
Governmental Funds:
General Fund $ - 5 (5.282,749)
Devclopment Fees Fund 1,265,481 (2,764.183)
Debl Service Fund 253197
Capital Outlay Fund 2.570.650 -—
Total Governmental Funds 6,374,102 (8,046.932)
Proprietary Funds:
Performing Arts and Convention Center 724,849 —
Municipal Golf Course o 947,981 _
Total Proprietary Funds 1.672.830 -
Total A B046932 8 (8046932)

The intcrfund transfers generally fall within one of the following categories: 1) debt service payments made from a debt service fund but funded from
an operating fund; 2) subsidy transfers; or, 3) transfers to fund internal service equipment replacement funds, There were no transfers during Fiscal Year
2002 that were either non-routine in nature or inconsistent with the activities of the fund making the transfer.
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6. CAPITAL ASSETS

Changes in the City’s capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2002, consisted of the following:

Balance Balance
July 1. 2001 Additions Detetions June 30, 2002
Governmental Acllvitles:
Capital Asscls, Not Being Depreciated:
lLand $ 20.713.678 $ 33132920 $ - s 24.040.598
Construction in Progress 17.031.447 12,591,964 - 34,623.411
“Fotal Capital Asscts, Not Being Depreciated 37.745.125 20.924.884 — 58.670.009
Capital Asscls, Being Depreciated:
Land Improvemenis 1,159,280 - 1.159.280
Buildings 29.176.812 —_ 29.176.812
Improvements Other Than Building 19.013.090 - -— 19.013.090
l:quipment and Machinery 35.931.446 3.070.252 - 39.001.698
“T'otal Capital Asscls, Being Depreciated 85.2811.628 3.070.252 = 88.350.880
| ess Accumutated Deprecialion for:
I.and Improvements (976,500) (19.180) - (995.680)
Buildings (13.734,687) (770.443) - (14,505.130)
Improvements Other Than Buitding (3.787.668) (425.204) - (4,212.872)
Equipment and Machinery (17.511,706) {2.650.663) — (20.162.369
Total Accumulated Depreciation (36.010561) {3.865.490 — (39.876.051
Totat Capilal Asscls, Being Depreciated. Net 49,270,067 (795.238) — 48.474.829
Sub-total Goveramental Activities 87.015.192 20.129.,646 - 107.144.838
Buslness-Type Actlvitles:
Capital Asscts, Not Being Depreciated:
Land 20,344,746 - - 20.344.746
Construction in Progress 56.235.819 8.439,151 — 04.674.970
“Total Capitat Assets, Not Being Deprecialed 76.580.565 8.439,151 — 85.019.716
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:
Buildings 62,387,004 4,359,940 - 60.747.004
Improvements Other Than Building 176.906.487 2.457.118 - 179.363.605
Municipal Golf Course Improvements 5.739.567 — - 5,739.567
Fquipment and Machinery 40.832.720 340,436 1,700.447 39.472.709
Total Capital Asscts, BBeing Depreciated 285.865.838 2,157,494 1,700.447 291.322.885
L.ess Accumutated Depreciation for:
Buildings {32.407.718) (2.741,368) - (35.149.086)
Improvements Other Than Building {06,806,521) (3.887,236) - (70.093.757)
Municipal Golf Coursc Improvements {915.832) (67,568) — (983,400)
I:quipment and Machinery 4.086.763 (2.479,500 - 27,166,263
Total Accumulaied Depreciation 4,816.834 9.175.672) - (133.992,506)
Total C'apital Asseis, Being Depreciated, Net 049,004 (2,018,178} 1.700.447 57,283,541
Sub-total Bosiness-Type Actlvities 17,629,569 6,420973 1,700,447 42,350,095
Total S 324644261 S 26550619 _§ 1200447 .. _S§ 349494933
47

City of Oxnard, California

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

For the year ended June 30, 2002, depreciation expense on capital assets was charged to the governmental functions as follows:

Governmental Activilies:

Legislalive 3 11,738
Administralion and Support Scrvices 1,132,579
Public Safcty 1,804,380
“Transportation 78,017
Community Development 479,842
Culture and Leisurc 258,035
Librarics 100.899

Total Depreciation Expeasc

Internal Service funds predominantly serve the governmental funds. Accordingly, their capital assets are included within governmental activities in

the above table. Changes in the Internal Service Funds capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2002 are as follows:

Balance Balance
—Juiyi1,2000 Additions Deletlons June 30, 2002
InternalService Funds:
Equipmentand Machinery 5 7.342,715 $ 200,468 $ - 3 7.548,183
Accumulated Depreciation (6,551,109) {274,379) ~ {6,825,488)
Total [ 296,606 . 3 23911) $. = =S 222695

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for each major enterprise fund for the year ended June 30, 2002:

Balance Balance
Juiy 1, 2001 Additions Deletions Junc 30, 2002

Water Fund

Land $ 157,144 s - S — $ 157,144

Buildings 4,122,921 104,104 — 4,227,025

h Other Than Building 64,370,729 1,597,677 — 65,968,406

Equipment and Machinery 1,800,982 250,754 — 2,051,736

Canstruction in Progress 19,218,706 2,432,728 —~ 21,651.434

Total 89,670,482 4,385,263 — 94,055,745

Accumulated Depreciation (30.669.798) 1.679.478) — (32,349.277)
Total =3 59000684 . $ 2205784 3 = =3 61706468
Wastewatcr Fund .

Land $ 4,273,655 $ - $ - $ 4,273,655

Buildings 6,380,938 -- - 6,380,938

p Other Than 3 112,535,759 859,441 — 113,395,200

Equipment and Machincry 17,057,209 89,082 — 17,146,891

Consiruction in Progress 35,588,202 4,782,061 | — 40.370.813

Total 175,835,763 S,731,734 —_ 181,567,497

Accumulated Depreciation (59,258.858) {3,729,001) — (62,987.859)
Total s ]]ﬂ,ﬁ]j_‘ﬁlﬁ_ [y 2&2111 [y — _3 118529 61_8_=
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Balance Balance
Julv 1. 2001 Additions Dcletlons June 30, 2002
Continued -
Solid Waste
Land s 2.711,166 S s $ 2.7 1,166
Buildings 20.678.658 2.104.080 22,782,735
l:quipmient and Machinery 20,691,717 1,700,447 18,991,270
Construction in Progress 1,321.485 499,751 - 1.821.236
Total 45,403,023 2,603.83 1,700,447 46.306,407
Accumulated Depreciation (13.709,010) (1.792,213) (15.420.934)
Tolal S 31.694.013 $ 891,907 $ 1700447 S 30.885,473
Performing Arts and Convention Center Fund
l'quipmenl and Machincry $ 1.828 s $ s 1.828
Caonstruction in Progress 42,0615 42,015
“Total 1,828 42,615 — 349,333
Accumulated Depreciation (812) 1609) (1,421)
Tolal S 1,016 S 2006 S = S 33017
Oxnard kiousing Authorily Fund
I.and $ 8.920,208 13 - s -~ s 8,920,208
Buildings 28,409,141 2,151.756 - 30,620,897
I:quipment and Machinery 1,280,984 -- - 1,280,984
Tolal 34,670,333 PAERE] = 082089
Accumlaled Depreciation (18.941,350) (1.987.088) -- (20.928.440)
“Tolal $ 19,728 977 S 164,666 $ — s __ 19893643
Municipal Golf Course Fund
lLand S 4.282,572 S s s 4.282.572
Buildings 2,735409 - - 2.735.409
Golf Coursc Improwemenls 5,739,567 -- - 5.739.567
Construction in Progress 107.426 081,446 788,872
Tolal 12,864,974 681,446 — 13,536,420
Accumulated Depreciation (2.237.000) (67,5608) - (2.304,509)
Total S 10.627 974 $ 613877 S — H 11,241 851
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7. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The following is a summary of changes in the City’s long-term obligations for the year ended June 30, 2002:

Governmental Activities:
Revenue Bonds:
Lcase Revenue Refunding Bonds Scries 1993

Adjustable Rate Taxable Refunding Bonds Scries 1993

1999 Certificates of Participation

Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds Scrics 1994A

Capital Leasc:
HTE Financial System Lcasc Purchasc
Firc Engines Lecasc Purchasc

Compensaied Abscnces

Notes Payable

Loan Payable

Mectropolitan Water District Loan

Total Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities:

Revenuc Bonds:
Lease Revenuc Refunding Bonds Scries 1993
Water Revenue Refunding Bonds Scries 2001
Water Revenue Bonds Scries 1993
Water Revenue Capital Appreciation Bonds
Wastewater Revenue Refunding Bonds Scries 1993
Solid Waste Revenue Bonds Serics 1995
Unamortized Discounts
Unamortized Losson Refunding

Sub-toral

Capital Lcasc:
Residential Trash Collection Vehicles

Compensated Absences

Total Business-Type Activities

Total

Amounts Due

Balance Balance Within One
July 1, 2001 Issued Retired June 30,2002 Year
s 7405000 § — § 1025000 S 6,380,000 s 1,075,000
3,300,000 — 600,000 2,700,000 600,000
8,625,000 — 185,000 8,440,000 195,000
15,065,000 - 590,000 14,475,000 625,000
486,290 — 157,667 328,623 161,981
405,015 — 129,437 275,578 135,033
8,420,347 4,513,826 3,704,886 9,229,287 3,850,800
353,368 - 9,612 343,756 13,627
— 2,705,584 — 2,705,584 —
5,553,933 - 63,540 5,490.393 89,258
S 49613953 5 7219410 § 6,465,142 S 50,368,221 S 6,745,699
$ 12,435,000 — $ 565000 S 11,870,000 $ 595,000
— 12,410,000 290,000 12,120,000 225,000
465,000 — 465,000 — —
4,926,884 — 4,926,884 — —
46,945,000 — 1,925,000 45,020,000 2,025,000
20,875,000 — 940,000 19,935,000 985,000
(1,404,176) (199.711) (349,926) (1,253.961) —_
(5.073.496) (3.798,737) (1,144,632) (7.727,601) —
79,169.212 8.411,552 7,617,326 79,963,438 3,830,000
1,401,008 — 185,256 1,215,752 195,395
2,016,740 1,094,114 1,141,675 1,969,179 1,112,000
T 82,586,960 __ 9.505,666 8,944,257 83,148,369 5,137,395
$ 132200913_ §16,725076_ 5 15409399 $133516,590_ _§ 11,883,094 _
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Internal service funds predominantly serve the governmental funds. Accordingly, their long-term obligations are included as part of the above
totals for governmental activities. Changes in long-term obligations for the internal service funds for the year ended June 30, 2002 are as follows:

Batance Balance Amounts Duc:
July 1, 2001 Fssued Relired June 30, 2002 Within One Year
Internal Service Funds
Compcnsatcd Abscnces 5 419,653 s - 434,419 s 402,095 S 501,377 $ 400,000
Total $ 419.653 b 484,419 3 402,695 s 501,377 s 406,000

The following is a summary of changes in long-term obligations for each major enterprisc fund for the year ended June 30, 2002:

Balance Balance Amounts Duc
July 1, 2001 Issued Retlred Junc 30,2002 Within One Year
Water Fund .
Revenuc Bonds Serics 1993 s 465,000 $ S s 465,000 S - $ -
Revenuc Capital Appreciation Bonds 4,926,884 — 4,920,884 —
Revenuc Refunding Bonds Scrics 2001 - 12,410,000 290,000 12,120,000 225,000
lLess: Unamortized Loss on Refunding - (3,798,737 (126,625) (3.672,112) -
Unamortized Discounts (150,163) (199,711) (156.820) (193,054) -
Sub-total 5,241,721 8.411,552 5.398.439 8,254,834 225,000
Compensated Absences 270,280 211,080 163,309 318,057 179,699
Total s 5,512,000  § 8622638 § 5561748 § 8,572,891 $ 4045699
Wastewater Fund
Revenue Refunding 13onds Scrics 1993 s 40,945,000 s - $ 1,925,000 $ 45,020,000 13 2,025.000
Less: Unamortized Loss on Refunding (3,800,001) — (172,730) (3,627,331) —
Unamortized Discounts (870,897) (145,150) (725,747) -
Sub-total 42.274,042 - 1,607,120 40,666,922 2,025,000
Compensated Abscnces . 490,568 259,490 219,695 530,303 299,462
Total s 42,764,610 § 25949 _ § 1,826.815 _  § 41,197,285 S 2,324,462
Continucd -
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Balance Balance Amounts Duc
July 1, 2001 Issued Retired Junc 30, 2002 Within One Year
Solid Waste Fund
Revenuc Refunding Bonds Series 1995 $ 20,762,500 S - S 827,500 s 19,935,000 S 985,000
lgss: Unamortized Discounts (195.225) - (13,700) (181,525) —
Sub-total 20,567,275 — 813,800 19,753,475 985,000
Capital Lease 1,401,008 - 185,256 1,215,752 195,395
Compensatcd Abscnces 473,162 264,855 250,356 487,661 275,331
Total s 22,441,445 s 264,855 s 1249412 s 21,456,888  § 1,455,126
Performing Arts and Convention Center Fund
Compensatcd Abscnces s — 3 72,79 $ 23,897 $ 48,894 s 21,578
Total S — h 72,79 s 23897 48.894 S 27,578
Oxnard lousing Authority Fund
Compensated Absences $ 782,731 $ 285,892 $ 484.419 $ 584,204 5 329,930
Total $ 782,731 s 285892 & 484,419 3 584,204 $ 329,930
Municipal Golf Course ’
L.casc Revenue Refunding Bonds Scrics 1993 § 12,435,000 $ — $ 565,000 s 11,870,000 $ 595,000
Less: Unamortized Loss on Refunding (1.273,435) — (845,277) (428,158) -
Unamortized Discounls (187,891) — (34,250) (153,635) -
Total 3 10,973.674 s — S 314,533) S 11,288,207 S 595000

Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 1993

The Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 1993 are a twenty-two year bond issue with a net interest cost of 5.4398 percent. The bonds were
issued to refinanee the outstanding bonds for the 1988 Civic Center Library bonds, the 1986 River Ridge Golf Course bonds, the land acquisition
bonds, the 1966 auditorium authority bonds and the 1972 parking authority. The bonds were issued on December 16, 1993, withan original amount
of $31,565,000, maturing in various amounts through June 1, 2016. The tota] balance outstanding as of June 30, 2002 is $18,250,000, of which

$6,380,000 is recorded within governmental activities and $11,870,000 is recorded within business-type activities in the accompanying statement
of net assets.
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Adjustable Rate Taxable Refunding Bonds Series 1993

The Adjustable Rate Taxable Refunding Scrics 1993 were issued on November 10, 1993 with an original amount of $7,700,000.These bonds had
a variable interest rate ranging from 1.95 to 3.70 percent through November 30, 1998 and were converted into a fixed rate of 2.065 percent
thercafter, maturing in various amounts through June 1, 2006. The bonds were issued to refinance outstanding bonds for the 1985 public parking
bonds. The balance outstanding and recorded as governmental activities as of June 30, 2002 is $2,700,000.

1999 Certificates of Participation

The 1999 Certificates of Participation are thirty-year bonds that were issued on January 26, 1999 with an original amount of $8,980,000 and a net
interest cost of 5.04 percent. The balance outstanding and recorded as governmental activities as of June 30, 2002 is $8,440,000.

Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds Series 1994A

On May 5, 1994, the City issued tax allocation refunding bonds in the amount of $18,580,000. These bonds bear interest of 6.85 percent and mature
on September 1, 2016. The balance outstanding and recorded as governmental activitics as of June 30, 2002 is $14,475,000.

Water Revenue Refunding and Project Bonds, Series 2001

On July 17, 2002, the City of Oxnard Financing Authority issued $12,410,000 of Water Revenue Refund and Project Bonds, Series 2001 with
interest rate of 5.1057 percent, maturing on June 1, 2030. The proceeds from the sale of the bonds were used to refund the total outstanding
principal amount of $5,391,884 of the Water Revenue Bonds Series 1993 and the Water Capital Appreciation Bonds and to finance the cost of
construction of the 2001 project. The advance refunding resulted in an economic gainof $1,373,201 (difference between the present value of the
old bonds and the present value of the new bonds) and cash flow savings of $5,796,073. The outstanding balance on the new bonds as of June 30,
2002 is $12,120,000.

The 2001 Project includes improvements to the City’s Blending Station No. 1 Disinfection System; replacement of cast iron pipe in the City’s
downtown area; an upgrade of the City’s Blending Station No. 1 to improve its energy efficiency; improvements to the City’s Automated Meter
Reading Program; replacement and upgrade of existing pipeline corrosion protection systems; and, the rehabilitation of certain water wells.
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Accordingly, the Water Revenue Bonds Series 1993 and the Water Capital Appreciation Bonds are considered defeased and the related liabilities
have been removed from the City’s basic financial statements. On June 30, 2002, the amount outstanding on the defeased bond totaled $4,887,496.
The final call date for the defeased bonds is June 1, 2003.

Wastewater Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 1993

The Wastewater Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 1993 are a twenty-seven year bond issue with a net interest cost of 5.507 percent. The bonds
were issued to refinance the outstanding balances related to the 1986 wastewater treatment plant expansion bonds, 1985 wastewater treatment plant
expansion land bonds and the 1977 Oxnard Port Hueneme Regional Wastewater Treatment Authority bonds. The bonds were issued on August
12, 1993 with an original amount o f$59,530,000, maturing in various amounts through June 1, 2020. The outstanding balance as of June 30, 2002

is $45,020,000.
Solid Waste Revenue Bonds Series 1995

The Solid Waste Revenue Bonds Series 1995 are a twenty-year bond issue with a net interest cost of 5.844 percent. The bonds were issued to
finance then construction of the Del Norte Regional Recycling and Transfer Station. Thebonds were issued on September 21, 1995 with an original
amount of $25,000,000, maturing in various amounts through May 1, 2016. The outstanding balance as of June 30, 2002 is $19,935,000.

The annual debt service requirements by year for Revenue Bonds are as follows:

Wastewater Revenue Refunding

Waler Revenue Refunding Bonds - Serics 2001 Nonds - Scries 1993
Fiscal Year Principal Interest I'rincipal Interest
2003 s 225,000 s 580.196 $ 2,025,000 s 2,389,952
2004 235,000 571,196 2,120,000 2,290,728
2005 245,000 561,796 1,675,000 2,184,727
2006 255,000 551,997 1,760,000 2,099,302
2007 205,000 541,79 1,855.000 2,006,903
2008-2012 1,495,000 2,540.0006 10,905.000 8,407,462
20132017 1,855,000 2,180,028 14,220,000 5,082,937
2018-2022 .2,350,000 1,680.563 10,460,000 1,116,938
2023-2027 3.005.000 1,030,563 - —
2028-2030 2.190.000 228,002 - -
Totals S 12120000 3 0466803 § __ 45020000 § 25578949
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Solid Waste Revenuc Bonds - Lecasc Revenue Refunding Adjustable Rate Taxable
Scries 1995 Bonds -Serics 1993 ___Rcfunding Bonds - Scrics 1993
Fiscal Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Trinclpat Interest
2003 $ 985,000 $ 1,145,230 $ 1,670,000 $ 961,429 $ 600,000 $ 168,750
2004 1,030,000 1,096,905 1,745,000 879,599 600,000 131,250
2005 1.085.000 1,045,465 1,830,000 792349 700,000 93,750
2006 1,140,000 989,045 1,645,000 699,018 800,000 50,000
2007 1,200,000 928,625 1,725,000 610,600 — _
2008-2012 7.120,000 3,521,578 5,320.000 1,928,550 _ —
2013-2016 7.375,000 1,138,800 4,315,000 595,012 — -~
Totals s 19935000 s 9,865.705 s 18.250.000 S 6.466,557 S 200,000 S 443.750

The annual debt service requirements by year for the other bond issues are as follows:

1999 Certificates of Participation

Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds
Series 1994A

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Principal Interest
2003 195,000 $ 385,080 $ 625,000 $ 931,125
2004 200,000 377,963 665,000 889,850
2005 210,000 370,462 710,000 845,812
2006 215,000 362,168 760,000 798,850
2007 225,000 353,460 805,000 748,800

2008-2012 1,275,000 1,619,125 4,925,000 2,868,612

2013-2017 1,580,000 1,308,870 5,985,000 1,014,325

2018-2022 1,835,000 904,638 — —_

2023-2027 2,200,000 442,937 — —
2028 505,000 23.987 — —

Totals 8,440,000 $ 6,148,690 5 14,475,000 $ 8,097,374
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Capital Lease Obligations

On May 5, 1998, the City entered into a Lease Purchase agreement with Santa Barbara Bank and Trust in the amount of $909,442, for the purpose
of purchasing the HTE Financial System hardware and software; with interest rate of 4.69 percent; final maturity on November 1, 2003. The

outstanding balance as of June 30, 2002 is $328,623.

In December 1996, the City entered into a Lease Purchase agreement with Midwest Bankers Group in the amount of $850,000, for the purpose
of purchasing four Triple Combination Pumper Fire Trucks; with interestrate of 4.03 percent; final maturity on August 1, 2003. The outstanding

balance as of June 30, 2002 is $275,578.

On September 12, 2000, the City entered into a Lease Purchase agreement with Municipal Finance Corporation for the acquisition of twelve
residential trash collection vehicles. The lease bearsan interest rate of 5.4 percent with final maturity on September 12, 2007. The outstanding

balance as of June 30, 2002 is 1,215,752.

Theannual debt service requirements by year forthe Capital Leases are as follows:

Residential Trash

HTE Financial System Fire Trucks Collection Vehicles
Fiscal Year Principal interest Prlnclgal _ Interest Principat Interest
2003 s 161,981 $ 13,677 $ 135033 ° 3 11,249 3 195,395 5 63,048
2004 166,642 5,991 140,545 5,736 206,089 52,354
2005 _ — — — 217,368 41,075
2006 — — — — 229,264 29,179
2007 —_ — —_ — 241,812 16,631
2008 — — — — 125.824 3.397
Totals $ 328,623 $ 19,668 $ 275,578 S 16,985 S 1,215,752 S 205,684
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The following is a schedule of property under capital lcases by major classcs of asset of June 30, 2002:

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities
HTE Capital Leasc:
Software S 541,198 $ —
Equipment 212978 —
Fire Enginc Lcase:

Equipment 812,845 -
Resideatial Trash Collection Lease:

Equipment _ 1,498,397
Sub-total 1,567,021 1,498,397
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (571,228) (149,840)
Total kY 995,793 _S 1348557

Notes and Loans Payable

In May 1988, the Commission purchased a building in exchange for a note. The notes payable is secured by deeds of trust on real property and

bears interest from 5.35 percent to 11.5 percent. The note matures at various times through March 14, 2006. At June 30, 2002, the outstanding
balance was $343,756.

On August 3, 1998, the Commission purchased property from the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California in exchange for a promissory
note. The note is secured by deeds of trust on real property and bears interest at 6 percent per annum. The note matures at various times through
December 2028. At June 30, 2002, the outstanding balance was $5,490,393.

On March 12, 2002, the City purchased the property at 300 West Third Strect and 320, 326, 330, 344 South “C” Street (FIB Building), in the
amount of $862,000. A Loan Agreement was entered into between Zions First National Bank and the City. The principal amount of the loan is
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$621,320. The terms of the loan are semi-annual payments over a 10-year period at a variable rate setat 70 percent of the bank’s Prime Rate. At
June 30, 2002, the outstanding balancc was $621,320.

OnMay 20,2002, the City purchased the property located at 937 West Fifth Street Campus Park in the amount of $2,150,000. A Loan Agreement
was entered into between Zions First National Bank and the City. The principal amount of the loan is $2,084,264. The terms of the loan are semi-

annual payments over a 10-year period at a variable rate set at 70 percent of the bank’s Prime Rate. At June 30, 2002, the outstanding balance
was $2,084,264.

The annual debt service requirement for notes and loans payable are as follows:

Notcs Payahle- Brown Bullding Mctropolitan Watcr District Loan l.oan Payablc - FIB Bulldi L.oanPayable- Campus Park
Fiscal Year Principal Interest Principa) Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2003 $ 13,627 s 33,762 M 89,258 s 327.440 s 02,132 s 24,504 $ 175,07 $ 72129
2004 15,054 32,335 94,735 321963 02,132 18.076 185,245 61.953
2005 16.630 30,759 100,548 316.150 62,132 16.010 191456 55,743
2000 298.445 21,936 106,718 309.980 62,132 13,945 197,875 49,324
2007 — — 113,207 303,43t 62.132 11.879 204,510 42,690
2008-12 —_ - 679,524 1.403.9606 310,600 28.400 1,130,107 105,889
201317 — — 915,220 1.168.270 - — - -
2018-22 — — 1,232,608 850,822 - - - -
2023-27 - — 1,060,225 423,265 - — -— -
2028 — — 498.2)0 22,643 - — — —
Totals S 34375 118,792 S 5490393 _ S 54479% _  _3 62320 __ S _1280__ _32084264_  _330008_

The City’s management believes it is in compliance with all significant covenants related to its debt issues as of June 30, 2002.

Compensated Absences

The long-tenm portion of the liability was $5,378,487 for governmental activities and $857,179 for business-type activities at June 30, 2002, which
is expected to be paid in future years from future resources.

58



City of Oxnard, California

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2002

Special Assessment Bonds

Thereare various 1915 Act Improvement Districts within the City which have issued special assessment or special tax debt. Thedebt is secured
by liens or special taxes on the properties in the districts and is paid by the property owners. The City is not liable under any circumstance for
the repayment of the debt, but is only acting as agent for the property owners in collecting the assessments and special taxes, forwarding the
collections to fiscal agents to pay the bondholders, and initiating foreclosure proceedings, if appropriate.

Accordingly, such special assessment debt is not reflected in the accompanying basic financial statements. Special assessment debt outstanding
at June 30, 2002, is as follows:

H Road A t District:

1915 Act Improvement Bonds issued May 29, 1985; original amount $5,657,485.84; interest rate that varies with
maximum rate of 9.8%; maturity 2005

Mandalay Bay Reassessment District:
1915 Act Improvement Bonds issued April 24, 1987; original amount $6,250,000; maximum rate 7.4%; due 2007 2,985,000
Rose/Santa Clara Assessment District:

1915 Act Improvement Bondsissued August 14, 1986 with original amount $13,170,000; maximumrate 8.25%; due
2006

3 2,005,000

3,935,000

Oxnard Town Center Special Tax Bonds:

Issued September 15, 1988 - (Mello Roos); original amount $14,770,000; average rate of 8.125%; maturing in varying

amounts through 2013 2,015,000
Rose Avenue/Highway 101 Assessment District:

1915 Act Improvement Bonds issued November 1, 1996; original amount $8,560,000; average rate of 5.50%; maturing

in2016 7,235,000
Pacific C ce Center A t District:

1915 Act Improvement Bonds issued November 1, 1996; original amount $31,120,000; average rate of 5.17%; maturing

in 2006 17,865,000

Total 536,040,000
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8. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

Retirement Plan Description

The City contributes to the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (“PERS”), an agent multiple-employer, public employee defined
benefit plan, that acts as acommon investment and administrative agent for participating public entities within the State of California. The City’s
membership is reported within three plans classified into two categories: safety members (police and fire) and miscellaneous members (all other
permanent employees). The City’s payroll for employees covered by PERS for the year ended June 30, 2002, was $54,904,623; the City’s total

payroll was $59,280,010. PERS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report. Copies of PERS’ annual financial report may be obtained
from the PERS Executive Office, 400 “P” Street, Sacramento, CA 95814.

All personnel are eligible to participate in PERS. Benefits vest after five years of service. Employees who retire at or after age 50 with five years
of credited service are entitled to retirement benefits. Monthly retirement benefits are payable for life in an amount equal to a specified percentage
(ranging from 1.092 percent for employees who retire at age 50 to 2.41 percent for employees who retire at age 63 or over) for miscellaneous

employees and 3 percent for police employees at age 50 and fire employees at age 55. The benefits are calculated at the highest consecutive 12
months for miscellaneous employees and safety employees.

Required employee contributions to PERS are 7 percent of compensation for miscellaneous employees and 9 percent of compensation for safety
employees, which the City currently pays for regular employees. The City is required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund the

benefits for its members, using the actuarial basis recommended by the PERS actuaries and actuarial consultants and adopted by the PERS Board
of Administration.

PERS uses a modification of the entry age normal actuarial cost method, which is a projected benefit cost method. That is, it takes into account
those benefits that are expected to be eamed in the future as well as those already accrued.

Annual Pension Cost

For fiscal year 2002, the City’s annual pension cost (APC) of $6,013,057 for PERS was @qual to the City’s required and actual contribution. The
required contribution was determined as part of the June 30, 2001, revised actuarial assumptions and retain the entry age actuarial cost method.
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Significant actuarial assumptions across all threc plans included (a) 8.25 percent investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), (b)
projected annual salary increases ranging from 3.75 percent to 14.2 percent (for miscellaneous employees) and from 4.27 percent to 11.59 percent
(for saf ety employees) and that vary based on the duration of service and type of employment, and (c) 3.75 percent per year across-the-board real
salary increases. Both (a) and (b) included an inflation component of 3.5 percent. The actuarial value of PERS assets was determined using
techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a three-year period (smoothed market value).
PERS unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis. The remaining
amortization period at June 30, 2002, was five years for prior service unfunded and sixteen years for remaining unfunded.

Contributions to PERS for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2002 are shown below:

City Employee
Contributions Contributions Total

Safety employees:

Police $  1.780.994 $  1.223,023 $  3.004,017

Fire — 526,308 526,308
Total safety employees 1.780.994 1,749,331 3,530,325
Miscellaneous employees — 2482732 2482732

Total $ _1.780.994 $ 4,232,063 _§__ 6,013,057

9. POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS

In addition to providing pension benefits, the City provides postemployment health care benefits to all retired employees in accordance with the
California Public Employees’ retirement law (Section No. 22825). The City pays a maximum of $16.00 permonth per retiree, as long as the retiree
remains in a City sponsored health plan. The benefits are finded on a pay-as-you-go basis. Postemployment health care benefits for the year ended
June 30, 2002, totaled $36,672. Currently, 188 retirees are enrolled and eligible to receive this benefit.
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10. COMMITMENT AND CONTINGENCIES

There are various lawsuits and claims pending against the City. In the opinion of the City Attomey and management, none of these cases, nor
the aggregate thereof, represents any substantial exposure to the City. At June 30, 2002, the City has recorded a general litigation reserve of
$1,000,000 to cover any potential exposure, which has been recorded within self-insurance claims liabilities in the accompanying basic financial
statements.

The City has received several Federal and state grants for specific purposes thatare subject to review and audit by the grantoragencies. Such audits
could lead to request for reimbursements to grantor agencies for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grant. Based upon prior experience,
the City believes such disallowance, if any, would be immaterial.

11. FUND BALANCE-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

The following is a summary of reserved and unreserved fund balances at June 30, 2002:

Community
Development nuN and Statc and Bebt Capital Development Non-Ma jor
Fees CDBC Grants Federat Services Outtay Commission Governmental
General Fund Fund Granls Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds “Total

Reserved Fund Balance:

Encumbrances $ 612,620 5 — s - S - s - $ - 3 - 1 — $ 612.620

Receivables — — — 1.730.673 - - 2,209,273 — 3.939.940

Repayment of Debt — - - - 1333902 - — - 1.333.902

Park Deveclopment — 235.362 — - - — — — 235,362

Advances 173,035 - —_— - - — — - 173.035

Restricted Revenue 164,617 —_ — 658.976 - — 450,029 - 1.279.622

Carryover Savings 920,026 - - - . - — — 920.026

Properuies Ileld for Resale - ~ — - - 7,263,384 - 7.263.384
Total Rescrved 1,870,298 235,362 — 2,389,649 1,333,902 -~ 9,928,686 — 15,757,897
Unreserved Fund Balance:

Authorized Projects —_ 15,783,904 — 2,758.728 -- 7,556,992 2,914,430 4,216,528 33,230,588

Undesignated 25.526,320 10.172,831 235,971 491,341 - 986,357 2,959,638 1,742,446 44,114,904

‘Total Unreserved 25,526,320 25,956,735 135,971 3,250,069 — 8,593,349 5874074 7958974 __ 77,345.492_
Total Fund Balances S22396618 8 26192000 s 235971 0§ S6397)8 0§ 1333902 0§ 8543049 S 15802260 S 7958974 % 03103389
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12. NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

The following is a summary of net assets (restricted and unrestricted) which are included in the Fund Financial Statements for proprietary funds
at June 30, 2002:

Enterprisc Funds

Performing Governmental
Arts and Municipal Activitics -
Solld Conventlon Housing Golf Internal
Water Wastewater Waste Center Authority Course Tolal Scrvice Funds
Invested in Capital Asscts (Net of
Relatcd Debt) $ 53,616,572 $  71912,716 $ 9,916,246 $ — $ 19893643 § — $161,339,177 S 722,695
Restricted:
Repaymentof Debt 809,103 — 1,342,653 - —_ 779,883 2,931,639 -
Totat Restricicd 809,103 — 1,342,653 —_ — 779,883 2,931,639 —
Unrcstricted:
Capital Asscis Replacements — - - - — -— — 85,440
Authorized Projects 6,716,504 15,953,758 3.300,274 — — 1077,115 27,054,251 -
Undesignated (758,664) 15,602,655 348,171 (195,566) 2,395,504 (361,823) 17,030.277 (2,036.918)
Total Unrestricted 5.957,840 31,556,413 3,654,445 (195,566) 2,395,504 715,892 44,084,528 (2,036,918)
Totat Net Assels $  60.383,515 §_109.469.129 $ 14913344 S (195.566) $ 22.289.47 S 1.495.775 208.355,344 S _(1.314.223)
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13.

RISK MANAGEMENT
General Liability

The City is self insured for general liability claims up to $1 million. The City is covered through BICEP for claims between $1 million and $25
million. Self-insured genefal liability claims are administered through a claims adjuster, withthe City Attorney’s approval for larger settlements.
Litigated claims are settled directly through the City Attomey’s office.

The City’s contribution to BICEP for general liability coverage in Fiscal Year 2002 was $357,984 including $98,266 of debt service and a pure
premium adjustment of $85,237.

Workers’ Compensation

The City is also self-insured for workers® compensation claims up to $500,000. For claims over $500,000, the City has purchased excess workers’
compensation insurance from BICEP. The claims are processed by a third party administrator similar to the general liability claims.

Within the City’s self-insured program for workers’ compensation, there has been an average of 332 claims per year filed for the past four years,
with an average of approximately $2,770,313 per year in total reported losses as of June 30, 2002, (at an average of $8,332 per claim). During
the same four-year period, the average claims filed each year for general liability amounted to 223 claims totaling $1,572,116 per year (at an
average of $7,049 per claim). In addition, there havebeen no insurance settlements that have exceeded the City’s insurance coverage for each of
the past three years.

All funds of the City participate in the program and make payments to an intemal service fund on the basis of loss experience and exposure. The
total unpaid claims and claims adjustment expense liability (long-term obligations) of $12,931,052 (Workers’ Compensation-$8,881,936 and Public
Liability and Property Damage-$4,049,116) recorded at June 30, 2002, is based on results of actuarial studies and includes an estimate for claims
incurred but not reported at the balance sheet date. Claims liabilities are calculated considering the effects of inflation, recent claims settlement
trends including frequency and amount of payouts and other economic and societal factors. General liability and workers’ compensation liabilities
arecarried at present value using a discountrate of 5.5 percent. In addition, the City is in compliance with the requirements of GASB Statement
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No. 10. which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of the financial statcments indicates that it is
probablc that a liability has been incurrcd at the date of the financial statements and thc amount of the loss can be rcasonably estimated.

The following schedule presents the changes in self-insurance claims liabilities for the past two years for the Workers’ Compensation Fund and
Public Liability and Property Damage Fund:

Public Liability and

Waorkers” Compensation Properly Damage Total
FY 01-02 FY 00-01 FY 01-02 FY 00-01 FY 01-02 FY 00-01

Unpaid claims and claims ad justment expenses -

July 1 S 6,830,842 S 6,443,827 S 4.160,056 s 3,815,035 $ 10,990,898 3 10,258,862
Incurred claims and claims ad justment expenses:
Provision for insurcd cvents of the current fiscal year 2,157,451 2,273,103 1,768,124 982,600 3,925,575 3,255,703
Increase/Decreasc in provision for insured cvents of

prior fiscal ycars 3,456.384 1.453.296 791,825 1,413,985 4,254,209 2.8(17,281
Totalincurred claims and ctaims ad justment

expenses 5,613,835 3,726,399 2,565,949 2,396,585 8,179,784 6,122,984
Payments:
Attributable to insured cvents of the current fiscal

year 540,430 1,435,935 980.889 1.148.876 1,521,319 2,584.811
Attributable 1o insurcd cvents of prior fiscal ycars 3,022311 1,903,449 1,696400 902,688 4718311 2,806,137
Total payments 3,562,741 3,339,384 2,676,889 2,051,564 6,239,630 5,390,948
Unpaid claims and claims adjustment cxpenses -

June 30 S 8,881,936 S 6830842 S 4,049,116 S 4,160,056 $ 12,931,052 s 10,990,898

14, ACCUMULATED FUND DEFICITS

As of June 30, 2002, the City has fund deficits in the Performing Arts and Convention Center of S195,5606, in the Workers’ Compensation Fund
0f $6,442.264, and in the Equipment Maintenance Fund of $142,868. The City intends to eliminate these deficits through increased user charges
in future years.
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General Fund

Statement o f Revemues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget amd Actual on a Budgetary Basis

For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002

(Unandited)
Changes Actual Variance
Orlginal intreases Revised Budgetary Favorable
Iludget (Decreascs) Budget Basis (Unfavorablc)
Revenues
Faxes:
Property ax - 513181600 $ S 13,181,600 S 14.339.738 S 1.158.138
Sates ‘Tax 18,200,000 18,200,000 19.8406.352 1.046.152
Transient Occupaney lax 2.400.000 2,400.000 2.321,75% (78.242)
Other Taxes
Franchise Tax 4,629,000 4,639,000 7.104.953 2,465,953
Business License (Net of Rel'und) 2,400,000 39.500 2,439.500 3.174.931 735.431
Decd Transfer lax 385,000 385,000 608,145 . ZEIJﬂS
Total Other Taxes 7424000 ___39.500 7,463,500 10,886,029 3.424.529
Penaliic/Interest on Delinquencics . 170,000 170.000 - 284.7”___ 114.711
Total Taxes 41375600 39500 41,415,100 47,680,588 6,265,488
Licences and Permits 2,213,300 50,000 2,263,300 1.987,392 _ (275,908)
Intergovernmental 300,000 300.000 218.355 (R1.645)
StateShared Resenuc: 566,000 566,000 334,070 (231.924)
Homcowners Propierty Tax Reliel - 113.438 113,438
State Mandated Reimbursement - SI3 90 £.400.000 8,400,000 9928351 1.528.351
P.o.s.t. Reunbursement - Palice 4.000 4.000 4,175 175
Moltor Vehicle in Licu of Tax R70.000 870,000 877,457 7.457
oft llighway Vchicle in Licu of Tax 175,000 175,000 108.199 (60,801)
Public Safety Augmeniation
AB 1191 ~
‘Total State Sharc Revenuces . 10.315,000 — 10,315,000 11,584,051 . 1,269,051
L.ocalSharcd Revenue
Infrastructure Uise Revenues 1,902,090 1.902,690 1,902,690 —
Indircct Cost Reimbursements 357,153 - 3.352.153 J.ZBX.‘)«?J (68.210)
Total Local Shared levenues 5,259,843 - 5,259,843 5,191,633 (68,210)
Total Intergovernuiental 15,574,843 — 15,574,843 16,775,684 084l
66 Conbnucd
City of Oxnard, California
General Fund
State t of R s, Expenditures and Chaunges in Fund Balauce
Budget and Actual on a Budgetary Basis (Continned)
For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002
(Unaudited)}
Changes Aclual Variance
QOriginal Increases Revised Budgetary Fawrable
Budgel (Decreases) Budgel Basis (linfavorable)
Charges for Services:
Gcnc_ral Govemmnient 112,930 - 112,930 160.123 47.193
Public Safcty 1,049.332 (1,500) 1,047,832 1,451,935 404,103
Parks and Recrcation 449,763 10.000 459,763 440.863 (18,900)
Community Development 1,673,300 20.500 1,693,800 2,005,921 912,121
O!hnf Current Service Charges 64,000 - 64,000 104,262 40.262
Tipping Fees 90,000 90,000 110,000 20.000
MISC?“JHCOHS Service Charges 131,150 £31,150 111.299 (19.851)
Services to Other Programs 2,721,823 93,400 2,815,243 2,924.240 108,957
Total Charges for Services 6,292,298 122,460 6,414,758 7,908,643 1,493,885
Fines and Forfcitures:
Parking Fines 675300 - 675,300 1,042,105 366,805
Total Fines and Forfeitures 675,300 — 675,300 1,042,108 166,805
Interest 2,687,400 126,000 2,813,400 2,422,164 (391,236)
MisceBancous:
Rent and Royaltics 48,002 19,750 07,752 46,532 (21.220)
Reimbursements 190.650 11,580 202.230 255,269 53,039
13ond Deposits 6,000 - 0,000 34437 28,437
Payments on Loans - - 385,113 385.113
Other 749,171 {208.290) 540,881 510.435 (30,440)
Special Assessment-other 09.300 69,300 70,930 1,630
Salc of Fixed Asscis
Salc of Vchicle/cquipment 45,000 45,000 90,935 51,935
Sale ofUnclaimud Property 7.000 7.000 22,985 15,985
‘lotal Salc of Fixed Asscts 52,000 52,000 119,920 07,920
Total Miscellancous 1,115,123 (176,960) 938.163 1,422,636 484,473
Total Operating Revenues 69,933,864 161,000 70,094,864 79,239,212 91,443,480
Other Financing Source:
Procecdstrom Capital L.case 2,912,600 - 2.912,600 2.705.584 (207.016)
Total Revenues 72,846,464 161,000 73,007,464 81,944,796 8,937,332
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City of Oxnard, California

General IF'une

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual ot a Budgetary Basis (Ci

U

For Fiscal Year E-nded June 30, 2002

(Unaudited)
Changes Actual Varlance
Original Increases Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budgel (Decreases) Budget Basis (Unfavorahle)
Expendlturcs
Gencral Government:
Legistative

City Council 208,507 90 209.457 199.510 9.947

CityTreasurcr 424,094 11,952 436,040 432,768 3.2718

City Clerk 309.033 5.847 315,480 310.653 4.827
Total Legislative 942,194 18,689 960,983 942,931 18.052
Administrative and Support Scrvices

City Manager 1.544,304 117,701 1,662,065 1.598.966 63.099

City Attomey 1,103.854 179.746 1,283,600 1.217.142 006,458

Financial Scrvices 2,984.238 176917 3,161,155 2.969.735 191.420

Non.Deparimental

Non-Program 12,125,770 1,099.857 15.225,627 13.898.611 1.327.m6

Amount Reclassificd as ¥ransfers Oul (5.553.381) 519 (5.552.862) (5.282,749) €270.11))

Amount Reclassificed as Capital Outlay (3,200,000 - (3.200.000) (3.012,000) (188,000)

Amount Estimated for CDC Loans (3,034.239) 308.679 (2,725.205) (2.725.560)

Sub-Total 238.150 3,409.055 1.747.205 2,878,302 868,903
‘Total Adminlstrative and Support Services 5,970,546 3,R83.479 9,854,025 8,664,145 1,189,880
Other 77.000 221.376 304.376 303032 1.244
Total General Government 6,989,840 4,129,544 11,119,384 9,910,208 1,209,176

Public Safety:
Police 27.232.298 658.880 27.891.178 27,950,128 (58.950)
Fire 8,504,469 413875 8,938,344 9,990,974 (1,052.630)
Strect Lighting:
SCI: Sircct Lighting 1,181,154 401 1,181,615 1,126.845 54,770
Total Public Safcty 36,917,921 1,093,216 38,011,137 39,067,947 (1,056,810)
68 Continucd
City of Oxnard, California
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changesin Fand Balance
Budget and Actual on a Budgetary Basis (Continued)
For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002
(Unaudited)
Changes Actual Variance
Orlginal Increases Revised Budgetary Favorablc
Budget (Ibecreases) _ Budget Basis (Unfavorahle)
Transporiation:
Transportation Planning and Engincering 775,109 2,521 777,630 797735 (20.105)
Total Transportation 775,109 2,521 777,630 797,738 (20,105)
Community Development: 36.080
Engi.nterin;_,- Scrvices . Design 1.092,579 59,504 1,152,083 1,115,997
Public ScrvlccAAdbmims"alion . 259,143 8,251 267.396 314,453 (47,057)
Planning and Lnvironmental Services 1,053,248 298,620 1.351.868 1,092,821 259,047
Economic Development Services and Tourism 483,053 22,940 505,993 505,993 -
Bevclopment and Conslruclion S_clviccs 2,103,189 42.943 2,146,132 2,249,766 (103,634)
l)cvc!o»mcnl §uppnnl|'ublic Projects 426,136 8978 435,114 431,754 3.360
Housing Scrvuc%'s . 98,885 57.430 156.315 139,095 17,220
Neighhorhoqd Services 157,203 15,197 172,400 165,287 7013
Human Services 1,214,818 153,209 1,368,027 1,336,555 31472
Total Community Development 6,888,254 667,074 7,555,328 7,351,721 203,607
Cuiture and Leisure:
Recrcation Services 1,410,152 167.502 1,577,654 1,737,155 (159,501)
Carncgie Arl Muscum 230,740 38,650 269.390 206,524 2,800
Parks and I'ublic Grounds 3,896,947 246,799 4,143,746 4,538.320 (394,574)
Total Culture and Lcisure 5,537,839 452,951 5,990,790 6,541,999 (551,209)
Library Services:
LibraryServices 2,597,889 188,566 2,786,455 2,790,310 (3.855)
Total Library Services 2,597,889 188,566 2,786,455 2,790,310 (3,855)
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City of Oxnard, California

Gencral Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual on a Budgetary Basis (Continued)

For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002

(Unaudired)
Changes Actual Variance
Original Increases Reviscd Budpctary Favorahle
Budget (Decreases) Budpet Basis (Unflavorablc)
Capital Outlay:
General Government
lLegistative LS00 1.500 1.12§ 378
Administration and Support Services. 320702 321,702 3.029.204 182,438
lublic Safery
Police 1,131,507 1,131,507 1,083.970 47,537
Fire 175.509 175.509 187.818 (12,30
Transporiation: 75,255 75.255 0739 7910
Community Development
Engincering Services - Design 16,610 16.610 16.610
Public Services Adnumistration 1977 1.977 1977
Development and Construction Services 159.249 159.249 isR. M3 Sl
Development SupportPublic Projects 3847 3.547 1.636 1911
INeighborhood Services 19324 19.324 19.324
Culturc and Lelsure:
Reercation Services 15,000 35.000 15.000
Parks and Public Grounds 192,365 192,305 210.915 (18.55m)
Library Services e 135,583 135.583 e
‘Total Capital OQutlay 5,159,128 — 5,159,128 4,914,294 244454
Total Operating Fxpenditures 64,865,980 6533872 71,399,852 71,374,194 25,658
Other Financing Iiscs - T'ransfers Qut —
Caputal Qutlay Fund 2.197.7M 2,197.731 2197731
City of Oxnard Financing Authority 1.742.251 (59.950) 1.682.301 1,412.188 270,013
PACC Operating Fund 724,849 724.849 724.849
Golf Course Fund 947981 947981 947,981
Yotal Transfers out 7 5,612.812 (59,950) 5.552.862 5,282,749 2
Total Expenditures 70,478,792 6,473,922 76,952,714 76,656,943 295,771
Excess (deficiency) atf Revenues Over Expenditures and Other Uses 2.367.672 (6.212,922) (3,945.250) 5.287.853 8.041.561
Fund Balance, July | 21,496,345 — 21.,496.145 21,496,148 —
Fund Balance, Junc 30 S 23863817 S__16312922) 5 17,550,895 26,783,998 S 854156
Adjustments o GAAD Basis:
F.ncumbrances . 612.020
Fund Balance, GAAP Basis - Junc 30 =% _213966(8
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City of Oxnard, California
Major Special Revenue Funds
Major Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Bud get and Actual On Budgetary Basis
Year Ended June 30, 2002
{(Unaudited)
Changes Actlual Variance
Increases Revised Budgclary Favorable
Original Budget (Decreases) Budget Basis (Unfavorablc)
DEVELOPMENT FEES FUND

Revenues:

Growth and Development Fecs S 8.037.040 s 300000 $ 8,937,040 s 7432528 S (1.504.512)

Intercst 750.006 . 750,000 1,131.094 380.428

Misccllancuus 67,726 07,720
Total Revenues 9,387,706 300,000 9,687,706 8,631,348 (1,056,358)
Expenditures

Community Development 2,446,745 1,341,894 3.788.039 13.008 (3,775,571

Capital Outlay 2.939.040 15.238.368 18.177,408 3.896.450 (1-4.250,958)
Total Expenditures 5,385,785 16,580,262 21,966,047 3,909,518 (18,056,529)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over (under) Expenditures 4,001,921 (16,280.202) (12.278.341) 4,721,830 17,000.171
Other Financing Sources (Uscs):

Transfers In - - . 1,265,481 1,205,481

Transfers Out (1.005.904) (53.520) (1,119.424) (2,764,183) (1,644,759)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses): (1,065,904) (53.520) (1,119,429) (1,498,702) (379,278}
Excess (Deliciency) of Revenues over Expenditures and @ther IFinancing

Sources (Uses) 2930017 (16.333.782) (13.397.765) 3223128 16,620,893
Fund Balance, July | 22,968,969 — 22,968,969 22,968,969 —
Fund Batance, Junc 30 $ 25,904,986 S (16313.782) S 9,571,204 5 26,192,097 S 16,620,893
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City of Oxnard, Cdlifornia

Major Special Revenue Funds

Schedule o f Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (continued)

Bud get and Actual on a Budgetary Basis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002

Changes Actual Variance
Increascs Revised Budgetary Favorable
Original Budget (Decreases) Budget Basis (Unfavorablc)
HUD & CDBG GRANTS FUND
Revenues:
Intergovernmesnial $ 4225373 $ (5.000) $ 422037 4.253.7149 s 33376
Misccllancous - "= - — 184,190 184,190
Total Revenues 4,225,373 (5,000} 4,220,373 4,437,939 217,566
Expenditures:
Community Development 1.083,299 2,030.6501 3.713.955 1,663,222 (2.050,733)
Culture and |.cisure 215,500 363.405 578,905 502,154 (76,751)
Capital Outlay 1.505.389 2,560,090 4.005.479 2.365.463 (1.700,016)
Total Expenditures 3,404,188 4,954,151 8,358,339 4,530,839 (3,827,500)
Excess (Deficicncy) of Revenues over Expenditures 821,185 (4,959.151) (4,137.966) 192,900) 4,045,000
Fund Balancc, July | 60.443 (2,516,097) (2,455,654) 328,871 2,784,525
Fund Balance (Deficit), Junc 30 S 881,628 S (7,475,248) S (6,593,620) 235,971 H 6,829,591
72 Continucd -
City of Oxnard, California
Major Special Revenue Funds
Schedule o f Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (continued)
Budget and Actual on a Budgetary Basis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002
Changes Actual Variance
Increases Revised Budgctary Favorable
Original Budget {Decreases) Budget Basis (Unfavorablc)
STATE AND FEDERAL GRANTS FUND
Revenues:
Taxes 5 3.618,990 s 26,520 $ 3645516 5,189,718 $ 1,544,202
Imergovernmental 107,000 18,232,930 18.339.936 7,134,155 (11,205,781)
Interest .- 3,535 3,535 197.107 193.572
Misccllancous - 76.900 76,906
Total Revenues 3,725,996 18,262,991 21,988,987 12,597,886 (9.391.108)
Expenditures:
Public Safety 3,618,996 322,039 3,941,035 5,018.687 (1.677.652)
“Transportation - 591,790 591,790 181.136 410,054
Community Hevelopment 104,500 6,858.134 6,962,634 179,205 6.783.429
Culture and Leisure —_ - 541,053 (541.053)
Capital Outlay 125.000 11,977.854 12.102.854 4,142,906 7.954.888
Total Expenditurcs 3,848,496 19,749,817 23,598,313 10,668,047 12,930,266
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures (122,500) (1,486,280) {1.,609,326) 1.929.839 3,539.165
Other Financing lses:
Translers Qut (2,500) (2.660) (5.160) - 5,160
Excess (Deticicncy) of Revenues Over lixpenditures and Other
Financing tUscs (125,000) (1,488.940) (1,614,480) (1,929.839) (3,544,325)
Fund Balance, July | 233,470 . (2,288,673) (2,055,203) 3,709.879 5.765,082
Fund Balance, Junc 30 $ 108,470 $ (3,778,159) S (3.669,689) 5.639,718 S 9.309.407
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City of Oxnard, California

Trend Information - Pension Plan
June 30, 2002
(Unaudited)

TREND INFORMATION

Trend information gives an indication of the progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. The City presents the most
recent available three-year APC trend information for each plan, along with required supplementary information, as follows:

Trend Information by Plan (dollar amount in thousands)

Actuarlal Valuation Annual Pcasion Percentageol Net Penslon
Date Cost (APC) APC Contributed ___ Obligation

Police 06/30/00 5 2,308.772 100% -
06/30/0% 1,923,975 100% -
006/30/02 3004017 100% -

tire 006/30/00 519.267 100% -
06/30/01 507.719 100%
00/30/02 526.308 100%

Miscellancous 06/30/00 2,070.165 100% -
006/30:01 2,132,982 100% -
006730/02 2.482.732 100%

Required Supplementary Information (dollar amount in thousands)

Enlry Age Unfundcd/{Overlunded) Annual
Actuarial Acluarial Asscl Actuarial Accrued Acluarial Funded Covered UAAL asa
Vialualion Date Value Liablilly Accrucd blabitity Ratio Payroll Percentage of Payroll
Police
00/30/99 S 92,289 s 77.153 S (15.130) 119.6% 12176 (12431)%
06/30/00 105.776 98.871 {6.905) 107.0% 12917 (535N%
0630701 108.946 106.034 (2912) 102.7% 13.635 (21.40)%
Fire
06/30/99 58.993 50.525 {8.468) 116.8% 4752 (178.20)%
0630700 66,909 59.042 {7.267) H22% 5.413 (134.25)%
06/30/01 68.373 64.109 (4.265) 106.7% 5.574 (76 50)%
Miscellancous
0673099 160.768 122,709 (38.059) 131.0% 27.568 (138.05)%
00,/30/00 175.584 131,545 (44.0)9) 131.5% 28.814 (152.84)%
06/30/0t 179.046 141,750 (37,296) 126.3% 34,200 (109.10)%
74

Part of the Art in Public Places Campaign
This piece is titled “Connections”



|_INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS I

Internal Service Funds are established to account for goods and services provided by one City
department to other City departments or related entities, generally on a cost recovery basis.

Workers’ Compensation Fund—This fund is used to account for the City’s self-insurance program
for workers’ compensation claims.

Public Liability and Property Damage—This fund is used to account for the City’s self-insurance
program of providing public liability and property damage insurance coverage and claims adjustment
services to the City’s operating funds.

Utility Customer Services Fund—This fund is used to account for the costs associated with
administering the operation of the Customer Services Division and to distribute these costs to the
various City utilities such as water, sewer and refuse.

Information Services Fund—This fund is used to account for the costs associated with the City’s
data/word processing and financial systems and to distribute these costs to the departments using the
systems on a pro rata basis. Included are costs for hardware and software maintenance, computer
operation costs and some centralized supplies.

Facilities Maintenance Fund—This fund is used to account for the operation and maintenance of City
facilities, properties and capital projects.

Equipment Maintenance Fund—This fund is used to account for automotive fleet maintenance and
services provided to City departments.

Factory Outlet Shopping Center



City of Oxnard, California

Internal Service Funds
Combining Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2002

Puhlic Uthity
Workers® .iabilits/Property Customer Information Facililics Equipment
Compensation Damage Secrvices Services Malntenance Maintenance Tolal
Asscls
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2372451 s 6.851.499 S  S1587 S 1.347.487 s 570,295 201734 $ 11.859.357
Accounts and Other Reeuivables 85,622 828 - — 86.450
Capital Asscts:
Propeny. Plant and t:quipment 16.198 3791 11R.07% 5.88).413 760,604 766.097 7.548.183
L.ess: Accumulaicd Depreciation (1427) (2.739) 52.339) (5.572.400) (507.,464) (6R9.119) (6.825.488)
Net Capital Asscts 14771 1,054 05,739 21013 253.140 76.978 722.695
Total Assets 2,472,844 6.853,181 S81.630 1,658,500 823,435 278,712 - 12,668,502
Liabllities
Current Llabilitics:
Accounts Payahlc 12,159 41.2x8 19978 129.186 76,784 270.901 550,296
Non-current Liabllitics:
Sclf-Insurance Claims Liahilitics 8.881.920 4,049.116 - . 12,931.052
Compensated Ahsences 21013 74.278 84,150 171,257 150.679 501,377
Total Liabilitics 8,915,108 4,090,404 94,256 213,336 248,041 421,580 13,982,725
Net Assets
Invested in Capital Asscts, Net of Refated Debt 14.771 1.054 65.739 3o 253.140 76,978 722.695
Restricted - — —
Unrestricted {6.457.035) 2,761.923 421.035 1.134,151 322,254 (219.840) (2.036.918)
Total Net Asscts (Liabilitles) $ (6,442,264 3 2,762,977 $ 487,374 S 1,445,164 3 575.394 (142.468) $ (1.314,223)
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City of Oxnard, California
Internal Service Funds
Combining Statement of Casit Flows
June 30,2002
Public Uity
Workers' Liability/Property Customer Information Facllitics Fquipment
Compensation Damage Services Services, “Main(cnance Malntenance Total
Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 4.020.882 s 1.286.500 5 1.000.405 $ 2.911.820 $ 2190101 $ 3823954 $ 17.234.728
Opcerating Expenses:
Salanes and Wages 187.878 41.570 398.774 784,044 1.097.963 1.460,62Y 3,976.858
Contractual Services 372,662 101.498 21751 207.080 50.337 1,202 754,530
Operating Supplics 7.846 1375 174,314 12,505 162,208 1.679.77& 2.038.080
Utitities 3,589 4.102 5.638 683,482 403.487 12,301 1,112.599
Deprectation and Amunization 599 1.264 0.127 179.480 52.565 34,344 274.379
Generaland Adminislratve 220,428 223,279 301,985 468,110 259.649 89.509 1,562,900
Repairsand Mamienance 5.280 - 16.528 227.015 87411 632,584 968.818
Claims Expenses 5.613,835 2,565,949 — - . 8,179.784
Total Operating Expenses 6.412,117 2,939,037 925,117 2,561,716 2,113,680 13,916,347 18,868,014
Net Operating Income (1.0ss) L (239.235) 347,463 75.288 350.1 10 77.481 (92393 (1.633.280)
Net Asscts (Llabilltics) - Juiy 1 (4.051,029) 2415,514 412,086 1,095,054 497,913 (50,475) 319,063
Net Assets (L.labilitics) - June 30 $ (6,442,264) s 2,762,977 s 487,374 5 1,445,164 s 575.394 $  (142,868) $ (1,314,223)
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City of Oxnard, California

Internal Service Funds
Combining Statement o f Cash Flows
June 30, 2002

Cash Flows from Operating Activitics:
Cash Received firom Other Funds
Cash Paid to (Taimants and Risk C‘onsultanis
Cash Paid to Supplicrs
Cash Paid to Employces
Net Cash Provided by (Uscd In) Operating Aclivitics

Cash Flows from ('Tlpllal and Related Financing Actlvitics:
Acquisition of Capital Asscts

Net Cash Provided by Capital and Related Financing Aclivitics
Net Increase (Pecreasce) in Cash and Cash Lquivalents
Cash and Cash Equisvalents, July 1, 2001
Cash and Cash Equlvalents, Junc 30, 2002

Reconclliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by (uscd in) Operating Activitics:
Operating Income (Loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (loss) to
NetCash Provided by Operating Activitics:
Dcprccia'linn and Amortizalion
Changes in Net Asscts and Liabilitics:
Decrease in Accounts Receivahles
Increase (decreasc) in Accounts Payables
Increase (decrease) in Sclf-insurance Claims Liabilitics

Increase (d ) in C

Net Cash Provided by (Used In) by Operating Activitics

Public 1ieilley
Workers® Llabillty/Property Customer Information Facllitics tquipment
" i Damage Servlces Tvices i Total
§ 1.935.200 $ 3.280.472 $ 1,000.405 s 2911826 s 2,191,511 s 1.823.954 $17.149.428
{3.562.741) (2.676,.889) - - -- - (6.239,630)
(670.048) (332,323) (556,800) (1,660,459) (955.178) 2.417.681) (6,592.489)
(166.865) (41,570) (391,689) (780.197) (1.071.597) (1.443.221) (3.895.134)
(464,394) 235,690 51,921 471170 164,736 (36.948) 422.175
(i3.160) - (7.375) (58.028) (82.889) (39,010) (200.408)
(13.166) - (1.375) (58.028) (82,889) (39.010) (200.468)
(4717,560) 235.690 44,546 413.142 81.847 (75,958) 221,707
2,850,011 6,615,809 471,345 934,345 488,448 277,692 11,637,650
s 2372451 S 6,851,499 $ __ SISg9 s 1,347,487 S 570,295 s 201,734 § 11,859.357
S (2,391,235) $ 347.403 5 75.288 $ 350.110 $ 77.481 s (92.393) $ (1.633,280)
599 1,264 6,127 179.480 52,565 34,344 274379
(85.622) (28) B - 350 - (85,300)
(60.243) (2,009) (36.584) (62,267 7.974 {2307 (155.496)
2,051.094 (110,940) -— — — - 1,940,154
21.013 - 7,090 3,847 26,366 23,408 81.724
$ {464.394) s 235,690 . $ 51,921 S 471,170 s 164,736 $(36,948) $ 422,175
77

City of Oxnard's Civic Center



FIDUCIARY FUNDS l




City of Oxnard, California

Fiduciary Fiuds
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
June 30, 2002

Balance Balance
July 1, 2001 Additlons Detluctions Junc 30,2002
Assets:
Cash and Cash [:quivalents 5 44.470 1.973 - 406.443
Total Asscts s 44,470 1,973 — 46,443
Llabilitics:
“I'rustand Agency Payables b 44,470 1,973 — 46.433
Total Llabilitics $ 44,470 1,973 — 46,433
| IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT FUND |
Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 6,779,949 10.542.497 7.543.870 9.778.576
Investments with Fiscal Agents 5.255.7174 3,744,152 3.960,522 5.039,404
Total Asscts s 12,035,723 14,286,649 11,504,392 14,817,980
Liabllitics:
Trustand Agency Payables $ 12,035.723 14,280.649 11.504.392 14.817.980
Total Liabllltles s 12,035,723 14,286,649 11,504,392 14,817,980
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Fiduciary Funds
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets (Continued)
June 30, 2002
Balance Balance
Juty (, 2001 Additions Deductlons Junc 30,2002
| ToTAL - ALL FIDUCIARY FUNDS |
Assels:
Cash and C'ash liquivalents 3 6,824,419 10,544,470 7.543.870 9.825.019
Iavestments with Fiscal Agents 5.255.774 3.744.152 3.960,522 5.039.404
Total Asscls s 12,080,193 14,24R,622 11,504,392 14,864,423
Llabilitics:
“Trustand Agency Payables S 12,080.193 14.288.622 11,504,392 14.864.423
Tolal Llabilitics s 12,080,193 14,288,022 11,504,392 14,864,423
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City of Oxnard, California

Govermmental Non-Major Funds
Combining Balance Sheet
Year Ended June 30, 2002

Transpartalion

Maintcnance

Slate Gas Traf(ic Developmenl Assessment
Taa Fund Safety Fund Fund Districts Fund Toal

Asscts:

Cash and Cash Iiquivalents s 2.458.521 102.277 S 3.187.325 S 2.645.328 8,391.458

Accounis and O1her Reecivables 2.520 2217 4.737

Duc From Other Govemments 115717 - 1s.n?
Total Assels s 2,461,041 217,994 3 3.187,325 5 2,647,552 8.513.912
Liabllitics and Fund Balances
Liabilities:

Accounts Payabic 5 060,339 13.842 $ 69.136 $ 134,244 283,571

QOlher Liabibnes 53,048 13.376 133,622 71321 271367
Total Liabilities 119,387 27,218 202,768 205,505 554,938
Fund Balances:

Designated for Aulhorized Projects 1,162,540 69,431 2,984.557 4,216,528

Undcsignated 1.179.114 121,345 2,441,987 3.742.440
Total Fund Balanccs 2,341,654 190,776 2,984.557 2,441,987 7,958,974
Total Liabilitics and Fund Balances S 2,461,011 217,994 $ 3.181.325 5 2,647,552 8,513,912
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Governmental Non-Major Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balauces
Year IEnded June 30, 2002
Transporlalion Maintenance
Slale Gas Traffic Bevelupment Assessment
Tax Fund Safely Fund Fund Districts Fund Total

Revenues:

Imcegovernmental s 1.337.800 $ $ 3.651.402 S 0.979,208

Finesand Forlenures 369.732 369.732

Interest 21.438 118,951 210,389

Spucial Assessmeits 1,515.592 1.515.592

Maiscctlanc:ous 148.731 G.9%4 169.873 325,588
Toftal Revenucs 1577,975 376,710 3811.275 1,634,543 9.400.509
Expenditurcs:
Cuerent

Transportation 2.667.503 601450 495,925 3.704.884

Comnwnity Development 2.025.5906 2.025.596

Capual Outlay 489.503 191.145 2,117,265 - 2797913
Total Fxpenditures 3.157,006 792,601 2,613,190 2,025,596 8,588,393
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over lxpenditures 420,969 (415.885) 1,198,085 (391.053) 812116
Fund Balances, July 1 1,920,685 606,601 1,786,472 2,833,040 7,146,858
Fund Balances, Junc 30 bl 2,341,654 5 190,776 3 2,984,557 $ 2,441,987 7,958,974
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City of Oxnard, California

Non-Ma jor Special Revemee Fumls

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fiend Balances (continued)

Budget and Actual on a Budgetary Basis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002

Changes Actual Variance
Orlglnal Sncreases Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget (Decreases) Budgat Basis {Unfavorzhic)
NON-MAJOR FUNDS
Revenues:
Intergovemmental $ 7.010.4960 3 100,376 5 7.130.872 S 0.979.208 3 (151,004)
Fincs and Forleitures 750.000 750,000 309,732 (380,208)
Interest 196.500 196,500 210389 13.889
Special Assessments 1,505.800 - 1,505,800 1,515,592 9,792
Misccllancous 412272 412,272 325,588 (86,084)
Total Revenuces 9,895,068 100,376 9,995,444 ‘—“—9.400.509 - (594,935)
Expenditures:
Current:
Public Safcty — _
Transpodation 3741601 2,807,912 0,549,513 3.764.884 2,784,629
Community Devclopment - — — 2,025,596 (2.025,596)
Culture and I.cisure - — — — -
Capital Outlay 1,299,509 4,381,272 5,080,781 2797913 2,882,808
Total Expenditures 5,041,110 7,189,184 12,230,294 8,558,393 3,641,901
Excess (Dcficiency) of Revenucs Ov-er Expenditures 4,851,958 (7,088.808) (2,234,850) 812,116 3,046.966
Fund Balance, July | 7,146,858 —_ 7,146,858 7,146,858 _—
Fund Balance, June 30 S 2,000,816 $_(7,088.808) S 4,912,008 § 7,958,974 s 3,046,966
Conlinued -
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City of Oxnard, California
Debt Service Fund
Schedule of Revenes, Expenditures and Changey in Fund Balances (continued)
Budget and Actual on a Bud gerary Basis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002
Changes Aclual Variance
Original Increases Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget (Decreases) Builget Basis (Vinfuvorahle)
DEBT SERVICE FUND
Revenues:
Taxes $ 1.600.000 s $  Loun.000 s 1.629.857 1Y 29.857
Interest 200,000 — 200.000 240,042 40,042
Total Revenues 1,800,000 — - 1,800,000 1.870,499 ‘E”—_ -
Expenditures:
Debt Service:
Principal 2,450,000 2.450,000 2,412.335 37,665
Interest 2,000,000 2,000,000 1,988,947 11053
“Total Expenditures 4,450,000 —_ _——;.;150.000 4,401,282 o 48,718 B
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures (2,650.000) (2.650,000) (2,530,783) 119,217
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
“I'ransfers In 2,500,000 - 2.500.000 2,331,971 3197
“TIranslersOut - - .-
Totat Other Financing Sources (Uscs) 2,500,000 —_ 2,500,000 253197 3197
“‘“f)“:;"ﬁ‘n‘;,"‘:; :‘;‘l::::s“(‘g;issl““'c“ Over Fxpenditures and (150.000) (150.000) 1188 151,188
Fund Balance, .uly | 1,1332.714 — 1,332,714 1,332,714 —
Fund Balancc, Junc 30 S 1,182,714 § - S 1,182,714 $ 1,333,902 s 151,188
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STATISTICAL SECTION

(Unaudited)

The Statistical Section contains comprehensive statistical data which relates to physical, economic,
social, and political characteristics of the City. It is intended to provide users with a broader and more
complete understanding of the City and its financial affairs than is possible from the basic financial
statements.

Statistical Section tables usually cover more than two fiscal years and often present data from outside
the accounting records. The Statistical Section information is not subject to independent audit.




City of Oxnard, California

TABLE 1

General Goverumental Expenditures by Function (1)
LastTen Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)
Year
Faded General Public Public Community .
Junc 30,  _Government Safcty Works _Development_ GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES
1993 $10.204,882 $26.103,004 $4,000,778 $17,203.104 -
1994 8.478,925 26,879,436 3727013 18,983,153 $45,000,000
1995 6.890.394 29,668,271 3771512 20.471.405 $40,000,000 m B
2 ,983.4. .381.184 | 3
1996 5,520,004 29.675.975 3.983431 22.381.18 $35.000.000 w B
1997 7,070,153 34,058,231 4,081,468 20,108,988 ‘.‘—
$30,000,000 E T
1998 7,016,296 35.691.103 4,295,643 22.252.840 &
$25.000,000 3
1999 7.579.837 32.862.850 3.990.342 25,786,055 ‘m
2000 2,602,018 38.888.150 5.169.841 25,247,832 $20.000.000 kN
2001 7.713.044 40,353,308 5.384,755 13,031,954 $15.000.000 3
2002 9,786,593 44,500.812 4,743,755 15209415 $10,000,000 g -
[}
Year Culture & $5.000.000
Ended Leisure & Deht Capitat s0
__Juned0, __ Other =~ _ Service = _ Ouigy  __ Towl Pubtic Safery Commanity Drvelnpment DebtSoriee
1993 $8.096,053 $5,786.290 §21.549,039 $93.063.156 General Goveonment Pubbe Warke Culmres] etoure £aptial Guria]
1994 7909184 12,094,852 160.269.637 94,342,200 B 02 M 200
1995 8.243.316 5,499,027 19.252.801 93,802.727
1996 7.738.299 5.951.109 21,427,099 96.677,161
H Includes General, Special Revenue, Debt Service and
1997 7,728,394 4,450,121 27,523,245 105,020,600 NOTE M . neral, Special Revenue, Service a
Capital Project Funds.
1998 7.788.172 4,139,208 26,262,397 107,445,755
1999 8.772.328 4,978,220 23.027,980 100,997,624 SOURCE: Annual Financial Reports
2000 8238815 6,673,012 23.469.160 115,288,888
2001 7.799,434 4.737,657 16,294,274 95,197,233
2002 10,362.415 4,401,282 23,794,608 112,918,609
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TABLEH
General Governmental Revenues by Source (1)
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)
Year ) Crowth & GENERAL GOVERNMENTA L. REVENUE COMPARISON
Ended Licenses later- Devetopment
~dunedo, _Tued) ity Governmental  __ Feey
1993 s 34223604 § 1297547 § 29,480.089 $ 3.723.454
1994 36,50290 1134006 36.437.977 2.173.428
" $0,000.000 T
1995 36,275,589 1,050,127 38,062,782 1,646,717
199¢
990, 37,710,655 1,266,617 41.482.110 3501774 nan
1997 36.976.727 1.609.510 40,920.504 3,675.892
1998 39.024.110 1.391,272 45,808,968 4332493 30.000.008 |
1999 38,111,470 2,213,020 49.262.250 5,232,503
200 42,054,756 2474290 47,735.813 11,840,090 20,400,000 -
2001 51.637,001 221,303 21,714,568 8.049,376
2002 39,054,879 1.987,392 37.691.308 7,432.528 1e-000.000 7
Year ®
Eaded Charges for ines & . !
—June30. _ Servces =~ Forfellures  _ nterest  Misccllancous {3y _ Total Taues Intrrgaveramentsl  Chavgesfar Serviees Intevert
1993 5 2840050 § 708272 S 4202193 5 7210756 $ 83.695.174
O 2002 2001
1994 2,457,202 70218 2,503,755 0427702 88.197.338
s 2.413.304 949.834 3075911 7420779 91,504,103
1096 3216968 $83.595 3616963 14872 99.007.5% NOTES: (1) Incl}xdes General, Special Revenue, Debt Service and Capital
1997 2700,071 307,001 3.743.337 S40.143  95.961.275 Projects Funds
1998 372091 .92 20,872 (09, 079, \ t i
3 864928 332087 500057 104079134 (2) See Table 1l {or detailed breakdown of tax revenues
1999 7191112 1211785 4.241,599 598116 113301855
2000 0,696,895 1.698.760 5,209,190 7008947 124,718,753 (3) Includes special assessments, dwelling rentat and miscellaneous.
2000 6070015 1,281,259 4389201 4737657 106.093.410
2002 7008.643 1411837 4.588.082 5081897 125.160.506 SOURCE: Annual Financial Reports
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City of Oxnard, California

TABLE Il

General Governmeutal Tax Revenues by Source
Last Teu Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)
Year General Transportatlon General Transient , e
Ended Froperty Developmient Storm brain Sales Oceupancy GENERAL GOVERN MLN TAL TAX REV EE UES
_dume 3 _laxes (1) & Gas laxes {2) Ames Taxes Fanes - B T
[SDRIEY 176160500 $ 206844 & 11.282.058 S 1.343.909 74
frpr I -
IR [EX{RLR ] (3] 292069 12.218.117 1362710
1995 17.568.401 23 12.873.650 1,348,203
ioaresse | _

1996 17,000,887 1.549 14.675.018 145,120

1997 17820022 13,481,032 1.626.661 rerenann

1oog 17962573 14867138 1.763.012

H9a 13,088 320 13.499,01¢ 1907745 1o eavaes

2000 17016708 17,257,447 1.876.513 //

23 7 5 . o ’\
2001 2357400 () 18140143 2328218 Rbiad ~<,
2002 20.055.610 - 19,836,352 2321388
) ) | I [ [Srtoil
Year Business tiemeral Fraperty Tasee Tesssient Dermpanes foves Bastaces Liesare frnre
Enderd Lititity Franchise Licenses Deed
June 30, _ Vaxes (}) Tanes, Aases Taves ‘ota) —a— 2002 O  om
1993 s 1907900 § 1658726 § 177067 § 3223004
1901 JUK2RTD 1.200.942 207.459 30,802,900 NOTES: (1) Sec Tablc IV for detailed bre-akdown of general property tax levies and collections.
9% 3 8 " .

10s 203039 1.876.616 178308 36,275,580 (2) Iransportation development and gas taxcs (previonsty included as tax revenuc sourcc)

1996 1,872,001 2.039.348 275.825 37.710.655 were reclassificd as intergovemmental revenucs in liscal year 1987

107 -BR0.183 2220602 H0.87 0.076.723 (3)  Asaresull of declining revenucs. the Cily Council approved the 4% utilitics 1ax on

109% 1810761 2,303,850 38578 39.024.110 July 20, 1983 per Ordinance No. 1978, which was subscquenily amended on Junc 24,
1986 per Ordinance Nu. 2084 The amendmicnt calls (lor a structured rate reduction

¢ 5 2. FRIRH X 3811137 AR

19 182253 2431690 324 B.A1t470 untl 1t zeroed out in fiscal year 1991 However, on March 10, 1987, Ordinance No

2000 2.500.613 2.550.678 130,080 42054750 2109 was passcd by the City Council repcaling the utilitics taa law that took cffect on

200 4807004 2,203,188 583.017 SL631.000 July 1.198)

2002 7.085.201 3.194.683 555,249 59.058.879 (4) Thisamount includes a $2.561.873 audit aljusiment o the Sauthera Calitomia CGas
Company franchise forthe ycar 1983 through 1989  Franchisc taxcs for the year 199
are S1.138.59.

SOURCE: Annual Financial Reposts
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TABLE 1V
Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)
Total Ay £ s g0 Lo
. FAX COLLECTIONS 1993-2002
Year Current Percent of  Delinquent Collections
Ended Total Tax Tax Tax Total Tax As a % of : {
June30, __levy  Collcgtion: Collcctions  Collections Tazbewy [
Jo.oui.n00 |
1993 $18.331.754 $ 16.929.453 92.35% $687.047 $17.616.500 96.10%
1994 17.570000 17,467,000 99.40% 621.750 18,088.810 102.95% +5.000,000 -4
1995 17.318,u0 12,000.909  98.17% 567.432 17,568,401 101.45%
0.000.000 |
1996 18.290.398 16.831.456 91 99% 509,431 17,400,887 95.11%
1997 18233366 17033821 9342% 487301 17521122 96.09% 1ranasee
1998 18.113.087 17,712,334 97.78% 250,440 17,962,774 99.17% 16,000,000 -
199 15011200 14,808,70%  99.03% 189,551 15.058,320 100.29%
5.000.000 =
2000 17.038.470 17,317,763 101.64% 99,032 17.416.795 102.22%
2001 23,330.000 23.484.5067(2) 100.45% 90.104 23,574,73t 100.83% o
1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2007
2002 25,900.1KX) 25,718,029 99.30% 284,711 26,002,740 100.40%

NOTE: (1) Total tax collections agreed to General Property Taxes
shown in Table 1.

(2) Voter’s approved tax for $3,977,315 was transferred from
trust and agency to the special revenue fund in FY 2001

SOURCE: Finance and Management Services Department
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Year
Ended
lunc 30,

1993
1994
1995
1996
1007
oR
1999
2000
2000

2002

YEAR

ENDED
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1993
1992
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199
(207
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1990
2000
2
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Year
Ended

June 30,
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190
1997
19
0
2000
201

2002

TABLEV
Property Tax Rates
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)
Basic City School Water Total PROPERTY TAX RATES 1993.2002
_County (1) District} (2} Districts i —  _TexRates
1.0000% 0.0490% 0.0730:% 1.2555% 1.7810%
100004 0.0495% 0.0085% 0.2693% 1.3873%
L00N% 0.0380% 0.0805% 0.2913% 1.4098%
1.0000% 1.0362% 0.0773% 0.3105% 11240%
L0000 0.0367% 0.0807% 0.3328% 1.4502%
1.0000% 00367% 0.1360%% 0.3449% 1.5176%
1.0000% 00307% 0.1491% 0.1212% 1.3070%
1.0000% 0.0475% GA740% 0.0979% 1.3194%
. 1093 1908 a5y 1299 2000
g L0475%, 0.1714% 0.0077% 1.3106%
Lo o ¢ ) e W wacrviice B sconoiiias BB <oy praricr
1.0000% 0.0575% 0.1867% 0.0723% 1.3165%
NOTES: (1)  The passage of Proposition 13 on Junc 6. 1978 cstablishcd a maximum
countywide levy of 1% of market valueor $1.00 per $100 of asscssed value. Prior
1o fiscal ycar 1981-82, assessed valuation was stated at 25% of market vatuc or
$4.00 per $100 of assessed value.
(2} InJune 1978, California voters approved Proposition |3 (Jarvis-
Gahn ) live) which added Anticle XHIA 10 the ("alitfomia Constitution. Article
XA limits ad valorem taxes on real property tn | percent of the fult cash value
plus taxes necessary lo repay indchicdness approved hy the volers priur fo July 1.
1978. Volers approved obligation of the City arc comprised o fthe 1969 Stonn
Drain Bond" and “Public Safcty Retirement.™ The 1969 Storm Drain Bond™ was
redcermed and paid ofT'as of Junc 30, 1094,
SOURCE: Venlura County Auditor-Controller's Oltice
City of Oxnard, California
TABLE Vi
- Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)
REAL PROPERTY PERSONAI PROPERTY
TOTAIL. ASSESSED PROPERTY VALLUE 1993-2002
ESTIMATED ASSESSHD ESTIMATED
__VALUE Y ACTUAL VALUE VALV ACTUAL VALUE
s 598043310 3 5980433036 S BL514023 S 81.514.023 Aﬁ
6.082.455.163 ©.082.455.163 108.703.850 108.703.850 £,890.000.000
©.215.308.18¢ 6.215.308.381 117,403,334 117493334 E/x/
312352104 6.312,352.104 119.814.733 119.814.735 _,E’R/
€307.831408 6.307,831.406 101123.838 101124038 mnn.ouo.oonz;—xz&'——x—g s T
6.473.207.002 6.473.207.602 93.844938 04844935
6,605.309.2%4 95.463.165 95303465
$843.276.538 91,597,348 91,597,348 4,000,000,000 —
2645014717 7.045.814.707 97.930.553 97.930.553
B.151.831139 8.351.831.039 11351228
2,000.000,000
EXEMPIIONS TOTAL RATIOOF TOTAL
ASSESSED YALUE
. TO TOTAL
ASSESSED ‘uuuu_m ASSESSED ESTIMAYE £.STIMATED ° T T T 0 T T T v d
ALLE . ALIE > - h
LYALUE@) ACTUALVALL, VALEE ACTUALVALUE  ACTUAL VALUE 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 12001 2002
$OHOTILME S MOTIIMI § S32.20048 3 SIN2NGM 10000%
692720941 692726941 5498432102 5.498.432.102 100 0%
697,128 516 §97.128.516 5415670199 503567049 10000% NOTES: (1) Pursuant to Internal Revenuc Scrvice and Tax Code Scction 135,
647.234.581 667.234,581 5.704.932.25% 5.764,932.258 100 00% property 1ax valuation is stated a1 100% of actual value.
720.50616.3 720.506463 S.688.0491 3% SORYAIIR 10000%
M401021 22,490,121 SRS S8ISSKANG o (2) The above exemption figures include homcowners busincss
79477086 rp— 56300 593205303 -~ inventory, redevelopment agency tax increments and other county
cxemptions.
3749014634 $74969.634 £000,904,252 o
816.310.724 310410724 $.8%.934.33 16000%, SOURCE: Ventura County Auditor - Controlicr's Office
903,803,935 05, 503938 75578329 2.557.318.420 Vouoins

City of Oxnard, California
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City of Oxnard, California

TABLE vl
Priucipal Taxpayers
June 30, 2002
(Unaudited)

PERCENTAGE
LIST ASSESSED OF ASSESSED
NO. TAXPAYER TYPE OF BUSINESS VALUATION VALUATION
1 PROCTOR & GAMBLE PAPER PRODUCTS COMPANY MANUFACTURING-PAPER PRODUCTS $ 269,163,758 1562%
2 ST. JOBN'S REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER HOSPITAL 149.730.718 1.981%
3 WILLAMETTE INDUSTRIES INC. PROCESSED PAPER MANUFACTURER (67,773,739 0.897%
4 CHW CENTRAL. COAST REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT 51.491,600 0.681%
N MGER VENTURA COUNTY REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT 47,081.230 0.631%
6 SEMINIS INC. SEEDS 45,118,255 1.597%
7 ORMOND BEACH POWER. Gen. LLC POWER PLANT 42,767,608 0 506%
g BMW OF NORTH AMERICA INC. AUTO MANUFACTURER 39.336.819 0.521%
9 OCEAN VISTA POWER GENERATION POWER PLANT 37.205,756 0.492%
10) DONWEN CORPORATION COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT 36.509.318 0.483%
1 FRED KAVLI REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT 34.162,579 0.452%
12 VERIZON MEDIA VENTURES INC. TELECOMMUNICATION 31.386.300 0.415%
13 TERMINAL FREEZERS INC. FOOD PROCESSING 30,197,990 1400%
14 ARDEN REALTY LTD PARTNERSHIP REALESTATE DEVELOPMENT 28.611,701 0.379%
s OTHERTAXPAYERS VARIOUS 6.640,181.,058 87.944%
TOTALS $ 7,557,318,429 100.000%,
NOTE: Assessed valuation includes land. building and improvements.
SOURCE: Information Services Department
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TABLE VIl
Computation of Legal Debt Margin
June 30, 2002
(In Thousands)
NET ASSESSED VALUE 3 7.557.318
ADD: Exempt property 905.864
Total assessed value 8.463.182
DEBT LIMIT - 15% of total assessed value 1.269.477
AMOUNT OF DEBT APPLICABLE TO DEBT LIMIT:
Grossbondeddebt $ 116,570
Less:
Assets in debt service funds for principal payments —
Other deductions allowed by law:
Revenue bonds - Governmental Activities (9,080)
Revenue bonds - Busines-type activities (84,575)
Tax allocation bond - Redevelopment Agency (14.475)
Certificates of participation (8.440)
Net amount of debt applicable to debt limit —
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN s 1,269,477

SOURCE: Finance and Management Services Department
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TABLE IX
Computation of Direct & Overlapping Bonded Debt
June 30, 2002
(Unaudited)
AMOUNTOF
% OF DEBT DEBT
NET DEBT APPLICABLE APPLICARLE
OUTSTANDING TOCITY OF * LESS: TO CITY OF
JURISDICTION 6-30-02 OXNARD EXCLUSIONS OXNARD
Direcy Bonded Bebt:
Cily of Oxnard S 29.390.000 100.000% $  29.390.000 < -
Cily of Oxnard-Povled insurance Obligation 1.227.732 100.000% 1,227,732 -
City of Oxnard-1915 Acl Bonds 32,020,000 100.000% 32.020.000 -
City of Oxnard Community Facilitics District 88-1 2.015.000 100.000% 2.015.000
TOTAL DIRECY BONDED DEBT 64,652,732 64,052,732 —
Ventura County Superintendent of Schools - COP 294,795 13.585% - 40,048
Veniwura County Community College District - COP 1,502,264 13.589% — 204.143
Ventura County General °und Obligations 11.859,020 13.585% - 1,611.049
Venltura County Pension Obligation 14,017,003 13.585% —_ 1.904.210
Metropolitan Waler Districl 3.632.202 0.222% - 20,224
Ovnard tinion High School District 23,003,820 43.502% — 10,007.122
Oxnard Union High School District - COP 8.130.524 43.502% - 3,536.941
Oxnard School District 66,248,007 90.108% - 59.694,754
Oxnard School District - COP 6,185,914 90.108% - 5,574,003
Rio School District 16,245,513 84.568% — 13.738,505
Rio School District - COP 4.710.438 84.568% - 3.983.523
Hueneme School District 5.784.344 50.808% - 2,938,909
Occan View School District 1.473.940 38.819% . 572464
Qccan View School Districl - COP 904.949 38.819% - 351473
TOTAL OVERLAPPING BONDED DERT 163,992,739 — 104,183,368
TOTAL DIRECT & OVERLAPPING BONDED DEBT 3 !l!éé&ll S 63652732 $ 104183368
* NOTE: Exclusions represent all bonds which are not tax supported obligations of the City.
SOURCE: California Municipal Statistics, Inc.
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TABLEX
Ratio of Net General Bonded Debt to Assessed Value
And Net Bonded Debt per Capita
June 30, 2002(Unaudited)
Les
veur (Zcen:ral Certain
nded ® Assessed ol e POPULATION 1993-2002
June 30, Population Valye (2) Debt (3) Funds 308,000
1993 148,000 3 5.321.233,948 $ 250,000 s 25.310
1994 150,600 5.498432.102 - 6315
1995 152.100 5.635,673.199 - - 150,000
1996 152,800 5,764,932.258 -
1997 153,700 5.688.449,138 - —_—
1998 156,000 5,845,558.416 -
1999 158,300 5.963.205,363 . - 100,000
2000 170358 6.060,904,252 - -
2001 172,700 6.896,934.546
2002 182,027 7.557,318.429 -
50,000
Ratio of Nel
Net Generat Ratio
Year Gencral Bonded Debdt or
Fnded Bonded To Assessed Debt °
dune 30, —Debt —Yale Caplta 1953 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 100§ 2002
1993 3 224,690 00004 150
1994 - —
1995 - — -
1996 _ NOTES: (1) Smrrcc- The Califomia Department of Finance, Demographic Rescarch
1997 _ Unit
1998 - ) ‘T'he passage of Proposition 13 on June 6, 1978 changed the basis of
1999 - property
1ax valuation from 25% of asscsscd valuc to 100% of actual values as
2000 — — required
2001 ~ " under section 135 of the Revenue and Tax Code.
2002 . _ Source: Ventura County Assessor's Oftice
(&}] Gross bonded dcebt includes gencral obligation bond.

Source: Financial Services, Finance Departiment
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City of Oxnard, California

TABLE X1
Ration of Annual Debt Service Expeunditures for
General Bonded Debtto General Gover I Expenditures (1)
Last Tea Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)
RATIO OF DEBT
SERVICETO
TOTAL GENERAL GENERAL
TOTAL DEBT GOVERNMENTAL.  GOVERNMENTAL
JUNE 30, LRINCIPAL (INTEREST_ SERVICE -EXPENDITURES ~ _EXPENDITURES
1903 $ 250,000 s 27,220 $ 277220 $ 93,003,156 0.00301
1994 250,000 13.500 263,500 94,342,200 0.00291
1995 93.802.727
199 96.677.161
1907 105.020,600
1998 107,445,755
1999 106,997,624
2000 115,288,888
2001 - 95.197.233
2002 - 112.918.609
SOURCE: Finance and Management Services Department
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TABLE X1l
Special Assessment Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years

{Unaudited)
CURRENT  DELINQUENT TOTAL L e cent b N
VEAR  SPECIAL SPECIAL SPECIAL SPECIAL  PERCENTAGE SPECIAL ASSESSMENT COLILECTIONS 1993-2002
ENDED ASSESSMENT  ASSESSMENT  ASSESSMENT  ASSESSMENT OF
JUNEJ0, _BILLINGS _ COLLECTIONS COLLECTIONS COLLECTIONS COLLECTIONS

1.400,000

1903 § 959496 5 407914 5 26814 s 834728 87.00%
1994 900.106 825.373 31.896 857.269 05.24% 1200000
1995 323,723 172,916 4.538 777.454 94.38% 1.000.000 |
1994 779.702 925,430 15,777 941,207 120.71% 800,000 -|

1997 $20,460 1,041,980 210659 1252639 151.56%
600.000 |

1998 988,389 992,014 166813 1,158,827 117.24%
400.000 |

1999 1418.496 1.040.354 183.786 1,224,140 86.30%
200,000 |

000 1035779 1.079.243 191,018 1.270.261 12204%

2001 1,247,385 1,250,930 2894 1.253.824 100.52% h ‘
1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
002 1.505.800 1,515,592 1,515,592 100.65%

SOURCE: Finance and Management Services Department
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YFAR

ENDED
-JUNE30,.

1993
1994
1905
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001

2002

NOTES:

(Unaudited)
—__DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS ___

Year Direct Net Revenue

Ended Tetal Operating Available for

Juned0. _Revenue(2)  Expenses (1)  _DebtService —Principal —Intevest _ Total

1993 $17,261,664 $ 10,408,533 $ 6,853,131 s 125,000 3 9,375 s 134,375
1994 17,146,827 10,366,702 6,780,125 1,175,000 2,498,315 3,673,315
1995 16,720,206 9,963,122 6,757,084 1,450,000 2,962,728 4,412,728
1996 16,530,595 9,763,030 6,767,565 1,500,000 3,276,118 4,776,118
1997 17,132,675 9,555,298 7,571,377 1,560,000 3,220,618 4,780,618
1998 17,180,389 9,964,354 7,216,035 1,615,000 3,158,218 4,773.218
1999 18,371,484 11,561,115 6,810,369 1,685,000 2,843.492 4,528,492
2000 17,749,682 11,315,240 6,434,442 1,760,000 2,653.560 4,413.560
2001 18,254,171 11,591,100 6,663,071 1,840,000 2,568,810 4,408,810
2002 22,005,625 11,978,948 10,026,677 1,925,000 248,427 4,409,277

(1) The above operating expense figures do not include depreciation and debt service expenses.

$

GROSS
—REVENUE (3).

13,839,532
13,623.950
12,788.390
12.887.673
13,594,350
13,508.174
14,980,803
16,529.128
16.226.401

17,856,094

City of Oxnard, California

TABLE X111

Water Revenute Bond Coverage

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

DIRECT
OPERATING
_EXPENSES (1)

$ 11,067,081
11,307,219
12,692,772
11,599,407
12.875.1606
13.304.858
13.780.587
15,052,247
15,347,727

18,141,656

NET REVENUE.
AVAILABLE FOR
DEBTSERVICE. |

2,172,451

2,316,731

1.2

7

90,618
88,200

19,190

143.310

1.2

00,216

1.471.881

878.734

(2

85.5602)

__PRINCIPAL

H

395.000
690,000
715,000
745.000
551,127
543,537
534,642
522,008

794,388

INTEREST

3

254.354
171,009
144,788
115298
157,283
128,855
230.776
224.747

709.225

$

TOTAL

2)
649.354(2)
861.009
859,788
800.295
708410
672392
765.418
746,812

1,503,613

"OVE

100.00
3.57
(10.52)
1.50
84
20
178
1.92
1.18

-0.19

(2) The 1961 Water Revenue Bond (Series A-D) was fully paid on June 1, 1992, and Water Revenue Bond Series '93 was issued on January 27, 1993.
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TABLE XIV
Sewer Revenue Bond Coverage
Last Ten Fiscal Years

NOTES: (1) The above operating expense figures do not include depreciation and debt service expenses.

SOURCE:

Finance and Management Services Department
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City of Oxnard, California

TABLE XV
Demographic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)
UNEMPLOYMENT RATE (5)
FISCAL PER CAPITA MEDIAN SCHOOL.
YEAR POPULATION (1) INCOME (2) AGE (3) ENROLLMENT (4) CITY STATE US.

1993 148,000 $ 12.190 33 34.666 12.22% 9.40% 8.69%
1994 150,600 12,245 33 33.920 10.40% 8.70% 6.20%
1995 152,100 12.480 33 34.387 8.8% 8.50% 6.30%
1996 152,800 13,385 33 34,504 9.4% 7.30% 5.50%
1997 153,700 14,300 33 37.211 8.4% 6.2% 5.0%
1998 156.000 15,349 34 38.073 7.0% 6.3% 4.9%
1999 158.300 16,538 34 38,793 6.4% 5.4% 43%
2000 160.300 19,217 32 40.238 6.38% 5.3% 4.0%
2001 177.700 19,630 30 39,865 4.9% 4.9% 4.4%
2002 182,027 19.777 20 42.106 52% 6.5% 5.9%

SOURCES:

(1} Califorma Department of Finance, Demographic Research Unit

(2) CPIlIndex of Urban Wage Eamcrs

(3) US Census

(4) Oxnard School Districts ( Elementary) and Oxnard Union High School District

(5) State Employment Development Department (data is based on annual average)
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FISCAL

YEAR COMMERCIA|.

1994
1995
1996
1997

199%

1.734,168.165
1.776.507.4%9
1.821,493.471
1.822.016.387
1.878.96,522
1.951.680.008
2014131847

2.267.262.705

City of Oxnard, California

TABLE XVI
Property Value, Construction and Bank Deposits
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)
CONSTRUCTION
COMMERCIAL RESIDENTIAL
BROPERTY VALLUES < 1oy ~CONSTRICTION
NUMBER NUMBER 200,000,000
HESIDENTIAL JOTAL pg;@ VALUE y SI‘T§ VALUE _QE:(‘:;I"@
1993 $1.694.440.117 $ 4.294.993.019 $5.989.433,136 30§ 62802245 276§ 514307485 1.135.318 150,000,000
4.348.286.998  6.082.455.163 19 35028952 215 41382620 1022074
4.438.800.882  6.215.308.381 19 23357165 17 42,915,313 886.278 100.000.000
4,490,858.633 6.312.352.104 24 54,428.310 338 75.642,029 327.423
4.485.815.079  6,307.831.406 2 31.264.797 392 7077223 943927 $0.000.000
4.594.240,080 ©.473.207.002 n 42,732,437 393 73,409,979 823.506
1.653,629.276  6,605,309,284 o6 78.960.175 356 74685262 752,363 o
4.830.144.691 6.844.276.538 41 77.650.163 824 212.784.494 919,137 P2 Ak AT e e Tone de0r w0t
5.378.550.952  7.645.814.717 4 B1711.175 625 151,748,368 784.519 D Commercial Construction Value
5.857.044851  YISIELIY 40 82553859 539 134520000  1.060.847 B kestacndiar Construction Value

2.494.786,288

* Amounts expressed in thousands

SOURCE: The Findley Reports (Fiscal year 1990 includes credit union
and savings & loan institutions)
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City of Oxnard, California

TABLEXVIT
Schedule of Insurance in Force
June 30, 2002
(Unaudited)
TYPE OF COVERAGE. POLICY _POLICY PERIOD LIABILITY
& NAME OF INSURER __NUMBER__ FROM _J10 _DETAILS OF COVERAGE ___ _LIMITS
LIABILITY:
BICE APEP100701 o7/01el 07/01/02 Municipal Liability 5 City Insurance Pool - In 97- § 25.000.000
98, the pool purchased commercial insurance for
exposures between $1 million and $20 million
Navigators Insurance Company SF0211A270941 00/13/02 006/13/03 Marinc Liability - this insurance is charged to the 1,000,000
Mandalay Bay Assessment District
PROPERTY:
‘Travelers Insurance Company KTICMB295T057301 07/01/00 07/01/01 All Risks excluding quake & flood - includes City 198,877,871
buildings& contents & rental interruption when
required by bond financings
Royal Insurance ("ompany of America PTS464149 07/01/01 07/01/02 Automobile/Mohile Equipment Physical Damage 19,630,216
including Comprchensive and Collision
Lloyd's of L.ondun 11F02ABHG 04721102 04/21/03 Fine Arts - Camegie & Oxnard Public Library - 1,750,000
protects the City for losses Lo exhibitsot art
belonging to others
Clarendon National 101163EQ-1 11/01/01 11/01/02 Diffi in Conditions including Flood and 5,000,000
Pacific Insurance Company ZG0017434 Earthquake, excluding EQSI., Burglary and Thel}; 5,000,000
Clarendon National 101164EAQ! Real and Personal Property. Business 7,500,000
Insurance Company-of the West XCi72301101 Interruption/Extra Expense, EDP but excluding _7.500,000
vehicles $25,000,000
Travelers Casually & Surety Company of 11. BMG560X6441 07/01/01 07/01/02 Boiler and Machinery - includes air conditioning, 5,000,000
heating and other types of machinery
WORKERS' COMPENSATION:
AIG 4158684 07/01/01 07/01/02 Excess Workess' Compensation CA Statutes
EMPLOYEE BONDS:
Fidclity & Deposit CCP895567800 04/08/00 04/08/03 Public Employees Dishonesty Bond 500.000
Ilartford Insurance Company 57BSBAN9382 11/22/00 11122102 Ciity Treasurer, Dalc V. Belcher 50,000
Hartford Insurance Company SUN322044 11/02/01 11/02/02 Asst. City Treasurer, Daniellc Navas 50,000
Hariford insurance Company 57BSBAN9384 11/24/00 11/24/02 City Clerk, Daniel Martinez 50,000
Hartford Insurance Company SUN405562 01/21/02 01/21/03 Asst. City Clerk, Jill Beaty 5,000
Haritord Insurance Company 57BSBAL12846 10720/01 10/20/02 Finance Director, Stanley L. Klcinman 25.000
SOURCE: Finance and Mi t Services, Fi ial Services Division
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TABLEXVIIl
State of Californéa
Miscellancous Statistics
As of June 30, 2002
(Unaudited)

Date of Incorporation

Form of Govemment-General Law City

Incorporated Area in square miles

Sphere of influence in square miles

Elections: (3)

Number of registered voters
Number of votes cast

Percentage of votes cast to number of registered voters

Number of full-time employees (2)

General government
Public safety
Transportation
Community development
Culture & Leisure
Utilities
Total full-time employees

GENERAL GOVERNMENT:
Miles of paved streets

Number of street lights - Edison

Number of street lights - City

101

June 30, 1903
Council/Manager
259

30.8

General
Municipal
(11-07-00)

61,206
40,503
66.17%

181

427

82

91

78

200
105

J=)

394
8,827
568

PEDUCTIBLE

SELF-INSURED ANNUAL
RETENTION PREMIUMS

$ 1,000,000 $  470.462

2,500 17,500

10,000 80,110

10,000 67,528

500 4,375

5% ofloss, 207,023
subject to
$100,000 per
occumence
minimum

10,000 06,424

500,000 45,613

5,000 3,700

NA 200

NA 250

NA 200

NA 100

100
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City of Oxnard, California

TABLEXVII
State of California
Miscellaneous Statistics
As of June 30, 2002
(Unaudited)

PUBLIC SAFETY:
Police:
Number of volunteers
Number of sworn officers
Number of non-safety cmployees
Ratio of sworn officers over poputation (per thousand)
Fire:
Number of volunteers
Number of swom ofTicers
Number of fire hydrants

TRANSPORTATION:
Number of police vehicles
Number of fire vehicles
Number of refuse vehicles
CULTURE AND LEISURE:
Parks & Recreation facilities (public)-
Parks
Ball tields
Golfcourse
Ball diamonds
Basketball courts
Crafl/Aclivity buildings
Gymnasiums
Swimming pools
Tennis courts
Auditoriums
Museum
Community centers
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TABLE XvrIil
State of California
Miscellaneous Statistics
As of June 30, 2002
(Unaudited)

Library:
Number of books
Number of microforms
Number of audio tapes
Number of video tapes
Number of CD-ROMS (data disk)
Education:
Number of enrollments:
Elementary
High school
College

UTILITY STATISTICS (1):
Water:
Storage capacity in galions
Daily consumption in gallons
Muiles of main pipes
Number of customers

Sewer (Secondary bio-filiration systems):
Daity trcatment capacity in gallons
Muilcs of sewer pipes
Number of customers

SOURCE: (1) Public Works Depaitment, Water and Sewer Plant Divisions
{2) Human Resources Division
(3) City Clerk’s Oftice
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13
209
3

1.28:1

87
4,150

192
46
129

344,559
16,650
16,202

6.101
451

29,503
12,603
7,742

9.000,000
22,500,000
425

34,766

22,000,000
700
32,634

Continued -



600 Anton Boulevard
Suite 700
Costa Mesa. CA 92626-7651

Independent Accountants’ Report
on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures

The Honorable City Council
City of Oxnard, California:

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by the City Council and
management of the City of Oxnard, California (the City), on the Appropriations Limit Worksheet for
the year ended June 30, 2002 solely to assist the City in evaluating compliance with the requirements of
Section 1.5 of Article XIIB of the California Constitution. These procedures were recommended by
the League of California Cities and presented in their Article XITIB Appropriations Limitation Uniform
Guidelines. The City’s management is responsible for the Appropriations Limit Worksheet. This
agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The sufficiency of these
procedures is solely the responsibility of those parties specified in this report. Consequently, we make
no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described below either for the purpose for
which this report has been requested or for any other purpose.

The procedures and the associated findings are as follows:
1. We obtained the City's completed Appropriations Limit worksheets and determined that the limit
and annual adjustment factors were adopted by resolution of the City Council. We also determined

that the population and inflation options were selected by a recorded vote of the City Council.

2. We agreed the June 30,2001 Appropriations Limit presented in the accompanying: Appropriations
Limit Worksheet to the June 30, 2001 Appropriations Limit as adopted by the City Council.

3. We agreed the fiscal year 2002 information presented in the accompanying Appropriations Limit
Worksheet to the supporting worksheets designed and prepared by the City.

4. For the accompanying Appropriations Limit Worksheet, we added the June 30, 2001 limit to the
total fiscal year 2002 annual adjustment, and agreed the resulting amount to the June 30,2002 limit.

We were not engaged to, and did not conduct an examination, the objective of which would be the
expression of an opinion on the accompanying Appropriations Limit Worksheet. Accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come
to our attention that would have been reported to you.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council and management of the

City of Oxnard, Califomia and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

KPMe P

November 8, 2002

. . KPMG LLP KOMG LLR 3 U'S tenviedhabdy partnd1sho,
Inlenateonal 3 Swiss e

CITY OF OXNARD, CALIFORNIA

Appropriations Limit Worksheet

June 30, 2002

Appropriations Limit at June 30, 2001
Adjustment Factors:
Population Factor
Inflation Factor

Total adjustment factor (rounded)
Annual adjustment

Appropriations Limit at June 30, 2002

105

X

1.0294527

1.0782000

$ 89,509,928
X 1.1099559
9,842,141

$ 99,352,069
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OTHER NON-GAAP STATEMENTS AND

SCHEDULES FOR MANAGEMENT USE

The statements and schedules following are presented for managementuse and analysis. Under GASB
34, these statements and schedules are no longer required. They have been combined with other
statements in the CAFR. However, because they are important financial information for management,
we deem it necessary that they be presented individually and included in this document.




City of Oxnard, California

Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds
Comparative Schedule by Soirce
June 30, 2002 and 200!

2002 2001
Governmental Fumls Capilal Assels:
land S 24,046,598 S 20,713,678
Land Improvements 1,159,280 1,159.280
Buildings 29,176,812 20,176,812
frap s Other ‘Than Building 19,013,090 19,013,090
I'quipment and Machincry 39.001,698 35.931.44¢,
Conslruction m Progress 3623411 17,031,447
Sub-Total 147.020,889 123,025,753
Accunmulated Depreciation (39.870,051) (36.010.561)
Total s 107.144,83% $ 87.015.192
Investmenls in Governmental Funds Capital Assets by Sourcc:
General FFund s 98,501,389 $ 88,374,086
Federal and State FFunds 21.450,775 14,937.346
Contnbutions and Donations 2,420,808 2,420.808
Other Agencies/Authoritics 9.797.722 2,703,786
l.easc Purchases 7.241,952 7.241,952
Intemai Scrvice Funds 7,548.183 7.347.715
Total $ 147,020,889 3 123,025,753

This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds. Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds
are excluded fi-om the above amounts. Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds are included as governmental activities in the statement of
net assets.
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Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds
Schedule by Function and Activity
June 30, 2002
Improvemeuls
Land Other Than Construction
l.and Improvements Buildings Buildings F.quipment in Progress Total
Gencral Government:
Councit s - $ s 29,845 $ 3 116.871 s $ 146,716
CityClerk . - 23.303 23,301
Cily Manager - 1,675,829 254399 673,370 2,602,598
Cily Attomey 8.162 8.162
Finance 3.332.920 197.486 84.503 1.317.807 4.932,710
Community Development 5,996,553 409,847 15.716.305 478,417 284.828 22,945,950
Community Service - 225.158 670,036 895.194
C unity [ P C issi 1.221.289 6%89.433 130.580 - 2,041,302
Intem.al Service lFunds . . - 7.548,183 7.548.183
Total General Government 10,550,762 1.159.280 17,619.465 1,042,477 10,773,140 — 41,145,124
Public Safety:
Police - 1.778.934 80,938 10.367.446 - 12,227,318
Fire 1,893,510 - 694.529 78.119 4.584.680 . 7.250.838
Total Public Safery: 1.893,510 — 2,473.463 159,057 14.952,126 — 19,478,156
Transportation:
Engincering and Public Works e . 5.758.84S - 198.603 24,550.449 30.507.897
Transportation — 137.268 - 179.778 2.797913 3,114,959
Strecl Maintenance 7,760 172,037 239,423 2,087,769 0.513.429 9.020,418
Total Transporiation 7.760 — 0.068.150 239,423 2,466,150 33,861,791 42,643,274
Culture and Lcisurc:
Parks and Recrcation — - 3.015.734 17,572,133 10,370,191 761,620 31,719,678
Library 11,594,566 - - - 440,091 - 12,034.657
Total Culturc and Lcisure 11,594,566 — 3,015,734 17,572,133 10,810,282 761.620 43,754,335
Total S 24,046,598 5_ 1.159.280 $ 29176812 S _ 19,013,090 S 39,001.698 S 34,623411 _ _S 147020889

This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds. Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds
are excluded from the above amounts. Generally. the capital assets of internal service funds are included as governmental activities in the statement
of net asselts.
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City of Oxnard, California

Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds
Schedule by Changes o f Function and Activity
For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Balance Batance
July 1, 2001 Additious Delelions Junc 30.2002

Genceral Government:

Councit $ 140,716 s - —- $ 140,716

City Clerk 22,178 1,125 - 23,303

City Manager 2.602.042 1556 - 2,603,598

City Allomcy 8.162 — 8.162

Finance 1.510011 3,422,705 -— 4,932,716

Community Development 22.7817.437 158,513 — 22,945,950

Community Service 238.719 650,475 - 895,194

C, ity £ C issi 2,041,302 - - 2,041,302

Inicrnal Scrvice Funds 7.342,715 200,468 — 7,548,183
Total General Government 36,704,282 4,440,842 —_— 41,145,124
Public Safety:

Police 11,323,599 903,719 —- 12,227,318

Fire 7,063,020 187.818 — 7,250,838
Totat Public Safety 18.386.619 1,091,537 — 19,478,156
Transportation:

Enginccring and Public Works 22.802.052 7,705,845 — 30,507,897

Transportalion 317.046 2,797,913 — 3,114,959

Strect Mainicnance 2,500,989 6.513.429 — 9,020,418
Total Transportation 25.626,087 17,017,187 — 42,643,274
Culturc and L.cisure:

Parksand Recreation 30,714,199 1,005.479 — 31,719,678

Library 11,594,566 440,091 — 12,034,057
Total Culture and Lcisurc 42,308,765 1,445,570 — 43,754,335
Total 5 115678038 $ Egié; 6 — $ 147020889

This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds. Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds
areexcluded firom the above amounts. Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds are included as governmental activities in the statement of
net assets.
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City of Oxnard

Governmental Fund Types
Combining Balance Sheet

June 30, 2002
Special Debt Capital
General Revenue Service Projects Totals
Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 30,283,168 $ 44,511,577 $ 3 § 15,165,856 s 89,960,604
Investments with Fiscal Agents — 34,847 1,333,899 3,125,391 4,494,137
Accounts and Other Reccivables 2,158,147 0,842,592 — 2,378,179 11,378,918
Duc From Other Funds 3,109,685 — — — 3,109,685
Duc From Other Governments 4,944,378 2,940,603 — — 7,884,981
Notes Receivable — — —_ 2,209,273 2,209,273
Properties Held for Resale — — — 7,263,384 7,263,384
Advancesto Other Funds 173,035 — — — 173,035
Other Asscts - 185,108 —_ — 185,108
Total Assets $ 40,668,413 $ 54,514,727 s 1,333,902 $ 30,142,083 $ 126,659,125
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Llabllities:
Accounts Payable 1,258,086 1,443,322 — 360.731 3,062,139
Other Liabilities 9,645,601 4,231,185 — 1,721,523 15,598,369
Due to Othcer Funds — 513,577 — 971,784 1,485,361
Deferred Revenucs 2,368,048 8,299,883 — 2,741,936 13,409,867
Total Liabilities 13,271,795 14,487,967 — 5,795,974 33,555,736
Fund Balances:
Reserved 1,870,298 2,625,011 1,333,902 9,928,686 15,757,897
Unreserved:
Designated for Authorized Projects — 22,759,160 — 10,471,428 33,230,588
Undesignated 25,526,320 14,642,589 — 3,945,995 44,114,904
Total Fund Balances 27,396,618 40,026,760 1,333,902 24,346,109 93,103,389
Total Llabllitles and Fund Balances $ 40,668,413 $ 54,514,727 s 1,333,902 s 30,142,083 $ 126,659,125
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Ciity of Oxnard
Governmental Fuud Types
Combining S of Re y Expenditures and Changes in Fiuud Balance
Year Ended Juue 30, 2002
Gencral Special Debt Capital
Fund Revenue Service Projects Total
Revenues:
Taxcs s 47,680,588 3 5.189.718 s 1,629,857 5  4,558.71n S 59,058.879
Licenses and Permits 1.987.392 — -— - 1,987,392
Intcrgovernmental 16,775,684 18,367,112 — 2,548,512 37,691,308
Growthand Development Ices 7,432,528 — 7,432,528
Charges for Services 7.908,643 —_ —_— - 7,908,643
Fincs and Forfeiturcs 1,042,105 369,732 — . 1,411,837
Intcrest 2,422,164 1,538,590 240,642 421,275 4,622,67
Special Assessments 1.515.592 — . 1,515.592
Miscellancous 1,422,636 654410 — 1.460.841 3,537,887

Total Revenucs
Expenditures:
Current
General Government
Public Safcty
Transportation
Community Development
Culture and Leisure
Capital Outlay
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers In
Transfcrs Out
Proceeds from Capital Lease
Totat Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Sources Over
Expenditures and Other Uscs
Fund Balance, July t
Fund Balance, Junc 30

s 79.239,212

$ 35,067,682

$ 1.870,499

§ 8989344

$ 125,166,737

s 9.7806.593 s -— s — s - 5 9,786,593
38.942,125 5,018,087 — - 44,500,812
797,735 3,946,020 — 4,743,755
7,228.529 3,881,091 — 4,159,960 15,269,586
9,318,877 1,043,207 — . 10,362,084
4.087,715 13,207,792 — 5.899,101 23,794,668
—_ —_ 2,412,335 . 2,412,335
—_ — 1,988,947 - 1,988,947
70,761,574 27,696,797 4,401,282 10,059,127 112,918,780
8,477,638 7,370,885 (2,530,783) (1,069,783) 12,247,957
— 1,265,481 2,53197 2,576,650 6,374,102
(5,282,749) (2,764,183) — - (8,046,932)
2,705,584 -— — - 2,705,584
52 577, ]65!_ (1,498,702) 2,531,971 2,576,650 1,032,754
5,900,473 5,872,183 1,188 1,500,867 13,280.711
21,496,145 34,154,577 1,332,714 22,839,242 79,822,678
T oomen. 3o Aol T[N 5 a0y 5 gusam
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GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is used to account for all financial resources traditionally associated with government
activities which are not required legally to be accounted for in another fund. Principal sources of
revenues are property taxes, sales tax, license and permits, state shared revenues, and billings for
outside and interfund services. Primary expenditures in the General Fund are made for general
administration, police and fire protection, parks maintenance, streets and transportation services, and
community development.




City of Oxnard, California

General Fund
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2002

Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalent s 30,283,168
Accounts and Other Reccivables 2,158,147
Buc From Other Funds 3.109,685
Due From Other Governmients 4,944,378
Advances To Other Funds 173,035
Total Assets M 0668413

Liabilitics and Fund Balances

Liabilitics:

Accounts Payable 3 1,258,086
Other Liabilitics 9.645,66)
Dcferred Revenues 2,368,048
Total Liabilitics 13.273,795

Fund Balances:

Reserved
Encumbrances 612,620
Cairyover Savings 920,026
Reslricted Revenue 164,617
Advances To Other Funds 173,035
Tolal Reserved 1,870,298
Unreserved 25,526,320
Total Fund Balances 27,396,618
Total Liabilities and Fund Batances 8 40668413
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City of Oxuard, California
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Year Ended June 30, 2002
Revenues: s 47.680.588
Licenses and Permits 1.987.392
I‘nlcrgovcmmcma] |(;;[7)§oz§;
Charges for Scrvices 908.6
Fincs and FForfeiures 1042105
Interest 2,422,164
Misccllancous 14226360
Total Revenues s 79.239.212
Expenditures:
Current:
l Gov 3
Gore o s o
Administration and Support Scrviccs 8847127
Sub-Totat 9,786.593
Public Salcty 38,942,125
Transportation 797.7135
Conmmunity Devclopment 7,228,529
Culturc and Leisure 0,529,659
Library Scrvices 2,789.218
Capital Outlay 4,687.715
Toial Expendilures 70,761,574
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 8.477,638
Proceeds from Capital Lease 2,705,584
Operating Transfers Out {5.282.749)
Other Financing Uses - Operating Transfers Out (2.577.165)
Excess of Revenues and Other FFinancing Sources Over
Expendilures and Other Financing Uses 5,900,473
Fund Balance, Juty 1 21,496,145
Fund Balance, Junc 30 s 27,396,618
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I SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS I

The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than capital
projects funds that are legally restricted to expenditures for particular purposes).

Park Fees Quimby Reserve Fund—As a result of the passage of the Quimby Act of 1965, the City requires that a
developer set aside land or pay fees in lieu of land dedication. Park fees are earmarked primarily for the acquisition
and development of neighborhood parks within the City.

Parks Acquisition and Development Fund—This fund is used to account for park and recreation facilities fees assessed
on new developments on a per unit basis. Park development revenues are set aside for the acquisition of land and
improvement of the City’s park facilities.

Storm Drain Facilities Fund—This fund is used to account for revenue and expenditures related to the installation of
. storm drainage facilities from all new property developments.

Circulation System Improvement Fees—This fund is used to provide an additional funding source necessary to meet
the need for circulation system improvements. This fee is assessed on new developments and calculated based on the
expected number of trips daily. Funds collected from this fee can only be used to fund projects included in the 15-Year
Circulation Improvement List.

Capital Growth Fee Funds—These Funds were established to account for capital growth fees collected and to pay for
community development expenditures designated to each community sector responsible for the growth:

» Capital Growth Fee Fund—Residential—used to account for all developments/improvements in a residential area;
» Capital Growth Fee Fund —Non Residential—used to account for all developments/improvements in commercial
and industrial areas.

Utility Undergrounding Fees Fund—This fund is used to account for utility undergrounding fees collected by the City
in lieu of undergrounding existing overhead utility lines. These fees are restricted for the construction of utility
undergrounding projects.

Housing In-Lieu Fees Fund—This fund is used to account for fees collected in lieu of the affordable housing
‘requirement for housing development. This fund was created in April 1999.

Community Development Block Grants (CDBG) and HUD Home Loan—To account for Federal entitlements received
by the City from CDBG for the purpose of developing a viable urban community, providing decent housing and a
suitable living environment, and expanding economic opportunities, principally for persons of low and moderate
income. Funds are allocated and administered by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).

State and Federal Grants Funds—These funds account for the receipt and expenditures of monies received from State
and federal grants in aid.

State Gas Tax Fund—This fund is used to account for the allocated share of Gas Tax Revenue received by the City
from the State of California. Spending of gastax is legally restricted by the State to be used for maintenance and
improvement of public streets, in accordance with Section 2106, 2107, and 2107.5 of the Streets and Highway Code.

Traffic Safety Fund—This fund is used to account for shared revenues received from fines and forfeitures under the
State of California Vehicle Code. Fundis restricted to be expended only for improvement and maintenance of traffic
control equipment/devices.

Transportation Development Fund—In July 1972, the State of California enacted the Transportation Development
Act (known as TDA:SB325). A Local Transportation Fund (LTF) was created for each county to disburse TDA
revenues derived from 1/4 cent of the 6 1/4 percent State Retail Sales Tax. Apportionments are locally administered
by the Southem California Association of Governments (SCAG) and Ventura County Transportation Commission
(VCTC). This fund is used to account for this revenue and restrict the use for street maintenance and road
improvements, and construction of pedestrian and bike facilities.

Maintenance Assessment:District—To account for assessment revenues and expenditures related to waterways and
landscape maintenance of various district area in the City. Maintenance work is undertaken by the City. Lot owners
within the affected district areas are assessed a maintenance fee based on estimated maintenance cost per lot square
footage.



City of Oxnard, California

Special Revenue Funds
Combining Balance Sheet
For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002

Developmenl Fees Funds

Park Storm Circulation Capital Capiiat Utilities Housing
Park Fecs Acquisition and Draln System Growth GrowthNon- Underground tn-Licu
Quimby Reserse Development Facilities tmprovement Residential Resldential Fees Fees Totat
Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 13 8.364.781 s 4.169.201 S 5,054,283 $ 6.288.016 $ 1,950,323 5 646,983 $ 1,541.326 $  1.190413 S 29.805.346
Investments with Fiscal Agents — - — - - — - — -
Accounts and Other Reccivables Lolo 816 362.637 276,298 — 39.991 - 681,352
Duc From Other Governments — ~ — -- - — - - -
Total Assets S 8366391 S 4470017 S 6016920 5 6564314 S 1950323 5 686,974 0§ 1541326 5_ 1190433 § 30,486,698
Liabilitics And Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable s 59.014 $ 58.902 $ 20,704 5 89.072 5 - S - s - $ S 228,292
Other Liabilities 21,046 3.574.282 — 111,308 . 31,449 — — 1,738.085
Bue to Other Funds — - -- - - -
Deferred Revenues - - — 286,724 - 41,500 — — 328,224
Total Llabllltles 80.660 3,633,184 20,704 487,104 — 72,949 — — 4,294,601
Fund Balances:
Reserved:
Reccivables — — - - — — — --
Restricted Revenue — — — — - - - -—
Park Development 235.362 — — — — — -— - 235362
TFolal Reserved 235.362 — — — ~- — — — 235.362
Unreserved:
Designated for Authorized Projects 0,580,912 382,085 3,752,902 4,908.009 — 7,429 96.026 56,481 15,783,904
Undesignated 1.469.457 154,748 2,243,314 1.169.141 1,950,323 606,596 1,445,300 1,133,952 10,172,831
Total Unrescrved 8,050,369 536,833 5,996,216 6,077,210 1,950,323 614,025 1,541,326 1,190,43) 25,956,735
Total Fund Balances 8,285,731 536,833 5,996,216 6,077,210 1,950,323 614,025 1,541,326 1,190,433 26,192,097
Total Liabllitles and Fund Balances s 8,366,391 h3 4.170,017 $__ 6,016,920 S 6564314 S 1,950,323 s 686,974 $ 1,541,326 s 1,190,433 5 30486698
Continued -
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City of Oxnard, California
Special Revenute Funds
Combining Balance Sheet (Continired)
For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002
Non-Major Funds
Maintenance
HUD and CDBG State and Federal State Vransportation Assessmenl
rants Grants CGasTax TrafTic Safety Development Districts Total
Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ - s 6.312.773 ) 2.458.52 3 102,277 $ 3.187.325 $ 2,645,335 $ 44,511,577
Investments with Fiscal Agents 34,847 —_ — —_ — — 34,847
Accounts and Other Receivable 3,149484 3,007,019 2,520 - - 2217 6,842,592
Due From Other Governmenls 1.094.213 1,730.673 - 15.7¢7 - — 2,940.603
Other Asscts 185.108 — - —_ — - 185,108
Total Assels $ 4463652 5 11,050,465 S _2,461,041 ) 217994 s 3,187,325 S 2 552 3 __S54,514.727
Llabilities and Fund Balances
Llabitltics:
Accounts Payable s 491,932 s 439,527 $ 006,339 1 13.842 $ 69.146 s 134,244 $ 1,443,322
Other Liabilities 165.903 55.830 53,048 13,376 133,622 71.321 4.231.185
Due toOther Funds - 511,577 - - — — 513,577
Deficrred Revenues 3.569.846 4,401,813 — — — - 8.299.883
Total Liabilltles 4,227,681 5,410,747 119,387 27,218 202,768 205.565 14,487,967
Fund Balances:
Reserved:
Receivables — 1,730,673 — — — — 1,730,673
Restricled Revenue — 658,976 - — -— - 658,976
Park Development — —_ — — — — 235,362
Tolal Reserved — 2,389,649 — — — —- 2.625.011
Unreserved:
Designated (or Authorized Projects — 2,758,728 1,162,540 09,431 2,984,557 -— 22,759.160
Undesignated 235971 491,341 1,179,114 121,345 — 2.441,987 14,642,589
Total Unreserved 235,971 3,250,069 2,341,654 190,776 2,984,557 2,441,987 37,401,749
‘Total Fund Balances 235,971 5,639,718 2,341,654 190,776 2,984,557 2,441,987 40,026,760
Total Liablllties and Fund Balances S 4463652 3 11050465 & 2461041 = & 217994 = & 1182325 S 2647552 . $__54.514227.
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City of Oxnard, California

Special Revenue Funds

Combining Stat tof R , Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
(Actual o1t a GAAP Basis)

For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002

Developrnent Fees Funds

Park Acquisition Storm Circulation Capltal Capital Utifitics Housing
Park Fees and Development  Drain Facilltles System Growth Growth Non- Underground In-Lieu
Quimby Reserve Fund Fund n i Fees Fees Total
Revenues:
Taxes 13 — s — $ - $ — 5 - $ — $ - s — $ —
Intergovernmental — e - — — - — — —_
Growth and Development Fees 1.575.450 127,750 1,353,016 2,106,567 1,049,847 349,820 98,535 771,543 7,432,528
Fines and Forfeitures — — — — — — — — —_
Interest 322803 29,198 241453 271,016 119,239 40,181 03,334 37.270 1,131,094
Special Assessments — - _ — — — — _— —
Miscellaneous 3.500 - 64,226 — — — — — 67,726
Total Revenues 1,901,753 156,948 1,658,695 2,378,183 1,169,086 396,001 161,869 808813 8,631,348
Expenditures:
Public Salety — - —— —_ — — —_ -— —
Transposnation — — — — —_ _ — — —_
Community Dcvelopment —_ — — — —_— —_ — 13.008 13,068
Capital Outlay 490,788 270,832 1,040,749 2,091,521 2,560 — — — 3,896,450
Total Expendliures 490,788 270,832 1,040,749 2,091,521 2,560 — — 13,068 3,909,518
Excess (Deficit ) of Over ditures 1,410,965 (113,884) 617,946 286.662 1,166,526 396,001 161,869 795.745 4,721,830
Other Financing Sources {Uscs):
Operating Translers In — - - - 1,205,481 — — — 1,265.481
Operating Transfers Out — — — (378,919) (1.119,783) (1,265,481) — — {2.764,183)
Total Other Financing Sources (lises) —_ — — (378,919) 145,698 (1,265,481) — — (1,498,702)
Excess (Deliciency) of Revenues and Othcr Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses 1,410,965 (113,884) 617.946 (92,257 1,312,224 (869,480) 161,869 795,745 3,223,128
Fund Balance, July [ 0,874,766 050,717 5.378.270 06,169,467 038,099 1,483,505 1,379,457 394,088 22,908,969
Fund Balance, June 30 £ 828523 £ . SI6R3) 5. 5996216 § 6077210 § 1950323 s 614025 5 1S41326 0§ LISO433 5 26192007
Continued -
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City of Oxnard, California
Special Revenue Funds
Combining St tof R , Expenditares and Changes in Fund Balance(Continued)
(Actual on a GAAP Basis)
For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002
Non.major Funds
Maintenance
HUDand CHBG State and Federat State Transportation Assessincnt
Grants Grants Gas Tax Traffic Salely Development Districls Total
Revenues
Taxes s — $ 5.189.718 H — H — s — 3 — s 5,189.718
Intergovernmental 4.253,749 2,134,155 3,337,800 _ 3,641,402 —_ 18.367,112
Growth and Development Fecs - — ) - - — -— 7,432,528
Fines and Forfcitures — — - 369,732 — — 369,732
Interest - 197,107 ) 91.438 — — 118,951 1,518,590
Special Assessmenis - - —_ -— — 1,515,592 1,515,592
Miscellancous 184.190 76,906 148,73t 0,984 169,873 — 654,410
Total Revenues 4,437,939 12,597,886 3,577,975 376,716 3,811,275 . 1,634,543 35,067,682
Expenditures
Current:
Public Safety —_ 5.018.687 - - — — 5,018,087
Transporlation - 181.136 2,667,503 601,456 495,925 —_ 3,946.020
Communily Development 1,663.222 179,205 -— — — 2,025,596 3.881,091
Cuhure and Leisure 502,154 541,053 —_ — — — 1,043,207
Capital Outlay 2,365.463 4,142,966 489,503 191,145 2,117,265 — 13,207,792
Total Expendliurcs 4,530,839 10,668,047 3,157,006 792,601 2,613,190 2,025,596 27,696,797
Excess (Defici } of Over i (92,900) 1,929,839 420,969 (415,885) 1,198,085 (391,053) 7,370,885
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating Transfers In — — - - — — 1,265,481
Operating Transfers Out — — — — — — (2,764,183)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) — — — - —_ — (1,498,702)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses (92,900) 1,929,839 420,969 (415,885) 1,198,085 l(!‘)l.OSJ) 5,872,183
Fund Balance, July | 328871 3,709,879 1,920,685 606,661 1,786,472 2,833,040 34,154.577
Fund Balance, June 30 S 23897 . 0§ 5639718 S 2341654 S 19026 . S 2984587 _ .8 2441987 5 400267260
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l DEBT SERVICE FUNDS I

The Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources and payments of
principal and interest of the City of Oxnard and related entities” general long-term debt.

Community Development Commission—Used to account for the payment of principal and interest on
tax allocation bonds. Revenue is derived from tax levies on properties within the redevelopment area.

COF A Debt Service—Used to account for the payment of principal and interest on certain certificate
of participation bonds other than those accounted for in various enterprise funds. (A blended
Component Unit of the City of Oxnard)



City of Oxnard, California

Debt Service Funds
Combining Balance Sheet
Year Ended June 30, 2002

City of
Community Oxnard
Development Financing
Commission Authority Total
Assets:
Cash ancl Cash Cquivalents s 3l s - 3
Investments with Fiscal Agents 1,333.899 1,333.899
Total Assets s 3 5 1333,899 1.333,902
Fund Balances:
Reserved for Repayment of Deb S 3 $  1,3338um 1.333.902
Total Liabilitics and Funil Baiances s 3 $ 1,333,899 1,333902
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City of Oxnard, California
Dobt Service Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fuud Balance
Year Emded June 30, 2002
Ciy of
Cammunity Oanard
Develapment Financing
Conunission Authoerity Total
Revenuces:
Taxes S 1.029.857 $ 240.042 1.870.499
Interest
Tolal Revenues 1.629.857 240,642 1,870,499
Fxpenditures:
Debt Service:
Principal 602,335 1.810.000 2,412,335
Interest 1,027,522 61425 1,988,037
Total Expendilures 1,629,857 2,771,425 4,401,282
Exeess (Deliciency) ot Revenues Over Expenditures (2.530,783) (2.531,783)
Other Financing Snorces-Operating Translers In 2,531.971 253197
Iixeess al Revenwes and Other Sources Over Expenditures 1,188 1188
Fund Batance, Juiy | 3 1,332,701 1,332,714
Fund Balance, Junc 30 $ k) 3 1,333.899 1,333,902
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I CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS I

The Capital Projects Funds are established to account for financial resources designated for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds.

Capital Qutlay/Capital Projects Fund—This fund is used to account for financing and construction
of general government capital projects. The City of Oxnard finances its capital projects primarily from
General Fund revenues, local restricted special revenues, state subventions, and Federal entitlements.

Community Development Commission—Used to account for expenditures incurred on the
redevelopment projects, finance primarily from tax increments.




City of Oxnard, Califoruia

Capital Projects Fund
Combining Balance Sheet
Year Ended Junc 30, 2002

Capital Community
Outlay Development
Fund Commission Tatal

Assels

Cash and Cash [iquivalcnls S 7,692,400 s 7,473,390 $ 15,165,856

Investments with Fiscal Agents 2,609,362 456,029 3.125.391

Account and Other Reccivable 1,866,945 511.234 2,378,179

IDuc From Other IFunds - -~ -

Notcs Reccivable - 2,209,273 2,209,273

Propertics 1lcld tor Resalc - 7,263,384 7,263,384
Total Asscis $ 12,228,773 s 17,913.310 s 30.142.083
Liabiilics

Accounts Payablc s 223385 $ 137,346 $ 300,731

Other Liabilitics 720,103 1,001,420 1,721,523

Due to Other Funds - 971,784 971,784

Delerred Revenue 2,741,936 - 2,741,936
Tolal Liabilitics 3,685,424 2,110,550 5,795,974
Fund Balances
Reserved:

Restricted Revenue e - -

Reccivables 456,029 . 456,029

Carryover Savings e 2,209,273 2,209,273

Propcricsy lleld for Resale - 7,263,384 7,263,384
Total Reserved —_ 9,928,686 9,928,686
Unreserved

Designated lor Authorized Projects 7,556,992 2,914,436 10.471,428

Undcsignated 986,357 2,959,638 3,945,995
Total Unreserved 8.543.349 5,874,074 14,417,423
Total Fund Balances 8,543,349 15,802,760 24,346,109
Total Lisbilities And Fund Balances $ 12,228,773 S 17,913,310 $ 30,142,083
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City of Oxnard, California

Capital Projects Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balauces
Year Ended June 30, 2002

Community

Caj Development
Quitay Fund Commission ‘Totat
Revenues:
Taxes H - $ 4,558,716 $ 4,558,716
Intcrgovemmental 2,548,512 - 2,548,512
Interest 122,999 263,687 386,080
Misccllancous - Rental Income 753,359 741,900 1,495,259
Tota! Revenucs s 3,424,870 $ 5.564,303 s 8,989,173
Expenditurcs:
Community Development
5 $ - $ 4,159,795 $ 4,159,795
Capital Outiay 5,499,588 399,573 5.899.161
Total Expenditures 5,499,588 4,559,368 10,058,956
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues {Undcer) Over Expenditurcs (2,074,718) 1,004,935 (1,069,783)
Other Financing Source- Operaling Translers In 2,576,650 — 2,576,650
Excess of Revenucs and Other Sources
Over Expenditures and Other Uses 501,932 1,004,935 1,500,867
Fund Balance, July 1 8,041,417 14,797,825 22.839,242
Fund Balance, Junc 30 ) $ 8,543,349 $ 15,802,760 s 24.346.109
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GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
on Budgetary Basis




GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
on Budgetary Basis



City of Oxnard, California

General Fund

Schedule of Resonrces

Budget and Actual on a Bud getary Basis
Year Ended June 30, 2002

Changes Actual Yariance
Original Increasc Revised Budgelary Favorabic
lHudget (Decrease) Budpct Basis ('nfavorablc)
Taxes:
Property Tax $ 13,181,600 s - 13.181.600 $ 14339738 $ 1,158,138
Sales “lax 18,200.000 18.200.800 19.840.352 1,640,352
Transicnt Occupancy Tax 2,400.000 2,400,000 2.321.758 (78.242)
Olher Taxes:
Franchisc ‘lax 4.039,000 4,639,000 7.104,953 2,465,953
Business lcense (Net of Refund) 2,400,000 39,500 2,439,500 3,174,93) 735,431
Deed Transfer Tax 385.000 - 385,000 608,145 223,145
Total Other Taxes: 7.424.000 39.500 7.463.500 10,888,029 3.424.529
Pcnaltics/Interest on Delinquent Taxes 170.000 - 170,000 284,711 114,711
Tolal Taxcs 41.375.600 39.500 41,415,100 47,680,588 6,265,488
Licenses and Permiits 2,213.300 50,000 2.263,300 1,987,392 (275,908)
Intergovermnental:
State Shared Revenues:
Homuowners Praperty Tax Reliet 1300.000 - 300.000 218,355 (R1,045)
Statc Mandated Reimbursement -SH90 566,000 566,000 334,076 (231,924)
P.O.S.T. Reimhursement - Police - - - 113,438 113,438
Motor Vehicle in |icu of Tax 8.400,000 - 8,400.000 9,928,351 1,528,351
Off Highway Velucle in Licu of Tax 4.000 4.000 4,175 175
Public Safcty Augmentanon 870,000 870.000 877.457 7,457
AB 1191 175,000 — 175.000 108.199 (60,801)
Total State Sharcd Revemices 10,315,000 - 10,315,000 11,584,051 1,269.051
Local Shared Revennes: N
Infrasiruciurc Use Revenues 1,902,690 1,902,690 1,902,690
IndircctCost Reimbursements 3.357.153 — 3,357,153 1,288,943 (61,210)
Total Local Shared Revenues 5,259,843 — 5.259.843 5.191,633 _(68.210)__
Total Intergos ernmental 15,574,843 — 15,574,843 16,775,684 1,200,841
Contiuied -
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City of Oxnard, California
General Fund
Schedule of Resources (Continaedt)
Budger and Actual on a Budgetary Basis
Year Ended June 30, 2002
Changes Actual Variance
Original Increase Revised Budgelary Favorablc
Budget (Decrease) Budget Basis ____{Unfavorahlc)
Charges for Scrviccs:

Genceral Government 112,930 E 112,930 160,123 47,193

Public Salety 1,049,332 (1,500) 1,047,812 1.451,035 404,103

Parks and Recercation 449,703 10.000 459,763 440,803 (18,9019

Commumity Development 1,673.300 20.500 1,693,800 2,605,921 912,121

Other Current Scrvice Charges 64,000 64,000 104,202 40.262

Tipping Fees 90,000 90,000 110,000 20.000

Mascellancuus Service Charges 131,150 131,150 111,299 (19,851)

Services to Other Programs 2,721,823 93,400 2,815,283 2.924,240 108,957
Total Charges for Services 6,292,298 122,460 6,414,758 7,908,643 1,493,885
Fines and Forfcitures: 675,300 — 675,300 1,042,105 366,805
Interest 2,687,400 126,000 813400 2,422,164 (391,236)
Miscellancous:

Rentantd Royalibes 48,002 19,750 07,752 40,532 (21.220)

Reimbursements 190,050 11,580 202.230 255,209 53.039

Bond Deposits 6,000 4,000 34,437 28.437

Payments on | oans - - . 385,113 385.113

Other 749,171 (208.290) 540,881 510,435 (30.440)

Special Assessments - Qther 69.300 69,300 70.930 1,630

Salc of Fixed Asscts:

Sale of Vehicle/I-quipment 45.000 45,000 96,935 51,935

Sale of Unclaymed Propenty 7,000 7.000 22,985 15,985
Total Sale of Fixest Assets 52,000 — 52,000 119,920 67.920
Total Misccllancous 1,115,123 (176.960) 938,163 1,422,636 484,473
Total Operating Revenucs 69.933.864 161,000 70.094,864 79.239,212 9,144,348
Other Financing Sources:

Procceds Irom Capilal | casc 2,912,600 - 2,912,600 2,705,584 (207,016)
Total Other Financing Sources 2,912,600 — 2,912,600 2,705,584 (207.016)
Total Rescenues 72.846.464 161,000 73,007,464 81,944,796 8,937,332
Fund Balance - Budgctary Basis. July 1. 2001 2),496.145 — 21,496,145 21,496,145 —
Total Resources s 94,342,609 S 161,000 S 94,503,609 S_ 103440941 3 #,917.332
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City of Oxnard, California

General Fund

Schedule of Requirements

Budget and Actual on a Budgetary Basis
Year Ended June 30, 2002

Changies Actual Variance
Original Increase Revised Budgctary Favorablc
Budget (Decreasc) Budget Basis (Unfavorablc)
General Government:
Legistative
City Council 208.567 890 209,457 199,510 9,947
City Treasurer 424,094 11,952 436,046 432,768 3.278
City Clerk 309,633 5.847 115,480 310,653 4,827
Total Legislative 942,294 18,689 960,983 942,931 18,052
Administrative and Support Scrvice:
City Manager 1,544,304 112,761 1,662,065 1,598,966 63,099
City Attomey 1,103,854 179,746 1,283,600 1,217,142 66,458
Financial Scrvices 2,984,238 176,917 3,161,155 2,969,735 191,420
Non-Departniental:

Non-Program 12,125.770 3,099,857 15,225,627 13,898,011 1,327,016
Amounl Reclassificd as Vransfers Out (5,553,381) 519 (5.552,862) (5.282.749) (270,113)
Amount Reclassificd as Capital Outlay (3,200.000) -- (3.200,000) (3.012,000) (188,000)
Amount Estimated for CDC Loans (3.034,239) 308,679 (2,725.560) . (2,725,560) -

Sub-Total 338,150 3,409,055 3,747.205 2,878,302 868,903
Total Administrative and Support Scrvice 5.970,546 3,883,479 9,854,025 8,664,145 1,189,880
Other 71.000 221,376 304,376 303,132 1,244
Total General Goverament 6,989,840 4,129.544 11,119,384 9,910,208 1,209,176
Public Safcty:
Police 27,232,298 658,880 27,891,178 27,950,128 (58,950)
Firc 8,504,469 433.875 8,938,344 9,990,974 (1,052,630)
Street Lighting - SCE 1,181,154 401 1,181,615 1,126,845 54,770
Total Public Safety 36,917,921 1,093.216 38,011,137 39,067,947 (1,056,810)
Continued -
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City of Oxnard, California
General Fund
Schiedule of Requirements (Continued)
Budget and Actual on a Bulgetary Basis
Year Ended Juue 30, 2002
Chanjes Actual Variance
Original Increase Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budgct (Decrease) Budget Basis (Unfavorablc)
Transportation: 775,109 2,521 771630 797,735 (20,105)
Community Development:
Engincering Services - Pesign 1,092,579 59.504 1,152,083 1,115,997 30,086
Public Service Administration 259,143 8.253 267,396 314,453 (47,057)
Planning and E:nvironmental Services 1,053,248 298,620 1,351,868 1,092,821 259,047
Economic Development and Yourism Service 483,053 22,940 505,993 505,993 -
Devclopment and Construction Scrvice 2,103,189 42,943 2,146,132 2,249,766 (103,634)
Development Support/Public Projects 420,136 8,978 435,114 431,754 3,360
Housing Services 98,885 57,430 156,315 139,095 17,220
Ncighhorhood Services 157,203 15,197 172,400 165,287 7,013
Human Services 1,214,818 153,209 1,368,027 1,336,555 31472
Total Community Development 6,888,254 667,074 7,555.328 7,351,721 203,607
Culturc and Lcisnre:
Recreation Scrvices 1,410,152 167,502 1,577,654 1,737,155 (159.501)
Camegic Art Muscum 230,740 38,650 269,390 266,524 2,866
Parks and Public Groundls 3,896,947 246,799 4,143,746 4,538,320 (394,574)
Total Culturc and 1.cisure 5,537,839 452,951 5,990,790 6,541,999 (55§,209)
Library Services: 2,597,889 188,566 2,786,455 2,790,310 (3,855)
Capital Qutlay:
Genceral Government
lLegislative 1,500 — 1.500 1,125 375
Administration and Support Scrvices 3211,702 3,241,702 3,029,264 182,438
Public Safcty 3
Police 1,131,507 - 1,131,507 1,083,970 47,537
Fire 175,509 - 175,509 187,818 (12,309)
Transportation: 75,255 - 75,255 67339 1.916
Continucd -
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City of Oxnard, California

General Fund

Schedule of Requirements (Continned)
Budget and Actuat on a Budgetary Basis

Year Ended June 30, 2002

Communits Develnpment
Lngincening Services - Design
Pubhic Service Admimstration
Development aind Consiruction Services
Devclopment Support/Public Projeets
Neighborhood Services

Culurc and Lcisure
Reereation Senvices

Parks and Pubhc Grounds
Library Scrvices
Total Capilal Quilay
Total Operating Expenditures

Otker Financing Uscs:
Capital Outlay 'und

City of Oxnard Financing Authority
PACC Operaung Fund
Golf Course Fund
Totat Operating Transfers Out
Total Fxpenditures
Fund Balance - Junc 30,2002
Total Requirements

Changes Aclual Variance
Original Increase Revised Buillgctary Favorable
Buuget {Deercasc) Budgcet Basis (tinfavorable)
16.610 16.610 16,610
1977 1,977 1.977
159,249 159.249 158,713 530
3.547 3,547 1,636 1o
19,324 19,324 19.324
35.000 35,000 - 35,000
192.365 5.159,128 210915 (18.550)
135,583 135.583 135,583 —
5,159,128 — 4,914.274 244.854
64,865.980 6.533.872 71,399,852 71.374.194 25.G658
2.197.731 2,197,731 2.197.731 -
1,742.251 (59.950) 1,682,301 1.412.188 270.113
724,849 724,849 724,849
937.981 947,981 947,981
5.612,812 (59,950) 5,552,862 5.282,749 270,113
70.478.792 6,473,922 76,952,714 76.656.943 295,771
23.863.8)7 (6,312922) 17,550,895 26,783,998 (9.233,103)
94,342,609 161,000 94,503,609 S _ 103,440,941 (8,937,332)
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City of Oxnard, California

Special Revenue Funds

Combining Schedule of Reveunes, Ixy
Budget and Actual On Budgetary Basiy
Year Ended June 30, 2002

ey aml Cll

e

in Fund Balances

Reveaues:
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Growth and Development l'ees
Fines and Forfeitures
Interest
Special Asscssment
Misccilancous
Tolat Revenucs
Expenditures:
Public Safcty
Transportation
Community Development
Cullurcand L.cisurc
Capital OQutlay
Total Expenditures
Excess {dcficiency) of’ es Over [
Other Financing Sources (Uscs):
Opcrating Transfers In
Opcrating Transfers Qut
Total Other Financing Sources (Uscs)

Excess (dclicicncy) of Revenues Over (under) Yixpenditures

Fund Balance, July |
Fund Balance, .Junc 30

Changes Actual Variance
Original Increases Reviscd Budgetary Favorable
Budge! {Mecreases) Budget Basis (Unfavorablc)
$ 3,618,996 - 26.520 s 3.645.510 5.189.71% $ 1.544.202
11,362,809 18,328.212 29.691.18¢% 18.307.112 (11,324.069)
8.637.040 300.000 8.937.040 7.432,528 (1.504.512)
750,000 - 750.000 369.732 (380,268)
947.166 3,535 950,708 1,538.590 587.889
1.505.800 - 1,505.800 1,515,592 9.792
412,272 - 412,272 054.410 242,138
27,234,143 8,658,367 45,892,510 35.067.682 (10,824,828)
3,68.990 322,039 3,941,035 5,018,687 (1.677.652)
3,741.001 3.399.702 7,141,303 3.940.020 3.195.283
4,234,544 10 14,465,228 3,881.091 10.584,137
215,500 363.405 578,905 1,043,207 (464.302)
4,808,938 34,230,320 39.099.258 13.207.792 25.891.466
16,679,579 48,546,150 65,225,729 27.696,797 37,528932
10,554,564 (29.887,78.3) (19.333.219) 7.370.885 (26,704,104)
- - - 1.265.481 1.265,481
(4,959,630) 2,907.356 {2.052.274) (2.764,183) (211.909)
4,959,630) 2,907,356 12,052,274) (1.498.702) 553,572
5.594,934 (26,980.427) (21,385.493) 5,872,183 27.257,676
31,088,442 {21,541,285) 9,547,157 34,154,577 24,607,420
S 36,683,376 S ___(48S21,712) $__ (11,838,336) 40,026,760 $ 51,865,096
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City of Oxnard, California

Special Revenue FFunds

Schedute o f Revenue Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual On Budgetary Basis
Year Ended June 30, 2002

Changes Actual Variance
Original Increases Revised Budactary Favorabic
Bwlget (Decreases) Budgel Basis (I'nfavorable)
PARK FEES QUIMBY RESERVE FUND ]
Revenues:

Growth and Development Fees $ 2.354.040 s - 2.354.440 s 1.575450 s (178.590)

Interest 290,000 — 290,000 322.803 32.803

Misccllancous 1.500 1500
Total Revenues 2,644,040 - 2,644,040 1,901,753 T Gy
Expenditures: T T T

Community Development 271,210 271.210 271.210

CapitalOutlay 2,354,040 4,498,472 6852512 490,788
Totat Fxpenditurcs 2354040 4769682 7.2 Twoows
Excess (delicicncy) of Revenues Over Expenditures 290,000 (:1,709,682) (4.479.682) Nmbg‘A B
Other Financing Sources (Liscs):

Opcrating Transfors Qut (290.000) 203.131 (20.869) _ 26,869
Total Other Financing Sources (Liscs) (290.600) 0 263,131 (26.869) S i ’ : :;i;jgi:
Excess (Deficicney) of Revenucs and Other Sources Over I'xpendilures h o

and Other Uses (4,506.551) {4,506.551) 1.:110,908 5.917.536
Fund Balance, July | 6,817,571 {2,909.388) 3,908,183 0,874,766 2,966,583
Fund Balance. Junc 30 s 6.817.571 $ (7,415.939) (598.368) $ 8.285.731 3 8.884,099

Connnucd -
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City of Oxnard, California

Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Revenue Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (Continued)

Budget and Actual On Budgetary Basis

Year Euded June 30, 2002

Changes Aclual Yariance
Original Increases Revised Budgctary Favorable
Budget (Decreases) Budget Basis (Unfavorablc)

L PARKS ACQUISITIONS AND DEVELOPMENT FUND

Revenues:

Growth and Devclopment fFees 190.000 s -- 190,000 $ 127.750 $ (62,250)
Interest - 29,198 29,198

Total Revcnucs 190,000 — 190,000 156,948 (33,052)

Expenditures:

Commuunity Development - 317.430 317.436 — 317.430
Capital Outlay 240,361 246,361 270.832 (24.471)

Total Expenditures —_ 563,797 563,797 270,832 _——_m;s—

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures 190,000 (SGJ,WT (373.797) {113,884) 259913

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Operating Transfers Oul (190,000) 62,208 (127,732) - 127,732

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (£90,000) 62,268 (127,732) — 127.732

Excess (Defictency) of Reventies and Other Sources Over Expenditures __ -

and Other Uses .= (501,529) (501.529) (113.884) 387.045
Fund Balance, July 1 728,733 (371.249) 357,484 650,717 293,233
Fund Balance, Junc 30 728.733 $ (872.778) (144,045) 3 536,833 s 680,878

Continucd -
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City of Oxnard, California

Special Revenune Funds

Schedule of Revenne Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (Continned)
Budget and Actnal On Budgetary Basis

Year Ended June 30, 2002

Changes Actual Variance
Original Increascs Revised Budgelary Favorable
Budget (Decreasces) Budget Basis {Unfavorablc)
STORM DRAIN FACILITIES FUND —I
Revenues:

Growth and Development Fees $ 1,861,000 $ 300,000 2,161,000 1,353,016 (807,984)

Intcrest 160,000 - 160,000 241,453 81453

Other Financing Sources - - 64,226 04,220
Total Revenues 2.021.000 300.000 2,321,000 1,658,695 (662.305)
Expenditures:

Community Development . 355,573 3,983 359,550 359.550

CapitalOutlay - 4,838,825 4,838.825 1,040.749 3,798,076
Total Expenditures 355,573 4,842,808 5,198,381 1,040,749 4,157,632
Iixcess (Deficicncy) of Revenues Over Expenditures 1,665427 (4.542,808) (2.877.381) 617.946 3,495,327
Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Operaling Transfers Qut (538,904) - (538,904) 538,904
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (538,904) —_ (538.904) — 538,904
Excess (Deficicncy) of Revenucs and Other Sources Over §ixpenditures

and Other Uses 1,120,523 {4,542,808) (3,416.285) 617,940 4,034,231
Fund Balance, July | 4,141,877 (3,771,157) 370,720 5,378.270 5.007.550
Fund Balance (Deliclt), June 30 s 5.268.400 S (8,313,965) (3.045.565) 5.996.216 9.041,781

Continucd -
130

City of Oxnard, California

Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Revenue Expenditures and Changes in Fuud Balances (Continued)

Budget and Actual Ou Budgetary Basis

Year Euded June 30, 2002

Changes Actual Yarlance
Original Increases Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget (Decreascs) Budget Basis (Unfavorable)
rClRCULATION SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT FEE FUND

Revcnues:

Growth and Development ees $ 2,110,000 $ 2,110,000 $ 2,100,567 $ (3.433)
Interest 140,000 - 140,000 274,616 131616

Total Revenues 2,250,000 — 2,250,000 2,378,183 128,183

Expenditures:

Community Dcvclopment 967,389 630261 1,597,650 — 1,597,650
Capital Outlay 585,000 5,600,710 6,185.710 2,091,521 4,094,189

Total Expenditures 1552389 6,230.971 7,783,360 2,091,521 5,691,839

Excess (Dcliciency) of over E itures 697,611 (6.230,971) (5,533.360) 286,662 5,820,022

Other Financing Sources (Uscs):

Opcrating Transfers OQut (47,000) {378.919) {425.919) (378,919) 47,000

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (47,000) (378.919) (425,919) (378,919) 47,000

Excess (Deficicncy) of Revenucs and Other Sources Over Expenditures
and Other Uscs 650,611 €6,609,8%0) (5,959.279) (92,257) 5.807,022
Fund Balance, July 1 5,033,720 (2.872.891) 2,160,829 6,169,467 4,008,638
Fund Balance (Deficit), June 30 $ 5,684331 3 {9,482,781) (3,798,450) S 6,077,210 $ 9.875.660
Conlinucd -
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City of Oxnard, California

Special Revenue Funds
Scheduleof Revenue
Budget and Actwal On Budgotary Basis
Year Ended June 30, 2002

penditures and Chanyes in Fund Balances

(Continued)

Changes

Aclual

Variance

nal Increascs Revised Nudgctary Favorable
Budgel (Drereases) Budnet Basis (linfavorablc)
[ CAPITAL GROWTI{ FEES - RESIDENTIAL FUN J
Revenuces:
Growth and Development Fecs $ 1.800.000 - s 1.800,000 S 1,049,847 s {750.153)
Interest 52606 — 53,0006 119,239 65,573
Total Revenues T e — 1.853.666 T eoss ;(os.qjm
Eapenditures:
Community Development 1,123,782 1,123,783 1,123,783
Capital Qutlay - R o . (}vilOL
Total Expenditnres %AV—TJ‘Z‘E : :At ::N 1.123.783 . S N -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures B 729.883 ) - 729.883 1,166,526 436,643
Other Financing Souraes (Uses):
Opcerating Transters n - 1,265,481 1,265,481
Operating Transiirs Oul - (E119.783) »___7”;"] I‘J.78,‘f)r‘k
Total Other Financing Sources (!ses) T - - . 145,698 o 145,698
Iixcess (Deficicney) of Revenues and Other Sources Over Expenditures o -
and Other Financing Uses 729.883 729.883 1,312,224 582.341
Fund Ralance, July | 1.277.739 — 1,277,739 638,099 (639.640)
Fund 1lalance (Deficit), Junc 30 $ 2,007,622 — $ 2,007,622 S 1,950.323 $ (57.299)
Conunucd
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City of Oxnard, California
Special Revenue Funds
Schedule of Revenue Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (Contined)
Budget and Actual On Budgetary Basis
Year Ewded June 30, 2002
Changes Aclual Variance
Originat Increases Revisetl Budgcetary Favorable
Budgct (Decreases) Budget Basis (Uinfavorablc)
LCAPITAL GROWTH FEES - NON-RESIDENTIAL FUND
Revenues:
Growthand Develupment lices 250,000 s s 280,000 s 349,820 5 69.820
Interest 45,000 45,000 406,181 1,181
Total Revenues 325,000 - 325,000 396,001 71,001
Expenditures: —
Community Development - 7.429 7.429 — 7,429
Total Expenditures — 7.429 7,429 - 7.429
Excess (Deficicncy) of Revenuces over Expenditures 325.400 (7.429) 317,57 396,00t 78.430
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Opcrating Transfers Out - (1.265.481) (1.265,481)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uscs) — — —_ (1,265.481) (1,265,481)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Sources Over Lxpendilures T
and Other Uses 325,000 (7.429) 317,57 (869,480) (1,187,051)
Fund Italance, July | 1.373.425 —_ 1.373.425 1.483.405 109.980
Fund tialance, Junc 30 1,698.425 s (1.429) 3 1,690.996 % 613,925 s 1,077,071
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City of Oxnard, California

Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Revenue Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (Contimeed)
Budget and Actual On Budgetary Basis

Year Ended June 30, 2002

Changes Actual Variance
Original Increases Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget (Pccreases) Budgel Basis (UInfavorabic)
UTILITIES UNDERGROUNDING FEES FUND
Revenues:

Growlhand Development Fees s 42,000 $ s 42,000 s 98,535 s 56,535

Interest 62,000 - 62,000 63,334 1,334
Total Revenues 104,000 - 104,000 161,869 57.869
Expenditures:

Community Development - 96,026 96,026 96.026
Total F.xpenditures - 96.026 96,026 — 96.02
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues and Fxpenditures 104,000 (96.0206) 1,974 161,869 153,895
Fund Balance, July | 1.258,086 (98.126) 1,159,960 1379457 219.497
Fund Batance (Deficit), June 30 S 1,362,086 S (194.152) 5 1,167,934 $ 1,541,326 3 373.392

Continued -
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City of Oxnard, California

Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Revenune Expenditures and Changes in Fund Bal, (Continued)

Budget and Actual On Budgetary Basis

Year Ended June 30, 2002
Changes Actunl Variaance
Qriginal Increascs Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budget (Decreases) Budget Basis (Liufavorable)
HOUSING IN-LIEU FUND
Revenues:
Growth and Devclopment Fees .- s - $ — $ 771,543 $ 771,543
Interest - - — 37,270 37,270
Total Revenues — —_ — 808,813 808,813
Expenditures:
Community Development 15,549 15549 13,908 2,481
Capital Outlay - 54,000 54,000 - 54,000
Total Expenditurcs — 69,549 69,549 13,068 56,481
Excess (Dcficicncy) of Revenues over [ixpenditures - (69.549) (69.549) 795.745 805,294
Fund Balance, July 1 _— 418,902 418,902 394.688 (24,214)
Fund Batancc (Deficit), Sunc 30 — 3 349,353 $ 349,353 N 1,190,433 $ 841,080
Continucd -
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City of Oxnard, California

Special Reveune Funds

Schedule o f Revenne Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (Continned)

Budper and Actual On Budgetary Basis
Year Ended June 30, 2002

Changes Actual Variance
Original Increases Revised Hudpctary Favorable
Budget (Decreasesy Budprel Basis (A nfarorable)
HUD & CDBG GRANTS FUND
Revenues:
Intergovernmental S 4,225.373 (5.000) $ 4,220.373 4,253,749 $ 33,376
Misccliancous 184,190 S
Total Revenues - 4.225.373 [5.(‘)’0—07)77 4.220.373 - 4.437,919 o
Eapendires: T ) - T
Comniumty Development 1,683.299 2,030,650 3,713,955 1,603,222 2,050,733
Culwreand | ersuie 215.500 303,405 578.905 502,154 76,751
Caputal Quilay 1,505,389 2,560.090 4,065,479 2,305,403 1700016
Total Fxpenditures _”T.dod.lssw— T 4_ 54,151 — 8.358.339 ; “77 - ‘ 3.;(.2_ ‘0}) o
Excess (Deficieney) of Revenues over Lxpenditures - R2 I_I89—> *”‘:;05‘)“‘;]" {4.137.900) (‘)1-.“;(6. o - 4.[)4‘;.0(;;‘7_
Fund Balance. July | 00.443 (2,516.097) (2,455,654) 128,871 2.784.525
Fund Balance (Deficit), Junc 30 s HR1.628 (7.475.248) s (6.593.620) 235,971 $ 6.829.591
Contmucd -
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City of Oxnard, California
Special Revenue Funds
Schedule o f Revenue Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (Continaed)
Budget and Actieal On Budgetary Basis
Year Ended June 30, 2002
Changes Actual Variance
Original Increases Revised Butlgelary Favorable
Budget (Decreases) Budget Basis (Uinfavorszblc)
STATE AND FEDERAL GRANTS FUND
Revenues:
Taxes 3.645.516 - 3,645,510 $ 5.189,718 $ 1,544,202
Intergovemmental 20,977,243 — 20,977,243 7.134.155 (13,843,088)
Interest 0.228 - 0,228 197.107 190,879
Miscellancous - - — 76,906 76,906
Total Revenues 24,628,987 — 24,628,987 12.597.886 (12,031,101)
Expenditures:
Public Safcty 11,482413 11,482,413 5,018.087 5,803,720
“Transportation §75.272 - 575.2712 181,136 394,136
Community Developnent 301,687 - 301.087 179,205 122,482
Culture and Icisurc 1,697,419 1.697.419 541,053 1,156,366
Capital Outiay 12,626,682 12,626,682 4,147,966 8,478,716
Total Expenditurcs 26,683,473 — 20,683.473 10,668,047 16,015,426
Excess (Delicicney) of Revenues Over Expemlilures (2.054.4;3.(:)—-7 (2.054,480) 1,929,839 3,984,325
Opcrating Trausfers In — o= - - -
Opcrating Transfers Out - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uscs) — i — —_ T —
Excess (Delicicney) of Revenues and Other Sources Over Lixpenditures )
and Other Uses (2,054,480) - (2.054.480) 1,929,839 3,984,325
Fund Balancc, July 1 3,709,879 — 3,709,879 3,709,879 —
Fund Balancee, Junc 30 s 1,655,393 — 1,655.393 3 5,639.718 H 1984325

137

Connnucd -



City of Oxnard, California

Special Revenue Fundy

Schedule of Revenue Expenditures and Changes in 1-usd Balances (Continucd)
Budget and Actual On Budgetary Basis

Year Ended June 30. 2002

Changes Actual Variance
Original Increases Revised Budgctary Favorahle
Budget (Decreascs) Budget Basis (Unfavorablc)
STATE GAS TAX FUND l
Revenues:

Intcrgovernmental $ 3,560,500 s - $ 3.560.500 $ 3.337.806 £ (222.694)

Interest 100,500 - 100,500 91.438 9.062)

Misccliancous 249,000 249.000 148,731 (100,269)
Total Revenucs 3,910,000 — 3,910,000 3,577,975 (332,025)

Exprndilu}cs:

Transportation 2,554,338 146,636 2,700,974 2,667,503 3347

Capital Outlay . 3.520 1,722,630 1.7206,)56 489.503 1,236.653
Total Expendlures 2,557,858 1,869,272 4,427,130 3.157.000 1,270,124
Excess ([ icncy) of R over Lixpendil 1,352,142 {1,869.272) (517,130) 420,969 938.099
Other Financing Sources (Uscs):

Operating Transficrs Qut {1,000,000) 72,736 (927.204) - 927,264
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) {1.000,000) 72,736 (927.264) —_ 927,264
Iixcess (Deficicncy) of Revenues and Other Sources Over Expenditures

and Other Uses 352,142 (1,796,536) (1,444,394) 420,969 1,865.303
Fund Balance, July 1 2,115,862 {1,526,448) 589,414 1,920,685 1,331,271
Fund Balance (Deficit). Junc 30 $ 2,468,004 $ (3:322.984) $ (854.980) $ 2.341,654 $ 3.196.634

Continucd -
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City of Oxnard, California
Special Revenue Funds
Schedule of Revenue Expenditures and Clanges ist Fund Balances (Costinued)
Budget and Actual On Bud getary Basis
Year Ended Juue 30, 2002
Changes Actual Variance
Original Increascs Revised Budgelary Favorable
Budget (Mecreascs) Budget Basis (Uufavoradle)

l TRAFFIC SAFETY FUND J
Revenues:

Fines and Forlcitures $ 750,000 $ — $ 750,000 $ 309,732 (380,268)

Miscellancous - - - 6,984 6.984
Total Revenucs 750,000 — 750,000 376,716 (373,284)
Expenditurcs:

Transportation 722,359 - 722,359 601,456 120,903

Capital Outlay 50,000 210,570 260,576 191,145 09,431
Total Expenditures 772359 210,576 982.935 792,601 190,334
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenucs and Expenditurcs (22,359) (210,576) (232,935) (415,885) (182,950)
Fund Balance, July t 717,750 (325,838) 391,912 606,661 214,749
Fund Balance (Deficit), Sune 30 3 695.391 $ 536414) s 158977 $ 190,776 31.799

Continucd -
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City of Oxnard, California

Special Revenue Funds

Schedule o f Revenne Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (Continued)

Bud get and Actual On Budgetary Basis
Year Ewded June 30, 2002

141

Changes Actual Variance
Original lucreases Revisced Budgetary Favorabice
Budget (Decreases) Budget Basis (Unfavorablc)
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT FUND
Revenues:

ntergovemniental s 3.469.990 S 100,370 s 3.570.372 3,641,402 by 71030

Misccllancous 163.272 - 163,272 169.873 6,601
Total Revenues 3,633,268 100.376 3,733,644 3.811,275 77.631
Expenditures:

Transportaton 464,904 2.661.276 3.120,180 495,925 2,610,255

Capital Outlay 223.900 2.519.596 2,743,490 2,117,208 26,231
Total Expenditures 688,804 5,180.872 5,869,676 2,613.190 3,256,486
Excess(Deficiency) of Revenues over IExpenditures 2944464 (5,080.496) (2,136.032) 1,198,085
Other Financing Uises:

Opcrating I ransiers out (2.891,220) 2,890,800 (420) 426
Total Other Financing Sources (lises) (2,891,226) 2,890,800 (426) — 426
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Sources Over Expenditures

and Other Uscs 53.238 (2,189.0:90) (2.136.458) 1,198,085 3.334,543
Fund Balancc, July 1 2.817.334 {2,777.108) 40,226 1,786,472 1,746,246
Fund Balancc, Junc 30 s 2,870,572 S (4,966.804) b] (2,096,232) 2,984,557 3 5,080,789

Continued -
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City of Oxnard, California

Special Revenue Funds

Schedule of Revenue Expendirares and Changes in Fund Balances (Continuad)

Budget and Actial On Budgetary Basis

Year Ended June 30,2002
Changes Actual Variance
Original Increases Revised Budgetary Favorable
Budgel (Decreases) Budget Basis Unfavorablc;
MAINTENANCE ASSESSMENT DISTRICT FUND
Revenues:
Interest s 96.000 $ $ 96.000 $ 118,951 $ 22,951
Special Assessments 1,505,800 - 1,505,800 1,515,592 9.792

Total Revenues 1,601,800 — 1,601,800 1,634,543 32,743

Expenditures:

Community Development - - 2.025.596 2.025.596
Capital Outlay 22.089 1.200 23,289 - (23,289)

Total Expenditures 22,089 1,200 23,289 2,025,596 2,002,307

Excess (Deficicney) of Revenues over Expenditures 1,579,711 (1.200) 1,578,511 (391.053) (1,969,504)

Fund Balance, July 1 4,512,432 (2,503,212) 2,009,220 2.833,040 823,820

Fund Balance (Deficit), Junc 30 S 6,092.143 s (2,504,412) $ 3,587,731 S 2,441,987 $ (1,145,744)
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City of Oxnard, California

Debt Service Funds

Schedule of Revenue Expenditures and Changes in Fund Bal (Conti 1)
Budget and Actieal On Budgetary Basis

Year Ended June 30, 2002

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
Changes Actual VYariance
Original Increascs Revised RBudgetary Favorable

Revenues: Budget —(Decreases) Budget Uasis (Unfavorabic)

Taxes $ 1,600,000 5 - $ 1,600,000 $ 1,629,857 s 29,857

Intcrest 200,000 —_ 200,000 240,042 40.642
Total Revenucs . 1,800,000 - 1,800,000 1,870,499 70,499
Expenditures:
Debt Service:

Principal 2,450,000 —_ 2,450,000 2.412.335 37.605

Interest 2,000.000 - 2,000,000 1.988,947 11,053
Total Expenditres 4,450,000 — 4,450,000 4,401,282 48,718
Excess (Deficiency) of over itures (2.650,000) — (2.650,000) (2.530.783) 119,217
Other Financing Sources (Uscs): .

Opcrating Transfers In 2,500,000 - 2,500,000 2,531,971 31,9

Operating Transfcrs Out — 4 — -
TotalOther Financing Sources (Uscs) 2,500,000 _— 2,500,000 2,531,971 31971
Excess of Ri and Fi ing Sources Over Expenditurcs and {150,000) — (150,000) 1188 151,188

Other Financing Uses
Fund Balancc, July | 332,714 — 1,332,714 1332714 —
Fund Balance (Deficit), June 30 s 182,714 s - 5 1.182,714 S 1.333.902 $ 151,188
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APPENDIX D
FORM OF BOND COUNSEL OPINION

Closing Date, 2003
Board of Directors
City of Oxnard Financing Authority
300 West Third Street
Oxnard, California 93030

$43,785,000
City of Oxnard Financing Authority
Wastewater Revenue Refunding Bonds
Series 2003
(Final Opinion)
Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have acted as Bond Counsel in connection with the issuance by the City of Oxnard Financing
Authority (the “Authority™) of $43,785,000 aggregate principal amount of the City of Oxnard Financing
Authority Wastewater Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2003 (the “Bonds™), pursuant to Article 11
(commencing with Section 53580) of Chapter 3 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 of the California
Govemment Code and the provisions of an Indenture, dated as of March 1, 2003 (the “Indenture™), by and
between the Authority and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee™).
Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Indenture
and in the Amended and Restated Installment Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 1, 2003 (the
“Installment Purchase Agreement”), by and between the City of Oxnard (the “City”) and the Authority, as
applicable.

In such connection, we have reviewed the Indenture, the Installment Purchase Agreement, the
Tax Certificate of the City and the Authority, dated the date hereof (the “Tax Certificate™), opinions of the
City Attorney, certifications of the City, the Authority and others, and such other documents, opinions
and matters to the extent we deemed necessary to render the opinions set forth herein.

Certain agreements, requirements, and procedures contained or referred to in the Indenture, the
Installment Purchase Agreement, the Tax Certificate, and other relevant documents may be changed and
certain actions (including, without limitation, defeasance of the Bonds) may be taken or omitted under the
circumstances and subject to the terms and conditions set forth in such documents. No opinion is
expressed herein as to any Bond or the interest thereon if any such change occurs or action is taken or
omitted upon the advice or approval of counsel other than ourselves.

The opinions expressed herein are expressed only on and as of the date hereof and are based on
an analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings, and judicial decisions and cover certain matters not
directly addressed by such authorities. Such opinions may be affected by actions taken or omitted or
events occurring after the date hereof. Changes to existing law may occur hereafter and could have
retroactive effect. We have not undertaken to determine, or to inform any person, whether any such
actions are taken or omitted or events do occur. Our engagement with respect to the Bonds has concluded
with their issuance, and we disclaim any obligation to update this opinion. We have assumed the
genuineness of all documents and signatures presented to us (whether as originals or copies) and the due
and legal execution and delivery thereof by, and validity against, any parties other than the City. We have
not undertaken to verify independently, and have assumed, the accuracy of the factual matters represented,



warranted, or certified in the documents, and of the legal conclusions contained in the opinion, referred to
in the second paragraph hereof.

Furthermore, we have assumed compliance with all covenants and agreements contained in the
Indenture, the Installment Purchase Agreement, and the Tax Certificate, including (without limitation)
covenants and agreements compliance with which is necessary to assure that future actions, omissions, or
events will not cause interest on the Bonds to be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes.
In addition, we call attention to the fact that the rights and obligations under the Bonds, the Indenture, the
Installment Purchase Agreement, and the Tax Certificate may be subject to bankruptcy, insolvency,
reorganization, arrangement, fraudulent conveyance, moratorium, and other similar laws relating to or
affecting creditors’ rights, to the application of equitable principles, to the exercise of judicial discretion
in appropriate cases, and to the limitations on legal remedies against cities and joint powers authorities in
the State of California.

We undertake no responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, or faimess of the Official
Statement or other offering material relating to the Bonds and express no opinion with respect thereto.
We express no opinion regarding the perfection or priority of the lien on the Revenues or the Net System
Revenues.

Based on and subject to the foregoing, and in reliance thereon, as of the date hereof, we are of the
following opinions:

1. The obligation of the City to pay the Installment Payments under the Installment
Purchase Agreement constitutes a valid and binding limited obligation of the City. The
Bonds constitute the valid and binding limited obligations of the Authority.

2. The Indenture creates a valid pledge, to secure the payment of the principal of and
interest on the Bonds, of the Revenues. The Installment Purchase Agreement creates a
valid pledge, to secure the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, of the
Net System Revenues.

3. Interest on the Bonds is excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes
under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and is exempt
from State of California personal income taxes. Interest on the Bonds is not a specific
preference item for purposes of the federal individual or corporate alternative minimum
taxes, although we observe that such interest is included in adjusted current earnings in
calculating corporate alternative minimum taxable income. We express no opinion
regarding other tax consequences relating to the ownership or disposition of, or the
accrual or receipt of interest on, the Bonds.

Except as stated in paragraph (3), we express no opinion as to federal or State of California tax
consequences of the ownership of the Bonds, including whether interest on the Bonds is (a) included in
the calculation of the amount subject to the “branch-level” tax imposed by Section 884 of the Code upon
the earnings of certain foreign corporations engaged in a trade or business within the United States or (b)
included in the income of certain Subchapter S corporations for purposes of the tax imposed thereon by
Section 1375 of the Code. We also express no opinion as to any other federal, state or local or any
foreign tax consequences with respect to acquisition, ownership or disposition of the Bonds.

Respectfully submitted,
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APPENDIX E
FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT

This Continuing Disclosure Agreement (the “Disclosure Agreement”) is executed and delivered
by and between the City of Oxnard Financing Authority (the “Authority”) and Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association, in its capacity as dissemination agent (the “Dissemination Agent”), in connection
with the issuance by the Authority of its Wastewater Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2003, in the
aggregate principal amount of $43,785,000 (the “Bonds”). The Bonds are being issued pursuant to
Article 11 of Chapter 3 of Part 1 of Division2 of Title 5 (commencing with Section 53580) of the
California Government Code and the provisions of an Indenture, dated as of March 1, 2003 (the
“Indenture”), by and between the Authority and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee (the
“Trustee”), in order to provide funds to refund certain outstanding obligations of the Authority. The
Authority and the Dissemination Agent hereby covenant and agree as follows:

Section 1. Purpose of the Disclosure Agreement. This Disclosure Agreement is being
executed and delivered by the parties hereto for the benefit of the holders and beneficial owners of the
Bonds and in order to assist the Participating Underwriter in complying with Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5)
promulgated under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934.

Section 2. Definitions. In addition to the definitions set forth in the Indenture and in the
Amended and Restated Installment Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 1, 2003 (the “Installment
Purchase Agreement”), by and between the Authority and the City of Oxnard (the “City”), which apply to
any capitalized terms used in this Disclosure Agreement, unless otherwise defined in this Section, the
following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings:

“Annual Report” shall mean any Annual Report provided by the Authority pursuant to, and as
described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Agreement.

“Annual Report Date” shall mean the date in each year that is six (6) months after the end of the
Authority’s fiscal year, the end of which, as of the date of this Disclosure Agreement, is June 30.

“Dissemination Agent” shall mean Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, or any successor
Dissemination Agent designated in writing by the Authority, which successor must have filed a written
acceptance of such designation with the Authority.

“Listed Events” shall mean any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this Disclosure Agreement.

“National Repository” shall mean any Nationally Recognized Municipal Securities Information
Repository for purposes of the Rule. A list of the approved National Repositories can be found on the
Securities and Exchange Commission website at http://www.sec.gov/info/municipal/nrmsir.htm.

“Official Statement” means the Official Statement relating to the Bonds.

“Participating Underwriter” shall mean the original underwriter of the Bonds required to comply
with the Rule in connection with offering of the Bonds.

“Repository” shall mean each National Repository and each State Repository.

“Rule” shall mean Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time.
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“State Repository” shall mean any public or private repository or entity designated by the State
of California as a state repository for the purpose of the Rule and recognized by the Securities and
Exchange Commission. As of the date of this Disclosure Agreement, there is no State Repository.

Section 3. Provisions of Annual Reports.

(a) The Authority shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to, not later than the Annual
Report Date, commencing December 31, 2003, provide to each Repository and any Participating
Underwriter an Annual Report which is consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure
Agreement, with a copy to the Trustee and the Participating Underwriter. Not later than fifteen (15)
Business Days prior to said date, the Authority shall provide its Annual Report to the Dissemination
Agent, if such Dissemination Agent is a different entity than the Authority. The Annual Report may be
submitted as a single document or as separate documents comprising a package, and may cross-reference
other information as provided in Section 4 of this Disclosure Agreement; provided that any audited
financial statements of the City may be submitted separately from the balance of the Annual Report, and
not later than the date required above for the filings of the Annual Report. If the Authority’s fiscal year
changes, it shall give notice of such change in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(c).
The Authority shall provide a written certification with each Annual Report furnished to the
Dissemination Agent to the effect that such Annual Report constitutes the Annual Report required to be
furnished hereunder. The Dissemination Agent may conclusively rely upon such certification of the
Authority and shall have no duty or obligation to review such Annual Report.

(b) If the Authority is unable to provide the Repositories with an Annual Report by the date
required in subsection (a), the Authority shall send a notice to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board
in substantially the form attached as Exhibit A.

© The Dissemination Agent shall:

1. determine each year prior to the date for providing the Annual Report the name
and address of each National Repository and each State Repository, if any;

2. file a report with the Authority and the Trustee (if the Dissemination Agent is
other than the Trustee) certifying that the Annual Report has been provided
pursuant to this Disclosure Agreement, stating the date it was provided and
listing all the Repositories to which it was provided; and

3. take any other actions mutually agreed upon between the Dissemination Agent
and the Authority.
Section 4. Content of Annual Reports. The Annual Report shall contain or incorporate by

reference the following:

(a) Audited financial statements of the City, which include information regarding the funds
and accounts of the Authority, if any, prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles as promulgated to apply to governmental entities from time to time by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. If such audited financial statements are not available at the time the Annual
Report is required to be filed pursuant to Section 3(a), the Annual Report shall contain unaudited financial
statements, and the audited financial statements shall be filed in the same manner as the Annual Report
when they become available.



(b) The following information with respect to the City, the Authority and the Bonds for the
fiscal year to which the Annual Report relates, which information may be provided by its inclusion in the
audited financial statements of the City for such Fiscal Year described in subsection (a) above:

L. Principal amount of the Bonds (including principal amount and years of maturity of
Bonds, if any, called for redemption in advance of maturity) and any bonds issued to
refund the same.

2. Balance in the funds and accounts established under the Indenture or the Installment
Purchase Agreement.

3. If a reserve fund insurance policy is not in effect and the amount on deposit in the
Reserve Fund is not equal to the Reserve Fund Requirement, the amount of the
delinquency or surplus, as applicable.

4. Information regarding any material changes to the Treatment Plant or the other facilities
comprising the Wastewater System, or the operation thereof, as described in the Official
Statement under the following subheadings of the section entitled “WASTEWATER
SYSTEM™.

-- Service Area

-- Sources of Wastewater System Revenues

-- Wastewater Rates and Charges

Wastewater Connection Fees

- Actual and Projected Operating Results (only actual results required)
-- Fiscal Year 2002-2003 Budget (updated for applicable Fiscal Year)
-- Outstanding Debt

-- Plans for Future Indebtedness

Any or all of the items listed above may be included by specific reference to other documents,
including official statements of debt issues of the City, the Authority or related public entities, which have
been submitted to each of the Repositories or the Securities and Exchange Commission. If the document
included by reference is a final official statement, it must be available from the Municipal Securities
Rulemaking Board. The Authority shall clearly identify each such other document so included by
reference.

Section 5. Reporting of Significant Events.
(a) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5, the Authority shall give, or cause to be given,

notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds, if material:

1. Principal and interest payment delinquencies.

2. Non-payment related defaults.

3. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties.
4. Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties.
5. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform.



6. Adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax-exempt status of the security.

7. Modifications to rights of security holders.

8. Bond calls.

9. Defeasances.

10. Release, substitution, or sale o f property securing repayments of the securities.

11. Rating changes.

(b) Whenever the Authority obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event, the
Authority shall as soon as possible determine if such event would be material under applicable federal
securities law.

(c) If the Authority determines that knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event would be
material under applicable federal securities law, the Authority shall promptly file a notice of such
occurrence with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board and each Repository, with a copy to the
Trustee and the Participating Underwriter. Notwithstanding the foregoing, notice of Listed Events
described in subsections (a)(8) and (9) need not be given under this subsection any earlier than the notice
(if any) of the underlying event is given to holders of affected Bonds pursuant to the Indenture.

Section 6. Termination of Reporting Obligation. The obligations of the Authority and the
Dissemination Agent under this Disclosure Agreement shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior
redemption or payment in full of all of the Bonds. If such termination occurs prior to the final maturity of
the Bonds, the Authority shall give notice of such termination in the same manner as for a Listed Event
under Section 5(c).

Section 7. Dissemination Agent. The Authority may from time to time appoint or engage a
Dissemination Agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Agreement, and may
discharge any such Agent, with or without appointing a successor Dissemination Agent. If at any time
there is not any other designated Dissemination Agent, the Trustee shall be appointed as the
Dissemination Agent. The initial Dissemination Agent shall be Wells Fargo Bank, National Association.

Section 8. Amendment; Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure
Agreement, the Authority and the Dissemination Agent may amend this Disclosure Agreement, and any
provision of this Disclosure Agreement may be waived, provided that the following conditions are
satisfied:

(a) if the amendment or waiver relates to annual or event information to be provided
hereunder, it may only be made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in
legal requirements, change in law, or change in the identity, nature, or status of the Authority or type of
business conducted;

(b) the undertakings herein, as proposed to be amended or waived, would, in the opinion of
nationally recognized bond counsel have complied with the requirements of the Rule at the time of the
primary offering of the Bonds, after taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as
well as any change in circumstances; and
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(@) the proposed amendment or waiver (i) is approved by holders of the Bonds in the manner
provided in the Indenture for amendments to the Indenture with the consent of holders, or (ii) does not, in
the opinion of the Authority or nationally recognized bond counsel, materially impair the interest of
Bondholders.

If the annual financial information or operating data to be provided in the Annual Report is
amended pursuant to the provisions hereof, the annual financial information containing the amended
operating data or financial information shall explain, in narrative form, the reasons for the amendment
and the impact of the change in the type of operating data or financial information being provided.

If an amendment is made to the undertaking specifying the accounting principles to be followed
in preparing financial statements, the annual financial information for the year in which the change is
made shall present a comparison between the financial statements or information prepared on the basis of
the new accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the former accounting principles. The
comparison shall include a qualitative discussion of the differences in the accounting principles and the
impact of the change in the accounting principles on the presentation of the financial information, in order
to provide information to investors to enable them to evaluate the ability of the City and the Authority to
meet their respective obligations. To the extent reasonably feasible, the comparison shall be quantitative.
A notice of the change in the accounting principles shall be sent to the Repositories.

Section 9. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Agreement shall be deemed
to prevent the Authority from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set
forth in this Disclosure Agreement or any other means of communication, or including any other
information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which is
required by this Disclosure Agreement. If the Authority chooses to include any information in any
Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event in addition to that which is specifically required
by this Disclosure Agreement, the Authority shall have no obligation under this Disclosure Agreement to
update such information or include it in any future Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed
Event.

Section 10. Default. In the event of a failure of the Authority to comply with any provisions
of this Disclosure Agreement any Participating Underwriter or any holder or beneficial owner of the
Bonds, or the Trustee on behalf of the holders of the Bonds, may take such actions as may be necessary
and appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific performance by court order, to cause the Authority
to comply with its obligations under this Disclosure Agreement. A default under this Disclosure
Agreement shall not be deemed a default under the Indenture, and the sole remedy under this Disclosure
Agreement in the event of any failure of the Authority to comply with this Disclosure Agreement shall be
an action to compel performance.

Section 11. Duties, Immunities and Liabilities of Dissemination Agent. The Dissemination
Agent shall have only such duties as are specifically set forth in this Disclosure Agreement, and the

Authority agrees to indemnify and save the Dissemination Agent, its officers, directors, employees and
agents, harmless against any loss, expense and liabilities which it may incur arising out of or in the
exercise or performance of its powers and duties hereunder, including the costs and expenses (including
attorneys fees) of defending against any claim of liability, but excluding liabilities due to the
Dissemination Agent’s negligence or willful misconduct. The obligations of the Authority under this
Section shall survive resignation or removal of the Dissemination Agent and payment of the Bonds. The
Dissemination Agent shall not be responsible in any manner for the format or content of any notice or
Annual Report prepared by the Authority pursuant to this Disclosure Agreement. The Authority shall pay
the reasonable fees and expenses of the Dissemination Agent for its duties hereunder.
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Section 12. Beneficiaries. The Disclosure Agreement shall insure solely to the benefit of the
City, the Authority, the Dissemination Agent, the Trustee, the Participating Underwriter and holders and
beneficial owners from time to time of the Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity.

Section 13. Counterparts. This Disclosure Agreement may be executed in multiple
counterparts, all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument, and each of which shall be

deemed to be an original.

Date: [Closing Date]

CITY OF OXNARD FINANCING AUTHORITY

By:

Authorized Signatory

WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
as Dissemination Agent

By:

Authorized Signatory
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EXHIBIT A TO CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT

NOTICE TO MUNICIPAL SECURITIES RULEMAKING BOARD OF
FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT

Name of Issuer: City of Oxnard Financing Authority
Name of Bond Issue: City of Oxnard Financing Authority Wastewater Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2003

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City of Oxnard Financing Authority has not provided an
Annual Report with respect to the above-named Bonds as required by the Continuing Disclosure
Agreement, dated [Closing Date]. The Authority anticipates that the Annual Report will be filed

by

Dated:
WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
as Dissemination Agent

By:

Authorized Signatory
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APPENDIX F

SPECIMEN MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE POLICY
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Financial Guaranty Insurance

Company, doing business in California FG'C
as FGIC Insurance Company :
125 Park Avenue

New York, NY 10017

(212) 312-3000
(800) 352-0001

A GE Capital Company

Municipal Bond
New Issue Insurance Policy

Issuer: Policy Number:

Control l‘%mber: 0010001

Bonds: P&%-: 2

\
Financial Guaranty Insurance Company (“Fi al ;1 "), a New York stock insurance company, in
consideration of the payment of the premiu 1€TY to the terms of this Policy, hereby unconditionally and
irrevocably agrees to pay to U.S. Ba rul NaMonal Association or its successor, as its agent (the “Fiscal
Agent”), for the benefit of Bondholders, rtion of the principal and interest on the above-described debt
obligations (the “Bonds™) which shall become Due for Payment but shall be unpaid by reason of Nonpayment by
the Issuer.

Financial Guaranty will make such payments to the Fiscal Agent on the date such principal or interest becomes
Due for Payment or on the Business Day next following the day on which Financial Guaranty shall have
received Notice of Nonpayment, whichever is later. The Fiscal Agent will disburse to the Bondholder the face
amount of principal and interest which is then Due for Payment but is unpaid by reason of Nonpayment by the
Issuer but only upon receipt by the Fiscal Agent, in form reasonably satisfactory to it, of (i) evidence of the
Bondholder’s right to receive payment of the principal or interest Due for Payment and (ii) evidence, including
any appropriate instruments of assignment, that all of the Bondholder’s rights to payment of such principal or
interest Due for Payment shall thereupon vest in Financial Guaranty. Upon such disbursement, Financial
Guaranty shall become the owner of the Bond, appurtenant coupon or right to payment of principal or interest
on such Bond and shall be fully subrogated to all of the Bondholder’s rights thereunder, including the
Bondholder’s right to payment thereof.

This Policy is non-cancellable for any reason. The premium on this Policy is not refundable for any reason,
including the payment of the Bonds prior to their maturity. This Policy does not insure against loss of any
prepayment premium which may at any time be payable with respect to any Bond.

As used herein, the term “Bondholder” means, as to a particular Bond, the person other than the Issuer who, at
the time of Nonpayment, is entitled under the terms of such Bond to payment thereof. “Due for Payment”
means, when referring to the principal of a Bond, the stated maturity date thereof or the date on which the same
shall have been duly called for mandatory sinking fund redemption and does not refer to any earlier date on
which payment is due by reason of call for redemption (other than by mandatory sinking fund redemption),
acceleration or other advancement of maturity and means, when referring to interest on a Bond, the stated date

FGIC is a registered service mark used by Financial Guaranty Insurance Company under license from its parent company, FGIC Comporation.
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Financial Guaranty Insurance L
Company, doing business in California FG"C
as FGIC Insurance Company

125 Park Avenue

New York, NY 10017

(212) 312-3000

(800) 352-0001

A GE Capital Company

Municipal Bond
New Issue Insurance Policy

for payment of interest. “Nonpayment” in respect of a Bond means the failure of the Issuer to have provided

sufficient funds to the paying agent for payment in full of all principal interest Due for Payment on such
Bond. “Notice” means telephonic or telegraphic notice, subsequent d in writing, or written notice by
0

registered or certified mail, from a Bondholder or a payin, r the Bonds to Financial Guaranty.
“Business Day” means any day other than a Saturday, S G@ on which the Fiscal Agent is authorized

signed by its duly authorized officer in @sile ecome effective and binding upon Financial Guaranty by
virtue of the countersignature of its duly au ed representative.

by law to remain closed. @

In Witness Whereof, Financial Guaranty ha%% olicy to be affixed with its corporate seal and to be
President

Effective Date: Authorized Representative

U.S. Bank Trust National Association, acknowledges that it has agreed to perform the duties of Fiscal Agent
under this Policy.

P

Authorized Officer

FGIC is a registered service mark used by Financial Guaranty Insurance Company under license from its parent company, FGIC Corporation.
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Financial Guaranty Insurance

Company, doing business in California FGIC
as FGIC Insurance Company

125 Park Avenue

New York, NY 10017

(212) 312-3000

(800) 352-0001

A GE Capital Company

Endorsement
To Financial Guaranty Insurance Company
Insurance Policy

Policy Number: Contr@nber: 0010001

It is further understood that the term “Nonpayment” in r ond includes any payment of principal or
interest made to a Bondholder by or on behalf of th ssueNk such Bond which has been recovered from such
Bondholder pursuant to the United States B gde by a trustee in bankruptcy in accordance with a

final, nonappealable order of a court hav%J Jurisdiction.

NOTHING HEREIN SHALL BE CONS ED TO WAIVE, ALTER, REDUCE OR AMEND COVERAGE
IN ANY OTHER SECTION OF THE POLICY. IF FOUND CONTRARY TO THE POLICY LANGUAGE,
THE TERMS OF THIS ENDORSEMENT SUPERSEDE THE POLICY LANGUAGE.

In Witness Whereof, Financial Guaranty has caused this Endorsement to be affixed with its corporate sealand to

be signed by its duly authorized officer in facsimile to become effective and binding upon Financial Guaranty by
virtue of the countersignature of its duly authorized representative.

President
Effective Date: Authorized Representative

Acknowledged as of the Effective Date written above:

Authorized Officer
U.S. Bank Trust National Association, as Fiscal Agent

FGIC is a registered service mark used by Financial Guaranty Insurance Company under license from its parent company, FGIC Corporation.
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Financial Guaranty Insurance

Company, doing business in California FG"C
as FGIC Insurance Company

125 Park Avenue

New York, NY 10017

(212) 312-3000

(800) 352-0001

A GE Capital Company

Mandatory California State
Amendatory Endorsement

To Financial Guaranty Insurance Company
Insurance Policy

\
Policy Number: Co% ber: 0010001

The insurance provided by this Policy is not :red the California Insurance Guaranty Association
(California Insurance Code, Article 14.2).

NOTHING HEREIN SHALL BE CON§D TO WAIVE, ALTER, REDUCE OR AMEND COVERAGE
IN ANY OTHER SECTION OF THE PO#CY. IF FOUND CONTRARY TO THE POLICY LANGUAGE,
THE TERMS OF THIS ENDORSEMENT SUPERSEDE THE POLICY LANGUAGE.

In Witness Whereof, Financial Guaranty has caused this Endorsement to be affixed with its corporate seal and to

be signed by its duly authorized officer in facsimile to become effective and binding upon Financial Guaranty by
virtue of the countersignature of its duly authorized representative.

President
Effective Date: Authorized Representative

Acknowledged as of the Effective Date written above:

g

Authorized Officer
U.S. Bank Trust National Association, as Fiscal Agent

FGIC is a registered servicemark used by Financial Guaranty Insurance Company under license from its parent company, FGIC Corporation.
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Financia] Guaranty Insurance

Company, doing business in California FG"C
as FGIC Insurance Company

125 Park Avenue

New York, NY 10017

(212) 312-3000

(800) 352-0001

A GE Capital Company

Mandatory California State
Amendatory Endorsement

To Financial Guaranty Insurance Company
Insurance Policy

Policy Number: ﬁol ;umber: 0010001

Notwithstanding the terms and conditions j j \2,3,'!_',,' it is further understood that there shall be no
acceleration of payment due under sucg y ss such acceleration is at the sole option of Financial
Guaranty.

NOTHING HEREIN SHALL BE CONSTRUED TO WAIVE, ALTER, REDUCE OR AMEND COVERAGE
IN ANY OTHER SECTION OF THE POLICY. IF FOUND CONTRARY TO THE POLICY LANGUAGE,
THE TERMS OF THIS ENDORSEMENT SUPERSEDE THE POLICY LANGUAGE.

In Witness Whereof, Financial Guaranty has caused this Endorsement to be affixed with its corporate seal and to

be signed by its duly authorized officer in facsimile to become effective and binding upon Financial Guaranty by
virtue of the countersignature of its duly authorized representative.

President
Effective Date: Authorized Representative

Acknowledged as of the Effective Date written above:

Authorized Officer
U.S. Bank Trust National Association, as Fiscal Agent

FGIC is a registered service mark used by Financial Guaranty Insurance Company under license from its parent company, FGIC Corporation.
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Financial Guaranty Insurance L
Company, doing business in California FGIC
as FGIC Insurance Company

125 Park Avenue

New York, NY 10017

(212) 312-3000

(800) 352-0001

A GE Capital Company

Endorsement
To Financial Guaranty Insurance Company
Insurance Policy

Policy Number: Control Nymber: 0010001

Notwithstanding the terms and provisions contained m}mé'g, it is further understood that the term

“Bondholder” shall not include the (as such teghis ed in the bond documentation).

IN ANY OTHER SECTION OF THE Y. IF FOUND CONTRARY TO THE POLICY LANGUAGE,

NOTHING HEREIN SHALL BE CON@ WAIVE, ALTER, REDUCE OR AMEND COVERAGE
THE TERMS OF THIS ENDORSEMEN PERSEDE THE POLICY LANGUAGE.

In Witness Whereof, Financial Guaranty has caused this Endorsement to be affixed with its corporate seal and to
be signed by its duly authorized officer in facsimile to become effective and binding upon Financial Guaranty by
virtue of the countersignature of its duly authorized representative.

El bt T (et

President
Effective Date: Authorized Representative

Acknowledged as of the Effective Date written above:

Authorized Officer
U.S. Bank Trust National Association, as Fiscal Agent

FGIC is a registered service mark used by Financial Guaranty Insurance Company under license from its parent company, FGIC Corporation.
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